
 

1 

 

             
 

AGENDA 
Board of Supervisors Room - County Administrative Center 

224 North Edwards, Independence, California 
 

NOTICES TO THE PUBLIC:  (1) This meeting is accessible to the public both in person and via Zoom webinar. Individual Board members may participate remotely in 
accordance with applicable open meeting law requirements. In-person meetings will be conducted in accordance with local and State Department of Public Health 
orders and guidance and requirements of the California Division of Occupational Safety and Health (CalOSHA). The Zoom webinar is accessible to the public at 
https://zoom.us/j/868254781. The meeting may also be accessed by telephone at the following numbers: (669) 900-6833; (346) 248-7799; (253) 215-8782; (929) 205-
6099; (301) 715-8592; (312) 626-6799. Webinar ID: 868 254 781. Anyone unable to attend the Board meeting in person who wishes to make either a general public 
comment or a comment on a specific agenda item prior to the meeting, or as the item is being heard, may do so either in writing or by utilizing the Zoom "hand-
raising” feature when appropriate during the meeting (the Chair will call on those who wish to speak). Generally, speakers are limited to three minutes. Written public 
comment, limited to 250 words or less, may be emailed to the Assistant Clerk of the Board at boardclerk@inyocounty.us. Your comments may or may not be read 
aloud, but all comments will be made a part of the record. Please make sure to submit a separate email for each item that you wish to comment upon. 

 
(2) In Compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this meeting please contact the Clerk of the Board at (760) 
878-0373 (28 CFR 35.102-35.104 ADA Title II). Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the County to make reasonable arrangements to ensure 
accessibility to this meeting. Should you because of a disability require appropriate alternative formatting of this agenda, please notify the Clerk of the Board 72 hours 
prior to the meeting to enable the County to make the agenda available in a reasonable alternative format. (Government Code Section 54954.2).  (2) If a writing, that is 
a public record relating to an agenda item for an open session of a regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors, is distributed less than 72 hours prior to the meeting, 
the writing shall be available for public inspection at the Office of the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors, 224 N. Edwards, Independence, California and is available per 
Government Code § 54957.5(b)(1). 

REGULAR MEETING 
February 7, 2023 

 

(Unless otherwise specified by time, items scheduled for either the morning or afternoon 
sessions will be heard according to available time and presence of interested persons.) 
 
Start Time  

 

8:30 A.M. 1) Public Comment on Closed Session Item(s)  
Comments may be time-limited 

  
 

CLOSED SESSION  
  

 

  2) Conference with County's Labor Negotiators – Pursuant to Government 
Code §54957.6 – Regarding employee organizations: Deputy Sheriff’s 
Association (DSA); Elected Officials Assistant Association (EOAA); Inyo 
County Correctional Officers Association (ICCOA); Inyo County Employees 
Association (ICEA); Inyo County Probation Peace Officers Association 
(ICPPOA); IHSS Workers; Law Enforcement Administrators’ Association 
(LEAA). Unrepresented employees: all. County designated representatives – 
Administrative Officer Nate Greenberg, Assistant County Administrators Sue 
Dishion and Meaghan McCamman, Deputy Personnel Director Keri Oney, 
County Counsel John-Carl Vallejo, Senior Budget Analyst Denelle Carrington, 
Health and Human Services Director Marilyn Mann, and Chief Probation Officer 
Jeff Thomson. 

  
 

  3) Public Employee Performance Evaluation – Pursuant to Government 
Code §54957 – Title: County Administrator. 

 
 

 

 

 

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
TRINA ORRILL  •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY  

 

 
DAN TOTHEROH   •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I NG S LE Y  

 
 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

NATE GREENBERG 
CO U NT Y ADM I NI ST R AT IV E O FF IC ER  

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

DARCY ELLIS 
AS S T .  CLE RK  O F T HE  BO ARD  

 

 

https://zoom.us/j/868254781
mailto:boardclerk@inyocounty.us


 

2 

 

  
 

OPEN SESSION (With the exception of timed items, which cannot be heard prior to their scheduled 
time, all open-session items may be considered at any time and in any order during the meeting in 
the Board’s discretion.) 

  
 

10 A.M. 4) Pledge of Allegiance 
  

 

  5) Report on Closed Session as Required by Law 
  

 

  6) Introductions - The following new employees will be introduced to the Board: 
Jennifer Mills, Office Technician II, Environmental Health; and Cathy Rigney, 
HHS Specialist II, and Melissa Witting, Administrative Assistant to the HHS 
Director, HHS. 

  
 

  7) County Department Reports 
  

 

  8) Public Comment  
Comments may be time-limited 

  
 

CONSENT AGENDA (Items that are considered routine and are approved in a single motion; 
approval recommended by the County Administrator) 

  
 

   

 9) Approval of Board of Supervisors Meeting Minutes 

  Clerk of the Board | Darcy Ellis 
 

Recommended Action: Request Board approve the minutes of the regular 
Board of Supervisors meetings of January 10 and January 17, and the special 
meeting of January 24, 2023.  

 

   

  
10) 

 
2023 Legislative Platform 

  County Administrator | Nate Greenberg 
 

Recommended Action: Request Board adopt the Inyo County 2023 Federal 
Legislative Platform.  

 

   

  
11) 

 
Acceptance of Local Agency Technical Assistance Grant 

  County Administrator - Information Services | Scott Armstrong 
 

Recommended Action: Request Board accept the Local Agency Technical 
Assistance (LATA) grant from the State of California, and authorize the 
Chairperson to sign the LATA Grant Consent Form. 

 

   

  
12) 

 
CPS Human Resources Agreement Amendment 

  County Administrator - Personnel | Keri Oney 
 

Recommended Action: Request Board ratify and approve the Amendment to 
the CPS HR Consulting services agreement with an updated term of January 5, 
2023 through March 31, 2023, and authorize the Assistant County 
Administrator to sign. 

 

   

  
 
 
 

 
 
 
 



 

3 

 

13) AB 361 Findings Regarding Remote Board of Supervisors Meetings 

  County Counsel | John Vallejo 
 

Recommended Action: Request Board adopt findings pursuant to AB 361 
that: A) the Board reconsidered the circumstances of the existing State of 
Emergency issued on March 4, 2020, in response to the COVID-19 pandemic; 
and B) local officials continue to recommend measures to promote social 
distancing, and/or the state of emergency continues to directly impact the ability 
of the members to meet safely in person.  

 

   

  
14) 

 
Data Sharing Agreement Provided by Cal HHS 

  Health & Human Services | Marilyn Mann 
 

Recommended Action: Request Board approve the Data Sharing Agreement 
between the County of Inyo and California Health and Human Services (Cal 
HHS) for the provision of data sharing policy and procedures issued statewide, 
and authorize the HHS Director to sign, contingent upon all appropriate 
signatures being obtained. 

 

   

  
15) 

 
Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Children’s Medical Services (CMS) Plan  

  Health & Human Services - Health/Prevention | Marilyn Mann 
 

Recommended Action: Request Board ratify and approve the CMS Plan for 
Fiscal Year 2022-2023 to ensure the continuation of children's medical services 
in Inyo County, and authorize the Chairperson to sign certification statements.  

 

   

  
16) 

 
Amendment  No. 1 to Helix Environmental Planning, Inc. Contract 

  Planning Department | Cathreen Richards 
 

Recommended Action: Request Board ratify and approve Amendment No.1 
to the contract between the County of Inyo and the Helix Environmental Group 
Inc. to amend Section 2 – Term  of the agreement to be April 1, 2022 through 
November 30, 2023; and, authorize the Chairperson to sign.  

 

   

  
17) 

 
Request to Reserve Portuguese Joe Campground 

  Public Works - Parks & Recreation | Michael Errante 
 

Recommended Action: Request Board approve the request from Mr. Allan 
Johnson to reserve all campsites at Portuguese Campground, October 5 
through October 8, 2023.  

 

   

  
18) 

 
Request to Reserve Tinnemaha Campground 

  Public Works - Parks & Recreation | Michael Errante 
 

Recommended Action: Request Board approve the request from the 
Moontribe Collective to reserve all campsites at Tinnemaha Creek 
Campground, June 1 through June 5, 2023.  

 

   

  
19) 

 
Road Closure for Frontier California Encroachment Permit E23-05 

  Public Works | Michael Errante 
 

Recommended Action: Request Board approve the closure of "C" Street, 
between Begole and East Locust streets in Lone Pine, between the hours of 



 

4 

 

8:30 a.m. and 4:00 p.m. on February 21-22, 2023 for the purpose of Frontier 
California installation of +/- 329 linear feet of aerial cable on existing aerial 
leads. 

 

   

  
20) 

 
Road Closure for T&T Truck and Crane Service Encroachment Permit 
E22-54 

  Public Works | Michael Errante 
 

Recommended Action: Request Board approve the closure of Highland Drive 
in Bishop, between the hours of 8:30 a.m and 4:00 p.m on Wednesday, 
February 22, 2023, for the purpose of Southern California Edison's use of a 
crane to replace utility poles.  

 

   

  
21) 

 
Amendment No. 1 to Cardno, Inc. Contract  

  Public Works | Michael Errante 
 

Recommended Action: Request Board approve Amendment No. 1 to the 
contract between the County of Inyo and Cardno, Inc of Zephyr Cove, NV, 
increasing the “Do Not Exceed” amount from $402,545.86 to $508,736.67, 
amending Attachment “A” Scope of Work, amending Attachment “B” Schedule 
of Fees, and amending Section 2 to change the end date of the contract from 
June 30, 2023 to October 31, 2024, for the Lone Pine Town Streets Project, 
and authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all appropriate 
signatures being obtained. 
  

 

REGULAR AGENDA - MORNING  

  
 

   

 22) Caltrans Presentation of the California Road Charge Pilot Study 

  Public Works | Justine Kokx 
40 minutes (20min. Presentation / 20min. Discussion) 
 

Recommended Action:  Request Board hear a presentation from Caltrans 
staff regarding the California Road Charge Pilot Study.  

 

   

  
23) 

 
Annual Appointment of Representatives to Tribal Consultation 
Committees 

  Planning Department | Cathreen Richards 
5 minutes (2.5min. Presentation / 2.5min. Discussion) 
 

Recommended Action: Request Board appoint two of its members to each of 
the five Tribal Consultation Committees, in accordance with the County's Tribal 
Consultation Policy (attached).  

 

   

  
24) 

 
Email Retention Policy 

  County Counsel | Grace Chuchla 
15 minutes (5min. Presentation / 10min. Discussion) 
 

Recommended Action: Request Board approve Resolution No. 2023-04 titled, 
"A Resolution of the Board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo, State of 
California, Adopting an Email Retention Policy," and authorize the Chairperson 

to sign.   
 

   
  

 
 
 



 

5 

 

 
25) 

 
Presentation on Inyo County Housing Efforts 

  County Administrator | Meaghan McCamman 
20 minutes (10min. Presentation / 10min. Discussion) 
 

Recommended Action:  Request Board receive presentation on the current 
status of Inyo County housing efforts and provide feedback to staff as 
appropriate.   

 

LUNCH  

  
 

    26) The Board will recess for lunch and reconvene for the afternoon session. 
  

 

REGULAR AGENDA - AFTERNOON  

  
 

   

 27) Presentation on Information Services Department 

  County Administrator - Information Services | Scott Armstrong 
30 minutes (20min. Presentation / 10min. Discussion) 
 

Recommended Action:  Request Board receive presentation on the Information 
Services Department. 

 

   

  
28) 

 
Presentation on the Office of the Public Administrator/Public Guardian 

  Public Administrator-Public Guardian | Patricia Barton 
20 minutes (15min. Presentation / 5min. Discussion) 
 

Recommended Action: Request Board hear presentation about the Office of 
the Public Administrator/Public Guardian.  

 

ADDITIONAL PUBLIC COMMENT & REPORTS  
  

 

  29) Public Comment  
Comments may be time-limited 

  
 

  30) Board Member and Staff Reports 
Receive updates on recent or upcoming meetings and projects 

  
 

CORRESPONDENCE - INFORMATIONAL  
  

 

  31) Treasurer-Tax Collector: Treasury Status Report - Quarter Ending December 31, 
2022 

  
 

  32) California Fish & Game Commission: A) Revised agenda for Feb. 8-9 
Commission meeting being held in Sacramento and via webinar; B) Notice of 
Proposed Changes in Regulations related to elk hunting; and C) Notice of 
Proposed Changes in Regulations related to waterfowl, migratory, American coot 
and common moorhen. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

February 7, 2023   Reference ID:  
2022-3387  

 

Pledge of Allegiance 
Clerk-Recorder 

 
   

ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
 

 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION:  
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding 
Source 

General Fund / Non-General Fund / Grant Funded 
(list grant funding sources here) 

Budget Unit  

Budgeted? Yes / No Object Code  
Recurrence One-Time Expenditure / Ongoing Expenditure  
Current Fiscal Year Impact 
 
Future Fiscal Year Impacts 
 
Additional Information 
 
 
ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:  
  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
None. 
  
ATTACHMENTS:  
  
APPROVALS: 
Darcy Ellis Created -  
Darcy Ellis 

 

Darcy Ellis 
 

Keri Oney 
 

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

John Vallejo 
 

Amy Shepherd 
 

Nate Greenberg 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

February 7, 2023   Reference ID:  
2023-3468  

 

Approval of Board of Supervisors Meeting Minutes 
Clerk of the Board 

 ACTION REQUIRED 
   

ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Assistant Clerk of the Board Darcy Ellis, Assistant Clerk of the Board/Public 

Relations Liaison 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Request Board approve the minutes of the regular Board of Supervisors meetings of January 10 and 
January 17, and the special meeting of January 24, 2023. 
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
The Board is required to keep minutes of its proceedings. Once the Board has approved the minutes as 
requested, the minutes will be made available to the public via the County’s webpage, 
www.inyocounty.us. 
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding 
Source 

N/A Budget Unit  

Budgeted? N/A Object Code  
Recurrence N/A  
Current Fiscal Year Impact 
 
Future Fiscal Year Impacts 
 
Additional Information 
 
 
ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
N/A 
  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
None. 
  
ATTACHMENTS:  

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D

https://www.inyocounty.us/government/publications-reports-plans-proclamations/meeting-agendas-minutes


 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

  
APPROVALS: 
Darcy Ellis Created/Initiated - 1/25/2023 
Darcy Ellis Final Approval - 1/25/2023 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

February 7, 2023   Reference ID:  
2023-3456  

 

2023 Legislative Platform 
County Administrator 

 ACTION REQUIRED 
   

ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Nate Greenberg, County Administrative Officer Nate Greenberg, County Administrative Officer 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Request Board adopt the Inyo County 2023 Federal Legislative Platform. 
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
Inyo County employs the services of The Ferguson Group, which specializes in representing public and 
private entities in Washington, D.C. in a wide array of capacities, including federal funding, grants, as 
well as legislative and regulatory issues.  
 
On January 17, Ms. More presented the Inyo County 2023 Federal Legislative Platform for Board 
approval, and the Board requested revisions at that time. The attached documents include those 
revisions. If approved, this document will be distributed to legislators to make them aware of our local, 
rural issues so they may better lobby for our interests. Adoption of this document also allows each Board 
member the flexibility to take the position identified in the document, on behalf of the Board, without 
waiting for a full vote of the Board. Conversely, when confronted with an issue that is not listed in this 
document, that issue will need Board approval before an Inyo County position may be presented in a 
letter or other form of advocacy. 
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding 
Source 

N/A Budget Unit  

Budgeted? N/A Object Code  
Recurrence N/A  
Current Fiscal Year Impact 
 
Future Fiscal Year Impacts 
 
Additional Information 
 
 
ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

Not approve. 
  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
None. 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Inyo County 2023 Federal Leg Agenda - Redline for final approval 
2. Inyo County 2023 Federal Leg Agenda - Clean for final approval 
  
APPROVALS: 
Darcy Ellis Created/Initiated - 1/31/2023 
Nate Greenberg Final Approval - 2/1/2023 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



        

     

Inyo County, CA
2023 Federal Platform
Approved by Board of Supervisors on February 7, 2023



[Type a quote from the document 
or the summary of an interesting 
point. You can position the text 
box anywhere in the document. 
Use the Text Box Tools tab to 
change the formatting of the pull 
quote text box.]

 

 

County of Inyo, CA

Board of Supervisors

Trina Orrill
First District

Jeff Griffiths
Second District

 
Scott Marcellin

Third District

Jennifer Roeser
Fourth District

Matt Kingsley
Fifth District

Nate Greenberg
County Administrative Officer
County Administrative Center

224 North Edwards
Independence, CA 93526



[Type a quote from the document 
or the summary of an interesting 
point. You can position the text 
box anywhere in the document. 
Use the Text Box Tools tab to 
change the formatting of the pull 
quote text box.]

County of Inyo, CA
2023 Federal Priorities

Rural and Isolated 
Communites

Economic 
Development

Resource & Land 
Management

Infrastructure

Inyo County was established on March 22, 1866 and is the second largest county in California at 10,227 
square miles. However, the County is sparsely populated with more than 19,000 calling it home. The 
community of Independence serves as the County Seat. Inyo County is a land of magnificent natural diversity, 
from Mount Whitney, the highest peak in the lower 48 states, to Death Valley, the lowest point in the 
U.S.  Inyo County has a rich indigenous history, as well as a legacy that also traces its roots to pioneering, 
mining, railroading, ranching, and farming. Much of this history is not only on display today in museums and 
cultural centers throughout the County, but in the culture, livelihoods, and family trees of those who call Inyo 
County home. Robust in natural resources and beauty, Inyo County strives to support the cultural and 
historical values of its communities, protect and enhance its natural environment, and preserve a rural quality 
of life.



Rural and Isolated Communities

•Seek funding and support programs that provide services to 
isolated communities including construction of  community 
facilities.

Isolated Communities

•Seek funding and support programs to improve access to health 
services including mental health, substance abuse programs, 
emergency services, community health clinics, and hospitals.

Health and Well Being

•Support and seek funding for projects and programs that support 
emergency and disaster preaparendess, response and 
management.

Emergency Response

•Support funding and programs for public safety initatives including 
search and rescue activities, law enforcment communications, and 
public safety equipment.

Public Safety

•Seek funding and support programs for fire protection 
enhancements including ensuring community access to fire 
stations and fire fighting services.

Fire Protection

•Support funding and programs for the construction programming 
of projects for community museums, libraries, and parks.

Community Facilities and 
Parks

•Support programs that provide assistance to the County's younger 
populations including access to early childhood education services, 
afterschool programming, and juvenile justice programs.

Youth Population

•Sustaining Advanced Life Support (ALS) and Basic Life Support 
(BLS) ambulance service in rural and isolated communities is 
complex and expensive. Seek funding and support programs that 
develop and support the elements necessary to make such an 
initiative successful.

Emergency Medical 
Services

•Seek funding to enhance services to the County's veterans, 
including through the veterans center and veterans housing.Veterans Services

•Support programs and seek funding for services that assist the 
County's aging population.Aging Population



Economic Development

• Support development of plan and strategy to encourage 
private investment in public infrastructure projects through 
programs such as the Opportunity Zone private tax 
incentives.

Opportunity Zones

• Monitor U.S. Census development process in particular to 
definitions and impacts to rural communities. U.S. Census

• Support development, expansion, and implementation of 
regional broadband initiatives which construct Middle Mile 
routes and focus on deployment of high-quality Last Mile 
broadband to customers.

Digital 395 and Statewide 
Middle-Mile Initiatives

• Support development and expansion of Bishop Airport to 
increase services of commercial and general aviation uses 
that support and spur regional economic development.

Bishop Airport

• Advocate and support initiatives and programs that provide 
additional housing and encourage diversity in housing 
availability in the County.

Housing

• Support programs and activities that enhance and protect 
tourism in the region and recreation on federal lands and 
within federal parks. Support programs that provide 
assistance to local economies based on tourism and 
recreation.

Recreation and Tourism

• Support programs and activities that prioritize funding for 
initatives based on collaborative partnerships between local 
agencies and Tribal entities.

Tribal Partnerships

• Support programs and activities that provide assistance to 
small businesses and promote entrepreneurism. Small Businesses



Resource and Land Management

• Support legislation and budget efforts that continue to 
maximize the Payment in Lieu of Taxes (PILT) and Secure 
Rural Schools (SRS) programs.

PILT Funding

• Support programs that enhance fuel management activities 
on federal lands.Fuels Management

• Support funding for federal lands management agencies and 
programs.Federal Lands Management

• Support programs that help prevent, mitigate, and respond 
to wildfires.Wildfire Preparedness

• Seek funding and support programs that protect and 
enhance recreational activities on public lands.Recreation

• Support efforts that foster partnerships and enhance 
relationships with local agencies and federal land 
management agencies including the Inyo National Forest, 
the National Park Service, and the Bureau of Land 
Management.

Federal Land 
Management Agencies

• Seek support of changes to mining claims forms that allow 
for efficient and timely filing of mining claims. Mining Industry

• Support administrative and regulatory procedures, including 
banking, related to the cannabis industry that protect local 
authority and protect the public. 

Cannabis



Infrastructure

• Seek funding and support programs that delivery reliable 
and clean drinking water through resilient infrastructure. Drinking Water

• Seek funding and support programs that provide 
wastewater treatment infrastructure and services to 
communities in a cost efficient matter.

Wastewater Infrastructure

• Seek funding and suppport programs for local 
transportation projects throughout the County including 
those related to highways, local streets and roads, trails, 
transit, pedestrians, and electric vehicles.

Local Transportation 
Projects

• Seek funding for broadband expansion, broadband 
adoption, telecommunications improvements, technology 
infrastructure projects, and other technology advancements 
throughout the County. Seek funding and support programs 
to provide communication infrastructure, including 
broadband and cellular services to remote rural 
communities.

Broadband and 
Connectivity

• Support changes to federal law that encourage a more 
efficient and streamlined environmental review and project 
delivery process and allow public infrastructure projects to 
be constructed more efficiently and effectively.

Environmental Review and 
Project Delivery

• Seek funding and support programs that provide electric 
and power utility services to communities in a cost effecient 
manner.

Electric and 
Power Utilities



County of Inyo, California

2023 Legislative Platform

AGRICULTURE/WEIGHTS & MEASURES 
1. Support full cost recovery for new agricultural programs.

2. Support continued funding of weed management programs.

3. Support authority for USDA to set up cooperative agreements with states for pest exclusion programs. 

4. Support control and mitigation for the spread of invasive species to protect, conserve and restore 
public and private lands.  

5. Support efforts to provide and protect local authority for device registration fees. 

6. Oppose efforts by State agencies to usurp Agricultural Commissioner’s permitting authority for the 
spraying of pesticides on irrigated lands.

7. Oppose efforts to ban the use of rodenticide for agricultural and public health purposes in California. 

CANNABIS 
1. Oppose legislation that would diminish local authority over commercial cannabis regulation.

2. Support legislation that provides the state’s tribes a mechanism for entering California’s legal cannabis 
marketplace without sacrificing their sovereign status, while also preserving local governments’ right to 
protect against or require mitigation for associated impacts to their jurisdictions from any commercial 
cannabis activity on adjacent lands, including Tribal land.

3. Support a statewide regulatory scheme for medical cannabis and/or adult use cannabis that ensures 
counties have the ability to set regulatory standards based on local needs and priorities, and seek to 
ensure the County is adequately resourced as regulations and state laws are implemented. 

4. Support efforts to study the impacts of cannabis use and legalization on the public’s health, particularly 
on the impacts on youth brain development. 

5. Support legislation to increase cannabis surveillance, education, youth prevention, responsible adult 
use, and drugged driving prevention. 



6. Support efforts to mitigate community level harms from commercial cannabis operations, such as 
overconcentration as well as clustering with alcohol and tobacco retailers.

7. Support continued Federal and State funding to aid local jurisdictions in the eradication of illegal, 
environmentally destructive marijuana grow operations on public and/or private land. 

8. Monitor legislation establishing policy programming requirements for education and environmental 
prevention efforts for Cannabis. 

9. Oppose policy programming requirements for education and environmental prevention efforts for 
Cannabis Tobacco Control funding that mirror those established for Tobacco Control funding.  

CHILD SUPPORT
1. Support legislation that would protect existing State and Federal funding for local child support 

programs.

2. Support policies, funding and services for non-custodial parents that promote self-sufficiency and 
ability to care for their child(ren).

3. Oppose any recommendations that would reduce Federal financial participation in child support 
programs. 

COUNTY OPERATIONS
1. Support full funding of the Public Library Fund in future State budgets. 

2. Support legislation to provide opt-in as opposed to opt-out for receiving electronic sample ballots.    

3. Support legislation that requires counties to be reimbursed for the cost of special elections called by 
the Governor or Legislature. 

4. Support efforts to reinstate language directing the state to provide reimbursement to counties that hold 
a special election to replace a member of Congress or a member of the state Legislature to fill a 
vacancy, as well as for the cost of special elections called for other reasons. 

5. Support legislation that would authorize Federal and State Governments to assist counties in the 
purchase of voting equipment and technology. 

6. Support the continued exemption of rural counties from Organics Recycling Mandates.

7. Support legislation that provides additional State park funding to rural counties.

8. Support legislation that requires the Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery to consider the 
impacts on jurisdictions and their waste diversion programs caused by China’s restrictions on imported 
recyclables and the resulting market loss.

9. Support legislation, such as the California Beverage Container Recycling and Litter Reduction Act of 
2018, to stabilize the recycling marketplace, provide immediate, temporary relief to California’s retailers 



and grocers affected by the 2016 recycling center closures, and ensure consumers have local 
redemption opportunities.

10. Support legislation that provides the option for rural counties to conduct elections via “Vote by Mail 
while also enfranchising rural voters. 

11. Support legislation that expands the ability of counties to conduct all of their elections via all-mail 
balloting. 

GENERAL GOVERNMENT
1. Support legislation that realigns governmental services in such a manner as to improve the delivery of 

services and make government more accountable to the people of Inyo County. 

2. Support legislation that raises standards of required training for elected and appointed department 
heads in areas such as finance, personnel and management.

3. Support collective bargaining legislation that:

• Recognizes the responsibility of local elected officials to govern and manage the organization and 
to implement public policy; and

• Minimizes conflict over procedural matters.

4. Support legislation that recognizes the inherent disadvantage rural counties have as it applies to using 
a population-based criteria (per capita) for allocating State and Federal funds and minimizes and/or 
eliminates the reliance on this funding criteria.

5. Oppose legislation that minimizes, restricts and/or eliminates local Boards of Supervisors control over 
collective bargaining and employer-employee relations.

6. Oppose legislation that minimizes, restricts and/or eliminates local Boards of Supervisors control over 
the allocation of funds through the budget process.

7. Oppose legislation that would require counties to share State expenses and liability on projects outside 
local jurisdiction. 

8. Support legislation that reduces State and Federal regulations that impede, or increase the cost of the 
delivery of services by local governments and special districts. 

9. Monitor closely any legislative efforts/initiatives regarding reform of the State Budget process.

10. Oppose legislation that is unduly burdensome to private industry.  

11. Support protection of funding discretion and use bond funds.

12. Oppose efforts by Federal and State government to adversely impact the ability of Volunteer Fire 
Departments to provide critical first response and ambulance services in rural communities, including 
but not limited to recruiting and retaining qualified EMTs. 

13. Support broadband expansion, broadband adoption, telecommunications improvements, technology 
infrastructure projects, and other technology advancements. 



14. Support full funding of disaster relief for all eligible counties, and a return to State assistance for the 
large portion of the costs of state or federally declared disasters. 

15. Oppose any changes to, or limitations upon, the eligibility for receipt of disaster costs, especially tying 
county land use processes and decision-making to disaster relief funding. 

16. Support State tax relief for those individuals and businesses who have losses due to disaster. 

17. Support legislation that would allow “a contracting agency and the exclusive representative of employees 
of that agency to agree through collective bargaining that the employer contribution for employee and 
annuitant health benefits coverage for employees first hired on or after the effective date of a 
memorandum of understanding may differ from the employer contribution provided to existing employees 
and annuitants pursuant to Sections 22890 and 22892” and any other legislation that will permit the 
County to take advantage of a multi-tier benefit package through Public Employees Retirement System 
(PERS). 

18. Oppose legislation that would hinder, as a result of mandated redactions or any other alterations of 
recorded documents, a private citizen’s ability to establish ownership of real property or conduct private 
or commercial business operations.

19. Oppose legislation that eliminates, diminishes, limits, or interferes with the nonprofit organizations that 
the County has membership in, i.e., the California State Association of Counties (CSAC), Rural County 
Representatives of California (RCRC), State Sheriff’s Association, Chief Probation Officers Association, 
State Welfare Directors Association, etc., in actively participating in the legislative and ballot measure 
processes. (Added by Board Order 8-20-13)

20. Oppose legislation that increases the County’s exposure to litigation.

21. Oppose legislation that removes local governments’ discretion over wireless structures or restricts such 
discretion to the point that it could negatively impact rural communities’ aesthetics, public safety, the 
environment, and property values, and/or prevent local governments from negotiating either rates or 
improved broadband services as a condition of a “small cell” permit.

22. Support legislation and regulations that preserve – and do not impair – the ability of counties to provide 
public health, safety, welfare or environmental services by local government. 

23. Support expanded permission to use private contracts to provide local services in justifiable areas as a 
means of achieving efficiency and economy. 



HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
1. Monitor State and Federal health care reform proposals with fiscal impacts to the County and private 

employers and citizens, and that limit, reduce or discontinue health care coverage for Inyo County 
residents. 

2. Monitor the California Children’s Services program and seek protections against increased county 
program costs.

3. Monitor  legislation that funds pilot efforts in MediCal payment reform to result in whole person care 
and fully integrated behavioral health and health services.

4. Monitor legislation to address opioid addiction, including the expansion of Medication Assisted 
Treatment and allows for Medicaid reimbursement in the jail setting.

5. Monitor legislation to change the definition of “gravely disabled” and to clarify Welfare and Institutions 
code 5150.

6. Monitor State and Federal health care proposals with fiscal impacts to the County and private 
employers.

7. Monitor the County Medical Services Program (CMSP) program and Support efforts to protect 
funding, minimize the participation fee paid by counties, and sustain reasonable reimbursement rates to 
providers in an effort to retain them in small counties.  (Ensure CMSP infrastructure is maintained in 
event unknown health care policy changes occur at Federal level.)

8. Monitor legislation that further mandates increased benefits/salaries for the local In-Home Support 
Services Program (IHSS) that are not covered by the State.

9. Monitor policy and legislative initiatives involving managed Medi-Cal to ensure rural, isolated counties 
medical caregiver capacity issues are not negatively impacted.

10. Monitor the implementation of simplifying Medi-Cal and enrollment for participants and providers. 

11. Support blended funding across human service programs, i.e. non-categorical. 

12. Support legislation that allows maximum local flexibility to design human services programs, based on 
the needs of the communities served. 

13. Support increased allocation of subsidized childcare funding. 

14. Support legislation and local, State, and Federal programs that employ evidence-based best practice 
strategies to reduce the number of people experiencing homelessness by: preventing homelessness for 
those at risk; expanding affordable permanent housing; and promoting self-empowerment through 
counseling, job training, and other supportive services.

15. Support funding of affordable short-term, transitional and permanent housing capacity.

16. Support legislation that supports parity of funding for behavioral health issues, ensuring that both 
mental health and substance use disorder treatment are funded on par with physical health treatment 
needs.  



17. Support legislation that provides or increases a minimum base allocation (MBA) to small counties to 
sustain treatment for alcohol and drug addiction.

18. Support legislation that addresses behavioral health workforce needs, as statewide agencies are 
challenged in meeting treatment capacity in both Mental Health and Substance Use Disorder treatment 
providers.  This would include legislation such as Peer (someone with lived experience) Certification 
(SB 906); Mental Health workforce planning (AB2108), which expands the persons eligible for 
educational loan repayment program; and Substance Use workforce expansion (AB2804), which 
creates one-year and five-year plans to expand the SUD treatment workforce with incentives like 
stipends and loan repayment programs for counselors, peers and licensed professionals.  

19. Support legislation that reduces administrative burden for small counties and allows for flexibility such 
as regionalization of administrative tasks.

20. Support legislation that increases use of telehealth for Drug Medi-Cal services.

21. Support the Stepping Up Initiative and legislation that diverts persons with mental illness from the 
criminal justice system.

22. Support legislation that increases the transparency and consistency of financial reporting for the 
Mental Health Services Act. 

23. Support legislation to fund suicide prevention efforts, including those targeted at youth, LGBTQ and 
Veterans.

24. Support legislation to build on Continuum of Care Reform to address foster youth crisis response. 

25. Support legislation that promotes service integration, such as development of automated, central 
statistical case records for all human service programs and information sharing across human service 
programs.

26. Support legislation that allows for funding allocations to have increased local control and flexibility to 
design human services programs based on the needs of the communities served.

27. Support and advocate for any “new” funding to have a base allocation formula for the Twenty Small 
Counties.

28. Support and advocate for State to fully fund the administrative costs associated with all state 
mandated programs (e.g., Child Welfare, Medi-Cal, Public Assistance).

29. Support legislation that fully funds the requirements of the Continuum of Care Reform (CCR) including 
Resource Family Approval, Level of Care Assessments, Child and Family Team Meetings and other 
services that protect the physical, emotional and mental health of children and youth; promote their 
educational development, and ensure the availability of support services for juveniles.

30. Support legislation and budget initiatives that recognize the growth of needs in our aging population, 
including increased funding to support Adult Protective Services and other aging services programs.  

31. Support legislation that revamps In Home Supportive Services in a manner that reduces fiscal and 
administrative impact on counties and reduces risk of fraud/abuse.   

32. Support legislation that consolidates State offices providing administrative oversight, or otherwise 
streamlines and/or reduces the administrative costs of Health and Human Services programs.



33. Support and protect funding for public health mandates, and advocate for maintaining sufficient health 
realignment funding to ensure that Inyo County has the resources to meet its obligation to fulfill its 
statutory public health and indigent health care mandates.

34. Support measures that enhance the communities’ ability to deliver services through their hospitals and 
clinics; favor proposals that would provide for the continued expansion of community Federally 
Qualified Health Clinics (FQHCs).

35. Support efforts to make and retain State or Federal financial participation available in the funding of 
medical facilities and medical care for inmates in county correctional facilities that were realigned to 
counties on October 1, 2011.

36. Support increased and flexible State and Federal funding and resources directed at building the 
capacity of local public health departments to combat and control communicable diseases. 

37. Support proposals to expand access to dental health services for low-income Californians, including 
efforts to increase Denti-Cal reimbursement levels to encourage qualified dentists to participate in 
providing care to low-income children.

38. Support strategies to streamline funding and program complexities of the California Children’s 
Services (CCS) program in order to meet the demands of the complex medical care and treatment 
needs for children with certain physically disabling conditions. 

39. Support opportunities to “realign” county share of cost for the California Children’s Services (CCS) 
program back to the State.

40. Support and advocate for changes to laws and regulations governing prehospital emergency medical 
services, including ambulance services, that would increase the ability of volunteer EMS services to 
attract and retain qualified EMS staff. 

41. Support fair and equitable funding to local health departments for public health emergency 
preparedness (PHEP), ensuring there is a base level available for rural counties, and Oppose any 
funding reductions for PHEP at the federal level, as well as any efforts to shift program costs to local 
health departments.

42. Support efforts to prevent or reduce the use of tobacco and its accompanying health and economic 
impacts on the state and its residents.

43. Oppose any efforts to require counties to provide funding for the California Children’s Services 
program beyond their Maintenance of Effort (MOE).

44. Oppose any efforts to reduce funding to Inyo First 5 on the assumption that the First 5 commission will 
fill the revenue gap created by the withdrawal of State funds (i.e., supplantation).

45. Oppose further Medicaid/Medi-Cal reductions at either the Federal or State level without data-driven 
analysis and advocate for sufficient resources provided to local jurisdictions to respond to changes in 
the health care landscape at the federal and state levels.

46. Oppose proposals from the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS), Congress, or the 
Legislature to deny, reduce, cap, or eliminate Medi-Cal Administrative Activities/Targeted Case 
Management reimbursement or to make claiming more reimbursements administratively burdensome.



47. Oppose legislation that further mandates increased employee benefits/salaries for the local In-Home 
Support Services Program (IHSS) that are not covered by the State. 

48. Opposes legislative “fixes” to the Maintenance of Effort costs for In-Home Support Services Program 
that cause negative budget impacts to other Health and Human Services programming (Social 
Services, Health and Behavioral Health) does not experience negative budget impacts.   

49. Oppose efforts that create disincentives to Medi-Cal enrollment and utilization, such as co-payments 
and premiums, seek ways to expand access to dental services, maximize Federal financial participation 
and increase provider rates.

50. Oppose any legislative efforts/initiatives to reopen the realignment legislation or legislation that 
negatively affects Inyo County’s health and human services realignment funds.

TRANSPORTATION AND PUBLIC WORKS
1. Support transportation funding legislation that:

• Provides revenues without affecting funding sources of other county projects;

• Continues Federal funding efforts for local transportation projects; 

• Reaffirms and continues State responsibility for highway financing;

• Bolsters the multiple transportation funding sources that provide for improved transportation 
systems and multimodal networks, including SB 1 as enacted, and delivery of projects that 
rehabilitate and improve local roads;

• Supports and encourages the use and development of transit facilities and infrastructure.

2. Support any legislation efforts that assist the County in mitigating for the transportation of transuranic 
waste to the Nevada Test Site, Yucca Mountain, or other selected sites through California on routes 
located in or transecting Inyo County. Specifically, funding and assistance is needed in several areas 
including road and infrastructure improvements, first responder training, radiological detection 
instruments and training and emergency medical and hospital training.  

3. Support State legislators’ efforts to address identified State highway safety needs in our        
communities.

4. Support State and Federal legislation efforts that benefit our local airports.

5. Oppose legislation that changes public contracting laws in a manner in which it negatively impacts the 
County’s contract authority and/or increases costs to the County and/or unduly lengthens the time it 
takes for the County to enter into a Public Works Contract.

6. Support legislation that enhances counties’ ability to designate appropriate uses of county roads.

7. Oppose the effort to repeal SB 1, which would result in the loss of new transportation funds and make 
it more difficult to raise State and local transportation funds in the future.

8. Support legislation that provides funding opportunities to coordinate Transportation Plans with the 
County’s General Plan.



9. Support legislation that provides funding to sustain and expand the region’s public transit system.

10. Support legislation that supports interregional and intercity bus lines that connect with the County’s 
transit system.

11. Support reauthorization and implementation of federal aviation policy at the State level to ensure that 
California continues to receive and dedicate investments to support commercial and general aviation 
airports.

RESOURCES AND ENVIRONMENT
1. Support legislation to provide funding to local governments to create programs to protect river 

parkways and to reclaim damaged river habitat.

2. Monitor legislation that protects and enhances rural counties’ natural and developed resources that 
contribute to the economic and environmental well-being of Inyo County.

3. Support legislation for the development of programs and strategies that will accomplish the non-land 
acquisition of reinvestment dollars for watershed management, groundwater basins, fisheries and 
waterways.

4. Support Federal funding proposals that enhance County ability to acquire Federal and State funding 
for the purpose of managing watersheds et al.

5. Support legislation that clarifies and/or preserves local authority to protect public roads. 

6. Support legislation to provide adequate funding for meeting all of the requirements of the California 
Global Warming Solutions Act of 2006 and the Sustainable Communities and Climate Protection Act of 
2008.

7. Oppose activities of the Federal and State government to acquire and transfer private lands to public 
ownership without continued mitigation for loss of local property tax revenue. 

8. Oppose Federal or State activities limiting public access to public lands. 

9. Support legislation which promotes and/or provides monetary aid to local jurisdictions for land use 
coordination with State and Federal agencies. 

10. Oppose any legislation which eliminates or diminishes the requirement for Federal and State land use 
agencies to coordinate with local government on decisions affecting the plans and policies of local 
jurisdictions. 

11. Support legislation which identifies the impacts of catastrophic wildfires and provides that wildfire 
mitigation and prevention are goals that meet the requirements of the California Global Warming 
Solutions Act. 

12. Support legislation which maintains Inyo County’s ability to protect and enhance its land use authority 
to determine the use of its natural resources, including but not limited to mining, water storage, 
renewable energy, and agricultural resources.

13. Monitor efforts to create additional or expand existing wilderness designations in the County. 



14. Monitor efforts by Federal and State government to increase fees for and reduce and/or eliminate fire 
protection services on public lands. 

15. Support legislation that protects those local jurisdictions that operate and deliver and store water that 
recognize and address mussel infestation early on from liability as a result of mussel infestation. 

16. Oppose any legislation that could negatively impact outdoor recreation. (Added by Board Order 8-21-
2012). 

17. Support State’s Renewable Energy Portfolio Standard being re-calculated to include roof-top solar.

18. Oppose legislation that makes CEQA/NEPA requirements more burdensome and provides for less 
public notification in the county where the projects are located. 

19. Support legislation that reforms wildfire suppression funding, prevents “fire transfers” within firefighting 
budgets, and gives agencies in charge of fire suppression more budget flexibility. 

20. Support legislation that recognizes, funds and protects the ecological resources of the Sierra Nevada 
as part of the effort to reach California’s Climate Change goals. 

21. Support increased funding for public land management agencies to address deferred maintenance of 
infrastructure in forests, national parks, and reserves that rural counties depend on for tourism and 
recreation-based economies. 

22. Support realistic federal policy and regulatory reforms that balance environmental protection with the 
preservation of life and property and that lead to better mitigation of wildfires on federal, State, and 
private lands. 

23. Support legislation to remove State tax exemptions for solar energy development facilities.

24. Support and encourage efforts that streamline the process for obtaining permits from State, Federal 
and local land management agencies for activities such as livestock grazing, commercial filming, 
guiding and outfitting, packing, and special events. 

PLANNING AND LAND USE
1. Support legislation and budget efforts that continue to maximize the Payment in Lieu of Taxes (PILT) 

revenue from the Federal and State government to counties and continues full funding of PILT without 
restrictions beyond the current authorization.

2. Oppose legislation that minimizes and/or eliminates local control over land use decisions.

3. Support legislative efforts to enable local governments, utilities, energy developers, California Native 
American tribal governments, affected landowners and members of the public to actively participate in 
the renewable energy and utility corridor planning processes.

4. Support legislation which reduces and/or eliminates State requirements regarding the General Plan 
and its updates.

5. Oppose legislation which limits or reduces the authority of counties under the State Mining and 
Reclamation Act (SMARA). 



6. Support legislation which promotes and/or provides monetary aid to local jurisdictions for land use 
coordination with State and Federal agencies. 

7. Oppose any legislation which eliminates or diminishes the requirement for Federal and State land use 
agencies to coordinate with local government on decisions affecting the plans and policies of local 
jurisdictions.

8. Support legislation, which maintains Inyo County’s ability to protect and enhance its land use authority 
to determine the highest and best use of its natural resources.

9. Support legislation that protects and/or reinstates the payment of geothermal royalties to local 
jurisdictions.

10. Support legislation that provides funding opportunities to local jurisdictions to implement State General 
Plan requirements.

LAW, JUSTICE & PUBLIC SAFETY
1. Support legislation that maximizes county discretion in developing programs for juveniles.

2. Support legislation that eliminates the requirement that counties pay for court reporter transcripts.

3. Support Federal and State funding to combat the impacts of controlled substance production, 
distribution, and use, including the ongoing opioid addiction crisis. 

4. Support legislation that would allow counties to enact an ordinance to allow up to a $10 penalty 
assessment for every $100 fine for criminal offense, including traffic fines, for the maintenance and 
purchase of Law Enforcement facilities and vehicles. 

5. Oppose any changes in the State criminal justice system that increases costs to counties for jail 
operations, including but not limited to early releases of prisoners, commutation of sentences and/or 
commutation of variable sentencing options (i.e., wobblers), without a corresponding dedicated long-
term reliable revenue stream and the ability to administer it locally.

6. Watch proposed changes to State and Federal water law. 

7. Support legislation that will complete the work initiated through the Trial Court Unification Act by 
making justice system costs that are controlled or imposed by the judiciary but inadvertently remain the 
responsibilities of the counties the clear responsibility of the State of California and the California 
Superior Court to fund.

8. Support efforts to increase and/or preserve funding allocations to support criminal justice realignment 
costs including inmate healthcare and jail expense costs. 

9. Support Federal and State funding and programs to provide comprehensive, effective mental health 
and substance abuse treatment programs for criminal defendants, thereby reducing recidivism and 
protecting the public.

10. Watch proposed bail system reform efforts in California to ensure full state funding of any new pre-trial 
release and supervision requirements.



11. Support legislation and policies to improve re-entry options for adult and juvenile probationers, 
including housing.

12. Support legislation and policies to expand and enhance Evidence-Based Programs available to clients.

13. Support legislation and policies that will allow for continued investment in community corrections 
training.

14. Support legislation to bolster flexible policies and resources for drug treatment and mental health 
services for probationers.

15. Support legislation and policies to protect resources that support foster youth in Continuum of Care 
Reform.

16. Support legislation and policies that ensure resources for supervision, rehabilitative programming, and 
re-entry services for adult and juvenile offenders.

17. Support legislation and policies to preserve and provide resources at the Federal, State, and local level 
for effective community supervision practices.

18. Support legislation that enhances educational programs for adult and juvenile offenders.

19. Support legislation which will provide funding for probation services provided to drug offenders, and 
mentally ill incarcerated offenders.

20. Support legislation to authorize local probation departments to collect outstanding victim restitution 
through the civil process.

TRIBE AND INTERGOVERNMENTAL RELATIONS 
1. Support the following goals for county-tribal intergovernmental relations:

• facilitate intergovernmental agreements

• develop mechanisms to mitigate for the off-reservation impacts of tribal developments on local 
government services and the environment

• promote best practices and models of successful tribal-county relationships. 

2. Support the promotion and development of positive working relationships between the County and 
local tribes to the mutual benefit of both parties and the communities they respectively serve. 

3. Support legislation or policy that provides for or recognizes enforceable agreements between tribes 
and local governments concerning the mitigation of off-reservation impacts of development on tribal 
land.

4. Oppose any federal or state limitation on the ability of tribes, counties and other local governments to 
reach mutually acceptable and enforceable agreements, including any federal prohibitions on deed 
restrictions mutually agreed to by tribal and local governments. 



VETERANS’ SERVICES 
1. Support legislation and efforts that ensure access to the services and benefits to which veterans are 

entitled, including housing, healthcare, employment, education and training, and community 
reintegration assistance. 

2. Support legislation that provides funding for veterans housing programs, such as the Veterans and 
Affordable Housing Bond Act of 2018.

3. Support the development of specific strategies for intervention and service delivery to veterans through 
cooperation between federal, state, and local governments, as well as community and private 
organizations serving veterans. 

4. Support coordination of services for veterans among all entities that serve this population, especially in 
housing, treatment, and employment training. 

 



        

     

Inyo County, CA
2023 Federal Platform
Approved by Board of Supervisors on February 7, 2023



[Type a quote from the document 
or the summary of an interesting 
point. You can position the text 
box anywhere in the document. 
Use the Text Box Tools tab to 
change the formatting of the pull 
quote text box.]

 

 

County of Inyo, CA

Board of Supervisors

Trina Orrill
First District

Jeff Griffiths
Second District

 
Scott Marcellin

Third District

Jennifer Roeser
Fourth District

Matt Kingsley
Fifth District

Nate Greenberg
County Administrative Officer
County Administrative Center

224 North Edwards
Independence, CA 93526



[Type a quote from the document 
or the summary of an interesting 
point. You can position the text 
box anywhere in the document. 
Use the Text Box Tools tab to 
change the formatting of the pull 
quote text box.]

County of Inyo, CA
2023 Federal Priorities

Rural and Isolated 
Communites

Economic 
Development

Resource & Land 
Management

Infrastructure

Inyo County was established on March 22, 1866 and is the second largest county in California at 10,227 
square miles. However, the County is sparsely populated with more than 19,000 calling it home. The 
community of Independence serves as the County Seat. Inyo County is a land of magnificent natural diversity, 
from Mount Whitney, the highest peak in the lower 48 states, to Death Valley, the lowest point in the 
U.S.  Inyo County has a rich indigenous history, as well as a legacy that also traces its roots to pioneering, 
mining, railroading, ranching, and farming. Much of this history is not only on display today in museums and 
cultural centers throughout the County, but in the culture, livelihoods, and family trees of those who call Inyo 
County home. Robust in natural resources and beauty, Inyo County strives to support the cultural and 
historical values of its communities, protect and enhance its natural environment, and preserve a rural quality 
of life.



Rural and Isolated Communities

•Seek funding and support programs that provide services to 
isolated communities including construction of  community 
facilities.

Isolated Communities

•Seek funding and support programs to improve access to health 
services including mental health, substance abuse programs, 
emergency services, community health clinics, and hospitals.

Health and Well Being

•Support and seek funding for projects and programs that support 
emergency and disaster preaparendess, response and 
management.

Emergency Response

•Support funding and programs for public safety initatives including 
search and rescue activities, law enforcment communications, and 
public safety equipment.

Public Safety

•Seek funding and support programs for fire protection 
enhancements including ensuring community access to fire 
stations and fire fighting services.

Fire Protection

•Support funding and programs for the construction programming 
of projects for community museums, libraries, and parks.

Community Facilities and 
Parks

•Support programs that provide assistance to the County's younger 
populations including access to early childhood education services, 
afterschool programming, and juvenile justice programs.

Youth Population

•Sustaining Advanced Life Support (ALS) and Basic Life Support 
(BLS) ambulance service in rural and isolated communities is 
complex and expensive. Seek funding and support programs that 
develop and support the elements necessary to make such an 
initiative successful.

Emergency Medical 
Services

•Seek funding to enhance services to the County's veterans, 
including through the veterans center and veterans housing.Veterans Services

•Support programs and seek funding for services that assist the 
County's aging population.Aging Population



Economic Development

• Support development of plan and strategy to encourage 
private investment in public infrastructure projects through 
programs such as the Opportunity Zone private tax 
incentives.

Opportunity Zones

• Monitor U.S. Census development process in particular to 
definitions and impacts to rural communities. U.S. Census

• Support development, expansion, and implementation of 
regional broadband initiatives which construct Middle Mile 
routes and focus on deployment of high-quality Last Mile 
broadband to customers.

Digital 395 and Statewide 
Middle-Mile Initiatives

• Support development and expansion of Bishop Airport to 
increase services of commercial and general aviation uses 
that support and spur regional economic development.

Bishop Airport

• Advocate and support initiatives and programs that provide 
additional housing and encourage diversity in housing 
availability in the County.

Housing

• Support programs and activities that enhance and protect 
tourism in the region and recreation on federal lands and 
within federal parks. Support programs that provide 
assistance to local economies based on tourism and 
recreation.

Recreation and Tourism

• Support programs and activities that prioritize funding for 
initatives based on collaborative partnerships between local 
agencies and Tribal entities.

Tribal Partnerships

• Support programs and activities that provide assistance to 
small businesses and promote entrepreneurism. Small Businesses



Resource and Land Management

• Support legislation and budget efforts that continue to 
maximize the Payment in Lieu of Taxes (PILT) and Secure 
Rural Schools (SRS) programs.

PILT Funding

• Support programs that enhance fuel management activities 
on federal lands.Fuels Management

• Support funding for federal lands management agencies and 
programs.Federal Lands Management

• Support programs that help prevent, mitigate, and respond 
to wildfires.Wildfire Preparedness

• Seek funding and support programs that protect and 
enhance recreational activities on public lands.Recreation

• Support efforts that foster partnerships and enhance 
relationships with local agencies and federal land 
management agencies including the Inyo National Forest, 
the National Park Service, and the Bureau of Land 
Management.

Federal Land 
Management Agencies

• Seek support of changes to mining claims forms that allow 
for efficient and timely filing of mining claims. Mining Industry

• Support administrative and regulatory procedures, including 
banking, related to the cannabis industry that protect local 
authority and protect the public. 

Cannabis



Infrastructure

• Seek funding and support programs that delivery reliable 
and clean drinking water through resilient infrastructure. Drinking Water

• Seek funding and support programs that provide 
wastewater treatment infrastructure and services to 
communities in a cost efficient matter.

Wastewater Infrastructure

• Seek funding and suppport programs for local 
transportation projects throughout the County including 
those related to highways, local streets and roads, trails, 
transit, pedestrians, and electric vehicles.

Local Transportation 
Projects

• Seek funding for broadband expansion, broadband 
adoption, telecommunications improvements, technology 
infrastructure projects, and other technology advancements 
throughout the County. Seek funding and support programs 
to provide communication infrastructure, including 
broadband and cellular services to remote rural 
communities.

Broadband and 
Connectivity

• Support changes to federal law that encourage a more 
efficient and streamlined environmental review and project 
delivery process and allow public infrastructure projects to 
be constructed more efficiently and effectively.

Environmental Review and 
Project Delivery

• Seek funding and support programs that provide electric 
and power utility services to communities in a cost effecient 
manner.

Electric and 
Power Utilities



County of Inyo, California

2023 Legislative Platform

AGRICULTURE/WEIGHTS & MEASURES 
1. Support full cost recovery for new agricultural programs.

2. Support continued funding of weed management programs.

3. Support authority for USDA to set up cooperative agreements with states for pest exclusion programs. 

4. Support control and mitigation for the spread of invasive species to protect, conserve and restore 
public and private lands.  

5. Support efforts to provide and protect local authority for device registration fees. 

6. Oppose efforts by State agencies to usurp Agricultural Commissioner’s permitting authority for the 
spraying of pesticides on irrigated lands.

7. Oppose efforts to ban the use of rodenticide for agricultural and public health purposes in California. 

CANNABIS 
1. Oppose legislation that would diminish local authority over commercial cannabis regulation.

2. Support legislation that provides the state’s tribes a mechanism for entering California’s legal cannabis 
marketplace without sacrificing their sovereign status, while also preserving local governments’ right to 
protect against or require mitigation for associated impacts to their jurisdictions from any commercial 
cannabis activity on adjacent lands, including Tribal land.

3. Support a statewide regulatory scheme for medical cannabis and/or adult use cannabis that ensures 
counties have the ability to set regulatory standards based on local needs and priorities, and seek to 
ensure the County is adequately resourced as regulations and state laws are implemented. 

4. Support efforts to study the impacts of cannabis use and legalization on the public’s health, particularly 
on the impacts on youth brain development. 

5. Support legislation to increase cannabis surveillance, education, youth prevention, responsible adult 
use, and drugged driving prevention. 



6. Support efforts to mitigate community level harms from commercial cannabis operations, such as 
overconcentration as well as clustering with alcohol and tobacco retailers.

7. Support continued Federal and State funding to aid local jurisdictions in the eradication of illegal, 
environmentally destructive marijuana grow operations on public and/or private land. 

8. Monitor legislation establishing policy programming requirements for education and environmental 
prevention efforts for Cannabis. 

9. Oppose policy programming requirements for education and environmental prevention efforts for 
Cannabis Tobacco Control funding that mirror those established for Tobacco Control funding.  

CHILD SUPPORT
1. Support legislation that would protect existing State and Federal funding for local child support 

programs.

2. Support policies, funding and services for non-custodial parents that promote self-sufficiency and 
ability to care for their child(ren).

3. Oppose any recommendations that would reduce Federal financial participation in child support 
programs. 

COUNTY OPERATIONS
1. Support full funding of the Public Library Fund in future State budgets. 

2. Support legislation to provide opt-in as opposed to opt-out for receiving electronic sample ballots.    

3. Support legislation that requires counties to be reimbursed for the cost of special elections called by 
the Governor or Legislature. 

4. Support efforts to reinstate language directing the state to provide reimbursement to counties that hold 
a special election to replace a member of Congress or a member of the state Legislature to fill a 
vacancy, as well as for the cost of special elections called for other reasons. 

5. Support legislation that would authorize Federal and State Governments to assist counties in the 
purchase of voting equipment and technology. 

6. Support the continued exemption of rural counties from Organics Recycling Mandates.

7. Support legislation that provides additional State park funding to rural counties.

8. Support legislation that requires the Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery to consider the 
impacts on jurisdictions and their waste diversion programs caused by China’s restrictions on imported 
recyclables and the resulting market loss.

9. Support legislation, such as the California Beverage Container Recycling and Litter Reduction Act of 
2018, to stabilize the recycling marketplace, provide immediate, temporary relief to California’s retailers 



and grocers affected by the 2016 recycling center closures, and ensure consumers have local 
redemption opportunities.

10. Support legislation that provides the option for rural counties to conduct elections via “Vote by Mail 
while also enfranchising rural voters. 

GENERAL GOVERNMENT
1. Support legislation that realigns governmental services in such a manner as to improve the delivery of 

services and make government more accountable to the people of Inyo County. 

2. Support collective bargaining legislation that:

• Recognizes the responsibility of local elected officials to govern and manage the organization and 
to implement public policy; and

• Minimizes conflict over procedural matters.

3. Support legislation that recognizes the inherent disadvantage rural counties have as it applies to using 
a population-based criteria (per capita) for allocating State and Federal funds and minimizes and/or 
eliminates the reliance on this funding criteria.

4. Oppose legislation that minimizes, restricts and/or eliminates local Boards of Supervisors control over 
collective bargaining and employer-employee relations.

5. Oppose legislation that minimizes, restricts and/or eliminates local Boards of Supervisors control over 
the allocation of funds through the budget process.

6. Oppose legislation that would require counties to share State expenses and liability on projects outside 
local jurisdiction. 

7. Support legislation that reduces State and Federal regulations that impede, or increase the cost of the 
delivery of services by local governments and special districts. 

8. Monitor closely any legislative efforts/initiatives regarding reform of the State Budget process.

9. Oppose legislation that is unduly burdensome to private industry.  

10. Support protection of funding discretion and use bond funds.

11. Oppose efforts by Federal and State government to adversely impact the ability of Volunteer Fire 
Departments to provide critical first response and ambulance services in rural communities, including 
but not limited to recruiting and retaining qualified EMTs. 

12. Support broadband expansion, broadband adoption, telecommunications improvements, technology 
infrastructure projects, and other technology advancements. 

13. Support full funding of disaster relief for all eligible counties, and a return to State assistance for the 
large portion of the costs of state or federally declared disasters. 

14. Oppose any changes to, or limitations upon, the eligibility for receipt of disaster costs, especially tying 
county land use processes and decision-making to disaster relief funding. 



15. Support State tax relief for those individuals and businesses who have losses due to disaster. 

16. Support legislation that would allow “a contracting agency and the exclusive representative of employees 
of that agency to agree through collective bargaining that the employer contribution for employee and 
annuitant health benefits coverage for employees first hired on or after the effective date of a 
memorandum of understanding may differ from the employer contribution provided to existing employees 
and annuitants pursuant to Sections 22890 and 22892” and any other legislation that will permit the 
County to take advantage of a multi-tier benefit package through Public Employees Retirement System 
(PERS). 

17. Oppose legislation that would hinder, as a result of mandated redactions or any other alterations of 
recorded documents, a private citizen’s ability to establish ownership of real property or conduct private 
or commercial business operations.

18. Oppose legislation that eliminates, diminishes, limits, or interferes with the nonprofit organizations that 
the County has membership in, i.e., the California State Association of Counties (CSAC), Rural County 
Representatives of California (RCRC), State Sheriff’s Association, Chief Probation Officers Association, 
State Welfare Directors Association, etc., in actively participating in the legislative and ballot measure 
processes. (Added by Board Order 8-20-13)

19. Oppose legislation that increases the County’s exposure to litigation.

20. Oppose legislation that removes local governments’ discretion over wireless structures or restricts such 
discretion to the point that it could negatively impact rural communities’ aesthetics, public safety, the 
environment, and property values, and/or prevent local governments from negotiating either rates or 
improved broadband services as a condition of a “small cell” permit.

21. Support legislation and regulations that preserve – and do not impair – the ability of counties to provide 
public health, safety, welfare or environmental services by local government. 

22. Support expanded permission to use private contracts to provide local services in justifiable areas as a 
means of achieving efficiency and economy. 



HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
1. Monitor State and Federal health care reform proposals with fiscal impacts to the County and private 

employers and citizens, and that limit, reduce or discontinue health care coverage for Inyo County 
residents. 

2. Monitor the California Children’s Services program and seek protections against increased county 
program costs.

3. Monitor  legislation that funds pilot efforts in MediCal payment reform to result in whole person care 
and fully integrated behavioral health and health services.

4. Monitor legislation to address opioid addiction, including the expansion of Medication Assisted 
Treatment and allows for Medicaid reimbursement in the jail setting.

5. Monitor legislation to change the definition of “gravely disabled” and to clarify Welfare and Institutions 
code 5150.

6. Monitor State and Federal health care proposals with fiscal impacts to the County and private 
employers.

7. Monitor the County Medical Services Program (CMSP) program and Support efforts to protect 
funding, minimize the participation fee paid by counties, and sustain reasonable reimbursement rates to 
providers in an effort to retain them in small counties.  (Ensure CMSP infrastructure is maintained in 
event unknown health care policy changes occur at Federal level.)

8. Monitor legislation that further mandates increased benefits/salaries for the local In-Home Support 
Services Program (IHSS) that are not covered by the State.

9. Monitor policy and legislative initiatives involving managed Medi-Cal to ensure rural, isolated counties 
medical caregiver capacity issues are not negatively impacted.

10. Monitor the implementation of simplifying Medi-Cal and enrollment for participants and providers. 

11. Support blended funding across human service programs, i.e. non-categorical. 

12. Support legislation that allows maximum local flexibility to design human services programs, based on 
the needs of the communities served. 

13. Support increased allocation of subsidized childcare funding. 

14. Support legislation and local, State, and Federal programs that employ evidence-based best practice 
strategies to reduce the number of people experiencing homelessness by: preventing homelessness for 
those at risk; expanding affordable permanent housing; and promoting self-empowerment through 
counseling, job training, and other supportive services.

15. Support funding of affordable short-term, transitional and permanent housing capacity.

16. Support legislation that supports parity of funding for behavioral health issues, ensuring that both 
mental health and substance use disorder treatment are funded on par with physical health treatment 
needs.  



17. Support legislation that provides or increases a minimum base allocation (MBA) to small counties to 
sustain treatment for alcohol and drug addiction.

18. Support legislation that addresses behavioral health workforce needs, as statewide agencies are 
challenged in meeting treatment capacity in both Mental Health and Substance Use Disorder treatment 
providers.  This would include legislation such as Peer (someone with lived experience) Certification 
(SB 906); Mental Health workforce planning (AB2108), which expands the persons eligible for 
educational loan repayment program; and Substance Use workforce expansion (AB2804), which 
creates one-year and five-year plans to expand the SUD treatment workforce with incentives like 
stipends and loan repayment programs for counselors, peers and licensed professionals.  

19. Support legislation that reduces administrative burden for small counties and allows for flexibility such 
as regionalization of administrative tasks.

20. Support legislation that increases use of telehealth for Drug Medi-Cal services.

21. Support the Stepping Up Initiative and legislation that diverts persons with mental illness from the 
criminal justice system.

22. Support legislation that increases the transparency and consistency of financial reporting for the 
Mental Health Services Act. 

23. Support legislation to fund suicide prevention efforts, including those targeted at youth, LGBTQ and 
Veterans.

24. Support legislation to build on Continuum of Care Reform to address foster youth crisis response. 

25. Support legislation that promotes service integration, such as development of automated, central 
statistical case records for all human service programs and information sharing across human service 
programs.

26. Support legislation that allows for funding allocations to have increased local control and flexibility to 
design human services programs based on the needs of the communities served.

27. Support and advocate for any “new” funding to have a base allocation formula for the Twenty Small 
Counties.

28. Support and advocate for State to fully fund the administrative costs associated with all state 
mandated programs (e.g., Child Welfare, Medi-Cal, Public Assistance).

29. Support legislation that fully funds the requirements of the Continuum of Care Reform (CCR) including 
Resource Family Approval, Level of Care Assessments, Child and Family Team Meetings and other 
services that protect the physical, emotional and mental health of children and youth; promote their 
educational development, and ensure the availability of support services for juveniles.

30. Support legislation and budget initiatives that recognize the growth of needs in our aging population, 
including increased funding to support Adult Protective Services and other aging services programs.  

31. Support legislation that revamps In Home Supportive Services in a manner that reduces fiscal and 
administrative impact on counties and reduces risk of fraud/abuse.   

32. Support legislation that consolidates State offices providing administrative oversight, or otherwise 
streamlines and/or reduces the administrative costs of Health and Human Services programs.



33. Support and protect funding for public health mandates, and advocate for maintaining sufficient health 
realignment funding to ensure that Inyo County has the resources to meet its obligation to fulfill its 
statutory public health and indigent health care mandates.

34. Support measures that enhance the communities’ ability to deliver services through their hospitals and 
clinics; favor proposals that would provide for the continued expansion of community Federally 
Qualified Health Clinics (FQHCs).

35. Support efforts to make and retain State or Federal financial participation available in the funding of 
medical facilities and medical care for inmates in county correctional facilities that were realigned to 
counties on October 1, 2011.

36. Support increased and flexible State and Federal funding and resources directed at building the 
capacity of local public health departments to combat and control communicable diseases. 

37. Support proposals to expand access to dental health services for low-income Californians, including 
efforts to increase Denti-Cal reimbursement levels to encourage qualified dentists to participate in 
providing care to low-income children.

38. Support strategies to streamline funding and program complexities of the California Children’s 
Services (CCS) program in order to meet the demands of the complex medical care and treatment 
needs for children with certain physically disabling conditions. 

39. Support opportunities to “realign” county share of cost for the California Children’s Services (CCS) 
program back to the State.

40. Support and advocate for changes to laws and regulations governing prehospital emergency medical 
services, including ambulance services, that would increase the ability of volunteer EMS services to 
attract and retain qualified EMS staff. 

41. Support fair and equitable funding to local health departments for public health emergency 
preparedness (PHEP), ensuring there is a base level available for rural counties, and Oppose any 
funding reductions for PHEP at the federal level, as well as any efforts to shift program costs to local 
health departments.

42. Support efforts to prevent or reduce the use of tobacco and its accompanying health and economic 
impacts on the state and its residents.

43. Oppose any efforts to require counties to provide funding for the California Children’s Services 
program beyond their Maintenance of Effort (MOE).

44. Oppose any efforts to reduce funding to Inyo First 5 on the assumption that the First 5 commission will 
fill the revenue gap created by the withdrawal of State funds (i.e., supplantation).

45. Oppose further Medicaid/Medi-Cal reductions at either the Federal or State level without data-driven 
analysis and advocate for sufficient resources provided to local jurisdictions to respond to changes in 
the health care landscape at the federal and state levels.

46. Oppose proposals from the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS), Congress, or the 
Legislature to deny, reduce, cap, or eliminate Medi-Cal Administrative Activities/Targeted Case 
Management reimbursement or to make claiming more reimbursements administratively burdensome.



47. Oppose legislation that further mandates increased employee benefits/salaries for the local In-Home 
Support Services Program (IHSS) that are not covered by the State. 

48. Opposes legislative “fixes” to the Maintenance of Effort costs for In-Home Support Services Program 
that cause negative budget impacts to other Health and Human Services programming (Social 
Services, Health and Behavioral Health) does not experience negative budget impacts.   

49. Oppose efforts that create disincentives to Medi-Cal enrollment and utilization, such as co-payments 
and premiums, seek ways to expand access to dental services, maximize Federal financial participation 
and increase provider rates.

50. Oppose any legislative efforts/initiatives to reopen the realignment legislation or legislation that 
negatively affects Inyo County’s health and human services realignment funds.

TRANSPORTATION AND PUBLIC WORKS
1. Support transportation funding legislation that:

• Provides revenues without affecting funding sources of other county projects;

• Continues Federal funding efforts for local transportation projects; 

• Reaffirms and continues State responsibility for highway financing;

• Bolsters the multiple transportation funding sources that provide for improved transportation 
systems and multimodal networks, including SB 1 as enacted, and delivery of projects that 
rehabilitate and improve local roads;

• Supports and encourages the use and development of transit facilities and infrastructure.

2. Support any legislation efforts that assist the County in mitigating for the transportation of transuranic 
waste to the Nevada Test Site, Yucca Mountain, or other selected sites through California on routes 
located in or transecting Inyo County. Specifically, funding and assistance is needed in several areas 
including road and infrastructure improvements, first responder training, radiological detection 
instruments and training and emergency medical and hospital training.  

3. Support State legislators’ efforts to address identified State highway safety needs in our        
communities.

4. Support State and Federal legislation efforts that benefit our local airports.

5. Oppose legislation that changes public contracting laws in a manner in which it negatively impacts the 
County’s contract authority and/or increases costs to the County and/or unduly lengthens the time it 
takes for the County to enter into a Public Works Contract.

6. Support legislation that enhances counties’ ability to designate appropriate uses of county roads.

7. Oppose the effort to repeal SB 1, which would result in the loss of new transportation funds and make 
it more difficult to raise State and local transportation funds in the future.

8. Support legislation that provides funding opportunities to coordinate Transportation Plans with the 
County’s General Plan.



9. Support legislation that provides funding to sustain and expand the region’s public transit system.

10. Support legislation that supports interregional and intercity bus lines that connect with the County’s 
transit system.

11. Support reauthorization and implementation of federal aviation policy at the State level to ensure that 
California continues to receive and dedicate investments to support commercial and general aviation 
airports.

RESOURCES AND ENVIRONMENT
1. Support legislation to provide funding to local governments to create programs to protect river 

parkways and to reclaim damaged river habitat.

2. Monitor legislation that protects and enhances rural counties’ natural and developed resources that 
contribute to the economic and environmental well-being of Inyo County.

3. Support legislation for the development of programs and strategies that will accomplish the non-land 
acquisition of reinvestment dollars for watershed management, groundwater basins, fisheries and 
waterways.

4. Support Federal funding proposals that enhance County ability to acquire Federal and State funding 
for the purpose of managing watersheds et al.

5. Support legislation that clarifies and/or preserves local authority to protect public roads. 

6. Support legislation to provide adequate funding for meeting all of the requirements of the California 
Global Warming Solutions Act of 2006 and the Sustainable Communities and Climate Protection Act of 
2008.

7. Oppose activities of the Federal and State government to acquire and transfer private lands to public 
ownership without continued mitigation for loss of local property tax revenue. 

8. Oppose Federal or State activities limiting public access to public lands. 

9. Support legislation which promotes and/or provides monetary aid to local jurisdictions for land use 
coordination with State and Federal agencies. 

10. Oppose any legislation which eliminates or diminishes the requirement for Federal and State land use 
agencies to coordinate with local government on decisions affecting the plans and policies of local 
jurisdictions. 

11. Support legislation which identifies the impacts of catastrophic wildfires and provides that wildfire 
mitigation and prevention are goals that meet the requirements of the California Global Warming 
Solutions Act. 

12. Support legislation which maintains Inyo County’s ability to protect and enhance its land use authority 
to determine the use of its natural resources, including but not limited to mining, water storage, 
renewable energy, and agricultural resources.

13. Monitor efforts to create additional or expand existing wilderness designations in the County. 



14. Monitor efforts by Federal and State government to increase fees for and reduce and/or eliminate fire 
protection services on public lands. 

15. Support legislation that protects those local jurisdictions that operate and deliver and store water that 
recognize and address mussel infestation early on from liability as a result of mussel infestation. 

16. Oppose any legislation that could negatively impact outdoor recreation. (Added by Board Order 8-21-
2012). 

17. Support State’s Renewable Energy Portfolio Standard being re-calculated to include roof-top solar.

18. Oppose legislation that makes CEQA/NEPA requirements more burdensome and provides for less 
public notification in the county where the projects are located. 

19. Support legislation that reforms wildfire suppression funding, prevents “fire transfers” within firefighting 
budgets, and gives agencies in charge of fire suppression more budget flexibility. 

20. Support legislation that recognizes, funds and protects the ecological resources of the Sierra Nevada 
as part of the effort to reach California’s Climate Change goals. 

21. Support increased funding for public land management agencies to address deferred maintenance of 
infrastructure in forests, national parks, and reserves that rural counties depend on for tourism and 
recreation-based economies. 

22. Support realistic federal policy and regulatory reforms that balance environmental protection with the 
preservation of life and property and that lead to better mitigation of wildfires on federal, State, and 
private lands. 

23. Support legislation to remove State tax exemptions for solar energy development facilities.

24. Support and encourage efforts that streamline the process for obtaining permits from State, Federal 
and local land management agencies for activities such as livestock grazing, commercial filming, 
guiding and outfitting, packing, and special events. 

PLANNING AND LAND USE
1. Support legislation and budget efforts that continue to maximize the Payment in Lieu of Taxes (PILT) 

revenue from the Federal and State government to counties and continues full funding of PILT without 
restrictions beyond the current authorization.

2. Oppose legislation that minimizes and/or eliminates local control over land use decisions.

3. Support legislative efforts to enable local governments, utilities, energy developers, California Native 
American tribal governments, affected landowners and members of the public to actively participate in 
the renewable energy and utility corridor planning processes.

4. Support legislation which reduces and/or eliminates State requirements regarding the General Plan 
and its updates.

5. Oppose legislation which limits or reduces the authority of counties under the State Mining and 
Reclamation Act (SMARA). 



6. Support legislation which promotes and/or provides monetary aid to local jurisdictions for land use 
coordination with State and Federal agencies. 

7. Oppose any legislation which eliminates or diminishes the requirement for Federal and State land use 
agencies to coordinate with local government on decisions affecting the plans and policies of local 
jurisdictions.

8. Support legislation, which maintains Inyo County’s ability to protect and enhance its land use authority 
to determine the highest and best use of its natural resources.

9. Support legislation that protects and/or reinstates the payment of geothermal royalties to local 
jurisdictions.

10. Support legislation that provides funding opportunities to local jurisdictions to implement State General 
Plan requirements.

LAW, JUSTICE & PUBLIC SAFETY
1. Support legislation that maximizes county discretion in developing programs for juveniles.

2. Support legislation that eliminates the requirement that counties pay for court reporter transcripts.

3. Support Federal and State funding to combat the impacts of controlled substance production, 
distribution, and use, including the ongoing opioid addiction crisis. 

4. Support legislation that would allow counties to enact an ordinance to allow up to a $10 penalty 
assessment for every $100 fine for criminal offense, including traffic fines, for the maintenance and 
purchase of Law Enforcement facilities and vehicles. 

5. Oppose any changes in the State criminal justice system that increases costs to counties for jail 
operations, including but not limited to early releases of prisoners, commutation of sentences and/or 
commutation of variable sentencing options (i.e., wobblers), without a corresponding dedicated long-
term reliable revenue stream and the ability to administer it locally.

6. Watch proposed changes to State and Federal water law. 

7. Support legislation that will complete the work initiated through the Trial Court Unification Act by 
making justice system costs that are controlled or imposed by the judiciary but inadvertently remain the 
responsibilities of the counties the clear responsibility of the State of California and the California 
Superior Court to fund.

8. Support efforts to increase and/or preserve funding allocations to support criminal justice realignment 
costs including inmate healthcare and jail expense costs. 

9. Support Federal and State funding and programs to provide comprehensive, effective mental health 
and substance abuse treatment programs for criminal defendants, thereby reducing recidivism and 
protecting the public.

10. Watch proposed bail system reform efforts in California to ensure full state funding of any new pre-trial 
release and supervision requirements.



11. Support legislation and policies to improve re-entry options for adult and juvenile probationers, 
including housing.

12. Support legislation and policies to expand and enhance Evidence-Based Programs available to clients.

13. Support legislation and policies that will allow for continued investment in community corrections 
training.

14. Support legislation to bolster flexible policies and resources for drug treatment and mental health 
services for probationers.

15. Support legislation and policies to protect resources that support foster youth in Continuum of Care 
Reform.

16. Support legislation and policies that ensure resources for supervision, rehabilitative programming, and 
re-entry services for adult and juvenile offenders.

17. Support legislation and policies to preserve and provide resources at the Federal, State, and local level 
for effective community supervision practices.

18. Support legislation that enhances educational programs for adult and juvenile offenders.

19. Support legislation which will provide funding for probation services provided to drug offenders, and 
mentally ill incarcerated offenders.

20. Support legislation to authorize local probation departments to collect outstanding victim restitution 
through the civil process.

TRIBE AND INTERGOVERNMENTAL RELATIONS 
1. Support the following goals for county-tribal intergovernmental relations:

• facilitate intergovernmental agreements

• develop mechanisms to mitigate for the off-reservation impacts of tribal developments on local 
government services and the environment

• promote best practices and models of successful tribal-county relationships. 

2. Support the promotion and development of positive working relationships between the County and 
local tribes to the mutual benefit of both parties and the communities they respectively serve. 

3. Support legislation or policy that provides for or recognizes enforceable agreements between tribes 
and local governments concerning the mitigation of off-reservation impacts of development on tribal 
land.

4. Oppose any federal or state limitation on the ability of tribes, counties and other local governments to 
reach mutually acceptable and enforceable agreements, including any federal prohibitions on deed 
restrictions mutually agreed to by tribal and local governments. 



VETERANS’ SERVICES 

1. Support legislation and efforts that ensure access to the services and benefits to which veterans are 
entitled, including housing, healthcare, employment, education and training, and community 
reintegration assistance. 

2. Support legislation that provides funding for veterans housing programs, such as the Veterans and 
Affordable Housing Bond Act of 2018.

3. Support the development of specific strategies for intervention and service delivery to veterans through 
cooperation between federal, state, and local governments, as well as community and private 
organizations serving veterans. 

4. Support coordination of services for veterans among all entities that serve this population, especially in 
housing, treatment, and employment training. 

 



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

February 7, 2023   Reference ID:  
2022-3344  

 

Acceptance of Local Agency Technical Assistance Grant 
County Administrator - Information Services 

 ACTION REQUIRED 
   

ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Scott Armstrong, Information Services Director Scott Armstrong, Information Services Director 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Request Board accept the Local Agency Technical Assistance (LATA) grant from the State of California, 
and authorize the Chairperson to sign the LATA Grant Consent Form. 
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
The County of Inyo requested $1,000,000 ($500,000 per year for two years) under the Local Area 
Technical Assistance (LATA) program to develop shovel-ready plans for last-mile broadband projects 
throughout underserved portions of the County.  The California Public Utilities Commission approved our 
LATA grant request through their Resolution T-17779 on January 26, 2023.  In order to formally accept 
this grant, the County of Inyo is required to complete and sign the "California Public Utilities Commission 
Local Agency Technical Assistance Program Consent Form, Acknowledgement and Acceptance of 
Terms" within 30 days of the approval of our grant. 
 
The specific requirements from the Grant Manual, section VII. Required Forms and Obligations: 
 
"The Consent Form binds the grant recipient to the terms, conditions, and requirements of both the 
authorizing Decision and the approval document (either a Commission Resolution awarding the grant or 
an award letter, if approved by CD staff). Grantees must sign and submit a Consent Form within 30 
calendar days from the date of the award. Failure to submit the Consent Form within 30 calendar days 
from the date of award letter will deem the grant null and void." 
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding 
Source 

Grant Funded -- California Public Utilities 
Commission Local Agency Technical Assistance 

Budget Unit TBD 

Budgeted? Budget will be amended to include at Mid-Year Object Code TBD 
Recurrence One-Time Award -- Two Year Performance Period  
Current Fiscal Year Impact 
Up to $500,000 for the current calendar year starting January 26, 2023, based on reimbursable work 
products. 
Future Fiscal Year Impacts 

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

Up to $500,000 for the future calendar year starting January 26, 2024, based on reimbursable work 
products. 
Additional Information 
This is a reimbursement grant based on actual expenditures and costs incurred, therefore budget 
numbers are provided for the upper limit in either grant. Inyo County will serve as the Fiscal Agent for 
this grant and new budget unit will be created to support these work efforts and effectively track the 
funding. 
 
ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
Your Board could choose to not approve this grant consent form, in which case we will not use grant 
funds to develop engineering plans for broadband deployment to support future broadband construction 
projects. 
  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
None. 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. County of Inyo LATA Award Letter 
2. Inyo Gov Agency Taxpayer ID Form 
3. Inyo County LATA Consent Form 9-27-22 
  
APPROVALS: 
Scott Armstrong Created/Initiated - 1/31/2023 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 1/31/2023 
Scott Armstrong Approved - 1/31/2023 
John Vallejo Approved - 2/1/2023 
Amy Shepherd Approved - 2/1/2023 
Nate Greenberg Final Approval - 2/2/2023 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



January 26, 2023 

Scott Armstrong, Information Services Director, County of Inyo 

sarmstrong@inyoucounty.us 

Re: County of Inyo Broadband Expansion Projects

Dear Scott Armstrong: 

Congratulations! The California Public Utilities Commission is pleased to inform you that the County of 

Inyo’s application for Local Agency Technical Assistance grant funding for the County of Inyo Broadband 
Expansion Projects in the amount of up to $1,000,000 has been approved. Your application was received 

during the August 2022 application window and was posted on the CPUC’s Local Agency Technical 

Assistance webpage. Per Resolution T-17779, the Commission has approved your award. 

The award is predicated on the County of Inyo’s agreement to provide technical assistance as detailed in its 
application. In its application, County of Inyo agreed to comply with the specified Ministerial Review criteria 
as well as to fulfill all requirements, guidelines, and conditions associated with a grant of Local Agency 
Technical Assistance funds as specified in D.22-02-026 including but not limited to execution and 
performance, payment, reporting and award acceptance requirements listed in Attachments 1 and 2 of this 
letter. Please sign and submit the following: 1. A Consent Form binding your organization to the terms of 
the grant and 2. A State of California Government Agency Tax Payer ID Form for tax reporting purposes.  
You must submit these documents within 30 days of the date of this letter.  If you do not, this 
award is void. 

Thank you for your application and please direct any questions to Angela Beane
(angela.beane@cpuc.ca.gov) and/or refer to the Grantee Administrative Manual, available at https://bit.ly/
CPUCLATA.  

We appreciate your efforts to provide service to our fellow Californians. 

Sincerely, 

Robert Osborn 
Director  
Communications Division 

mailto:sarmstrong@inyoucounty.us
https://www.cpuc.ca.gov/-/media/cpuc-website/divisions/communications-division/documents/broadband-implementation-for-california/lata-consent-form-9-27-22.pdf
https://static.business.ca.gov/wp-content/uploads/2021/09/Government-Agency-Taxpayer-ID-Form-1.pdf
https://bit.ly/CPUCLATA


 

 
2 

ATTACHMENT 1 

Requirements 

The grant award is predicated on the applicant’s (hereafter “The County of Inyo”) agreement to provide 

technical assistance as detailed in its application. In its application, The County of Inyo agreed and attested 

to comply with the specified Ministerial Review criteria as well as fulfilling all requirements guidelines, and 

conditions associated with a grant of Local Agency Technical Assistance funds as specified in D.22-02-026, 

including but not limited to execution and performance, payment, reporting and award acceptance 

requirements. Key requirements of Local Agency Technical grant include, among others: 

• All costs are related to the development of broadband network deployment projects to benefit 

unserved or underserved Californians. These projects may include, but are not limited to, the costs 

of joint powers authority formation, environmental studies, network design, and engineering study 

expenses.  

• Grant may not exceed $500,000 per local agency, per fiscal year. 

• A signed affidavit agreeing to comply with the terms, conditions and requirements of the grant and 

submits to the jurisdiction of the Commission with respect to the disbursement and administration 

of the grant as well as applicable state and federal rules concerning broadband services. 

• Grantee must sign a Consent Form agreeing to the terms stated in the award letter as well as all 

Local Agency Technical Assistance Rules and Requirements, Guidelines and Application Materials 

in D.22-06-026. 

• Grantee must complete the reimbursable work product within 24 months. 

• Grantee must provide Staff a copy of the final reimbursable work product. 

 

Reporting 

The grant award is contingent upon fulfilling the reporting requirements per D.22-06-026, Attachment 1. 

SB 156 requires grantees to fulfill the monthly reporting requirements set forth in Public Utilities Code 
section 281(l)(1) if they are using a licensed contractor or subcontractor* to undertake a contract or 
subcontract in excess of twenty-five thousand dollars ($25,000). The Commission is required to post that 
information on its website. Specifically, SB 156 requires the following to be reported to the Commission on 
a monthly basis:  

• The name and contractor’s license number of each licensed contractor and subcontractor 
undertaking a contract or subcontract in excess of twenty-five thousand dollars ($25,000) to perform 
work on a project funded or financed pursuant to this section.  

• The location where a contractor or subcontractor described in subparagraph (A) will be performing 
that work.  

• The anticipated dates when that work will be performed. 
 

*Licensed contractor or subcontractor means any contractor that holds a California state license through the 
contractor’s state license board (https://www.cslb.ca.gov/).  



 

 
3 

 

Post-completion 

Upon completion of the reimbursable work product and before final payment, Grantees must: 

• Provide a signed completion form stating the technical assistance work has been completed suitable 

to be posted on the Commission’s webpage. The signed completion form must be provided prior to 

final payment and must include a short summary of the reimbursable work product(s) performed 

under the contract, including demonstration that the reimbursable work product(s) identify 

broadband infrastructure deployment projects that will help achieve the CASF deployment goal, and 

identification of the area(s) where the applicant intends to deploy broadband based on the 

reimbursable work product(s).  

• Provide a copy of each reimbursable work product’s final report(s), plans, studies, etc. produced 

under the contract.  

 

Payment 

Payment will be made directly to the local agency as the grant recipient. Local agency grantees may request 

partial reimbursement if they complete one or more of the approved reimbursable work products prior to 

completion of other reimbursable work products approved in the same grant authorization. Payment will be 

based upon receipt and approval of an invoice(s) submitted by the local agency showing the expenditures 

incurred for the reimbursable work product, along with the reimbursable work product final 

report/study/joint powers agreement, etc., and the completion reporting required above. The invoice(s) 

must be supported by documentation including but not limited to the actual cost of labor and any other 

expense that will be recovered by the grant. 

To the extent that any portion of an award was used to reimburse a local agency for administrative costs 

associated with securing or completing a reimbursable work product, the local agency must submit an 

itemized accounting of such costs, demonstrating the total requested for reimbursement does not exceed 15 

percent of the total authorized award. If any portion of reimbursement is found to be out of compliance, 

grantees will be responsible for refunding any disallowed amount along with appropriate interest rates 

determined in accordance with applicable Commission decisions. Grantees are required to maintain records 

such as files, invoices, and other related documentation for five years after final payment. Grantees shall 

make these records and invoices available to the Commission upon request and agree that these records are 

subject to a financial audit by the Commission at any time within five years after the final payment made to 

a grantee. 

Execution and Performance 

The County of Inyo must complete the project within the 24-month timeframe in accordance with the 

terms of approval granted by the Commission. If the Grantee is unable to complete project within the 24-

month timeframe, it must notify the Commission or Director of Communications Division as soon as it 

becomes aware of this prospect. The Commission may reduce or withhold payment for failure to satisfy this 

requirement. In the event that the Grantee or contractor fails to complete the work in accordance with the 

approval granted by the Commission, and as described in its application and contract, the Grantee must 

reimburse some or all of the funds it has received.  



 

 
4 

The County of Inyo must sign and submit the linked Consent Form agreeing to the terms of the award 

within 30 calendar days from the date of this letter. Failure to submit the Consent Form within the 

timeframe required, the CPUC will deem the grant or award null and void.  

The County of Inyo must communicate in writing to the Communications Division’s Director regarding any 

changes to the substantive terms and conditions underlying the Commission’s approval of the grant (such as 

changes to a reimbursable work product contract, work plan or budget) at least 30 days before the 

anticipated. Substantive changes may require approval by either the Communications Division Director or 

by Commission Resolution before becoming effective.  

The Commission has the right to conduct any necessary audit, verification, and discovery for work 

proposed or completed under the technical assistance to ensure that funds are spent in accordance with 

Commission rules and with the terms of approval by the Commission. 

  

https://www.cpuc.ca.gov/-/media/cpuc-website/divisions/communications-division/documents/broadband-implementation-for-california/lata-consent-form-9-27-22.pdf


 

 
5 

Attachment 2 

Local Agency Broadband Technical Assistance Reporting Requirements and 

Guidelines 
Version December 2022 

  

The Local Agency Technical Assistance program provides grants for eligible pre-construction work which 
facilitates the construction of broadband network projects. When the California Public Utilities Commission 
(CPUC) established the technical assistance grant program, the program was funded with American Rescue 
Plan Act monies administered by the U.S. Treasury. The source of technical assistance funding has changed. 
This guidance outlines grantee reporting. 

The Commission issued Decision (D.) 22-02-026 establishing program requirements for the Local Agency 
Technical Assistance Grant Program. 

Grantees must file quarterly progress reports to the Commission with the below information.  

Narrative Project Information 

1.1 The counties, cities and census designated places where households, businesses, and community anchor 
institutions are planned to be served by the broadband project. 

1.2 Confirmation that the technical assistance is designed to support projects that, upon completion, reliably 
meet or exceed symmetrical 100 Mbps download and upload speeds. 

1.3 Statement of intention about the pricing plans for projects that the technical assistance will support, 
such as offering of affordable plan or low-income plan subsidized with other funding (ACP). 

1.4 Information on broadband need in the project area. 

1.5 Statement describing the community benefits of broadband technical assistance. 

Detailed Project Information 

2.1 Individual work products granted by the program. 

o   Dollars/hours expended per task/work product. 

2.2 Estimated construction start date (month/year). 

2.3 Estimated construction completion date (month/year). 

2.4 Estimated initiation of operations date (month/year). 

2.5 Planned project technology type(s): 

o   Fiber 

o   Coaxial Cable 

o   Terrestrial Fixed Wireless 

o   Other (specify) 

2.6 Estimated total miles of fiber to be deployed. 

2.7 Planned number of locations to be served, broken out by type: 



 

 
6 

o   Residential locations 

o   Business connections 

o   Community anchor institutions 

2.8 Planned non-promotional prices including associated fees, speed tiers, and data allowance for each speed 
tier. 

2.9 Other data on broadband need, by location. 

Submission 
To assist grantees with the filing of quarterly progress reports to the Commission, a sample of the reporting 
requirements is found in Attachment A of this document: https://www.cpuc.ca.gov/-/media/cpuc-
website/divisions/communications-division/documents/broadband-implementation-for-california/lata-
reporting-requirements-dec-22.pdf  

Planned project information listed in Attachment A should be submitted on a quarterly basis to the 
Commission’s email at Broadband.TechAssist@cpuc.ca.gov. Grantees need to include in the email subject 
line: 

1.     Application Name 

2.     Project Name 

3.     The Reporting Quarter/Month 

Updated quarterly project submissions are required to be sent by the due dates shown below. Grantees are 
responsible for contacting the Commission at Broadband.TechAssist@cpuc.ca.gov, if the information 
cannot be submitted on time. 

Reporting Period Project Information Due to CPUC 

October 1 – December 31, 2022 January 31, 2023 

January 1 – March 31, 2023 April 28, 2023 

April 1 – June 30, 2023 July 31, 2023 

July 1 – September 30, 2023 October 31, 2023 

October 1 – December 31, 2023 January 31, 2024 

January 1 – March 31, 2024 April 28, 2024 

April 1 – June 30, 2024 July 31, 2024 

July 1 – September 30, 2024 October 31, 2024 

October 1 – December 31, 2024 January 31, 2025 

January 1 – March 31, 2025 April 30, 2025 

April 1 – June 30, 2025 July 31, 2025 

July 1 – September 30, 2025 October 31, 2025 

October 1 – December 31, 2025 January 30, 2026 

January 1 – March 31, 2026 April 30, 2026 

April 1 – June 30, 2026 July 31, 2026 

July 1 – September 30, 2026 October 30, 2026 

October 1 – December 31, 2026 January 31, 2027 

  

https://www.cpuc.ca.gov/-/media/cpuc-website/divisions/communications-division/documents/broadband-implementation-for-california/lata-reporting-requirements-dec-22.pdf
https://www.cpuc.ca.gov/-/media/cpuc-website/divisions/communications-division/documents/broadband-implementation-for-california/lata-reporting-requirements-dec-22.pdf
https://www.cpuc.ca.gov/-/media/cpuc-website/divisions/communications-division/documents/broadband-implementation-for-california/lata-reporting-requirements-dec-22.pdf
mailto:Broadband.TechAssist@cpuc.ca.gov
mailto:Broadband.TechAssist@cpuc.ca.gov


 

 
7 

Additional Information 

Reporting requirements and guidelines are subject to change, and CPUC or the Commission may define 
additional requirements on CPUC’s website. 

 



State of California
Financial lnformation System for California (Fl$Cal)
GOVERNMENT AGENCY TAXPAYER ID FORM
2000 Evergreen Street, Suite 215
Sacramento, CA 95815
www.fiscal.ca.gov
1-855-347-2250

Cal
lnformation System for Colifornio

The principal purpose of the information provided is to establish the unique identification of the government entity.

lnstructions: You may submit one form for the principal government agency and all subsidiaries sharing the same TlN. Subsidiaries with a
different TIN must submit a separate form. Fields marked with an asterisk (*) are required. Hover over fields to view help information. Please
print the form to sign prior to submittal. You may email the form to: vendors@fiscal.ca.gov, or fax it to (916) 576-5200, or mail it to the
address above.

Principal
Government
Agency Name*

County of lnyo

Remit-To
Address (Street
or PO Box)*

City*

Government Type

PO Drawer N

lndependence State " 93526 Zip Code*+4

! city

! Special District

! Other (Specify)

County

Federal

Federal
Employer
ldentification
Number
(FEtN).

95-6005445

List other subsidiary Departments, Divisions or Units under your principal agency's jurisdiction who share the same
FEIN and receives payment from the State of California.

DepVDivision/Unit
Name

DepVDivision/Unit
Name

DepVDivision/Unit
Name

DepVDivision/Unit
Name

lnyo County Health & Human

lnyo County Planning Department

lnyo County Environmental Health

lnyo County Library

PO Drawer H, lndependence, CA 93526

PO Drawer L, lndependence, CA 93526

1360 N. Main St., lndependence, CA 93514

PO Drawer K, lndependence, CA 93526

Complete
Address

Complete
Address

Complete
Address

Complete
Address

{

Contact Person*

Phone number*

Signature*

Denelle Carrington Senior Budget Analyst

dcarrington@inyocounty.us

01t27t2023

760-878-0262 E-mail

Title

Date



California Public Utilities Commission 

Local Agency Technical Assistance Program

CONSENT FORM  
Acknowledgement and Acceptance of Terms 

  
Applicant Name: _________________________________________________________ 

Key Project Contact: ______________________________________________________ 

The Grantee identified above acknowledges receipt of the California Public Utilities 
Commission Resolution T-__________ or Award Letter Dated__________ and agrees to 
comply with all grant terms, conditions, and requirements set forth in the Resolution or 
Approval Letter including those in the Local Agency Technical Assistance Rules.   

Undersigned representative of ____________________________________ [Name of 
Grantee] is duly authorized to execute this Consent Form on behalf of the Grantee and 
to bind the Grantee to the terms, conditions, and requirements set forth in California 
Public Utilities Commission Resolution T-_____________ or Award Letter.  

Dated this ______ day of ______________, 20___. 

Signature of Local Agency/Tribe:  

_______________________________________________________________________ 

Title____________________________________________________________________ 

Printed Name____________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________ 

Organization or Name of Local Agency or Tribe:  

________________________________________________________________________

Business Address (include street address, suite/apt. number, city, state, and ZIP Code): 

 _______________________________________________________________________ 
  
Telephone Number:  ______________________________________________________

 Email Address: ___________________________________________________________ 

Jan. 26, 2023

County of Inyo

County of Inyo

Scott Armstrong

Board Chairperson

Jennifer Roeser

7th February 23

County of Inyo

224 N. Edwards St., Independence, CA 93526

(760) 878-0292

jroeser@inyocounty.us 



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

February 7, 2023   Reference ID:  
2023-3391  

 

CPS Human Resources Agreement Amendment 
County Administrator - Personnel 

 ACTION REQUIRED 
   

ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Keri Oney, Assistant Personnel Director Keri Oney, Assistant Personnel Director 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Request Board ratify and approve the Amendment to the CPS HR Consulting services agreement with 
an updated term of January 5, 2023 through March 31, 2023, and authorize the Assistant County 
Administrator to sign.  
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
In May of 2022, your Board approved the original agreement with CPS HR Consulting to recruit for the 
position of HHS Deputy Director - Public Health & Prevention. After an extensive search, CPS HR 
Consulting presented the Department with two qualified applicants to interview. Unfortunately, one of the 
applicants withdrew prior to the interview, and while the second applicant was offered the position, they 
ultimately declined the offer. 
 
CPS HR Consulting continues to recruit for this position, and provides the County and Department with 
regular candidate updates. This amendment will allow the County to continue utilizing the specialized 
skills and recruiting resources to fill this critical HHS vacancy.  
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding 
Source 

Health and Human Services  - Health Budget - No 
General Funds  

Budget Unit 045100 

Budgeted? Yes Object Code  
Recurrence One-Time Expenditure  
Current Fiscal Year Impact 
 
Future Fiscal Year Impacts 
 
Additional Information 
 
 
ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
N/A 

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
Health and Human Services 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. CPS HR Consulting Contract Amendment 1 
2. CPS HR Consulting Contract 
  
APPROVALS: 
Keri Oney Created/Initiated - 1/9/2023 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 1/10/2023 
Sue Dishion Approved - 1/10/2023 
John Vallejo Approved - 1/10/2023 
Amy Shepherd Approved - 1/11/2023 
Nate Greenberg Final Approval - 1/31/2023 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



County of Inyo-L5673 Amend 1 

First Amendment to County of Inyo  
Consulting Services Agreement  

HHS Deputy Director – Public Health and Prevention Recruitment 

Term Extension Only 

THIS FIRST AMENDMENT (this “Amendment”) is made by and between Cooperative Personnel Services dba 
CPS HR Consulting, (“CPS HR”) located at 2450 Del Paso Road, Ste 220, Sacramento, California, 95834 and 
the County of Inyo (“Client”) with offices at 168 N Edwards St., Independence, CA 93526.   

Whereas, CPS HR and Client have entered into the Agreement (as defined below); and  

Whereas, CPS HR and Client desire to modify the Agreement on the terms and conditions set forth herein; 

Now, therefore, CPS HR and Client agree as follows: 

1. Definitions:  The following definitions shall apply to this Amendment:

(a) Agreement.  The term “Agreement” shall mean the Agreement dated May 10, 2022 by and between
CPS HR and Client.

(b) Other Terms.  Terms used and not defined in this Amendment shall have the meanings assigned to
such terms in the Agreement.

2. Modifications to the Agreement.  The Agreement is hereby reinstated and modified to extend the Term
date as follows: 

Page 1, Section E.  1. Term. The term of this Agreement is from the Effective Date through March 31, 
2023. 

3. Effective Date.  Each of the modifications set forth in Section 2 shall be effective on and after January 5,
2023. 

4. Legal Effect.  Except as expressly modified by this Amendment, all of the terms and conditions of the
Agreement shall remain unchanged and in full force and effect.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, CPS HR  and CLIENT have executed this Amendment as of the date below. 

Cooperative Personnel Services dba 
CPS HR Consulting 

By: 
 Authorized Signature 

Name: Sandy MacDonald-Hopp 

Title: Chief Financial Officer 

County of Inyo 

By:             
 Authorized Signature 

Name:  Sue Dishon 

Title:  Assistant County Administrator 



In tlte Rooms of the Board of Superuisors
County of Inyo, State of California

I, HEREBY CERTIFY, that at a meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo, State of California,

held in their rooms at the County Administrative Center in lndependence on the 7'h day of June 2022 an order was duly made and

entered as follows:

Personnel- CPS
HR Consulting
Agreement

Moved by Supervisor Pucci and seconded by Supervisor Roeser to ratify and approve the CPS
HR Consulting services agreement in an amount not to exceed $17,500 and authorize the
Assistant County Administrator to sign. Motion carried unanimously.

Routing

cc
Purchasing
Personnel X
Auditor
cAo
Other:
DATE: June 7,2022

WITNESS my hand and the seal of said Board this 7th

oay ofJune, 2022

I.ESI.IE L. CHAPMAN
Clerk ofthe Board ofSupervisors

{*x*X U4A+,t,'ta.'-
By:



County of Inyo

County Administrator - Personnel

CONSENT . ACTION REQUIRET)

MEETING: June7,2022

FROM: Sue Dishion

SUBJECT: CPS HR Agreement

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board ratify and approve the CPS HR Consulting services agreement in an amount not to exceed
$17,500 and authorize the Assistant County Administrator to sign.

SU MMARY/J USTIFICATION :

This agreement will provide for CPS HR to do the recruitment for the vacant Deputy Public Health/Prevention
Director. The County has been recruiting and it has been unsuccessful in finding a candidate. CPS HR
specializes in these types of recruitments.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
N/A

ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE AGTION:
N/A

OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
Health and Human Services

FINANCING:
Health and Human Services Budget Unit (045100) will be funding this agreement

ATTACHMENTS:
L CPS HR Agreement

APPROVALS:
Darcy Ellis
KeriOney
John Vallejo
Amy Shepherd

Created/l nitiated - 61 1 12022
Approved - 61212022
Approved - 61212022
Final Approval - 61212022



Agenda Request
Page 2



CPS HR-CONSULTING
CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT

Countv of lnvo - Executive Recruitment Services for
HHS Denutv Director - Public Health and Prevention

This Consulting Services Ag reement (Agreement)
is by and between Cooperative Personnel
Services, dba CPS HR Gonsulting, a Galifornia
Joint Powers Authority (CPS HR) and the Agency
named in the slgnature block at the end of this
Agreement (Agency, hereafter referred to as
Client), and is effective as of May 1O,2O22
(Effective Date). CPS HR and the Ctient shall be
collectively referred to herein as the ,,Parties,,and
individually as a "Partt/."

A. Purpose. This Agreement defines CPS HR
consulting services, policies and procedures.

B. Services. CPS HR will provide certain
consulting services (Services) to Client as set
forth in the Slatements of Work (attached
hereto as Exhibit (A). CPS HR shall perform
only the Services requested by Client, at the
times, dates, and locations specified by
Client.

C. Compensation.

1. Payment. Client will compensate CPS HR
for Services by paying certain fees as set
forth in the Statement of Work. Client will
reimburse CPS HR for business expenses as
set forth in the Statement of Work. Client will
pay all invoices wilhin thirty (30) days from
receipt of invoice.

2. Funding. Client certifies that funding for
compensation payable to CPS HR under this
Agreemenl has been approved by Client's
governing body, either as a part ofthe general
operating budgel or as a specific item. Client
further certilies that it anticipates sufficient
cash will be available for payment of
compensation as required above.

3. Late Payment. Any invoices not paid
within thirty (30) days may incur a service
charge of the lesser of two percenl (2oh) or
the maximum allowable by law per month on
any outstanding overdue balances. ln
addition, reasonable collection costs may be
added to any invoice not paid within ninely
(90) days.

D, Taxes. Except as expressly stated in the
Statement of Work, the fees listed therein are
in addition to, and not in lieu of, any additional
fees, assessments, levies, taxes, etc.

assessed against the transaclions
contemplated herein (Taxes). With the
exception of Taxes imposed on CPS HR' net
income, all Taxes shall be Client's
responsibility. Client shall pay any Taxes,
which CPS HR may be required to collect and
remit, upon invoice.

E. Term and Termination of Agreement.

1. Term. The term of this Agreement is from
the Effective Date through December 31,
2A22.

2. lmmediate Termination upon Material
Breach. Either Party may terminate this
Agreement immediately upon any material
breach by the other Party.

3. Termination without Cause. Either Party
may terminate lhe Agreement without cause
upon thirty days written notice to the other
Party.

4. Payment on Termination. Upon
termination without cause, Client shall pay
CPS HR for all work performed lhrough the
effective date of termination. For termination
upon material breach, Client shall pay CPS
HR for all work performed which is in
compliance with the terms of the Statement of
Work.

F. Limited Warranty

l. Warranty. CPS HR represents and
warrants that: (i) it has the authority to enter
into this Agreement; (ii) it will comply with
applicable law; and (iii) it will provide Services
in a workmanlike manner consistent with
industry standards.

2. Warranty Disclaimer. EXCEPT AS
EXPRESSLY SET FORTH HEREIN, CPS HR
EXPRESSLY DISCLAIMS ANY AND ALL
WARRANTIES, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED,
ORAL OR WRITTEN, WITH RESPECT TO
THE SERVICES AND THE WORK
PRODUCT INCLUDING, WITHOUT
LIMITATION, ALL IMPLIED WARRANTIES
OF MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR
ANY PARTICULAR PURPOSE OR IN
RESPECT OF ANY THIRD-PARTY
PRODUCTS OR SERVICES AND ALL

Page 1 ofS



WARRANTIES IMPLIED FROM ANY
COURSE OF DEALING AND NO
REPRESENTATIVE OF CPS HR IS
AUTHORIZED TO GIVE ANY ADDITIONAL
WARRANTY.

G. Work Producl.

1. Ownership. Upon CPS HR' receipt of fees
due under the Agreement, all studies, reports,
documents and other writings prepared by
CPS HR and its subcontractors, produced as
a result of CPS HR'work, or delivered by
CPS HR to Client in the course of performing
services (col lectively, "Work Product") shall
become the property of Client and Client shall
have the right to use the materials wilhout
further compensation to CPS HR or its
subcontractors.

2. Retention of Rights. Notwithstanding
Client's ownership of the Work Product, Client
acknowledges and agrees that: (i) CPS HR
has the right to re-use any of its know-how,
ideas, concepts, methods, processes, or
similar information, however characterized,
whether in tangible or intangible form, and
whether used by CPS HR in the performance
of Services or not, at any time and without
limitation, and (ii) CPS HR retains ownership
of any and all of its intellectual property rights
that existed prior to the Effective Date
including, but not limited to, all methods,
concepts, designs, reports, programs, and
templates as well as all training materials,
testing or assessment products, survey
content and copyrightable works.

H. Release of lnformation to Third Parties.
Each Party understands that information
provided to government entities may be
subject to disclosure under a public records or
freedom of information act. Each Party hereto
(each, a Recipient) shall protect and keep
confidential all non-public information
disclosed to Recipient by the other Party
(each, a Discloser) and identified as
confidential by Discloser, and shall not,
except as may be authorized by Discloser in
writing, use or disclose any such Confidential
lnformation during and after the term of this
Agreement. lf CPS HR or Client receives a
request for disclosure of Confidential
Materials, such as a subpoena or a public
records or freedom of information request,
thal Party shall immediately notify the other
Party of the request. Upon request, Client or
CPS HR shall maintain the confidentiality of
the Confidential Materials pending the grant
or denial of a protective order or the decision
of a court or administrative body as to
whether the requested materials must be
disclosed under the applicable public records

statute, Client and CPS HR shall cooperate
with each other in seeking any relief
necessary to maintain the confidentiality of
the Confidential Materials. Each Party shall
defend, indemnify and hold the other
harmless from any claim or administrative
appeal, including costs, expenses, and any
attorney fees, related to that Party pursuing
protection of the Confidential Materials from
disclosure.

lndemnification. CPS HR shall defend,
indemni!, and hold harmless Clieni, its
agents, officers, and employees from and
against all claims, damages, losses,
judgments, liabilities, expenses, and other
costs, including litigation costs and attorney's
fees, arising out of, resulting from, or in
connection with, the performance of this
Agreement by CPS HR, or CPS HR's agents,
officers, or employees. CPS HR's obligation
to defend, indemnify, and hold the Client, its
agents, officers, and employees harmless
applies to any actual or alleged personal
injury, death, or damage or destruction to
tangible or intangible property, including the
loss of use. CPS HR's obligation under this
paragraph extends to any claim, damage,
loss, liability, expense, or other costs which is
caused in whole or in part by any act or
omission of the CPS HR, its agents,
employees, supplier, or any one directly or
indirectly employed by any of them, or anyone
for whose acts or omissions any of them may
be liable.

J. Limitation of Liability.
NOTWITHSTANDING ANYTHING TO THE
CONTRARY CONTAINED HEREIN,
NEITHER PARTY HERETO SHALL HAVE
ANY LIABILITY OR RESPONSIBILITY FOR
ANY INDIRECT, INCIDENTAL,
EXEMPLARY, SPECIAL OR
coNSEQUENTtAL DAMAGES (tNCLUDtNG,
BUT NOT LIMITED TO, DAMAGES ARISING
FROM LOSS OF PROFTTS OR DATA),
EVEN IF ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY
OF SUCH DAMAGES. CPS HR'LIABILITY
FOR DAMAGES HEREUNDER SHALL NOT
EXCEED THE AMOUNT OF FEES PAID BY
CLIENT TO CPS HR.

K. Miscellaneous.

l. Notices. Any notice to the parties
required or permitted under lhis Agreement
shall be given in writing and shall be sent to
the persons at the address listed in the
Statement of Work.

2. Dispute Resolution; Remedies.
(a) ln the event of a dispute, the parties may

agree to pursue mediation or eilher binding or

Page 2 of 5



nonbinding arbitration to resolve their dispute, 
under such rules as the parties may agree. 

(b) If either CPS HR or Client determines it
appropriate to file a judicial action, then, in
addition to any other remedies available at
law or in equity, Client acknowledges that
breach of this Agreement may result in
irreparable harm to CPS HR for which
damages would be an inadequate remedy
and, therefore, CPS HR shall be entitled to
seek equitable relief, including injunction.

3. Attorneys Fees. If any legal action or
arbitration or other proceeding is brought to
enforce or construe the term of this
Agreement or because of an alleged dispute,
breach or default in connection with any
provision of this Agreement, the successful or
prevailing Party shall be entitled to recover
reasonable attorneys fees and other costs
incurred in that action, arbitration or
proceeding in addition to any other relief to
which it may be entitled.

4. Governing Law. This Agreement will be
governed by the laws of the State of California
without regard to its rules concerning conflict
of laws.

5. Force Majeure. Neither Party shall be
liable for delays caused by fire, accident,
labor dispute, war, insurrection, riot, act of 
government, superior force, or any other
cause reasonably beyond its control.

6. Waiver. The failure of any Party at any
time or times to require performance of any

provision of this Agreement shall in no
manner affect its right to enforce that
provision at a later time. Nor shall the waiver

Cooperative Personnel Services dba 
CPS HR Consulting 
2450 Del Paso Rd. Ste 220, Sacramento, CA 95834 

By: 
-----------------

Authorized Signature 

Name: _______________ _ 

Title: ______________ _ 

Page 3 of 5 

by either Party of a breach of any provision of 
this Agreement be taken or held to be a 
waiver of the provision itself. No waiver shall 
be enforceable unless made in writing and 
signed by the Party granting the waiver. 

7. Entire Agreement; Modifications. This
Agreement constitutes the entire agreement
between the parties regarding the subject
matter hereof and supersedes all other
agreements, representations and warranties.
All modifications and supplements to this
Agreement must be in writing and signed by
both parties.

8. Counterparts; Facsimile Signature;
Electronic Signature. This Agreement may
be executed in any number of counterparts. If
this Agreement or any counterpart is signed
and then faxed or e-mailed by PDF or
otherwise, the faxed or -mailed copy bearing
the signature shall be as good as the original,
wet-ink signed copy for all intents and
purposes.

9. Authority to Sign. The person signing
this Agreement on behalf of the Client (the
Principal Signer) represents that he or she is
the head of the agency or is otherwise duly
authorized to sign this Agreement and to bind
the Client.

10. Ambiguities. As this Agreement has
been voluntarily and freely negotiated by both
parties, the rule that ambiguous contractual
provisions are construed against the drafter of
the provision shall be inapplicable to this
Agreement.

Inyo County 
1360 N. Main Street, Suite 269 
Bishop, CA 93526 

By: ____________ _ 
Authorized Signature 

Name: ______________ _ 

Title: _______________ _ Assistant County Administrator

Sue DishionSandy MacDonald-Hopp

Chief Financial Officer



Exhibit A
Statement of Work

All changes to this SOW must be mutually agreed to and executed in writing by duly authorized representatives of
both parties as an amendment to this SOW. Capitalized terms used herein shall have the meanings ascribed to them
in the Agreement.

1. SERVICES: CPS HR shall assist lnyo County ("County") with the recruitment of a Health and Human Services
Depuly Director, Public Health and Prevention by providing the following services:

Phase l:

r Meet with appropriate stakeholder(s) to gather information on the organization and to develop the
specifications and ideal candidate profile for the position

r Coordinate with the County on development of recruitmenl brochure for the desired
position; prepare brochure design

r Complete recruitment brochure and post brochure on CPS HR website
r Place ads in agreed upon trade journals, web sites and other appropriate sources

o Prinlanddistributebrochure/jobannouncement

. Receive all resumes and acknowledge receiptthereof
t Respond to inquiries from applicants and potential applicants
r Keep client posted on recruitment progress

r Conduct aggressive outreach by initiating contact with potential applicants and with referral
sources

Phase ll:

o Review application materials and identiff candidates for further consideration

r Conduct preliminary screening interviews

. Submit "Client Report" (includes resumes, summary of resumes, notes, overview)

r Meet with County to discuss the report and the results of the screening interviews in order for the
Agency lo identiff an appropriate number to inlerview as finalists (or semi- finalists)

. Notry all applicants of status in the recruitment

Phase lll:

o Prepare an assessment process forfinalists in coordination with the County

r Schedule candidates for participation in finalist assessment; send invitations to candidates
and coordinate travel/accommodations

. Prepareevaluationmaterials

. Facilitate finalist assessment process in coordination with the County
o Conduct reference and background checks on top identified candidate(s) following assessment

process

2. CLIENTRESPONSIBILITIES:

a. Client must timely perform all those Client roles and responsibilities set forth in this SOW. Successful
completion of this project within lhe lime specified depends largely upon an effective working relationship between
Client and CPS HR project staff. For this reason, CPS HR requests that Client designate an individual to
coordinate communication, meetings, interview schedules, and review of products with lhe project team, Client's
Project Representative will be responsible for the following activities:

1. Coordinating all meeting schedules, conference calls, facilities and equipment needs
2. Coordinating interview schedules and facilities and distributing project update information

Page 4 of 5



b. Any work products developed during the activities described above will be submitted to Client's Project
Representative for review, comment and/or approval. This is a critical step to ensure accurate, reliable, and valid
products.

3. CPS HR PROJECT MANAGER: Pamela Derby Phone: (916) 471-3126 Email; oderbv@cpshr.us

4. CLIENT PROJECT MANAGER: Sue Dishion Phone: (760) 878-0377 Email: sdishiqr{Qiryggsnlygg

5. SERVICE FEES and EXPENSES: Fixed Fee $17,500 (discounted rate for a full recruitment)

a. All Services provided to Client by CPS HR hereunder are priced on a FIXED PRICE basis, All amounts are
based upon the following assumptions. Any deviations from the following assumptions may result in an
increase in the Fees: (i) Client will timely perform its responsibilities as set forth in this SOW; and (ii) Services
will normally be performed during normal business hours, Monday through Friday, 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m.,
excluding CPS HR holidays ('Normal Business Hours").

b. Profeesional Services Fees: The professional fixed fee of $1 7,500 covers all CPS HR services associated with
Phases l, ll, and lll of the recruitment proc€ss, including the necessary field visits to develop the candidate
profile and recruitment strategy, assist the Client with finalist seleclion, and facilitate candidate interviews. The
professional fixed fee includes the following expenses: brochure design and printing, advertising, background
check on the selected finalist candidate, supplies, shipping, and consultant travel.

c. Addilional Exoenses Not lncluded: Travel expenses for candidates who are invited forward in the interview
process are NOT included. However, should the Client desire CPS HR's Travel Team to assist with these
arrangements, CPS HR can provide assistance. This might require an amount be added to the Agreement.

d. lnvoices: CPS HR will invoice Client at the fixed fee rate of $17,500 billed in three monthly installments of
$5,000 and a fourth installment of $2,500. Client will pay CPS HR within thirty (30) days following receipt of
invoice.

e. One-Year Guarantee: lf the employment of the candidate selected and appointed by the Client, as a result of a
full execulive recruitment (Phases l, ll, and lll), comes to an end before the completion of the first year of
service, CPS HR will provide the Client with professional services to appoint a replacement. Professional
consuiting services will be provided at no cost. The Client would be responsible only for reimbursable
expenses. This guarantee does not apply to situations in which the successful candidate is promoted or re-
assigned within the organization during the one-year period. Additionally, should the initial recruitment efforts
not result in a successful appointment, CPS HR will extend the aggressive recruiting efforts and screen
qualified candidates until an offer is made and accepted. CPS HR does not provide a guarantee for
candidates placed as a result of a partial recruitment effort.

6. ln the event the project is terminated early, CPS HR will be paid such amount as is due for professional services
performed and out-of-pocket expenses incurred up to and including the effective date of termination.

7. This SOW covers work requesled and performed prior to the commencement of this SOW.

Page 5 of 5



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

February 7, 2023   Reference ID:  
2023-3412  

 

AB 361 Findings Regarding Remote Board of 
Supervisors Meetings 

County Counsel 
 ACTION REQUIRED 

   
ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Office of County Counsel  John Vallejo, County Counsel 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Request Board adopt findings pursuant to AB 361 that: A) the Board reconsidered the circumstances of 
the existing State of Emergency issued on March 4, 2020, in response to the COVID-19 pandemic; and 
B) local officials continue to recommend measures to promote social distancing, and/or the state of 
emergency continues to directly impact the ability of the members to meet safely in person. 
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
On March 4, 2020, Governor Newsom issued a Proclamation of State of Emergency in response to the 
COVID-19 pandemic. That Proclamation remains in effect. Subsequently, on March 17, 2020, Governor 
Newsom issued Executive Order N-29-20, which modified the teleconferencing rules set forth in the 
California Open Meeting law, Government Code section 54950 et seq. (the “Brown Act”), in order to 
allow legislative bodies to meet from remote locations without opening those locations to the public or 
complying with certain agenda requirements. Those modifications remained in effect through September 
30, 2021. 
 
In anticipation of the expiration of the applicable provisions of Executive Order N-29-20, the California 
legislature adopted, and Governor Newsom signed, AB 361. AB 361 amended the Brown Act to allow 
local legislative bodies to continue to meet under the modified teleconferencing rules until January 1, 
2024, if the meeting occurs during a proclaimed state of emergency and the legislative body finds that it 
has reconsidered the circumstances of the state of emergency and either: measures to promote social 
distancing have been imposed or recommended by local health officials; and/or the state of emergency 
continues to directly impact the ability of the members to meet safely in person. 
 
The Inyo County Health Officer currently recommends that measures be implemented to promote social 
distancing, including the holding of virtual meetings. A copy of the memo memorializing that 
recommendation is included in your agenda materials. Adopting the recommended action would 
therefore make the required findings that the Board has reconsidered the circumstances of the 
emergency and that local health officials have recommended measures to promote social distancing or 
the state of emergency continues to directly impact the ability of the members to meet safely in person. 
In order to continue to meet under those modified rules, the Board will again need to reconsider the 
circumstances of the state of emergency and again make at least one of the additional findings required 
by AB 361. 

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding 
Source 

N/A Budget Unit  

Budgeted? N/A Object Code  
Recurrence N/A  
Current Fiscal Year Impact 
 
Future Fiscal Year Impacts 
 
Additional Information 
 
 
ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
If your Board chooses to not make the required findings, the Board must meet in person as required by 
the Brown Act, and any Board Member participating via teleconference must make their location open 
and available to the public during the meeting.  
  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
None. 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. AB 361 Public Meeting Recommendations 
  
APPROVALS: 
Darcy Ellis Created/Initiated - 1/11/2023 
John Vallejo Final Approval - 1/11/2023 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Strengthening Resilience & Well-Being in Our Community 

Date: September 23, 2021 

To: Inyo County Local Agency Governing Bodies 

From: Dr. James Richardson, Inyo County Public Health Officer 

Re: Continued Recommendation Re Social Distancing and Remote Meetings 

In order to help minimize the spread of COVID-19, I recommend that physical/social distancing measures continue to be 
practiced throughout our Inyo County communities, including at public meetings of the Board of Supervisors and other 
public agencies.   Individuals continue to contract COVID-19 and spread the infection throughout our communities. Social 
distancing, masking, and vaccination are crucial mitigation measures to prevent the disease’s spread. Remote public agency 
meetings allow for the participation of the community, agency staff, presenters, and board members in a safe environment, 
with no risk of contagion. As such, and since this disease negatively and directly impacts the ability of public agencies to 
conduct public meetings safely in person, it is my recommendation that local public agencies conduct their public meetings 
remotely. 

This recommendation will remain in place until further notice. 

Dr. James A. Richardson 
Inyo County Health Officer 

County of Inyo 

HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES DEPARTMENT 
Public Health, Suite 203-C 

1360 N. Main Street, Bishop CA 93514 
TEL: (760) 873-7868 FAX: (760) 873-7800 

Marilyn Mann, Director 
mmann@inyocounty.us  



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

February 7, 2023   Reference ID:  
2023-3400  

 

Data Sharing Agreement Provided by Cal HHS 
Health & Human Services 

 ACTION REQUIRED 
   

ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Marilyn Mann, HHS Director Marilyn Mann, HHS Director 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Request Board approve the Data Sharing Agreement between the County of Inyo and California Health 
and Human Services (Cal HHS) for the provision of data sharing policy and procedures issued statewide, 
and authorize the HHS Director to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures being obtained. 
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
California Health and Human Services Agency Center for Data Insight and Innovation has produced the 
core expectations that guide the design and implementation of the data exchange framework that 
supports statewide data sharing.  The data sharing is to expand the exchange of health information 
among health care entities, government agencies and social service programs beginning in 2024.  This 
is the framework that allows us to have more detailed, data-sharing MOUs with our Managed Care 
Plans.  
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding 
Source 

N/A.  There is no fiscal impact. Budget Unit  

Budgeted? N/A Object Code  
Recurrence   
Current Fiscal Year Impact 
 
Future Fiscal Year Impacts 
 
Additional Information 
 
 
ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
The Data Sharing Agreement is required to complete milestone 3a for the Behavioral Health Quality 
Improvement Plan (BHQIP) and if not approved, will affect the funding received for project. 
  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

None. 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. CHHS DSA Policies and Procedures 
2. CalHHS Agreement 
  
APPROVALS: 
Lori Bengochia Created/Initiated - 1/10/2023 
Melissa Best-Baker Approved - 1/11/2023 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 1/11/2023 
Marilyn Mann Approved - 1/11/2023 
John Vallejo Approved - 1/12/2023 
Marilyn Mann Final Approval - 1/13/2023 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 CalHHS Data Exchange Framework Policy and Procedure 

Subject: Process for Amending the DSA 

Status: Final Policy: OPP-1 

Publication Date: July 5, 2022 Version: 1.0 

 

1 

 

 

I. Purpose  

The Governance Entity has responsibility for overseeing the implementation and operation of the 

California Health and Human Services Data Exchange Framework (“Data Exchange Framework”). 

The Data Exchange Framework includes the Data Sharing Agreement (the “DSA”), which is 

executed by all of the Participants in the Data Exchange Framework. The Governance Entity has 

responsibility for managing amendments to the DSA. The purpose of this policy is to set forth the 

process by which the Governance Entity will fulfill this responsibility. 

II. Policy 

The Governance Entity shall follow the process set forth in this policy in order to amend the DSA. 

An amendment to the DSA shall be effective only if implemented as provided in this policy.  

This policy shall be effective as of January 31, 2024. 

III. Procedures 

1. RETENTION AND DISSEMINATION OF THE DSA 

a. The Governance Entity shall maintain the DSA in a publicly accessible location 

and shall maintain all original, executed copies of the DSA. In addition, the Governance Entity 

shall maintain a list of the current and prior Participants, as well as a list of individuals and entities 

that are required to execute the DSA but have not yet done so, in a publicly accessible location. 

The current version of the DSA as well as originals of all previous versions shall be maintained for 

the duration of their usefulness as determined by the Governance Entity. 

2. SUBMISSION OF PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO THE DSA 

a. Any member of the Governance Entity, Participant or any other stakeholder that 

the Governance Entity deems appropriate may submit in writing to the Governance Entity a request 

for an amendment to the DSA. Additionally, the Governance Entity may, at its discretion, solicit 

requests for amendments to the DSA from all Participants and other interested stakeholders. All 

requests for proposed amendments shall identify the section of the DSA that is the subject of the 

requested amendment (if any) and shall provide (i) a thorough description of why the requested 

amendment is necessary, (ii) the proposed language for the requested amendment and (iii) an 

analysis of the expected impact of the requested amendment.  

3. CONSIDERATION OF PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO THE DSA 

a. The Governance Entity shall define criteria for which requests for proposed 

amendments merit additional consideration.  

b. If a request for a proposed amendment satisfies the criteria established by the 

Governance Entity, the Governance Entity will forward such request to legal counsel for an initial 

legal review. Following this initial legal review, a task force established by the Governance Entity 



 CalHHS Data Exchange Framework Policy and Procedure 

Subject: Process for Amending the DSA 

Status: Final Policy: OPP-1 

Publication Date: July 5, 2022 Version: 1.0 

 

2 

 

shall, in consultation with local partners and a stakeholder advisory group appointed by the 

Secretary of California Health and Human Services, determine how to address the request.  

c. Prior to approving any amendments to the DSA, the task force shall solicit and 

consider comments from the Participants on the new, amended, repealed or replaced provisions of 

the DSA. To promote openness and transparency, the task force shall post proposed changes to the 

DSA to a publicly accessible location. 

d. Following the task force’s approval of the amendment to the DSA, the Participants 

shall be given at least forty-five (45) calendar days to review the approved amendment and register 

an objection if a Participant believes the amendment will have a significant adverse operational or 

financial impact on the Participant. Such objection shall be submitted to the Governance Entity and 

contain a summary of the Participant’s reasons for the objection.  

e. If the task group’s recommendation is that the DSA should not be amended and 

the Governance Entity approves such a recommendation, the Governance Entity will inform the 

requestor of its determination in a written explanation.  

4. IMPLEMENTATION OF PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO THE DSA 

a. If the task group’s recommendation is to amend the DSA and the Governance 

Entity approves such a recommendation, the Governance Entity will circulate the amendment to all 

of the Participants for signature at one hundred and eighty (180) calendar days prior to the effective 

date of the amendment, except in the event that a shorter time period is necessary in order to comply 

with Applicable Law. When the Governance Entity circulates the amendment for signature, the 

Governance Entity will also provide Participants with the following information:  

i. A reasonably comprehensive statement as to the reasons for the 

amendment and any foreseeable impact of the change;  

ii. A statement regarding whether the amendment is necessary in order for 

the Data Exchange Framework, the Governance Entity or Participants to comply with Applicable 

Law;  

iii. The effective date of the amendment; and  

iv. A time period for the Participants to execute the proposed amendment.  

IV. Definitions 

All other capitalized terms not defined herein shall have the same meaning as set forth in the DSA. 

V. References 

 

VI. Related Policies and Procedures 



 CalHHS Data Exchange Framework Policy and Procedure 

Subject: Process for Amending the DSA 

Status: Final Policy: OPP-1 

Publication Date: July 5, 2022 Version: 1.0 

 

3 

 

 

VII. Version History 

 Date Author Comment 

 July 1, 2022 CalHHS CDII Final 

 

 



 CalHHS Data Exchange Framework Policy and Procedure 

Subject: Development of and Modifications to Policies and Procedures 

Status: Final Policy: OPP-2 

Publication Date: July 5, 2022 Version: 1.0 

 

1 

 

 

I. Purpose  

The Governance Entity has responsibility for developing, maintaining, repealing, amending and 

retaining Policies and Procedures (“Policies”) to implement the California Health and Human 

Services Data Exchange Framework (“Data Exchange Framework”). The purpose of this policy is 

to set forth the procedures by which the Governance Entity will fulfill these responsibilities. 

II. Policy 

The Governance Entity shall follow the process set forth in this policy in order to develop, amend, 

repeal and/or replace Policies. An amendment to a Policy shall be effective only if implemented as 

provided in this Policy.  

This policy shall be effective as of January 31, 2024. 

III. Procedures 

1. RETENTION, MAINTENANCE AND DISSEMINATION OF POLICIES AND 

PROCEDURES 

a. All Policies shall be maintained in an accessible electronic and printable format by 

the Governance Entity in a location that is accessible to the public. All current Policies as well as 

originals of all amended, repealed and replaced Policies shall be maintained for the duration of their 

usefulness as determined by the Governance Entity.  

2. SUBMISSION OF PROPOSED NEW, AMENDED, REPEALED OR REPLACED 

POLICIES AND PROCEDURES 

a. Any Participant or other stakeholder the Governance Entity deems appropriate 

may submit in writing to the Governance Entity a request for the development of a new Policy, or 

a request for the amendment or repeal of an existing Policy. Any member of the Governance Entity 

may also bring forth any concern or question regarding the Policies. All such requests shall 

(i) identify the Policy that is the subject of the requested change (if any), (ii) identify the type of 

Policy sought (if it is a development request), (iii) provide a thorough description of why the request 

is necessary, and (iv) provide an analysis of the expected impact of adopting the new Policy or 

modifying/repealing an existing Policy. 

3. CONSIDERATION OF PROPOSED NEW, AMENDED, REPEALED OR 

REPLACED POLICIES AND PROCEDURES 

a. The Governance Entity will consider any requests that meet the submission criteria 

set forth above at its next regularly scheduled meeting following receipt of such request. 

i. The Governance Entity will (a) prioritize requests; (b) consider the merits 

of the request, as well as the impact on Participants and individuals whose Health and Social 



 CalHHS Data Exchange Framework Policy and Procedure 

Subject: Development of and Modifications to Policies and Procedures 

Status: Final Policy: OPP-2 

Publication Date: July 5, 2022 Version: 1.0 

 

2 

 

Services Information is transmitted through the Data Exchange Framework; and (c) communicate 

actions taken with the requestor. 

ii. Prior to approving any new, amended, repealed or replaced Policy, the 

Governance Entity shall solicit and consider comments from the Participants on the new, amended, 

repealed or replaced Policy. To promote openness and transparency, the Governance Entity shall 

post proposed changes to the Policies to a publicly accessible location. 

iii. Following the Governance Entity’s approval of the new, amended, 

repealed or replaced Policy, the Participants shall be given at least forty-five (45) calendar days to 

review the approved Policy and provide written comments to the Governance Entity, except in the 

event that a shorter time period is necessary in order to comply with Applicable Law. 

4. IMPLEMENTATION OF CHANGES TO THE OPERATING POLICIES AND 

PROCEDURES 

a. If the Governance Entity receives no comments from Participants during the 

above-referenced comment period, the new, amended, repealed or replaced Policy shall go into 

effect as approved by the Governance Entity and on the date identified by the Governance Entity, 

unless the Governance Entity withdraws the new, amended, repealed or replaced Policy prior to 

such date.  

b. If the Governance Entity receives comments from Participants during the above-

referenced comment period, the Governance Entity shall review the new, amended, repealed or 

replaced Policy in light of the comments and make a determination as to how to modify the new, 

amended, repealed or replaced Policy, if at all.  

c. Once the Governance Entity finalizes its determination, it shall provide at least one 

hundred and eighty (180) calendar days’ notice of the effective date of the new, amended, repealed 

or replaced Policy, except in the event that a shorter time period is necessary in order to comply 

with Applicable Law. Notice of the new, amended, repealed or replaced Policy will include a 

summary of the comments received and the reasons the Governing Entity accepted, accepted in 

part, or rejected proposals made in the comments.   

IV. Definitions 

All capitalized terms not defined herein shall have the same meaning as set forth in the Data Sharing 

Agreement. 

V. References 

 

VI. Related Policies and Procedures 

 

 



 CalHHS Data Exchange Framework Policy and Procedure 

Subject: Development of and Modifications to Policies and Procedures 

Status: Final Policy: OPP-2 

Publication Date: July 5, 2022 Version: 1.0 

 

3 

 

VII. Version History 

 Date Author Comment 

 July 1, 2022 CalHHS CDII Final 

 

 



CalHHS Data Exchange Framework Policy and Procedure 

Subject: Data Elements to Be Exchanged  
Status: Final Policy: OPP-8 
Original Publication Date: July 5, 2022 Version: 1.0.1 

 

1 

 

I. Purpose 

The California Health and Human Services Data Exchange Framework (“Data Exchange 
Framework”) requires access to and exchange of usable Health and Social Services Information by 
health and social service providers and organizations. The purpose of this policy is to define the 
Health and Social Services Information to which access is to be provided or that is to be exchanged 
by Participants. 

II. Policy 

This policy shall be effective as of January 31, 2024.  

1. DATA TO BE EXCHANGED 

a. Participants shall make available or exchange, at a minimum, data as defined in 
the subparagraphs below. 

i. Health Care Providers, including but not limited to physician practices, 
organizations, and medical groups, general acute care hospitals, critical access hospitals, long term 
acute care hospitals, acute psychiatric hospitals, rehabilitation hospitals, skilled nursing facilities, 
and clinical laboratories, shall provide access to or exchange at a minimum: 

a. Until October 6, 2022, data elements in the United States Core 
Data for Interoperability (USCDI) Version 1 if maintained by the entity. 

b. After October 6, 2022, all Electronic Health Information (EHI) as 
defined under federal regulation in Section 171.102 of Title 45 of the Code of Federal Regulations, 
including data elements in the United States Core Data for Interoperability (USCDI) Version 2, if 
maintained by the entity. 

ii. County health facilities that are Participants shall provide access to or 
exchange, at a minimum, the same data required of Health Care Providers in Paragraph 1.a.i as 
permitted under Applicable Law and maintained by the entity. 

iii. Health Plans, including but not limited to health care service plans and 
disability insurers that provide hospital, medical, or surgical coverage that are regulated by the 
Department of Managed Health Care or the Department of Insurance, Medi-Cal managed care 
plans, shall provide access to or exchange, at a minimum, the data required to be shared under the 
Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services Interoperability and Patient Access regulations for 
public programs as contained in United States Department of Health and Human Services final rule 
CMS-9115-F, 85 FR 25510 including, but not limited to, adjudicated claims, encounter data  and 
clinical data as defined in the USCDI if maintained by the entity. 

https://www.healthit.gov/isa/united-states-core-data-interoperability-uscdi
https://www.healthit.gov/isa/united-states-core-data-interoperability-uscdi
https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/45/171.102
https://www.healthit.gov/isa/united-states-core-data-interoperability-uscdi
https://www.federalregister.gov/documents/2020/05/01/2020-05050/medicare-and-medicaid-programs-patient-protection-and-affordable-care-act-interoperability-and
https://www.federalregister.gov/documents/2020/05/01/2020-05050/medicare-and-medicaid-programs-patient-protection-and-affordable-care-act-interoperability-and


CalHHS Data Exchange Framework Policy and Procedure 

Subject: Data Elements to Be Exchanged  
Status: Final Policy: OPP-8 
Original Publication Date: July 5, 2022 Version: 1.0.1 

 

2 

a. For Individual Access Services, adjudicated claims and encounter 
information shall include cost information, specifically provider remittances and enrollee cost-
sharing. 

b. For Participants and Purposes other than Individual Access 
Services, cost information may be omitted. 

c. After October 6, 2022, clinical data shall include data elements in 
the United States Core Data for Interoperability (USCDI) Version 2 if maintained by the entity. 

iv. Public health agencies that are Participants shall provide access to or 
exchange, at a minimum, the same data required of Health Care Providers in Paragraph 1.a.i as 
permitted by Applicable Law and maintained by the entity. 

v. Intermediaries, including but not limited to health information exchange 
networks and health information organizations, that are Participants shall provide access to or 
exchange, at a minimum, all of the following that apply to the extent available, if maintained by 
the entity, and provided by an applicable Participant: 

a. Data defined in Paragraph 1.a.i if providing exchange services to 
one or more Health Care Provider(s) or county health facility(ies). 

b. Data defined in Paragraph 1.a.iii if providing exchange services 
to one or more Health Plan(s). 

c. Data defined in Paragraph 1.a.iv if providing exchange services 
to one or more public health agency(ies). 

b. Participants not listed in Paragraph 1.a that voluntarily elect to sign the Data 
Sharing Agreement shall provide access to or exchange Health and Social Services Information. 

i. As applicable and deemed appropriate by the entity for meeting 
obligations under the Data Sharing Agreement, the entity shall provide access to or exchange: 

a. Until October 6, 2022, data elements in the United States Core 
Data for Interoperability (USCDI) Version 1 if appropriate and maintained by the entity. 

b. After October 6, 2022, data elements in the United States Core 
Data for Interoperability (USCDI) Version 2 if appropriate and maintained by the entity. 

c. Information related to the provision of health care services and/or 
the provision of social services if appropriate for and maintained by the entity. 

ii. Data to be exchanged by Participants not listed in Paragraph 1.a may be 
the subject of a future revision to this policy developed through a public and transparent process as 
described in the Development of and Modifications to Policies and Procedures. 

https://www.healthit.gov/isa/united-states-core-data-interoperability-uscdi


CalHHS Data Exchange Framework Policy and Procedure 

Subject: Data Elements to Be Exchanged  
Status: Final Policy: OPP-8 
Original Publication Date: July 5, 2022 Version: 1.0.1 

 

3 

2. DATA STANDARDS 

a. Participants shall use standardized data element formats, terminologies, and code 
sets identified in the United States Core Data for Interoperability (USCDI) Version 2. 

b. For data elements not included in USCDI Version 2, such as Electronic Health 
Information or claims data listed in Paragraph 1.a, Participants shall use standardized data element 
formats, terminologies, and code sets identified in applicable national and federally adopted 
standards, defined as standards published by the US Department of Health and Human Services in 
the Standards Version Advancement Process. 

c. It is the intent of the Data Exchange Framework to align with national and federally 
adopted standards. When conflicts exist between national and federally adopted standards and data 
formats, terminologies, or code sets mandated by California regulation, the California regulation 
shall prevail. 

3. DATA FORMATS 

a. Participants shall use national and federally adopted data standard formats in the 
exchange of Health and Social Services Information, which shall include one of: 

i. HL7 Messaging Standard Version 2.5.1 

ii. HL7 Clinical Document Architecture (CDA®) Release 2, HL7 
Companion Guide to Consolidated Clinical Document Architecture (C-CDA®) 2.1 preferred if 
applicable 

iii. HL7 Fast Health Interoperability Resources (FHIR®) Release 4.0.1, US 
Core Implementation Guide 4.0.0 STU4 preferred if applicable 

III. Definitions 

Electronic Health Information shall mean electronic protected health information as defined in 
45 CFR 160.103 to the extent that it would be included in a designated record set as defined in 45 
CFR 164.501, regardless of whether the group of records are used or maintained by or for a covered 
entity as defined in 45 CFR 160.103, but EHI shall not include: (1) psychotherapy notes as defined 
in 45 CFR 164.501; or (2) information compiled in reasonable anticipation of, or for use in, a civil, 
criminal, or administrative action or proceeding. 

Maintained with respect to data shall mean that the entity has access to the data, control over the 
data, and the authority to make the data available, as defined for payers in the CMS Interoperability 
and Patient Access Final Rule but herein applied to entities beyond payers. 

National and Federally Adopted Standards shall mean standards published by the US 
Department of Health and Human Services in the Standards Version Advancement Process. 

https://www.healthit.gov/isa/united-states-core-data-interoperability-uscdi
https://www.healthit.gov/isa/standards-version-advancement-process
https://www.hl7.org/implement/standards/product_brief.cfm?product_id=144
http://www.hl7.org/implement/standards/product_brief.cfm?product_id=7
http://www.hl7.org/implement/standards/product_brief.cfm?product_id=447
http://www.hl7.org/implement/standards/product_brief.cfm?product_id=447
https://www.hl7.org/fhir/
http://hl7.org/fhir/us/core/STU4/
http://hl7.org/fhir/us/core/STU4/
https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/45/160.103
https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/45/164.501
https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/45/164.501
https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/45/160.103
https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/45/164.501
https://www.federalregister.gov/d/2020-05050/p-336
https://www.federalregister.gov/d/2020-05050/p-336
https://www.healthit.gov/isa/standards-version-advancement-process


CalHHS Data Exchange Framework Policy and Procedure 

Subject: Data Elements to Be Exchanged  
Status: Final Policy: OPP-8 
Original Publication Date: July 5, 2022 Version: 1.0.1 

 

4 

United States Core Data for Interoperability shall mean the standardized set of health data 
classes and constituent data elements for nationwide, interoperable health information exchange 
published by the Office of the National Coordinator for Health Information Technology. 

All other capitalized terms, if not defined herein, shall have the same meaning as set forth in the 
CalHHS Data Exchange Framework Data Sharing Agreement. 

IV. References 

45 CFR § 171.102 - Definitions 

85 FR 25510 – CMS Interoperability and Patient Access Final Rule, or more properly Medicare 
and Medicaid Programs; Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act; Interoperability and Patient 
Access for Medicare Advantage Organization and Medicaid Managed Care Plans, State Medicaid 
Agencies, CHIP Agencies and CHIP Managed Care Entities, Issuers of Qualified Health Plans on 
the Federally-Facilitated Exchanges, and Health Care Providers 

HL7 Clinical Document Architecture (CDA®) Release 2 

HL7 Companion Guide to Consolidated Clinical Document Architecture (C-CDA®) 2.1 

HL7 Fast Health Interoperability Resources (FHIR) Release 4 

HL7 Messaging Standard Version 2.5.1 

Standards Version Advancement Process 

United States Core Data for Interoperability (USCDI) 

US Core Implementation Guide 4.0.0 - STU4 Release 

V. Related Policies and Procedures 

See the California Health and Human Services Data Exchange Framework Policy and Procedure 
on Privacy Standards and Security Safeguards for details on the protection of data elements to be 
exchanged, including sensitive data elements. 

See the California Health and Human Services Data Exchange Framework Policy and Procedure 
on Development of and Modifications to Policies and Procedures for the public and transparent 
process for modifying or amending this document. 

See the California Health and Human Services Data Exchange Framework Policy and Procedure 
on Technical Exchange Standards (to be completed) for more information on the exchange 
standards and implementation guides that may be used to access and exchange data elements 
specified in this document. 

https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/45/171.102
https://www.federalregister.gov/documents/2020/05/01/2020-05050/medicare-and-medicaid-programs-patient-protection-and-affordable-care-act-interoperability-and
http://www.hl7.org/implement/standards/product_brief.cfm?product_id=7
http://www.hl7.org/implement/standards/product_brief.cfm?product_id=447
https://www.hl7.org/fhir/
https://www.hl7.org/implement/standards/product_brief.cfm?product_id=144
https://www.healthit.gov/isa/standards-version-advancement-process
https://www.healthit.gov/isa/united-states-core-data-interoperability-uscdi
http://hl7.org/fhir/us/core/STU4/


CalHHS Data Exchange Framework Policy and Procedure 

Subject: Data Elements to Be Exchanged  
Status: Final Policy: OPP-8 
Original Publication Date: July 5, 2022 Version: 1.0.1 

 

5 

VI. Version History 

No. Date Author Comment 
1.0 July 1, 2022 CalHHS CDII Final 
1.0.1 December 1, 2022 CalHHS CDII Administrative correction 

 



 CalHHS Data Exchange Framework Policy and Procedure 

Subject: Breach Notification 

Status: Final Policy: OPP-3 

Publication Date: July 5, 2022 Version: 1.0 

 

1 

 

 

I. Purpose  

The privacy, security and integrity of Health and Social Services Information exchanged under the 

California Health and Human Services Data Exchange Framework are essential. To help maintain 

the privacy, security and integrity of Health and Social Services Information and promote trust 

among Participants, each Participant has agreed to notify certain other Participants and the 

Governance Entity of a Breach. This Policy sets forth the procedure by which a Participant and the 

Governance Entity will fulfill their respective Breach notification obligations under the Data 

Sharing Agreement (the “DSA”). 

II. Policy 

Breaches are very serious events with potential for serious impact on Participants and the 

individuals whose Health and Social Services Information is breached. Thus, each Participant has 

the obligation to identify, notify, investigate and mitigate any Breach and, when detection of a 

Breach has occurred, to notify the Governance Entity and any Participants impacted by the Breach 

in accordance with the procedures herein. 

This policy shall be effective as of January 31, 2024. 

III. Procedures 

1. OBLIGATIONS OF PARTICIPANT 

a. As soon as reasonably practicable after discovering a Breach has occurred, and 

within any timeframes required by Applicable Law, a Participant shall notify the Governance Entity 

and all Participants impacted by the Breach.  

b. As soon as reasonably practicable after discovering a Breach has occurred, and 

within any timeframes required by Applicable Law, a Participant shall provide a written report of the 

Breach to the Governance Entity and all Participants impacted by the Breach. The Participant shall 

supplement the information contained in the written report as it becomes available and shall 

cooperate with other impacted Participants. The written report should include sufficient 

information for the recipient of the notification to understand the nature of the Breach. For instance, 

such written report should include, to the extent available, the following information:  

i. One- or two-sentence description of the Breach;  

ii. Description of the roles of the people involved in the Breach (e.g., 

employees, service providers, unauthorized persons);  

iii. The type of Health and Social Services Information Breached; 

iv. Participants likely impacted by the Breach; 



 CalHHS Data Exchange Framework Policy and Procedure 

Subject: Breach Notification 

Status: Final Policy: OPP-3 

Publication Date: July 5, 2022 Version: 1.0 

 

2 

 

v. Number of individuals or records impacted/estimated to be impacted by 

the Breach; 

vi. Actions taken by the Participant to mitigate the Breach; 

vii. Current status of the Breach (under investigation or resolved); and 

viii. Corrective action taken and steps planned to be taken to prevent a similar 

Breach. 

c. Notwithstanding the above, if a Participant is notified, in writing or by oral 

statement by any law enforcement official or by any other governmental agency (e.g., Federal Trade 

Commission), that a Breach notification would impede a criminal investigation or cause damage to 

national security, and the statement has been documented consistent with 45 C.F.R. § 164.412(b), 

then the Participant shall delay the Breach notification for the time period specified by the law 

enforcement official and as required by Applicable Law. 

d. This Agreement shall not relieve Participants from any other Breach reporting 

requirements under Applicable Law, including those relating to consumer notifications.   

IV. Definitions 

“Breach” shall mean the unauthorized acquisition, access, disclosure or use of Health and Social 

Services Information in a manner not permitted by the DSA or Applicable Law. This includes both: 

1. Unencrypted data that was, or is reasonably believed to have been, acquired by an 

unauthorized person, and 

2. Encrypted data that was, or is reasonably believed to have been, acquired by an 

unauthorized person and the encryption key or security credential was, or has been 

reasonably believed to have been, acquired by an unauthorized person and the agency that 

owns or licenses the encrypted information has a reasonable belief that the encryption key 

or security credential could render that data readable or usable. 

All other capitalized terms not defined herein shall have the same meaning as set forth in the DSA. 

V. References 

 

VI. Related Policies and Procedures 

 

VII. Version History 



 CalHHS Data Exchange Framework Policy and Procedure 

Subject: Breach Notification 

Status: Final Policy: OPP-3 

Publication Date: July 5, 2022 Version: 1.0 

 

3 

 

 Date Author Comment 

 July 1, 2022 CalHHS CDII Final 

 

 



 CalHHS Data Exchange Framework Policy and Procedure 

Subject: Permitted, Required and Prohibited Purposes 

Status: Final Policy: OPP-4 

Publication Date: July 5, 2022 Version: 1.0 

 

1 

 

 

I. Purpose  

The purpose of this policy is to (a) set forth the purposes for which Participants in the California 

Health and Human Services Data Exchange Framework (the “Data Exchange Framework”) are 

required and/or permitted to exchange Health and Social Services Information under the Data 

Exchange Framework and (b) set forth certain restrictions on the use by Participants of Health and 

Social Services Information obtained under the Data Exchange Framework. 

II. Policy 

By the dates set forth in the Requirement to Exchange Health and Social Services Information 

Policy and Procedure, Participants in the Data Exchange Framework are required to exchange 

Health and Social Services Information or provide access to Health and Social Services Information 

for the Required Purposes set forth in Section III.1 of this policy. In addition, Participants may 

exchange Health and Social Services Information or provide access to Health and Social Services 

Information for the Permitted Purposes set forth in Section III.2 of this policy. Participants are 

prohibited from using Health and Social Services Information for the purposes set forth in Section 

III.3 of this policy.  

Nothing in this policy is intended to restrict a Participant from having different arrangements 

outside of the Data Sharing Agreement (the “DSA”) provided that the Participant can still comply 

with the DSA. 

This policy shall be effective as of January 31, 2024. 

III. Procedures 

1. REQUIRED PURPOSES 

a. Subject to the provisions of the DSA, the Policies and Procedures, and Applicable 

Law, Participants are required to exchange Health and Social Services Information and/or provide 

access to Health and Social Services Information pursuant to the Data Exchange Framework for 

Treatment, Payment, Health Care Operations and Public Health Activities as those terms are 

defined herein. Notwithstanding the foregoing, a Participant may only disclose Health and Social 

Services Information to another Participant for Health Care Operations if each entity either has or 

had a relationship with the Individual User who is the subject of the Health and Social Services 

Information being requested and the Health and Social Services Information pertains to such 

relationship. 

2. PERMITTED PURPOSES 

a. Subject to the provisions of the DSA and the Policies and Procedures, Participants 

are permitted to exchange or provide access to Health and Social Services Information, including 

information subject to 42 C.F.R. Part 2, for any purpose not set forth in Section 3 below, provided 

appropriate Authorizations are made, if necessary, and the disclosure or use of Health and Social 



 CalHHS Data Exchange Framework Policy and Procedure 

Subject: Permitted, Required and Prohibited Purposes 

Status: Final Policy: OPP-4 

Publication Date: July 5, 2022 Version: 1.0 

 

2 

 

Services Information is permissible under Applicable Law. Such purposes include but are not 

limited to Social Services Activities and Research activities.  

3. PROHIBITED PURPOSES 

a. Unless otherwise permitted by Applicable Law or a legally valid agreement, 

Participants shall not access Health and Social Services Information through the DSA in order to 

sell such information.  

b. Participant shall not access Health and Social Services Information through the 

DSA in order to unlawfully discriminate or unlawfully deny or limit access to medical services, or 

prosecute or take any other adverse action against an individual who accesses medical services. 

4. SPECIFICATIONS 

a. In order to support the development of a directory that sets forth how to exchange 

Health and Social Services Information among Participants, Participants shall provide any and all 

information, including API endpoints, set forth in the applicable Specification, and shall keep such 

information updated. 

5. FEES 

a. Participants are prohibited from charging fees to other Participants for any 

exchange of Health and Social Services Information under the DSA; provided that the foregoing 

shall not prohibit a Qualified HIO from charging fees to Participants who engage in data-sharing 

activities through the Qualified HIO. 

IV. Definitions 

“Business Associate” shall mean an organization that is defined as a “business associate” in 45 

C.F.R. § 160.103 of the HIPAA Regulations. 

“Health Care Operations” for purposes of this policy, shall consist of the following activities: 

1. Quality Assessment and Improvement activities as described in subsection (1) of 

the definition of health care operations set forth at 45 C.F.R. § 164.501. 

2. Population-based activities relating to improving health or reducing health care 

costs, protocol development, case management and care coordination and contacting of health 

care providers and patients with information about treatment alternatives as set forth at 45 C.F.R. 

§ 164.501. 

“Payment” shall have the same meaning as set forth at 45 C.F.R. § 164.501 of the HIPAA 

Regulations. 

“Public Health Activities” shall mean an access, use or disclosure permitted under the HIPAA 

Regulations and any other Applicable Law for public health activities and purposes, including an 

access, use or disclosure permitted under 45 C.F.R. § 164.512(b) and 45 C.F.R. § 164.514(e). Public 



 CalHHS Data Exchange Framework Policy and Procedure 

Subject: Permitted, Required and Prohibited Purposes 

Status: Final Policy: OPP-4 

Publication Date: July 5, 2022 Version: 1.0 

 

3 

 

Health Activities excludes the following oversight activities: audits; civil, administrative or 

criminal investigations; inspections; licensure or disciplinary actions; and civil, administrative or 

criminal proceedings or actions other than enforcement activities by a county health officer that are 

authorized under Cal. Health & Safety Code § 101030. 

“Research” shall mean a systematic investigation, including research development, testing and 

evaluation, designed to develop or contribute to generalizable knowledge. 

“Sale of Health and Social Services Information” shall mean the disclosure of Health and Social 

Services Information in return for direct or indirect remuneration from or on behalf of the recipient 

of the Health and Social Services Information. Sale of Health and Social Services Information shall 

not include the disclosure of Health and Social Services Information for the activities set forth in 

45 C.F.R. § 164.502(a)(5)(ii)(B)(2). 

“Social Services Activities” shall mean the Social Services provided by Social Service Organizations. 

All other capitalized terms not defined herein shall have the same meaning as set forth in the DSA. 

V. References 

VI. Related Policies and Procedures 

Individual Access Services Policy and Procedure  

Requirement to Exchange Health and Social Services Information Policy and Procedure 

VII. Version History 

 Date Author Comment 

 July 1, 2022 CalHHS CDII Final 

 

 



 CalHHS Data Exchange Framework Policy and Procedure 

Subject: Requirement to Exchange Health and Social Services Information 

Status: Final Policy: OPP-5 

Publication Date: July 5, 2022 Version: 1.0 

 

1 

 

 

I. Purpose  

California Health and Safety Code § 130290 was enacted in 2021 and establishes the creation of the 

California Health and Human Services Data Exchange Framework (“Data Exchange Framework”), 

which requires certain data sharing among Participants. The purpose of this policy is to set forth the 

responsibilities of Participants to respond to requests for Health and Social Services Information 

pursuant to the Data Exchange Framework. 

II. Policy 

All Participants shall exchange Health and Social Services Information in accordance with this 

policy. 

This policy shall be effective as of January 31, 2024. 

III. Procedures 

1. DUTY TO RESPOND 

a. All Participants shall respond to requests for Health and Social Services 

Information made by other Participants and shall share Health and Social Services Information 

when required under the Required, Permitted and Prohibited Purposes Policy. A Participant shall 

fulfill its duty to respond by either (i) providing the requested Health and Social Services 

Information in accordance with the Data Sharing Agreement (the “DSA”) and Applicable Law, or 

(ii) providing a clear written response that states the Health and Social Services Information is not 

available, cannot be exchanged under Applicable Law, or is not required to be shared under the 

DSA.  

b. All responses to requests for Health and Social Services Information shall made as 

soon as reasonably practicable, but in any case within any timeframes required by Applicable Law.  

c. All responses to requests for Health and Social Services Information shall comply 

with Specifications, the DSA, any other data exchange agreements and Applicable Law.  

2. TECHNOLOGY AGNOSTIC 

a. The Data Exchange Framework is intended to be technology agnostic, meaning 

that no particular technology or method to exchange data is preferred. Participants may use various 

technology solutions, applications, interfaces, software, platforms, clearinghouses and other 

information technology resources to support exchange of Health and Social Services Information. 

3. REQUIREMENT TO EXCHANGE DATA 

a. Each Participant agrees to exchange Health and Social Services Information in 

accordance with the Data Exchange Framework to the extent the Participant is technologically 

ready and able and as set forth in the Policies and Procedures. 



 CalHHS Data Exchange Framework Policy and Procedure 

Subject: Requirement to Exchange Health and Social Services Information 

Status: Final Policy: OPP-5 

Publication Date: July 5, 2022 Version: 1.0 

 

2 

 

b. Starting January 31, 2024, the following Participants shall be considered 

technologically ready and able and shall exchange information under the Data Exchange 

Framework: 

i. Healthcare organizations as set forth in California Health and Safety Code 

§ 130290(f), except for physician practices of fewer than 25 physicians, rehabilitation hospitals, 

long-term acute care hospitals, acute psychiatric hospitals, critical access hospitals, rural general 

acute care hospitals with fewer than 100 acute care beds, state-run acute psychiatric hospitals, and 

any nonprofit clinic with fewer than 10 health care providers; and 

ii. Health information networks, health information organizations, health 

information service providers, and electronic health records technology providers. 

c. Starting January 31, 2026, the following Participants shall be considered 

technologically ready and able and shall exchange information under the Data Exchange 

Framework: 

i. Physician practices of fewer than 25 physicians, rehabilitation hospitals, 

long term acute care hospitals, acute psychiatric hospitals, critical access hospitals, rural general 

acute care hospitals with fewer than 100 acute care beds, state-run acute psychiatric hospitals, and 

any nonprofit clinic with fewer than 10 health care providers; 

ii. Governmental Participants; and 

iii. Social Services Organizations. 

d. Starting January 31, 2024, a Participant set forth in Section (3)(c) above may 

request access to Health and Social Services Information from another Participant if it agrees to 

comply with the DSA and all Policies and Procedures. Such Participant however shall not be 

required to disclose information until January 31, 2026. Such Participant may disclose Health and 

Social Services Information prior to January 31, 2026 if it determines that it is technologically able 

and ready. 

e. If a Participant is not technologically able and ready to exchange Health and Social 

Services Information by the applicable date set forth in this Policy, the Participant shall still be 

required to engage in the Meaningful Exchange of Health and Social Services Information under the 

Data Exchange Framework. 

4. MISCELLANEOUS 

a. Nothing in this Policy shall require a disclosure that is contrary to a restriction 

placed on Health and Social Services Information by an individual pursuant to Applicable Law.   

IV. Definitions 

“Meaningful Exchange” shall mean that a Participant shall comply with all Policies and 

Procedures and, if not technologically ready and able to exchange Health and Social Services 



 CalHHS Data Exchange Framework Policy and Procedure 

Subject: Requirement to Exchange Health and Social Services Information 

Status: Final Policy: OPP-5 

Publication Date: July 5, 2022 Version: 1.0 

 

3 

 

Information, shall use best efforts to contract with another entity that provides data exchange 

services. 

“Permitted Purposes” shall mean the purposes for which Participants are permitted to exchange 

Health and Social Services Information as set forth in the Permitted and Required Purposes Policy 

and Procedure. 

“Required Purposes” shall mean the purposes for which Participants are required to exchange 

Health and Social Services Information as set forth in the Permitted, Required and Prohibited 

Purposes Policy and Procedure. 

All other capitalized terms not defined herein shall have the same meaning as set forth in the DSA.  

V. References 

 

VI. Related Policies and Procedures 

Permitted, Required and Prohibited Purposes Policy and Procedure. 

VII. Version History 

 Date Author Comment 

 July 1, 2022 CalHHS CDII Final 

 

 



 CalHHS Data Exchange Framework Policy and Procedure 

Subject: Privacy Standards and Security Safeguards 

Status: Final Policy: OPP-6 

Publication Date: July 5, 2022 Version: 1.0 

 

1 

 

 

I. Purpose  

The privacy, security, and integrity of PHI or PII exchanged under the California Health and Human 

Services Data Exchange Framework are essential. To help maintain the privacy, security and 

integrity of PHI or PII and promote trust among Participants, each Participant has agreed to use 

appropriate safeguards to protect the privacy of PHI or PII, and has agreed to maintain a secure 

environment that supports the exchange of PHI or PII. This Policy sets forth the procedure by which 

a Participant will fulfill such obligations under the Data Sharing Agreement (the “DSA”). 

II. Policy 

Using appropriate safeguards to protect the privacy of PHI or PII and maintaining a secure 

environment that supports the exchange of PHI or PII are important components to prevent 

unauthorized disclosure, disruption, loss, access, use, or modification of an organization’s data. 

Thus, each Participant has the obligation to develop and maintain appropriate safeguards to prevent 

unauthorized use or disclosure of PHI or PII, in a manner consistent with HIPAA Regulations, 

including implementing appropriate administrative, physical and technical safeguards that protect 

the confidentiality, integrity and availability of PHI or PII.  

This policy shall be effective as of January 31, 2024. 

III. Procedures 

1. GENERAL PRIVACY STANDARDS AND SAFEGUARDS 

a. To support the privacy, confidentiality and security of PHI or PII, each Participant 

hereby represents and warrants:  

i. If the Participant is a Covered Entity or a covered component of a Hybrid 

Entity, the Participant does, and at all times shall, comply with the HIPAA Regulations to the extent 

applicable and all other Applicable Law.  

ii. If the Participant is a Business Associate, the Participant does, and at all 

times shall, comply with the provisions of its Business Associate Agreements (or for governmental 

entities relying upon 45 C.F.R. section 164.504(e)(3)(i)(A), its Memoranda of Understanding) and 

all other Applicable Law. 

iii. Unless otherwise prohibited by Applicable Law, if the Participant is not a 

Covered Entity, a covered component of a Hybrid Entity or a Business Associate, the Participant 

shall, as a contractual standard, at all times, at a minimum, comply with the provisions of the 

HIPAA Regulations at 45 C.F.R. part 164, subparts C and E, as if it were acting in the capacity of 

a Business Associate and all other Applicable Law. 

b. Each Participant shall be responsible for maintaining a secure environment that 

supports the exchange of PHI or PII pursuant to the DSA. Each Participant, regardless of whether 

it, pursuant to federal law, is subject to the HIPAA Regulations, shall use appropriate safeguards 



 CalHHS Data Exchange Framework Policy and Procedure 

Subject: Privacy Standards and Security Safeguards 

Status: Final Policy: OPP-6 

Publication Date: July 5, 2022 Version: 1.0 

 

2 

 

to prevent unauthorized use or disclosure of PHI or PII in a manner consistent with HIPAA 

Regulations, including implementing appropriate administrative, physical, and technical 

safeguards that protect the confidentiality, integrity, and availability of PHI or PII. Participants 

shall also be required to comply with any Specifications or other applicable Policies and Procedures 

that define requirements and expectations for Participants with respect to enterprise privacy and 

security. Each Participant acknowledges a Participant does not become a Business Associate of 

another Participant by virtue of signing the DSA or exchanging PHI or PII pursuant to the DSA.  

2. PRIVACY STANDARDS AND SAFEGUARDS RELATING TO BEHAVIORAL 

HEALTH 

a. In the event that a Participant uses, accesses, or discloses behavioral health 

information, Participant shall, prior to engaging in any such activity, implement appropriate 

administrative, physical, and technical safeguards that protect the confidentiality, integrity, and 

availability of such information in accordance with Applicable Law, including but not limited to, 

42 C.F.R. Part 2 and the California Lanterman-Petris-Short Act. 

3. POLICIES AND PROCEDURES; TRAINING 

a. Each Participant shall, pursuant to this Agreement, Applicable Law, or applicable 

federal and state guidance, have written privacy and security policies relating to the use and 

disclosure of PHI or PII that are consistent with and satisfy the requirements set forth in the HIPAA 

Regulations and Applicable Law. Before granting access to PHI or PII, each Participant shall train 

staff, contractors, agents, employees, and workforce members, as defined under the HIPAA 

Regulations, who will have access to PHI or PII under this Agreement. Each Participant shall also 

provide refresher training consistent with each Participant’s internal privacy and security policies 

but no less than annually. 

b. Participants should use tools, resources, and technical assistance made available 

by the California Health and Human Services Agency to help Individual Users and/or their Personal 

Representatives understand the benefits of information sharing and for obtaining informed consent. 

IV. Definitions 

“Business Associate” shall mean an organization that is defined as a “business associate” in 45 

C.F.R. § 160.103 of the HIPAA Regulations. 

“Hybrid Entity” shall have the same meaning as set forth in 45 C.F.R. § 164.103. 

All capitalized terms not defined herein shall have the same meaning as set forth in the DSA. 

 

V. References 

 



 CalHHS Data Exchange Framework Policy and Procedure 

Subject: Privacy Standards and Security Safeguards 

Status: Final Policy: OPP-6 

Publication Date: July 5, 2022 Version: 1.0 

 

3 

 

VI. Related Policies and Procedures 

 

VII. Version History 

 Date Author Comment 

 July 1, 2022 CalHHS CDII Final 

 

 



 CalHHS Data Exchange Framework Policy and Procedure 

Subject: Individual Access Services 

Status: Final Policy: OPP-7 

Publication Date: July 5, 2022 Version: 1.0 

 

1 

 

 

I. Purpose  

California Health and Safety Code section 130290 was enacted in 2021 and establishes the creation 

of the California Health and Human Services Data Exchange Framework (“Data Exchange 

Framework”), which requires certain data sharing among Participants. The purpose of this policy is 

to set forth the responsibilities of Participants to enable the right of an Individual User or an Individual 

User’s Personal Representative to inspect and obtain a copy of PHI or PII about the Individual User 

in a timely manner. 

II. Policy 

To the extent permitted by Applicable Law, Participants shall provide an Individual User or the 

Individual User’s Personal Representative bidirectional access to the Individual User’s PHI or PII in 

accordance with this policy.  

This policy shall be effective as of January 31, 2024. 

III. Procedures 

1. INDIVIDUAL USER ACCESS 

a. To the extent permitted by Applicable Law, an Individual User or an Individual 

User’s Personal Representative has a right of access to inspect and obtain a copy of PHI or PII 

about the Individual User, for as long as the PHI or PII is maintained by a Participant. 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, if permitted under Applicable Law, a Participant shall have the 

authority to deny right of access to inspect or obtain a copy of PHI or PII.  

b. Participants that maintain PHI or PII for an Individual User must respond to the 

Individual User’s or the Individual User’s Personal Representative’s request that self-reported 

Health and Social Services Information be added to the Individual User’s health records, and must 

have a process to correct inaccurate information and for reconciling discrepancies in such records 

to ensure accuracy. 

c. The Participant may require the Individual User or the Individual User’s Personal 

Representative to assert their right to access the Individual User’s PHI or PII in accordance with 

the HIPAA Regulations or other Applicable Law. Each Participant shall provide the Individual 

User or the Individual User’s Personal Representative with the option of using electronic means 

(e.g., email or secure web portal) or other such means as determined by the Governance Entity to 

assert their rights for Individual Access Services to PHI or PII. 

2. INDIVIDUAL USE OR DISCLOSURE OF PHI OR PII 

a. Individual Users shall have the right to use or disclose their own PHI or PII, except 

for any limitations set forth by Applicable Law.  



 CalHHS Data Exchange Framework Policy and Procedure 

Subject: Individual Access Services 

Status: Final Policy: OPP-7 

Publication Date: July 5, 2022 Version: 1.0 

 

2 

 

3. AUTHENTICATION 

a. Prior to initiating Individual Access Services, the Participant shall be required to 

verify the identity of the Individual User or the Individual User’s Personal Representative using 

standards and methods consistent with 45 C.F.R. § 164.514(h) or other Applicable Law. 

4. NO FEES FOR INDIVIDUAL ACCESS SERVICES 

a. A Participant may not charge another Participant any fees for PHI or PII exchanged 

in furtherance of this section. 

5. PROCESSING OF INDIVIDUAL ACCESS SERVICES REQUESTS 

a. Participants shall process an Individual User or Individual User’s Personal 

Representative requests for Individual Access Services as follows: 

i. Each Participant that receives a request for Individual Access Services 

from an Individual User or an Individual User’s Personal Representative for whom it maintains 

PHI or PII shall provide such Individual User or Individual User’s Personal Representative with 

Individual Access Services in accordance with Cal. Health & Safety Code § 123100–123149.5 or 

other Applicable Law. 

ii. Unless otherwise prohibited by Applicable Law, if the Participant does not 

maintain the PHI or PII that is the subject of the request for access, and the Participant knows where 

the requested information is maintained, the Participant must inform the Individual User or 

Individual User’s Personal Representative where to direct the request for access.  

iii. With respect to a Participant query for Individual Access Services, the 

response shall be provided as required by these terms and conditions regardless of whether it was 

prompted by (a) the Individual User or (b) a Participant who provides Individual Access Services 

and has been selected by the Individual User who is requesting PHI or PII for Individual Access 

Services. 

IV. Definitions 

“Business Associate” shall mean an organization that is defined as a “business associate” in 45 

C.F.R. § 160.103 of the HIPAA Regulations. 

 

“Business Associate Agreement” shall mean a contract, agreement, or other arrangement that 

satisfies the requirements of 45 C.F.R. § 164.504(e), as applicable. With regard to Governmental 

Participants, a Business Associate Agreement may be a memorandum of understanding that 

satisfies the requirements of 45 C.F.R. § 164.504(e)(3). 

“Individual Access Services” shall mean the services provided to satisfy the right of an Individual 

User or an Individual User’s Personal Representative to access and to obtain a copy of the 

Individual User’s PHI or PII under Applicable Law or to direct that it be sent to a third party 

consistent with 45 C.F.R. § 164.524 or any other Applicable Law or agreement. 



 CalHHS Data Exchange Framework Policy and Procedure 

Subject: Individual Access Services 

Status: Final Policy: OPP-7 

Publication Date: July 5, 2022 Version: 1.0 

 

3 

 

All other capitalized terms not defined herein shall have the same meaning as set forth in the Data 

Sharing Agreement. 

V. References 

 

VI. Related Policies and Procedures 

Permitted, Required and Prohibited Purposes Policy and Procedure 

VII. Version History 

 Date Author Comment 

 July 1, 2022 CalHHS CDII Final 

 

 



 
 
 

California Health and Human Services 
Data Exchange Framework:  

Single Data Sharing Agreement 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Last Updated: November 3, 2022



TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

Page 

 

 -i-  
 

1. PARTIES ....................................................................................................................................... 1 

2. PURPOSE AND INTENT ............................................................................................................ 1 

3. DEFINITIONS .............................................................................................................................. 1 

4. USE OF HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES INFORMATION........................................... 3 

5. POLICIES AND PROCEDURES AND SPECIFICATIONS ................................................... 3 

6. AUTHORIZATIONS ................................................................................................................... 4 

7. REQUIREMENT TO EXCHANGE HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES 
INFORMATION ........................................................................................................................... 4 

8. PRIVACY AND SECURITY ....................................................................................................... 4 

9. MINIMUM NECESSARY ........................................................................................................... 5 

10. INDIVIDUAL ACCESS SERVICES .......................................................................................... 5 

11. COOPERATION AND NON-DISCRIMINATION .................................................................. 5 

12. INFORMATION BLOCKING .................................................................................................... 6 

13. LEGAL REQUIREMENTS ......................................................................................................... 6 

14. REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES ........................................................................... 6 

15. TERM, SUSPENSION, AND TERMINATION ........................................................................ 7 

16. PARTICIPANT LIABILITY ....................................................................................................... 8 

17. MISCELLANEOUS/GENERAL PROVISIONS ....................................................................... 8 



 
Status: Final  
Original Publication Date: July 5, 2022 Version: 1.0.1  

  

1 

1. PARTIES  

(a) This Single Data Sharing Agreement is made between the Participants (defined below) 
who are required to or elect to exchange Health and Social Services Information (defined below) within the 
State of California in accordance with this Agreement (defined below). 

2. PURPOSE AND INTENT 

(a) California Health and Safety Code § 130290 was enacted in 2021 and establishes the 
creation of the California Health and Human Services Data Exchange Framework and requires certain data 
sharing among entities as set forth in California Health and Safety Code § 130290(f) on or before January 
31, 2024. California Health and Safety Code § 130290 also provides for the California Health and Human 
Services Agency to encourage the inclusion of county health, public benefit, and social services as part of 
the Data Exchange Framework. The framework includes this single data sharing agreement and a set of 
common policies and procedures.  

(b) This Agreement is intended to facilitate data exchange between the Participants in 
compliance with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, regulations, and policies. This Agreement sets 
forth a common set of terms, conditions, and obligations to support secure real-time access to, or exchange 
of, Health and Social Services Information (as defined below) between and among the Participants. Nothing 
in this Agreement is intended to replace or supersede any existing or future agreement between or among 
two or more Participants that provides for more extensive data exchange than that required under this 
Agreement. 

(c) This Agreement is not intended nor designed to: (i) mandate or require a specific 
technology; (ii) create a single entity that exchanges Health and Social Services Information; or (iii) create 
a single repository of data. 

3. DEFINITIONS 

“Agreement” shall mean this Data Sharing Agreement, the Policies and Procedures and the Specifications.  

“Applicable Law” shall mean all federal, state, local, or tribal laws and regulations then in effect and 
applicable to the subject matter herein. For the avoidance of doubt, federal government entities are only 
subject to federal law. 

“Authorization” shall have the meaning and include the requirements set forth at 45 CFR § 164.508 of the 
HIPAA Regulations and at Cal. Civ. Code § 56.05. The term shall include all requirements for obtaining 
consent to disclose confidential substance abuse disorder treatment records as set forth in 42 C.F.R. Part 2, 
when applicable, and shall include any additional requirements under Applicable Law to disclose PHI or 
PII. 

 “Breach” shall mean the unauthorized acquisition, access, disclosure, or use of Health and Social Services 
Information as set forth in the Policies and Procedures. 

“Confidential Participant Information” shall mean proprietary or confidential materials or information 
of a Participant in any medium or format that a Participant labels as such upon disclosure or that given the 
nature of the information or the circumstances surrounding its disclosure, reasonably should be considered 
confidential. Notwithstanding any label to the contrary, Confidential Participant Information does not 



 
Status: Final  
Original Publication Date: July 5, 2022 Version: 1.0.1  

  

2 

include any information which is or becomes known publicly through no fault of the party to which such 
information is disclosed (a “Receiving Party”); is learned of by a Receiving Party from a third party entitled 
to disclose it; is already known to a Receiving Party before receipt from the disclosing Participant as 
documented by the Receiving Party’s written records; or is independently developed by a Receiving Party 
without reference to, reliance on, or use of the disclosing Participant’s Confidential Participant Information. 

“Covered Entity” shall have the meaning set forth at 45 C.F.R. § 160.103 and shall also include the 
following as these terms are defined in California Civil Code § 56.05: “provider of health care,” “health 
care service plan,” and “licensed health care professional.” 

“Effective Date” shall mean January 31, 2023. 

“Governance Entity” shall mean the entity within the California Health and Human Services Agency 
established to oversee the California Data Exchange Framework, the Framework’s Data Sharing Agreement 
and its Policies and Procedures. 

“Governmental Participants” shall mean those Participants that are local (e.g. municipalities, counties), 
state, tribal, or federal entities.  

“Health and Social Services Information” shall mean any and all information received, stored, processed, 
generated, used, transferred, disclosed, made accessible, or shared pursuant to this Agreement, including 
but not limited to: (a) Data Elements as set forth in the applicable Policy and Procedure; (b) information 
related to the provision of health care services, including but not limited to PHI; and (c) information related 
to the provision of social services. Health and Social Services Information may include PHI, PII, de-
identified data (as defined in the HIPAA Regulations at 45 C.F.R. § 164.514), anonymized data, 
pseudonymized data, metadata, digital identities, and schema.  

“HIPAA Regulations” shall mean the standards for privacy of individually identifiable health information, 
the security standards for the protection of electronic protected health information and the breach 
notification rule (45 C.F.R. §§ 160 and 164) promulgated by the U.S. Department of Health and Human 
Services under the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) of 1996, as in effect on 
the Effective Date and as may be amended, modified, or renumbered. 

“Individual User” shall mean the person who is the subject of PHI or PII. 

“Participant(s)” shall mean each health care organization as set forth in California Health and Safety Code 
§ 130290(f) and any other person or organization that is a signatory to this Agreement. Participants may 
include, but are not limited to, a health information network, a community information exchange, a 
laboratory, a health system, a health IT developer, a community-based organization, a payer, a government 
agency, a research institute, or a Social Services Organization. 

“Personally Identifiable Information” or “PII” shall have the same meaning as “Personal Information” 
set forth in Section 1798.140(o) of the California Civil Code, but shall be limited to PII exchanged 
pursuant to this Agreement.  

“Personal Representative” shall refer to a person who, under Applicable Law, has authority to act on 
behalf of an individual as set forth in 45 C.F.R. § 164.502(g). 

“Policies and Procedures” shall mean the policies and procedures adopted by the Governance Entity 



 
Status: Final  
Original Publication Date: July 5, 2022 Version: 1.0.1  

  

3 

pursuant to this Agreement. 

“Protected Health Information” or “PHI” shall refer to “protected health information” as set forth at 45 
C.F.R. § 160.103 of the HIPAA Regulations and “medical information” as set forth at Civil Code § 56.05. 

“Qualified Health Information Organization” or “Qualified HIO” shall mean a state-designated data 
exchange intermediary that facilitates the exchange of Health and Social Services Information between 
Participants.  

“Recipient” shall mean a Participant that receives Health and Social Services Information from a Submitter. 
For purposes of illustration only, Recipients include, but are not limited to, Participants who receive queries, 
responses, subscriptions, publications or unsolicited messages.  

“Social Services” shall mean the delivery of items, resources, and/or services to address social determinants 
of health and social drivers of health, including but not limited to housing, foster care, nutrition, access to 
food, transportation, employment, and other social needs.  

“Social Services Organization” shall mean a person or entity whose primary business purpose is to provide 
Social Services to individuals. Social Services Organizations can include but are not limited to government 
entities (including multi-department health and human services agencies), community-based organizations, 
nonprofits, and private entities. 

“Specifications” shall mean the specifications adopted by the Governance Entity pursuant to this 
Agreement to establish (i) minimum data content required for particular data exchange use cases and (ii) 
technical and security requirements to enable the Participants to exchange Health and Social Services 
Information. Specifications may include, but are not limited to, specific network standards, services, and 
policies. 

“Submitter” shall mean a Participant that submits Health and Social Services Information to a Recipient. 

“System” shall mean software, portal, platform, or other electronic medium controlled by a Participant 
through which the Participant conducts Health and Social Services Information exchange-related activities. 
For purposes of this definition, it shall not matter whether the Participant controls the software, portal, 
platform, or medium through ownership, lease, license, or otherwise. 
 
“Treatment” shall have the same meaning as set forth at 45 C.F.R. § 164.501 of the HIPAA Regulations. 
 
4. USE OF HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES INFORMATION 
 

(a) Required, Permitted and Prohibited Purposes. The purposes for which the Participants 
shall or may acquire, access, use, and disclose Health and Social Services Information pursuant to this 
Agreement, and the purposes for which the Participants may not acquire, access, use or disclose Health and 
Social Services Information pursuant to this Agreement, shall be set forth in the Policies and Procedures. 

 
5. POLICIES AND PROCEDURES AND SPECIFICATIONS 
 

(a) Compliance with Terms of this Agreement. Participants shall at all times abide by this 
Agreement, including the Policies and Procedures and Specifications.  

 



 
Status: Final  
Original Publication Date: July 5, 2022 Version: 1.0.1  

  

4 

(b) Incorporation; Modifications. The Policies and Procedures, the Specifications, and any 
future updates to either of them are hereby incorporated by reference into this Agreement. The Policies 
and Procedures and Specifications are intended to be flexible to address changing needs and 
standards and may be modified from time to time through the process outlined in the Policies and 
Procedures without a need to modify or re-execute this Agreement.  

 
(c) Health Equity. In order to reduce healthcare disparities, the Specifications shall set forth 

standards that advance health equity. 
 

6. AUTHORIZATIONS 

(a) To the extent required by Applicable Law, Participants shall not disclose PHI or PII to 
another Participant unless a legally valid Authorization has been obtained. For the avoidance of doubt, 
Participants shall not be required to obtain an Authorization prior to disclosing PHI or PII pursuant to this 
Agreement unless an Authorization is required under Applicable Law. Any disclosure of Health and Social 
Services Information by a Submitter shall be deemed an express representation that the Submitter has 
complied with this Section and unless the Recipient has actual knowledge to the contrary, the Recipient 
may reasonably and justifiably rely upon such representation. 

7. REQUIREMENT TO EXCHANGE HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES INFORMATION  

(a) Each Participant shall engage in the exchange of Health and Social Services Information 
as set forth in the Policies and Procedures, either through execution of an agreement with a Qualified HIO, 
through execution of an agreement with another entity that provides data exchange, or through use of the 
Participant’s own technology. If a Participant elects not to execute an agreement with a Qualified HIO and 
instead elects to use its own technology or to execute an agreement with another entity that provides data 
exchange, the Participant must comply with or obtain reasonable assurances that the other entity enables 
the Participant  to comply with, the minimum requirements for data exchange set forth in the Policies and 
Procedures or Specifications. 

(b) Participants shall engage in the real-time exchange of Health and Social Services 
Information in accordance with the timeframes set forth in the Policies and Procedures. 

8. PRIVACY AND SECURITY 

(a) General. Each Participant shall at all times fully comply with all Applicable Law relating 
to this Agreement and the use of Health and Social Services Information.  

(b) Safeguards. Each Participant shall be responsible for maintaining a secure environment 
that supports the exchange of PHI or PII as set forth in the Policies and Procedures.  

(c) Individual User Education. Participants shall use tools, resources, and technical assistance 
made available by the California Health and Human Services Agency to help Individual Users and/or their 
Personal Representatives understand the benefits of information sharing and for obtaining informed 
consent. 



 
Status: Final  
Original Publication Date: July 5, 2022 Version: 1.0.1  

  

5 

9. MINIMUM NECESSARY 

(a) Any use or disclosure of PHI or PII pursuant to this Agreement will be limited to the 
minimum PHI or PII necessary to achieve the purpose for which the information is shared, except where 
limiting such use or disclosure to the minimum necessary (i) is not feasible, (ii) is not required under the 
HIPAA Regulations (such as for Treatment) or any other Applicable Law, (iii) is a disclosure to an 
Individual User or Individual User’s Personal Representative, (iv) is a disclosure pursuant to an Individual 
User’s Authorization, or (v) is a disclosure required by Applicable Law.  

10. INDIVIDUAL ACCESS SERVICES 

(a) Bidirectional Access to Health Information. An Individual User or an Individual User’s 
Personal Representative shall have the right to inspect, obtain a copy of, and have bidirectional electronic 
access to, PHI or PII about the Individual User as set forth in the Policies and Procedures and to the extent 
consistent with Applicable Law.  

11. COOPERATION AND NON-DISCRIMINATION 
 

(a) Each Participant shall  
 

(i) Cooperate in good faith with the Governance Entity and all other Participants to 
implement the provisions of this Agreement;  

 
(ii) Provide such non-privileged information to the Governance Entity and any other 

Participant as they may reasonably request for purposes of performing activities related to this Agreement; 

(iii) Actively engage in the bilateral or multilateral exchange of information with other 
Participants as both a Submitter and Recipient of information to the extent permitted or required under this 
Agreement and Applicable Law; 

(iv) Devote such time as may reasonably be requested by the Governance Entity to 
review information, meet with, respond to, and advise the Governance Entity or other Participants with 
respect to activities as they relate to this Agreement;  

(v) Provide such reasonable assistance as may be requested by the Governance Entity 
when performing activities as they relate to this Agreement; and  

(vi) Provide any requested information and assistance to the Governance Entity or 
other Participants in the investigation of breaches and disputes, subject to a Participant’s right to restrict or 
condition its cooperation or disclosure of information in the interest of (A) preserving privileges in any 
foreseeable dispute or litigation or (B) protecting its Confidential Participant Information. In no case shall 
a Participant be required to disclose PHI or PII in violation of Applicable Law.  

(b) In seeking another Participant’s cooperation, each Participant shall make all reasonable 
efforts to accommodate the other Participant’s schedules and reasonable operational concerns. A Participant 
shall promptly report, in writing, to any other Participant and the Governance Entity, any problems or issues 
that arise in working with the other Participant’s employees, agents, or subcontractors that threaten to delay 
or otherwise adversely impact a Participant’s ability to fulfill its responsibilities under this Agreement. This 
writing shall set forth in detail and with clarity the problems that the Participant has identified. 



 
Status: Final  
Original Publication Date: July 5, 2022 Version: 1.0.1  

  

6 

(c) Prohibition on Exclusivity. A Participant may not require exclusivity or otherwise prohibit 
(or attempt to prohibit) any other Participant, entity, or individual from joining or exchanging Health and 
Social Services Information under this Agreement. 

(d) No Discriminatory Limits on Exchange of Health and Social Services Information. A 
Participant shall not unfairly or unreasonably limit exchange or interoperability with any other Participant 
or Individual User, such as by means of burdensome testing requirements that are applied in a 
discriminatory manner or other means that limit the ability of a Participant to send or receive Health and 
Social Services Information with another Participant or Individual User or slows down the rate at which 
such Health and Social Services Information is sent or received if such limitation or slower rate would have 
an anti-competitive effect.  

12. INFORMATION BLOCKING 

(a) Participants shall comply with any information-blocking provisions set forth in the Policies 
and Procedures. 

13. LEGAL REQUIREMENTS 

(a) Monitoring and Auditing. The Governance Entity, acting through its agents and 
independent contractors, shall have the right, but not the obligation, to monitor and audit Participants’ 
compliance with their obligations under this Agreement. Unless prohibited by Applicable Law, Participants 
shall cooperate with the Governance Entity in these monitoring and auditing activities and shall provide, 
upon the reasonable request of the Governance Entity, complete and accurate information in the furtherance 
of its monitoring and auditing activities. To the extent that any information provided by Participants to the 
Governance Entity in connection with such monitoring and auditing activities constitutes Confidential 
Participant Information, the Governance Entity shall hold such information in confidence and shall not 
redisclose such information to any person or entity except as required by Applicable Law. 

(b) Individual User Opt Out.  Nothing in this Agreement shall prohibit an Individual User or 
an Individual User’s Personal Representative from opting out of having the Individual User’s PHI or PII 
exchanged pursuant to this Agreement. 

14. REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES  

Each Participant hereby represents and warrants the following:  

(a) Execution of the Agreement. Each Participant has full power and authority to enter into and 
perform this Agreement and has taken whatever measures necessary to obtain all required approvals or 
consents in order for it to execute this Agreement. The representatives signing this Agreement on behalf of 
the Participants affirm that they have been properly authorized and empowered to enter into this Agreement 
on behalf of the Participant. 

(b) Compliance with this Agreement. Except to the extent prohibited by Applicable Law, each 
Participant shall comply fully with all provisions of this Agreement. To the extent that a Participant 
delegates its duties under this Agreement to a third party (by contract or otherwise) and such third party 
will have access to Health and Social Services Information, that delegation shall be in writing and require 
the third party, prior to exchanging Health and Social Services Information with any Participants, to agree 
to the same restrictions and conditions that apply through this Agreement to a Participant. If a Governmental 



 
Status: Final  
Original Publication Date: July 5, 2022 Version: 1.0.1  

  

7 

Participant determines, after reasonable diligence, that any action or inaction relative to an obligation, 
including conformance to changes in the Specifications or Policies and Procedures, will cause it to violate 
Applicable Law, the Governmental Participant may terminate this Agreement immediately upon sending 
written notice to the Governance Entity. 

(c) Accuracy of Health and Social Services Information. When acting as a Submitter, each 
Participant represents that at the time of transmission, the Health and Social Services Information it 
provides is an accurate representation of the data contained in, or available through, its System and is (i) 
sent from a System that employs security controls that meet industry standards so that the Health and Social 
Services Information being transmitted is intended to be free from malicious software, and (ii) provided in 
a timely manner and in accordance with the Policies and Procedures. Other than those representations 
elsewhere in this Agreement, the Submitter makes no other representation, express or implied, about the 
Health and Social Services Information. 

(d) Express Warranty of Authority to Exchange Health and Social Services Information. To 
the extent each Participant discloses Health and Social Services Information to another Participant, the 
Participant represents and warrants that it has sufficient authority to disclose such Health and Social 
Services Information. 

(e) Third-Party Technology. All Participants acknowledge that other Participants use 
technology solutions, applications, interfaces, software, platforms, clearinghouses, and other IT resources 
to support exchange of Health and Social Services Information that may be provided by third parties 
(“Third-Party Technology”). Each Participant shall have agreements in place that require Third-Party 
Technology vendors (i) to provide reliable, stable, and secure services to the Participant and (ii) to adhere 
to the same or similar privacy and security standards applicable to the Participant pursuant to this 
Agreement. However, all Participants acknowledge that Third-Party Technology may be interrupted or not 
available at times and that this could prevent a Participant from transmitting Health and Social Services 
Information. Participants do not make any representations or warranties as to their Third-Party Technology. 

15. TERM, SUSPENSION, AND TERMINATION 

(a) Term. This Agreement shall commence on the Effective Date and shall continue until 
terminated in accordance with this Section or the Policies and Procedures.  

(b) Termination by a Participant. A Participant that is not legally required to sign this 
Agreement by California Health and Safety Code § 130290 may terminate this Agreement, with or without 
cause, by giving the Governance Entity at least ten (10) business days’ prior written notice. 

(c) Effect of Termination. Upon any termination of this Agreement for any reason, the 
terminated party shall cease to be a Participant and thereupon and thereafter that party shall have no rights 
under this Agreement to exchange data with other Participants. In the event that any Participant(s) is 
terminated, this Agreement will remain in full force and effect with respect to all other Participants. 
Termination of this Agreement shall not affect any rights or obligations which by their terms should survive 
termination or expiration. 

(d) Enforcement Action. The Participants hereby grant to the Governance Entity the power to 
enforce any portion of this Agreement through measures set forth in the Policies and Procedures. Such 
measures may include, but are not limited to, suspension or termination of a Participant’s right to exchange 
Health and Social Services Information under this Agreement.  



 
Status: Final  
Original Publication Date: July 5, 2022 Version: 1.0.1  

  

8 

16. PARTICIPANT LIABILITY  

(a) Participant Liability. Each Participant shall be responsible for its acts and omissions and 
not for the acts or omissions of any other Participant. Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to 
the contrary, Participant shall not be liable for any act or omission if a cause of action for such act or 
omission is otherwise prohibited by Applicable Law. This Section shall not be construed as a hold harmless 
or indemnification provision. 

17. MISCELLANEOUS/GENERAL PROVISIONS 

(a) Governing Law. The construction, interpretation and performance of this Agreement shall 
be governed and enforced pursuant to the laws of the State of California, without giving effect to its conflicts 
of laws provisions, except to the extent California law is preempted by any provision of federal law.  

(b) Jurisdiction and Venue. Each Participant hereby submits to the exclusive jurisdiction of 
any state or federal court sitting in the state of California within twenty-five (25) miles of Sacramento, 
California in any legal proceeding arising out of or relating to this Agreement unless otherwise required by 
Applicable Law. Each Participant hereby agrees that all claims and matters arising out of this Agreement 
may be heard and determined by such court, and each Party hereby waives any right to object to such filing 
on grounds of improper venue,  forum non-conveniens, or other venue-related grounds.  

(c) Assignment. No party shall assign or transfer this Agreement, or any part thereof, without 
the express written consent of the Governance Entity, which shall not be unreasonably delayed or denied. 
Any assignment that does not comply with the requirements of this Section 17(c) shall be void and have no 
binding effect. 

(d) Survival. All Sections which by their nature are meant to survive this Agreement shall 
survive expiration or termination of this Agreement. 

(e) Waiver. No failure or delay by any party in exercising its rights under this Agreement shall 
operate as a waiver of such rights, and no waiver of any right shall constitute a waiver of any prior, 
concurrent, or subsequent right. 

(f) Captions. Captions appearing in this Agreement are for convenience only and shall not be 
deemed to explain, limit or amplify the provisions of this Agreement. 

(g) Entire Agreement. This Agreement sets forth the entire agreement among the parties 
relative to the subject matter hereof. Any representation, promise, or condition, whether oral or written, not 
incorporated herein shall not be binding upon any party. This Agreement may only be modified in the 
manner provided in the Policies and Procedures. 

(h) Validity of Provisions. In the event that a court of competent jurisdiction shall hold any 
Section or any part or portion of any Section of this Agreement invalid, void, or otherwise unenforceable, 
each and every remaining Section or part or portion thereof shall remain in full force and effect. 

(i) Priority. In the event of any conflict or inconsistency between a provision in the body of 
this Agreement and the Policies and Procedures or the Specifications, the terms contained in the Policies 
and Procedures or the Specifications shall prevail, except to the extent they conflict with Applicable Law. 



 
Status: Final  
Original Publication Date: July 5, 2022 Version: 1.0.1  

  

9 

(j) Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which 
shall be considered an original counterpart, and shall become a binding agreement when each party shall 
have executed one counterpart.  

(k) Third-Party Beneficiaries. With the exception of the parties to this Agreement, there shall 
exist no right of any person to claim a beneficial interest in this Agreement or any rights occurring by virtue 
of this Agreement. 

(l) Force Majeure. No party shall be responsible for any delays or failures in performance 
caused by the occurrence of events or other circumstances that are beyond its reasonable control after the 
exercise of commercially reasonable efforts to either prevent or mitigate the effect of any such occurrence 
or event.  

(m) Time Periods. Any of the time periods specified in this Agreement may be changed 
pursuant to the mutual written consent of the Governance Entity and the affected Participant(s). 



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

February 7, 2023   Reference ID:  
2023-3403  

 

Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Childrens Medical Services (CMS) 
Plan  

Health & Human Services - Health/Prevention 
 ACTION REQUIRED 

   
ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Stephanie Tanksley, Administrative Analyst Marilyn Mann, HHS Director 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Request Board ratify and approve the CMS Plan for Fiscal Year 2022-2023 to ensure the continuation of 
children's medical services in Inyo County, and authorize the Chairperson to sign certification 
statements. 
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
The Department is requesting ratification of the CMS Plan for FY 2022-2023 because the Department of 
Health Care Services traditionally releases budget information for CMS programs several months after 
the fiscal year begins. 
 
The CMS programs include California Children's Services (CCS), California Health and Disability 
Prevention (CHDP), and Health Care Program for Children in Foster Care (HCPCFC), which addresses 
resource development of medical services for children, case coordination, management of children with 
complex health problems and outreach activities to assure program access. Each year the Board is 
requested to sign the Certification Statements for these programs and we are respectfully requesting 
ratification, approval and authorization for the Board 
Chairperson to sign the required documents. 
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding 
Source 

Grant funding from Department of Health Care 
Services 

Budget Unit 045102, 045500, 
and 045501 

Budgeted? Yes Object Code 4498 
Recurrence Ongoing Grant funding  
Current Fiscal Year Impact 
No significant changes to the allocations this fiscal year.   
Future Fiscal Year Impacts 
 
Additional Information 
 

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

 
ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
The CMS plan is required to access program funding. 
  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
None. 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. CMS Plan - Awaiting Signatures 
  
APPROVALS: 
Stephanie Tanksley Created/Initiated - 1/11/2023 
Marissa Whitney Approved - 1/19/2023 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 1/19/2023 
Stephanie Tanksley Approved - 1/24/2023 
Melissa Best-Baker Approved - 1/24/2023 
Marilyn Mann Approved - 1/25/2023 
John Vallejo Approved - 1/25/2023 
Amy Shepherd Approved - 1/25/2023 
Marilyn Mann Final Approval - 1/25/2023 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



INYO 1 2022-23

CMS Plan Table of Contents

County/City:

MODIFIED FY 2022-2023 

Fiscal Year: 2022-23

Document Page Number

1. Child Health and Disability Prevention Program Checklist 3 

A. CHDP Certification Statement 4 

2. Health Care Program for Children in Foster Care Checklist 12 

A. HCPCFC Certification Statement 13

3. Child Health and Disability Prevention Childhood Lead Poisoning Checklist 24 

A. CHDP - CLPP Certification Statement 25 

4. California Children’s Program Checklist 29 

A. CCS Certification Statement 20 



INYO  202  

County of Inyo Children’s Medical Services 2022-23 

 Program Narrative 

Agency Description 

The local California Children’s Services (CCS), and Child Health and Disability Prevention (CHDP) are 
managed through the Inyo County Department of Health & Human Services (HHS), Public Health and 
Prevention Division.  The administrative services of both programs share mutual management and 
clinical staff.   The CCS and CHDP staff work primarily within a consolidated office building in Bishop.  
Inyo County, while large in geographic size, is a rural county of approximately 18,000 people.  Providing 
CMS services to a rural population such as Inyo’s requires employees to often work in blended positions 
in which they have responsibility for more than one program and/or program function.  The department 
makes every effort to cross-train staff to ensure a continuum of services when vacancies occur.  
However, multiple vacancies in multiple positions over the past several years have made cross-training 
and continuity difficult. 

The Health Care Program for Children in Foster Care (HCPCFC) is managed and supervised jointly with 
Public Health and Behavioral Health and Child Welfare Services, divisions of Health and Human Services.  
The Foster Care Nurse is licensed as a PHN and works primarily in the Behavioral Health and Child 
Welfare office and coordinates medical and dental case management for children in foster care. A 
workstation is available at the CPS office for the Foster Care Nurse to work at weekly, or as often as 
needed. 

The Inyo County Health Officer is the CHDP Director. The HHS Deputy Director-Public Health acts as the 
CMS Director. A Registered Nurse is assigned as the CCS Administrator and CHDP Deputy Director, who 
is responsible for resource and provider development in CHDP, and program coordination between CCS 
and HCPCFC; the focus being to assist the medical community in the delivery of program services 
through ongoing updates and trainings. The CCS/CHDP RN coordinates with multiple child service 
agencies to assure appropriate utilization of the CHDP Program and follow through is achieved for 
provider and school referrals.  The CCS/CHDP RN works in coordination with the Prevention Specialists, 
and the Foster Care Nurse when there are no vacancies.  

The CCS/CHDP RN functions and takes a lead role in blending the overlapping objectives of CHDP, CCS, 
Medical Therapy Program (MTP), and Maternal Child and Adolescent Health (MCAH).  This position 
works in coordination with a Program Technician for CCS and serves as the Liaison for the MTP.  This 
position has case management responsibility in both CCS and CHDP programs.  Referrals for CHDP follow 
up are appropriately assigned by the CHDP RN to the Foster Care Nurse, Prevention Specialists, and the 
Dietitian. The HHS Deputy Director-Public Health and the CCS/CHDP nurse meet minimally quarterly to 
address program oversight.  

CCS case management is performed by the CCS/CHDP RN. The HHS Specialist in CCS functions half-time 
in CCS and provides general assistance to other Public Health program functions.   All the CCS case 



INYO  

management staff share a common office space, and case review is ongoing.  The CCS staff meets 
monthly, locally and via State Conference calls to review specific items and program policies. 

The Foster Care Nurse is embedded in the Child Welfare division and consults weekly with CPS Social 
Workers and Probation, and attends staffing meetings as needed to update the health and education 
passports for children in foster care as required by law.  The Foster Care Nurse supports foster care 
providers in obtaining timely comprehensive health assessments and dental examinations, through 
expediting referrals for medical, dental, mental health and developmental services. The Foster Care 
Nurse works with the CCS/CHDP RN to identify major obstacles faced by children in foster care in gaining 
access to coordinated, multidisciplinary services.    Infants and toddlers in foster care require referrals to 
Kern Regional Center for developmental assessment, and the CCS/Foster Care Nurse participates in 
developmental assessment via quarterly Early Start clinics.  Some foster children require travel out of 
the county to obtain necessary specialty care authorized by CCS, or otherwise ordered by the treating 
physician.  In these instances, referrals have been coordinated and authorized through the CCS/CHDP 
Nurse. 



State of California—Health and Human Services Agency

Department of Health Care Services 

MICHELLE BAASS GAVIN NEWSOM 
DIRECTOR GOVERNOR 

Child Health and Disability Prevention Program 
Plan and Budget Reporting Checklist 

1. CHDP Plan and Budget Reporting Checklist

Page Number 

2. CHDP Certification Statement

3. CHDP Organizational Chart

4. CHDP New or Revise Memorandum of Understanding and
Inter-agency Agreements

5. If Applicable:

a. Contractor Equipment Purchased with DHCS Funds Form
(DHCS1203)

b. Inventory/Disposition of DHCS Funded Equipment Form
(DHCS1204)

c. Property Survey Report Form (STD 152)

6. CHDP Plan and Budget Reporting Spreadsheet

a. Agency Information Sheet

b. CHDP Memorandum of Understanding and Inter-agency
Agreement List

c. CHDP Incumbent List

d. CHDP Budget

i. CHDP Administrative Budget

Summary and Worksheet

Budget Narrative

ii. Optional County/City - Federal Match Budget

Summary and Worksheet

Budget Narrative

as one PDF 
document Excel worksheet components of th  reporting package should 
also be submitted as one document. 

Systems of Care Division 1515 K Street, Suite 400, Sacramento, CA 95814
P.O. Box 997413, MS 8100 Sacramento, CA 95899-7413 

(916) 327-1400
Internet Address: www.dhcs.ca.gov 

Inyo 2022-23

L



State of California Health and Human Services Agency 

Department of Health Care Services 

MICHELLE BAASS GAVIN NEWSOM 
DIRECTOR GOVERNOR 

Certification Statement  

County/City: Fiscal Year:

Signature of Director Date Signed

Signature and Title of Other Optional Date Signed

I certify that this plan has been approved by the local governing body.

Signature of Local Governing Body Chairperson Date Signed

Systems of Care Division 1515 K Street, Suite 400, Sacramento, CA 95814
P.O. Box 997413, MS 8100 Sacramento, CA 95899-7413

(916) 327-1400
Internet Address: www.dhcs.ca.gov

1/19/23



State of California—Health and Human Services Agency
Department of Health Care Services

Child Health and Disability Prevention
   MICHELLE BAASS Agency Information GAVIN NEWSOM  

  DIRECTOR GOVERNOR     

County/City: Inyo Fiscal Year: 2022-23

Street Address:PO Drawer H Health Officer: James Richardson, MD
City: Independence
Zip Code: 93526

Name: VACANT- HHS Deputy DirectoStreet Address: 1360 N. Main St. Ste 203C
Phone: 760-873-7868 City: Bishop, CA 
Email: phdeputydirector@inyocounty.Zip Code: 93514

Name: James Richardson, MD Street Address: 1360 North Main St, Suite 203C

Phone: 760-873-7868 City: Bishop
Email: healthofficer@inyocounty.us Zip Code: 93514

Name: Marissa Whitney Street Address: 1360 N Main St, Suite 203C
Phone: 760-873-7868 City: Bishop
Email: mhobbs@inyocounty.us Zip Code: 93514

Name: Nate Greenberg Street Address: PO Drawer N
Phone: 760-878-0292 City: Independence
Email: dellis@inyocounty.us Zip Code: 93526

Local CHDP 
Central Inbox:

Clerk of the Board of Supervisors or City Council

Official Agency

CMS Director (if applicable)

CHDP Director

CHDP Deputy Director



GAVIN NEWSOM  

GOVERNOR 

  County/City: Fiscal Year:     2022-23

Name of Partner Entity Date Last Renewed

1 Inyo HHS 12/11/2020

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

(Insert additional rows as needed)

Inyo

List all current Memoranda of Understanding (MOU) and/or Interagency Agreements (IA) pertaining to the Child Health and Disability Prevention.  

 Health & Social Services IA

Title or Name of MOU/IA

 State of California—Health and Human Services Agency
Department of Health Care Services

Child Health and Disability Prevention
Memoranda of Understanding/Interagency Agreement List 

  DIRECTOR  

   MICHELLE BAASS



GAVIN NEWSOM       

GOVERNOR          

         County/City: Fiscal Year:  2022-23

1 HHS Deputy Director Public Health phdeputydirector@inyocounty.us 95%-Various HHS progams
2 Administrative Analyst joey.peterson@inyocounty.us 95%-Various HHS progams
3
4
5
6
7
8
9

10

List all Child Health and Disability Prevention staff. 

Department of Health Care Services        
 State of California—Health and Human Services Agency        

(Insert additional lines as needed)

Inyo

Incumbent List        
Child Health and Disability Prevention        

Email Address

Vacant
Joey Peterson

Other Programs (with FTE % each)

   MICHELLE BAASS

  DIRECTOR  

Name Title

Please include applicable vacant positions, including title.



  MICHELLE BAASS

  DIRECTOR

County/City: Fiscal Year:  

Funding Source:
1 4 5 2 3 B C D

Category/Line Item  Total Budget  Enhanced  Non-Enhanced  Total CHDP Budget  Total Medi-Cal Budget  Total Budget  Enhanced  Non-Enhanced 

I. Total Personnel Expenses $16,811 $0 $16,811 $0 $16,811 $0 $0 $0

II. Total Operating Expenses $7,510 $0 $7,510 $0 $7,510 $0 $0 $0

III. Total Capital Expenses $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

IV. Total Indirect Expenses $332 $332 $0 $332 $0 $0

V. Total Other Expenses $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Budget Grand Total $24,653 $0 $24,653 $0 $24,653 $0 $0 $0
1 4 5 2 3 F G H

Source of Funds:  Total Funds  Enhanced  Non-Enhanced  Total CHDP Budget  Total Medi-Cal Budget  Total Funds  Enhanced  Non-Enhanced 

State General Funds $0 $0

Medi-Cal Funds: $24,653 $24,653

State/County Funds $12,327 $0 $12,327 $12,327 $0 $0 $0

Federal Funds (Title XIX) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Budget Grand Total $24,653 $0 $24,653 $0 $24,653 $0 $0 $0

Joey Peterson Administrative Analyst III 1/0/1900
Prepared By:    Sign Print Title Date

Marissa Whitney Supervising Public Health Nurse

Authorized CHDP Program Representative:    Sign Print Title Date

Base

2022-23Inyo

County/City-Federal

 State of California—Health and Human Services Agency

Department of Health Care Services

Child Health and Disability Prevention

Budget Summaries

GAVIN NEWSOM  

  GOVERNOR  

1/19/23



GAVIN NEWSOM  

GOVERNOR   

Fiscal Year:

1A 1B 1 4A 4 5A 5 2A 2 3A 3

Total Base FTE 
%

Annual Salary Total Budget
Enhanced FTE 

%
Enhanced 

(25/75)

Non-
Enhanced FTE 

%

Non-Enhanced 
(50/50)

CHDP %
Total CHDP 

Budget
Medi-Cal %

Total Medi-Cal 
Budget

I. Personnel Expenses
# Name 
1 5% $81,860 $4,093 0% $0 100% $4,093 0% $0 100% $4,093
2 5% $115,660 $5,783 0% $0 100% $5,783 0% $0 100% $5,783
3 $0 $0 100% $0
4 $0 $0 100% $0
5 $0 $0 100% $0
6 $0 $0 100% $0
7 $0 $0 100% $0
8 $0 $0 100% $0
9 $0 $0 100% $0

10 $0 $0 100% $0
$0 $0 100% $0

$9,876 $0 $9,876 $0 $9,876
$0 $0 $0 $0 $0

$9,876 $0 $9,876 $0 $9,876
Staff Benefits (Specify %) $6,935 $0 $6,935 $0 $6,935

$16,811 $0 $16,811 $0 $16,811

$7,510 $0 $7,510 $0 $7,510

$0 $0 $0 $0

1. $332 $332 $0 $332
2. External (Specify %) $0 $0 $0 $0

$332 $332 $0 $332

$0 $0 $0 $0
$24,653 $0 $24,653 $0 $24,653

Joey Peterson
Prepared By:  Print Title Date Email 

Marissa Whitney
Print Title Date Email 

Budget Summary tables can be found on the "Summary Tables" sheet of this workbook.

V. Total Other Expenses
Budget Grand Total

Supervising Public Health Nurse
Authorized CHDP 
Program Representative: 

Sign

Category/Line Item

Total Salaries and Wages

mhobbs@inyocounty.us

III. Total Capital Expenses

IV. Total Indirect Expenses
V. Other Expenses

IV. Indirect Expenses
100%

Sign 

Internal (Specify %)

  DIRECTOR

Column

State/Federal Funding Source: Base 

County/City Name: Inyo 2022-23

Budget Worksheet 

 State of California—Health and Human Services Agency
Department of Health Care Services

Child Health and Disability Prevention
   MICHELLE BAASS

(insert additional rows as needed)

Peterson, Joey - Administrative Analyst III
Vacant - Deputy Public Health Director

70%

II. Operating Expenses (List in Narrative)

joey.peterson@inyocounty.us

Net Salaries and Wages

I. Total Personnel Expenses 

II. Total Operating Expenses
III. Capital Expenses (List in Narrative)

0%

Less Salary Savings

Administrative Analyst III

1/19/23



Fiscal Year:

Id
Joey Peterson Administrative Analyst III

Prepared By:    Print Title Date Email 
Marissa Whitney Supervising Public Health Nurse

Authorized CHDP Program Representative: Sign Print Title Date Email 

 State of California—Health and Human Services Agency
Department of Health Care Services

  DIRECTOR

Base State/Federal Funding Source:

Budget Narrative
Child Health and Disability Prevention

Public liability insurance; rates are set by the CAO.

GAVIN NEWSOM       

GOVERNOR         

Inyo 2022-23

IV. Indirect Expenses

Identify and Explain All Indirect Expense Line Items

   MICHELLE BAASS

Staffing remains the same as prior year.

I. Personnel Expenses

II. Operating Expenses

Identify and Explain Any Changes in Personnel/Personnel Expenses

County/City Name:

Identify and Explain All Operating Expense Line Items

Internal:

III. Capital Expenses

Identify and Explain All Capital Expense Line Items

There are no projected training expenses.
Training:

No capital expenses are budgeted at this time.

joey.peterson@inyocounty.us

mhobbs@inyocounty.us
Sign

Travel:
There are no projected travel expenses.

External:

    Identify and Explain All Other Expense Line Items

V. Other Expenses

General Office:
Includes basic office supplies, time study and copy costs.

Internal Charges:
Includes building and maintenance expenses. 

Utilities:
Includes phone, electricity, gas, etc.

1/19/23



Health Care Program for Children in Foster Care 
Plan and Budget Reporting Checklist 

HCPCFC Plan and Budget Reporting Checklist

Certification Statement

Organizational Chart

HCPCFC MOU with Local Child Welfare/Social Services

HCPCFC Probation IA

If Applicable:
Contractor Equipment Purchased with DHCS Funds Form
(DHCS1203)
Inventory/Disposition of DHCS Funded Equipment Form
(DHCS1204)

Property Survey Report Form (STD 152)

HCPCFC Plan and Budget Reporting Spreadsheet

Agency Information Sheet

 
List

Incumbent List

HCPCFC Budgets

Base

Summary and Worksheet

Budget Narrative

Psychotropic Medication Monitoring and Oversight

Summary and Worksheet

Budget Narrative

Caseload Relief

Summary and Worksheet

Budget Narrative
Optional County/City - Federal Match

Summary and Worksheet

Budget Narrative 

Page Number

L

L

L



State of California Health and Human Services Agency 

Department of Health Care Services 

MICHELLE BAASS GAVIN NEWSOM 
DIRECTOR GOVERNOR 

Health Care Program for Children in Foster Care

Certification Statement 

County/City: Fiscal Year:

I certify that the Health Care Program for Children in Foster Care (HCPCFC) will comply 
with all applicable state and federal and state laws and regulations, including all federal 
laws and regulations governing recipients of federal funds granted to states for medical 
assistance pursuant to Title XIX of the Social Security Act (42 U.S.C. Section 1396 et seq.).
I further certify that the HCPCFC will comply with all rules promulgated by DHCS pursuant 
to these authorities, including the Integrated Systems of Care Plan and Fiscal Guidelines 
Manual. I further agree that this HCPCFC may be subject to sanctions or other remedies if 
this HCPCFC violates any of the above.

Signature of HCPCFC Director/County Authorized 
Representative

Date Signed

Signature of Director or Health Officer Date Signed

Signature and Title of Other Optional Date Signed

I certify that this plan has been approved by the local governing body.

Signature of Local Governing Body Chairperson Date Signed

Systems of Care Division 1515 K Street, Suite 400, Sacramento, CA 95814
P.O. Box 997413, MS 8100 Sacramento, CA 95899-7413

(916) 327-1400
Internet Address: www.dhcs.ca.gov

Inyo 2022-23



               State of California—Health and Human Services Agency
Department of Health Care Services

           Health Care Program for Children in Foster Care
   MICHELLE BAASS Agency Information GAVIN NEWSOM  

  DIRECTOR GOVERNOR     

County/City: Inyo Fiscal Year: 2022-23

Inyo County Health & Human Services
Street Address:PO Drawer H Health Officer: James Richardson
City: Independence
Zip Code: 93526

Name: Vacant -HHS Deputy Director Public Health Street Address: 1360 N. Main St. Ste 203C
Phone: 760-873-7868 City: Bishop
Email: phdeputydirector@inyocounty.Zip Code: 93514

Name: Darcia Blackdeer-Lent Street Address: 1360 N. Main St. Ste 203A
Phone: 760-872-0902 City: Bishop
Email: dblackdeerlent@inyocounty.usZip Code: 93514

Name: Nate Greenberg Street Address: PO Drawer N
Phone: 760-878-0292 City: Independence
Email: dellis@inyocounty.us Zip Code: 93514

Name: Marilyn Mann Street Address: 1360 N Main St, Suite 201
Phone: 760-873-3305 City: Bishop
Email: hhs-admin@inyocounty.us Zip Code: 93514

Name: Jeff Thomson Street Address: PO Box T
Phone: 760-873-4121 City: Independence
Email: jthomson@inyocounty.us Zip Code: 93526

Chief Probation Officer

Local HCPCFC 
Central Inbox:

Director of Social Services Agency

Official Agency

Parent Agency Director (if applicable)

Authorized HCPCFC Program Administrative Representative

Clerk of the Board of Supervisors or City Council



GAVIN NEWSOM  

GOVERNOR 

 County/City: Fiscal Year: 2022-23

MOU with Local 
Social Services / 

Child Welfare
IA with Probation Name of Partner Entity

Date Last 
Renewed

1 Yes Inyo HHS 12/11/2020
2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

(Insert additional rows as needed)

 State of California—Health and Human Services Agency
Department of Health Care Services

Health Care Program for Children in Foster Care
Memoranda of Understanding/Interagency Agreement List 

  DIRECTOR  

   MICHELLE BAASS

Inyo

List all current Memoranda of Understanding (MOU) and/or Interagency Agreements (IA) pertaining to the Health Care Program for Children in Foster Care.  

HCPCFC

Title or Name of MOU/IA



GAVIN NEWSOM       

GOVERNOR          

         County/City: Fiscal Year:  2022-23

1 Public Health Nurse Yes 20% 10%-CARES; 70%-Health
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10

Other Programs (with FTE % each)

   MICHELLE BAASS

  DIRECTOR  

Name Title

HCPCFC staffing is limited to Public Health Nurses and their Direct Support Staff. By selecting "Yes" you certify that this individuals Civil Service Classification and Duty Statement meet the 
requirements outlined in Section 8 of the Plan and Fiscal Guidelines for the position selected. Please enter Vacant positions, including Title.

Direct Support 
Staff

PHN

 State of California—Health and Human Services Agency        

(Insert additional lines as needed)

Inyo

Incumbent List       
Health Care Program for Children in Foster Care 

Total % FTE as 
Supervising 

PHN
Email Address

Vacant

Department of Health Care Services        

List all Health Care Program for Children in Foster Care staff. 



GAVIN NEWSOM       

GOVERNOR     

Fiscal Year:

1A 1B 1 2A 2 3A 3

Total Base FTE 
%

Annual Salary Total Budget
Enhanced FTE 

%
Enhanced 

(25/75)
Non-Enhanced 

FTE %
Non-Enhanced 

(50/50)

I. Personnel Expenses
# Name 
1 8% $95,220 $7,541 100% $7,541 0% $0
2 $0 $0 100% $0
3 $0 $0 100% $0
4 $0 $0 100% $0
5 $0 $0 100% $0
6 $0 $0 100% $0
7 $0 $0 100% $0
8 $0 $0 100% $0
9 $0 $0 100% $0
10 $0 $0 100% $0

$0 $0 100% $0
0% 0% 0%
0% 0% 0%

$7,541 $7,541 $0
Staff Benefits (Specify %) $4,459 $4,459 $0

$12,000 $12,000 $0

1. $0 0% $0 0% $0
2. $0 0% $0 0% $0

$0 $0 $0

1. $0 $0
$0 $0

$12,000 $12,000 $0

Joey Peterson
Prepared By:  Print Title Date Email 

Darcia Blackdeer-Lent

Print Title Date Email 

joey.peterson@inyocounty.us

Net Salaries and Wages

I. Total Personnel Expenses 

Total Direct Support Staff FTE %

Travel 
Training

II. Total Operating Expenses

Administrative Analyst III

Category/Line Item

dblackdeerlent@inyocounty.us

III. Total Capital Expenses

Vacant - Public Health Nurse

59%

II. Operating Expenses

Total PHN FTE %
(insert additional rows as needed)

Column

State/Federal Funding Source: Base 

County/City Name: Inyo 2022-23

 State of California—Health and Human Services Agency
Department of Health Care Services

Health Care Program for Children in Foster Care
   MICHELLE BAASS

  DIRECTOR

Budget Worksheet 

Budget Summary tables can be found on the "Summary Tables" sheet of this workbook.

V. Total Other Expenses
Budget Grand Total

Deputy Director of Aging & Social Services

Authorized HCPCFC 
Program Representative: 

Sign

IV. Total Indirect Expenses

IV. Indirect Expenses
0%

Sign 

Internal (Specify %)



Fiscal Year:

Joey Peterson Administrative Analyst III
Prepared By:    Print Title Date Email 

Darcia Blackdeer-Len Deputy Director of Aging & Social Services

Authorized HCPCFC Program Representative: Sign Print Title Date Email 

joey.peterson@inyocounty.us

dblackdeerlent@inyocounty.us

Sign

Travel:
There are no projected travel expenses.

V. Other Expenses cannot be included in this budget

Identify and Explain All Operating Expense Line Items

Internal:

III. Capital Expenses cannot be included in this budget

There are no projected training expenses.
Training:

   MICHELLE BAASS

The position is currently vacant, but there are no changes to the personnel expenses.

I. Personnel Expenses

II. Operating Expenses

Identify and Explain Any Changes in Personnel/Personnel Expenses

County/City Name:

 State of California—Health and Human Services Agency
Department of Health Care Services

  DIRECTOR

Base State/Federal Funding Source:

Budget Narrative
Health Care Program for Children in Foster Care

There are no projected indirect expenses.

GAVIN NEWSOM       

GOVERNOR         

Inyo 2022-23

IV. Indirect Expenses  Indirect External Expenses cannot be included in this budget
Identify and Explain All Indirect Expense Line Items



Fiscal Year:

1A 1B 1 2A 2 3A 3

Total PMM&O 
FTE %

Annual Salary Total Budget
Enhanced FTE 

%
Enhanced 

(25/75)
Non-Enhanced 

FTE %
Non-Enhanced 

(50/50)

I. Personnel Expenses
# Name 

1 9% $95,220 $8,585 100% $8,585 0% $0
2 $0 $0 100% $0
3 $0 $0 100% $0
4 $0 $0 100% $0
5 $0 $0 100% $0
6 $0 $0 100% $0
7 $0 $0 100% $0
8 $0 $0 100% $0
9 $0 $0 100% $0

10 $0 $0 100% $0
$0 $0 100% $0

0% 0% 0%
0% 0% 0%

$8,585 $8,585 $0
Staff Benefits (Specify %) $5,077 $5,077 $0

$13,662 $13,662 $0

1. $0 0% $0 0% $0
2. $0 0% $0 0% $0

$0 $0 $0

1. $0 $0
$0 $0

$13,662 $13,662 $0

Joey Peterson
Prepared By:  Print Title Date Email 

Darcia Blackdeer-Lent

Print Title Date Email 

V. Total Other Expenses
Budget Grand Total

Budget Summary tables can be found on the "Summary Tables" sheet of this workbook.

Administrative Analyst III joey.peterson@inyocounty.us

Deputy Director of Aging & Social Services dblackdeerlent@inyocounty.us
Sign 

Authorized HCPCFC 
Program Representative: 

Sign

Travel 
Training

II. Total Operating Expenses
III. Total Capital Expenses
IV. Indirect Expenses

Internal (Specify %) 0%
IV. Total Indirect Expenses

I. Total Personnel Expenses
II. Operating Expenses

(insert additional lines as needed)
Total PHN FTE %
Total Direct Support Staff FTE %
Net Salaries and Wages

59%

 State of California—Health and Human Services Agency
Department of Health Care Services

Health Care Program for Children in Foster Care

County/City Name: Inyo 2022-23

 DIRECTOR GOVERNOR  

State/Federal Funding Source: Psychotropic Medication Monitoring & Oversight

  MICHELLE BAASS Budget Worksheet GAVIN NEWSOM  

Vacant - Public Health N/RN

Column

Category/Line Item



Fiscal Year:

Joey Peterson Administrative Analyst III
Prepared By:    Print Title Date Email 

Darcia Blackdeer-Lent Deputy Director of Aging & Social Services

Authorized HCPCFC Program Representative: Sign Print Title Date Email 

joey.peterson@inyocounty.us

dblackdeerlent@inyocounty.us

Sign

V. Other Expenses cannot be included in this budget

Training:
There are no projected training expenses.

III. Capital Expenses cannot be included in this budget
IV. Indirect Expenses  Indirect External Expenses cannot be included in this budget

Identify and Explain All Indirect Expense Line Items

Internal:
There are no projected indirect expenses.

Travel:
There are no projected travel expenses.

  DIRECTOR GOVERNOR         

State/Federal Funding Source: Psychotropic Medication Monitoring & Oversight

County/City Name: Inyo 2022-23

I. Personnel Expenses
Identify and Explain Any Changes in Personnel/Personnel Expenses

The position is currently vacant, but there are no changes to the personnel expenses.

II. Operating Expenses
Identify and Explain All Operating Expense Line Items

GAVIN NEWSOM       

 State of California—Health and Human Services Agency
Department of Health Care Services

Health Care Program for Children in Foster Care
   MICHELLE BAASS Budget Narrative



Fiscal Year:

1A 1B 1 2A 2 3A 3

Total Caseload 
Relief FTE %

Annual Salary Total Budget
Enhanced FTE 

%
Enhanced 

(25/75)

Non-
Enhanced FTE 

%

Non-
Enhanced 

(50/50)
I. Personnel Expenses
# Name 

1 3% $95,220 $2,918 100% $2,918 0% $0
2 $0 $0 100% $0
3 $0 $0 100% $0
4 $0 $0 100% $0
5 $0 $0 100% $0
6 $0 $0 100% $0
7 $0 $0 100% $0
8 $0 $0 100% $0
9 $0 $0 100% $0

10 $0 $0 100% $0
$0 $0 100% $0

0% 0% 0%
0% 0% 0%

$2,918 $2,918 $0
Staff Benefits (Specify %) $1,726 $1,726 $0

$4,644 $4,644 $0

1. $0 0% $0 0% $0
2. $0 0% $0 0% $0

$0 $0 $0

1. $0 $0
$0 $0

$4,644 $4,644 $0

Joey Peterson
Prepared By:  Print Title Date Email 

Darcia Blackdeer-Lent

Print Title Date Email 

V. Total Other Expenses
Budget Grand Total

Budget Summary tables can be found on the "Summary Tables" sheet of this workbook.

Administrative Analyst III joey.peterson@inyocounty.us

Deputy Director of Aging & Social Services dblackdeerlent@inyocounty.us
Sign 

Authorized HCPCFC 
Program Representative: 

Sign

Travel 
Training

II. Total Operating Expenses
III. Total Capital Expenses
IV. Indirect Expenses

Internal (Specify %) 0%
IV. Total Indirect Expenses

I. Total Personnel Expenses 
II. Operating Expenses

(insert additional lines as needed)
Total PHN FTE %
Total Direct Support Staff FTE %
Net Salaries and Wages

59%

 State of California—Health and Human Services Agency
Department of Health Care Services

Health Care Program for Children in Foster Care

County/City Name: Inyo 2022-23

            DIRECTOR GOVERNOR       

State/Federal Funding Source: Caseload Relief

       MICHELLE BAASS Budget Worksheet GAVIN NEWSOM    

Vacant - Public Health N/RN

Column

Category/Line Item



Fiscal Year:

Joey Peterson Administrative Analyst III
Prepared By:    Print Title Date Email 

Darcia Blackdeer-LenDeputy Director of Aging & Social Services

Authorized HCPCFC Program Representative: Sign Print Title Date Email 

joey.peterson@inyocounty.us

dblackdeerlent@inyocounty.us

Sign

V. Other Expenses cannot be included in this budget

Training:

There are no projected training expenses.

III. Capital Expenses cannot be included in this budget
IV. Indirect Expenses  Indirect External Expenses cannot be included in this budget

Identify and Explain All Indirect Expense Line Items

Internal:

There are no projected internal expenses.

Travel:

There are no projected travel expenses.

  DIRECTOR GOVERNOR         

State/Federal Funding Source: Caseload Relief

County/City Name: Inyo 2022-23

I. Personnel Expenses
Identify and Explain Any Changes in Personnel/Personnel Expenses

The position is currently vacant, but there are no changes to the personnel expenses.

II. Operating Expenses
Identify and Explain All Operating Expense Line Items

GAVIN NEWSOM       

 State of California—Health and Human Services Agency
Department of Health Care Services

Health Care Program for Children in Foster Care
   MICHELLE BAASS Budget Narrative



       MICHELLE BAASS

     DIRECTOR

County/City: Fiscal Year:  

Funding Source:
A B C D B C D B C D B C D

Category/Line Item  Total Budget  Enhanced  Non-Enhanced  Total Budget  Enhanced  Non-Enhanced  Total Budget  Enhanced  Non-Enhanced  Total Budget  Enhanced  Non-Enhanced 

I. Total Personnel Expenses $12,000 $12,000 $0 $13,662 $13,662 $0 $4,644 $4,644 $0 $0 $0 $0

II. Total Operating Expenses $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

III. Total Capital Expenses
IV. Total Indirect Expenses $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

V. Total Other Expenses

Budget Grand Total $12,000 $12,000 $0 $13,662 $13,662 $0 $4,644 $4,644 $0 $0 $0 $0
E F G H F G H F G H F G H

Source of Funds:  Total Funds  Enhanced  Non-Enhanced  Total Funds  Enhanced  Non-Enhanced  Total Funds  Enhanced  Non-Enhanced  Total Funds  Enhanced  Non-Enhanced 

State/County Funds $3,000 $3,000 $0 $3,416 $3,416 $0 $1,161 $1,161 $0 $0 $0 $0

Federal Funds (Title XIX) $9,000 $9,000 $0 $10,247 $10,247 $0 $3,483 $3,483 $0 $0 $0 $0

Budget Grand Total $12,000 $12,000 $0 $13,662 $13,662 $0 $4,644 $4,644 $0 $0 $0 $0

Prepared By:    Sign Print Title Date Email 

Authorized HCPCFC Program Representative:    Sign Print Title Date Email 

2022-23Inyo

Base PMM&O Caseload Relief County/City-Federal

 State of California—Health and Human Services Agency

Department of Health Care Services

Health Care Program for Children in Foster Care

Budget Summaries

GAVIN NEWSOM    

     GOVERNOR        

Darcia Blackdeer-Lent

Joey Peterson

dblackdeerlent@inyocounty.us

Administrative Analyst III

Deputy Director of Aging & Social Services

joey.peterson@inyocounty.us



INYO  022

CHDP-CLPP Plan and Budget Required Documents Checklist

MODIFIED FY 2022-2023 

County/City: INYO Fiscal Year: 2022-23

Document Page Number

1. Checklist 24 

2. Certification Statements

A. Certification Statement (CHDP-CLPP) 25

4. Agency Description

A. Brief Narrative 2 

B. Organizational Charts for CHDP-CLPP Retain locally 

D. Incumbent Lists for CHDP-CLPP 26 

E. Civil Service Classification Statements – Include if newly established,
proposed, or revised N/A 

F. Duty Statements – Include if newly established, proposed, or revised N/A 

5. Budgets

E. CHDP CLPP Budget

1. Budget Worksheet 27 

2. Budget Summary 28 



State of California Health and Human Services Agency 

Department of Health Care Services 

MICHELLE BAASS GAVIN NEWSOM 
DIRECTOR GOVERNOR 

Certification Statement  

County/City: Fiscal Year:

Signature of County Authorized 
Representative

Date Signed

Signature of Director or Health Officer Date Signed

Signature and Title of Other Optional Date Signed

I certify that this plan has been approved by the local governing body.

Signature of Local Governing Body Chairperson Date Signed

Systems of Care Division 1515 K Street, Suite 400, Sacramento, CA 95814
P.O. Box 997413, MS 8100 Sacramento, CA 95899-7413

(916) 327-1400
Internet Address: www.dhcs.ca.gov

Inyo 2022-23



GAVIN NEWSOM       

GOVERNOR          

         County/City: Fiscal Year:  2022-23

1 Registered Nurse dldondero@inyocounty.us 97%-Various HHS progams
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9

10

 State of California—Health and Human Services Agency        
Department of Health Care Services        

   MICHELLE BAASS Incumbent List        
  DIRECTOR  

Child Health and Disability Prevention | Lead Poisoning and Prevention        

Inyo

List all Child Health and Disability Prevention staff. 

Please include applicable vacant positions, including title.

Name Title Email Address Other Programs (with FTE % each)

Dondero, Dena

(Insert additional lines as needed)



GAVIN NEWSOM       

GOVERNOR          

County-City: Fiscal Year:
1 2 3

% of FTE towards CHDP-LPP Annual Salary Total

Title

1 Registered Nurse 3% 51,767 $1,553.01

2 $0.00

3 $0.00

4 $0.00

5 $0.00

6 $0.00

7 $0.00

8 $0.00

$1,553.01

50% $778.06

$2,331.07

$0.00

1 $0.00

2 $0.00

3 $0.00

4 $0.00

$0.00

$2,331.07

DateCHDP Director/Deputy Director (Print & Sign)

 State of California—Health and Human Services Agency
Department of Health Care Services

Name

MICHELLE BAASS

DIRECTOR

Child Health and Disability Prevention | Lead Poisoning and 
Prevention

Category/Line Item

Column

Inyo 2022-23

CHDP LPP Budget 

I. Personnel Expense

Dondero, Dena

I. Total Personnel Expense

II. Total Travel Expense

III. Total Other Expense

Total Salaries and Wages

Staff Benefits (Specify %)

III. Other Expense (Must Separately Itemize all Other Expenses below)

IV. Budget Grand Total



 GAVIN NEWSOM       

  GOVERNOR          

County-City: Fiscal Year:

I
II
V

CHDP Director/Deputy Director (Print & Sign) Date

CHDP-LPP Fund Grand Total $2,331

CERTIFICATION: I hereby certify under penalty of perjury that I am the duly authorized officer of the claimant herein and 
this claim is in all respects true, correct, and in accordance with the law; that the materials, supplies, or services claimed 
have been received or performed and were used or performed exclusively in connection with the program; that I have not 

violated any of the provisions of Section 1030 to 1036 of the Government Code in incurring the items of expense included in 
this claim; that prior to the end of the quarter for which the claim is submitted, warrants have been issued in payment of all 
expenditures included in this claim; that payment has not previously been received for the amount claimed herein; and that 

the original invoices, payrolls, and other vouchers in support of this claim are on file with the county. 

Total Other Expenses
Budget Grand Total

Source of Funds CHDP LPP Funds (100% CHDP-LPP)

$0
$2,331

CHDP LPP Budget Summary

Category/Line Item 

Total Personnel Expenses
Total Travel Expenses

CHDP LPP Funds (100% CHDP-LPP)

$2,331
$0

 State of California—Health and Human Services Agency
Department of Health Care Services

Child Health and Disability Prevention | Lead Poisoning and 
Prevention

DIRECTOR

MICHELLE BAASS



INYO 29 2022-23

CCS Plan and Budget Required Documents Checklist

MODIFIED FY 2022-2023 

County/City: INYO Fiscal Year: 2022-23

Document Page Number

29 

3

3  

2 

Retain locally 

Retain locally 

32 

N/A 

33 

34 

36

38 

39 

42 

Checklist

Certification Statements

Certification Statement

Agency Information Sheet

Agency Description

Brief Narrative

Organizational Charts for CCS

CCS Staffing Standards Profile

Incumbent Lists for CCS

Civil Service Classification Statements – Include if newly established,
proposed, or revised

Duty Statements – Include if newly established, proposed, or revised

Budgets

CCS Administrative Budget

Budget Summary

Budget Worksheet

Budget Justification Narrative

CCS MTP Budget

Budget Summary

Budget Worksheet

Budget Justification Narrative

MTP Staffing Determination Tool 44 



INYO  2022  

State of California - Health and Human Services Agency Department of Health Services - Children's Medical Services

Certification Statement - California Children's Services (CCS) 

County/City: INYO Fiscal Year: 2022-23

I certify that the CCS Program will comply with all applicable provisions of Health and Safety Code, Division 106, 
Part 2, Chapter 3, Article 5, (commencing with Section 123800) and Chapters 7 and 8 of the Welfare and 
Institutions Code (commencing with Sections 14000-14200), and any applicable rules or regulations promulgated 
by DHCS pursuant to this article and these Chapters.  I further certify that this CCS Program will comply with the 
Children’s Medical Services (CMS) Plan and Fiscal Guidelines Manual, including but not limited to, Section 9 
Federal Financial Participation.  I further certify that this CCS Program will comply with all federal laws and 
regulations governing and regulating recipients of funds granted to states for medical assistance pursuant to Title 
XIX of the Social Security Act (42 U.S.C. Section 1396 et seq.) and recipients of funds allotted to states for the 
Maternal and Child Health Services Block Grant pursuant to Title V of the Social Security Act (42 U.S.C. Section 
701 et seq.).  I further agree that this CCS Program may be subject to all sanctions or other remedies applicable 
if this CCS Program violates any of the above laws, regulations and policies with which it has certified it will 
comply. 

Signature of CCS Administrator Date Signed 

Signature of Director or Health Officer Date Signed 

Signature and Title of Other – Optional Date Signed 

I certify that this plan has been approved by the local governing body. 

Signature of Local Governing Body Chairperson Date 

1/19/23



INYO  

Agency Information Sheet 

County/City: INYO Fiscal Year: 202 -202

Official Agency 

Name: Inyo County Health & 
Human Services

Address: PO Drawer H
Independence, CA 93526

Health Officer James Richardson, MD

CMS Director (if applicable) 

Name: VACANT- HHS Deputy 
Director

Address: 1360 North Main Street, Suite 203C

Phone: 760-873-7868 Bishop, CA 93514

Fax: 760-873-7800 E-Mail: phdeputydirector@inyocounty.us

CCS Administrator

Name: Marissa Whitney Address: 1360 North Main Street, Suite 203C

Phone: 760-873-7868 Bishop, CA 93514

Fax: 780-873-7800 E-Mail: mhobbs@inyocounty.us 

CHDP Director

Name: James Richardson, MD Address: 1360 North Main Street, Suite 203C

Phone: 760-873-7868 Bishop, CA 93514

Fax: 760-873-7800 E-Mail: healthofficer@inyocounty.us

CHDP Deputy Director

Name: Marissa Whitney Address: 1360 North Main Street, Suite 203C

Phone: 760-873-7868 Bishop, CA 93514

Fax: 760-873-7800 E-Mail: mhobbs@inyocounty.us 

Clerk of the Board of Supervisors or City Council

Name: Nate Greenberg Address: PO Drawer N

Phone: 760-878-0292 Independence, CA 93526 

Fax: 760-878-0465 E-Mail: dellis@inyocounty.us

Director of Social Services Agency 

Name: Marilyn Mann 1360 North Main Street, Suite 201

Phone: 760-873-3305 Bishop, CA 93514

Fax: 760-878-0266 E-Mail: mmann@inyocounty.us 



INYO

State of California - Health and Human Services Agency Department of Health Services - Children's Medical Services

Incumbent List -

For FY 2022-23 complete the table below for all personnel listed in the CCS budgets. Use the same job titles for both the budget and the 
incumbent list. Total percent for an individual incumbent should not be over 100 percent.

Specify whether job duty statements or civil service classification statements have been revised or changed. Only submit job duty statements 
and civil service classification statements that are new or have been revised.  This includes (1) changes in job duties or activities, (2) changes in 
percentage of time spent for each activity, and (3) changes in percentage of time spent for enhanced and non-enhanced job duties or activities.

County/City: Inyo Fiscal Year: 2022-23

Job Title Incumbent Name
FTE % on CCS 
Admin Budget

Have Job Duties 
Changed?
(Yes or No)

Has Civil 
Service 

Classification 
Changed?
(Yes or No)

Registered Nurse Dena Dondero 10% NO NO

HHS Specialist III - PH Talia Carrillo 75% NO NO

Office Tech III Lucina Veronica Mesquetez 3% NO NO
Administrative Analyst III Joey Peterson 5% NO NO



Revised 2/11/20

CCS CASELOAD Actual Caseload
Percent of Total 
CCS Caseload

STRAIGHT CCS -
Total Cases of Open (Active) Straight CCS Children

10 8.13%

OTLICP -
Total Cases of Open (Active) OTLICP Children

15 12.20%

MEDI-CAL -
Total Cases of Open (Active) Medi-Cal (non-OTLICP) Children

98 79.67%

TOTAL CCS CASELOAD 123 100%

Col 1 = Col 2+3+4 Straight CCS OTLICP 

Column 1 2 3 4 5 6

Category/Line Item Total Budget
Straight CCS
County/State

(50/50)

Optional Targeted Low 
Income Children's 
Program (OTLICP) 
County/State/Fed   
(11.75/11.75/76.5)

Medi-Cal  State/Federal
Enhanced Medi-Cal  
State/Federal (25/75)

Non-Enhanced   Medi-
Cal  State/Federal   

(50/50)

I. Total Personnel Expense 96,283 7,828 11,742 76,715 0 76,715

II. Total Operating Expense 2,471 201 302 1,969 0 1,969

III. Total Capital Expense 0 0 0 0 0

IV. Total Indirect Expense 4,366 355 532 3,479 3,479

V. Total Other Expense 7,500 610 915 5,976 5,976

Budget Grand Total 110,620 8,994 13,491 88,139 0 88,139

Col 1 = Col 2+3+4 Straight CCS OTLICP 

Column 1 2 3 4 5 6

Source of Funds Total Budget
Straight CCS
County/State

(50/50)

Optional Targeted Low 
Income Children's 
Program (OTLICP) 
County/State/Fed   
(11.75/11.75/76.5)

Medi-Cal  State/Federal
Enhanced Medi-Cal  
State/Federal (25/75)

Non-Enhanced   Medi-
Cal  State/Federal   

(50/50)

Straight CCS

        State 4,497 4,497

        County 4,497 4,497

OTLICP

State 1,585 1,585

County 1,585 1,585

Federal (Title XXI) 10,321 10,321

Medi-Cal

State 44,070 44,070 0 44,070

Federal (Title XIX) 44,069 44,069 0 44,069

Prepared By (Signature) Prepared By (Printed Name) Email Address

CCS Administrator (Signature) CCS Administrator (Printed Name) Email Address

Joey Peterson joey.peterson@inyocounty.us

@inyocounty.us

Medi-Cal (non-OTLICP)  (Column 4 = Columns 5 + 6)

Medi-Cal (non-OTLICP)  (Column 4 = Columns 5 + 6)

County:

  CCS Administrative Baseline Budget Summary

     Fiscal Year: 2022-23

Inyo



Revised 2/10/20

CCS CASELOAD
Actual 

Caseload

Percent of 
Total CCS 
Caseload

STRAIGHT CCS -  
Total Cases of Open (Active) Straight CCS Children

10 8.13%  CCS Administrative Baseline Budget Worksheet
OTLICP -  
Total Cases of Open (Active) OTLICP Children

15 12.20%

MEDI-CAL -    Total Cases of Open (Active) Medi-Cal 
(non-OTLICP) Children

98 79.67%

TOTAL CCS CASELOAD 123 100%

1 2 3 4A 4 5A 5 6A 6 7A 7 8A 8

% FTE
Annual 
Salary

Total Budget
(1 x 2 or
4 + 5 +6 )

Caseload %

Straight CCS
County/State

(50/50)

Caseload 
%

 Optional Targeted 
Low Income 
Children's

Program (OTLICP) 
Co/State/Fed  

(11.75/11.75/76.5)

Caseload %
Medi-Cal

State/Federal
Enhanced % 

FTE

Enhanced 
Medi-Cal

State/Federal
(25/75)

Non-
Enhanced % 

FTE

Non-Enhanced
Medi-Cal

State/Federal
(50/50)

0.00% 0 0 8.13% 0 12.20% 0 79.67% 0 100.00% 0

0.00% 0 0 8.13% 0 12.20% 0 79.67% 0 100.00% 0

0.00% 0 0 8.13% 0 12.20% 0 79.67% 0 100.00% 0

0.00% 0 0 8.13% 0 12.20% 0 79.67% 0 100.00% 0

0.00% 0 0 8.13% 0 12.20% 0 79.67% 0 100.00% 0

0 0 0 0 0 0

10.00% 81,340 8,134 8.13% 661 12.20% 992 79.67% 6,481 0.00% 0 100.00% 6,481

0.00% 0 0 8.13% 0 12.20% 0 79.67% 0 0.00% 0 100.00% 0

0.00% 0 0 8.13% 0 12.20% 0 79.67% 0 0.00% 0 100.00% 0

0.00% 0 0 8.13% 0 12.20% 0 79.67% 0 0.00% 0 100.00% 0

0.00% 0 0 8.13% 0 12.20% 0 79.67% 0 0.00% 0 100.00% 0

0.00% 0 0 8.13% 0 12.20% 0 79.67% 0 0.00% 0 100.00% 0

0.00% 0 0 8.13% 0 12.20% 0 79.67% 0 0.00% 0 100.00% 0

0.00% 0 0 8.13% 0 12.20% 0 79.67% 0 0.00% 0 100.00% 0

81,340 8,134 661 992 6,481 0 6,481

0.00% 0 0 8.13% 0 12.20% 0 79.67% 0 0.00% 0 100.00% 0

0.00% 0 0 8.13% 0 12.20% 0 79.67% 0 0.00% 0 100.00% 0

0.00% 0 0 8.13% 0 12.20% 0 79.67% 0 0.00% 0 100.00% 0

0 0 0 0 0 0 0

75.00% 52,705 39,529 8.13% 3,214 12.20% 4,821 79.67% 31,495 100.00% 31,495

0.00% 0 0 8.13% 0 12.20% 0 79.67% 0 100.00% 0

0.00% 0 0 8.13% 0 12.20% 0 79.67% 0 100.00% 0

0.00% 0 0 8.13% 0 12.20% 0 79.67% 0 100.00% 0

0.00% 0 0 8.13% 0 12.20% 0 79.67% 0 100.00% 0

52,705 39,529 3,214 4,821 31,495 31,495

3.00% 63,700 1,911 8.13% 155 12.20% 233 79.67% 1,523 0.00% 0 100.00% 1,523

5.00% 81,860 4,093 8.13% 333 12.20% 499 79.67% 3,261 0.00% 0 100.00% 3,261

0.00% 0 0 8.13% 0 12.20% 0 79.67% 0 0.00% 0 100.00% 0

0.00% 0 0 8.13% 0 12.20% 0 79.67% 0 0.00% 0 100.00% 0

0.00% 0 0 8.13% 0 12.20% 0 79.67% 0 0.00% 0 100.00% 0

145,560 6,004 488 732 4,784 0 4,784

Inyo

Straight CCS
Optional Targeted Low Income 
Children's Program (OTLICP)

Medi-Cal  (Non-OTLICP)

2022-23

County:

  Fiscal Year:

Column

Category/Line Item

I. Personnel Expense

Program Administration

3. Employee Name, Position

7. Employee Name, Position

5. Employee Name, Position

4. Employee Name, Position

6. Employee Name, Position

1. Employee Name, Position

2. Employee Name, Position

3. Employee Name, Position

4. Employee Name, Position

5. Employee Name, Position

Subtotal

Medical Case Management

1. Dena Dondero, Registered Nurse

2. Employee Name, Position

1. Employee Name, Position

2. Employee Name, Position

3. Employee Name, Position

8. Employee Name, Position

Subtotal

Other Health Care Professionals

Subtotal

Ancillary Support

1. Talia Carrillo, HHS Specialist

2. Employee Name, Position

3. Employee Name, Position

4. Employee Name, Position

5. Employee Name, Position

Subtotal

Subtotal

Clerical and Claims Support

1. VACANT, Office Tech III Fiscal

2. Joey Peterson, Admin Analyst III

3. Employee Name, Position

4. Employee Name, Position

5. Employee Name, Position



Revised 2/10/20

CCS CASELOAD
Actual 

Caseload

Percent of 
Total CCS 
Caseload

STRAIGHT CCS -  
Total Cases of Open (Active) Straight CCS Children

10 8.13%  CCS Administrative Baseline Budget Worksheet
OTLICP -  
Total Cases of Open (Active) OTLICP Children

15 12.20%

MEDI-CAL -    Total Cases of Open (Active) Medi-Cal 
(non-OTLICP) Children

98 79.67%

TOTAL CCS CASELOAD 123 100%

1 2 3 4A 4 5A 5 6A 6 7A 7 8A 8

% FTE
Annual 
Salary

Total Budget
(1 x 2 or
4 + 5 +6 )

Caseload %

Straight CCS
County/State

(50/50)

Caseload 
%

 Optional Targeted 
Low Income 
Children's

Program (OTLICP) 
Co/State/Fed  

(11.75/11.75/76.5)

Caseload %
Medi-Cal

State/Federal
Enhanced % 

FTE

Enhanced 
Medi-Cal

State/Federal
(25/75)

Non-
Enhanced % 

FTE

Non-Enhanced
Medi-Cal

State/Federal
(50/50)

Inyo

Straight CCS
Optional Targeted Low Income 
Children's Program (OTLICP)

Medi-Cal  (Non-OTLICP)

2022-23

County:

  Fiscal Year:

Column

Category/Line Item

53,667 8.13% 4,363 12.20% 6,545 79.67% 42,760 0.00% 0 100.00% 42,760

Staff Benefits (Specify %) 79.41% 42,616 8.13% 3,465 12.20% 5,197 79.67% 33,955 0 33,955

96,283 8.13% 7,828 12.20% 11,742 79.67% 76,715 0 76,715

0 8.13% 0 12.20% 0 79.67% 0 0.00% 0 100.00% 0

0 8.13% 0 12.20% 0 79.67% 0 0.00% 0 100.00% 0

300 8.13% 24 12.20% 37 79.67% 239 100.00% 239

179 8.13% 15 12.20% 22 79.67% 143 100.00% 143

200 8.13% 16 12.20% 24 79.67% 159 100.00% 159

1,792 8.13% 146 12.20% 219 79.67% 1,428 100.00% 1,428

8.13% 0 12.20% 0 79.67% 0 100.00% 0

2,471 201 302 1,969 0 1,969

8.13% 0 12.20% 0 79.67% 0 0

8.13% 0 12.20% 0 79.67% 0 0

8.13% 0 12.20% 0 79.67% 0 0

0 0 0 0 0

1. Indirect Cost Rate 4.53% 4,366 8.13% 355 12.20% 532 79.67% 3,479 100.00% 3,479

0 8.13% 0 12.20% 0 79.67% 0 100.00% 0

4,366 355 532 3,479 3,479

7,500 8.13% 610 12.20% 915 79.67% 5,976 100.00% 5,976

8.13% 0 12.20% 0 79.67% 0 100.00% 0

8.13% 0 12.20% 0 79.67% 0 100.00% 0

8.13% 0 12.20% 0 79.67% 0 100.00% 0

8.13% 0 12.20% 0 79.67% 0 100.00% 0

7,500 610 915 5,976 5,976

110,620 8,994 13,491 88,139 0 88,139

760-878-0246
Prepared By (Signature) Prepared By (Printed Name) Date Prepared

760-873-
CCS Administrator (Signature) CCS Administrator (Printed Name) Date Signed

Phone Number

Phone Number

  Joey Peterson

Total Salaries and Wages

I. Total Personnel Expense

II. Operating Expense

1. Travel

2. Training

3. General Operating

4. Professional Services

5. Utilities

6. Rent

4.  

5.  

7.  

II. Total Operating Expense

III. Capital Expense

1.  

2.  

3.  

V. Total Other Expense

Budget Grand Total

III. Total Capital Expense

IV. Indirect Expense

IV. Total Indirect Expense

V. Other Expense

1. Maintenance & Transportation

2.  

3.  

1/19/23



CCS Admin
INYO County

Budget Narrative
Fiscal Year 2022/23

I. PERSONNEL EXPENSES

Total Salaries: 53,667$   
Total Benefits: 42,616$   
Total Personnel Expenses: 96,283$  

Registered Nurse

Dena Dondero

HHS Specialist

Talia Carrillo

Office Tech III Fiscal

Vacant

Administrative Analyst III

Joey Peterson

II. OPERATING EXPENSES

Travel -$  This is unchanged from the prior year.

Training -$  This is unchanged from the prior year.

General Office 300$    
Basic office supplies, time study and copy
costs. This is a decrease from prior year.

Professional Services 179$    This is a decrease from the prior year. 

Motor Pool -$  This is unchanged from the prior year.

Utilities 200$    
Includes phone, electricity, gas etc.  This is a
decrease from the prior year.

Rent 1,792$   This is a decrease from the prior year. 

III. Total Operating Expenses: 2,471$  

IV. CAPITAL EXPENSES -$  No Capital Expenses planned.

IV. Total Capital Expenses: -$ 

V. INDIRECT EXPENSES 4,366$   

Rates are set by the CAO. Public Liability 
insurance, County financial accounting / 
payroll system. This is a decrease from the 
prior year. 

V. Total Indirect Expenses: 4,366$  

VI. OTHER EXPENSES

Maintenance and Transp. 7,500$   This is the same as prior year.

VI. Total Other Expenses: 7,500$   

BUDGET GRAND TOTAL 110,620$     

This position is budgeted at 10% and is 
unchanged from the prior year.

This position is budgeted at 5% and is 
unchanged from the prior year.

This position is budgeted at 3% and is 
unchanged from the prior year.

This position is budgeted at 75% and is 
unchanged from the prior year.



County Inyo

Staff/Working Title for personnel reported in 
baseline budget                                (This is 

Column A)

Corresponding County Classification Title 
for personnel listed in Column A (Per 

County Web Link)

Notes/Comments (for any additional 
compensation in the budget compared to 

maximum salary in the website)

Dena Dondero, Registered Nurse Registered Nurse

Talia Carrillo, HHS Specialist HHS Specialist III +5% Billingual pay 

Vacant, Office Technician Office Tech III

Joey Peterson, Administrative Analyst Administrative Analsyt III

Additional Details: Please enter the required details as below: Notes/Comments 

Personnel Benefits Rate
(County-established Percentage or 
Percentage Based upon Actual Costs) Percentage Based upon Actual Costs

Indirect Cost Rate
(FY 2022-2023 CDPH County ICR
to be applied to Total Personnel Costs)
Copy & Open URL Link for ICR FY 2022-23 
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CFH/DM
CAH/Pages/Indirect-Cost-Rate.aspx

25%
Please provide following web link

Web link for County Classification Title, Staff 
Benfits Rate and Salary Table:

https://www.inyocounty.us/services/human-
resourcespersonnel/benefits-and-salaries 

 County Classification Title and Salary Table Details   
CCS Administrative Budget  FY 2022-2023

(To be completed by the county)









12/20/2022



CCS Treatment 
INYO County

Budget Narrative
Fiscal Year 2022/23

I. PERSONNEL EXPENSES

Total Salaries: 8,134$    
Total Benefits: 4,611$    
Total Personnel Expenses: 12,745$

Registered Nurse

Dena Dondero

II. OPERATING EXPENSES

Travel -$   This is unchanged from the prior year.

Training -$   This is unchanged from the prior year.

General Office -$   This is unchanged from the prior year.

Professional Services -$   This is a slight increase from the prior year.

Motor Pool -$   This is unchanged from the prior year.

Utilities -$     
Includes phone, electricity, gas etc.  This is a
decrease from the prior year.

Provider expenses at clinic 2,500$    This is unchanged from the prior year. 

III. Total Operating Expenses: 2,500$

IV. CAPITAL EXPENSES -$   No Capital Expenses planned.

IV. Total Capital Expenses: -$

V. INDIRECT EXPENSES 227$    

V. Total Indirect Expenses: 227$
This is an increase from the prior year due to a 
higher public liability insurance cost.

VI. OTHER EXPENSES

Maintenance and Transp. -$   This is the same as prior year.

VI. Total Other Expenses: -$     

BUDGET GRAND TOTAL 15,472$    

This position is budgeted at 10% and is 
unchanged from the prior year.



County Inyo County

Staff/Working Title for personnel 
reported in baseline budget      

(This is Column A)

Corresponding County Classification Title 
for personnel listed in Column A (Per 

County Web Link)

Notes/Comments (for any additional 
compensation in the budget compared to 

maximum salary in the website)

Dena Dondero, Registered Nurse Registered Nurse

Additional Details: Please enter the required details as below: Notes/Comments 

Personnel Benefits Rate
(County-established Percentage or 
Percentage Based upon Actual Costs) Percentage Based upon Actual Costs

Indirect Cost Rate
(FY 2022-23 CDPH County ICR
to be applied to Total Personnel Costs)
Copy & Open URL Link for ICR FY 2022-23 
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CFH/
DMCAH/Pages/Indirect-Cost-Rate.aspx

25%
Please provide following web link

Web link for County Classification Title, 
Staff Benfits Rate and Salary Table:

https://www.inyocounty.us/services/human-
resourcespersonnel/benefits-and-salaries

 County Classification Title and Salary Table Details    
MTP Administrative Budget  FY 2022-2023

(To be completed by the county)





12/20/2022



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

February 7, 2023   Reference ID:  
2023-3389  

 

Amendment  No. 1 to Helix Environmental Planning, Inc. 
Contract 

Planning Department 
 ACTION REQUIRED 

   
ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Cathreen Richards, Planning Director Cathreen Richards, Planning Director 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Request Board ratify and approve Amendment No.1 to the contract between the County of Inyo and the 
Helix Environmental Group Inc. to amend Section 2 – Term  of the agreement to be April 1, 2022 through 
November 30, 2023; and, authorize the Chairperson to sign. 
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
The Planning Department and HELIX staffs have been working on a vacant land inventory, zoning and 
General Plan review of properties located in the County. This information is used to identify land that 
might be appropriate for zone and General Plan designation changes to promote affordable housing 
opportunities primarily by increasing the allowable residential density. This work is funded by an SB 2 
grant directed at planning assistance that supports affordable housing. 
 
The State made subsequent funding available through a Regional Early Action Planning Grant (REAP) 
that is focused on accelerating housing production and addressing regional planning for housing. As a 
regionally focused grant, the County applied for REAP funding to: share with the City of Bishop; and, to 
support preparation of the County's Environmental Impact Report prepared as a requirement of the SB2 
grant project to include a regional Vehicle Miles Traveled (VMT) Feasibility Study, and a goals and 
programs report. The County’s total REAP grant award is $60,758.50.   
 
HELIX's VMT feasibility study will qualitatively determine baseline per capita VMT conditions across the 
County. VMT is a measurement of the overall level of auto use in an area or region and is now the 
measurement of choice for transportation impacts (this is of particular importance under CEOA), as it is 
believed to be more closely related to carbon emissions and air pollution than local traffic levels are. The 
VMT goals and strategies report will help the County better identify areas where increased housing 
density is appropriate. 
 
Staff is requesting that the term of the contract be amended to November 30, 2023 to match the end of 
the project based on the SB2 grant requirements. Both grants were delayed by the State Department of 
Housing and Community Development and subsequently amended. Staff is also requesting the Board 
ratify the contract amendment as it is late in its request. 
 
  

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding Source REAP grant  Budget Unit 23800 
Budgeted? Yes  Object Code  
Recurrence Ongoing Expenditure  
Current Fiscal Year Impact 
The revenue and expense ($60,758) is already budgeted during the current Fiscal Year. 
Future Fiscal Year Impacts 
With the contract amendment extension to November 30, 2023, the $60,758 will be re-budgeted for 
Fiscal Year 23-24. 
Additional Information 
 
 
ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
The Board could choose not to approve the contract amendment. This would cause a delay to the project 
completion as Helix prepared the Draft EIR and has the background to complete the Final EIR.  
  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
None. 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Amendment No. 1 to HELIX Contract 
2. HELIX Contract 
  
APPROVALS: 
Cathreen Richards Created/Initiated - 1/31/2023 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 1/31/2023 
John Vallejo Approved - 1/31/2023 
Amy Shepherd Approved - 1/31/2023 
Nate Greenberg Approved - 2/1/2023 
Cathreen Richards Final Approval - 2/1/2023 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 





Amendment #1to County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 156 

 
                                                  
County Auditor 
 
APPROVED AS TO PERSONNEL REQUIREMENTS:   
 
                                                  
Director of Personnel Services 
 
APPROVED AS TO RISK ASSESSMENT: 
 
       
County Risk Manager     
 



In the Rooms of the Board of Superuisors
County of Inyo, State of California

I, HEREBY CERTIFY, that at a meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo, State of California,

held in their rooms at the County Administrative Center in Independence on the 26th day of April 2022 an order was duly made and

entered as follows:

Planning -
HELIX So/e-Source
Contract

Moved by Supervisor Kingsley and seconded by Supervisor Pucci to A) declare HELIX
Environmental Planning lnc. a sole-source provider of planning services; B) approve the
contract between the County of lnyo and HELIX Environmental Planning lnc. for the
provision of planning services in an amount not to exceed $60,758.50 for the period of April
1,2022 to November 30,2022, contingent upon the Board's approval of the Fiscal Year
2022-2023 Budget; and C)authorized the Chairperson to sign. Motion carried unanimously.

WITNESS my hand and the seal of said Board this 26th

Day April, 2022

LESLIE L. CHAPMAN
Clerk ofthe Board ofSupervisors

f*xb{. U't*+'t,'ta-*

Routing

cc
Purchasing
Personnel
Auditor
cAo
Other: Planning
DATE: May 6,2022 By



County of Inyo

Planning Department

CONSENT . ACTION REQUIREI)

MEET|NG: April26,2022

FROM: Cathreen Richards

SUBJEGT: Contract with HELIX Environmental Planning

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board: A) declare HELIX Environmental Planning lnc. a sole-source provider of planning services; B)
approve the contract between the County of lnyo and HELIX Environmental Planning lnc. for the provision of
planning services in an amount not to exceed $60,758.50 for the period of April 1,2022 to November 30,2022,
contingent upon the Board's approval of the Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Budget; and C) authorize the Chairperson to
sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures being obtained.

SUM MARY/J USTIFICATION :

Currently, the Planning Department and HELIX staff are working on a vacant land inventory, zoning and General
Plan review of properties located in the County. This information is used to identify land that might be appropriate
for zone and General Plan designation changes to promote affordable housing opportunities primarily by
increasing the allowable residential density. This work is funded by an SB 2 grant directed at planning assistance
that supports affordable housing.

The State has also made funding available through a Regional Early Action Planning Grant (REAP) that is
focused on accelerating housing production and addressing regional planning for housing. As a regionally
focused grant, the County applied for REAP funding to:

. Share with the City of Bishop; and,

. To support preparation of the County's Environmental lmpact Report prepared as a requirement of the SB2
grant project to include a regional Vehicle Miles Traveled Feasibility Study, and a goals and programs report.

The total REAP grant award is $121 ,517. The City of Bishop's allocation is $54,683. A Memorandum of
Understanding will be presented to the Board at a later date to formalize the City of Bishop's statement of work
under the grant and the County as grant administrator.

HELIX's VMT feasibility study will qualitatively determine baseline per capita VMT conditions across the County
VMT is a measurement of the overall level of auto use in an area or region and is now the measurement of
choice for transportation impacts (this is of particular importance under CEOA), as it is believed to be more
closely related to carbon emissions and air pollution than local traffic levels are.

The VMT goals and strategies report will help the County better identifo areas where increased housing density is



Agenda Request
Pag-€T''

most appropriate, especially with regard to transportation opportunities and areas that are not as well suited due
to VMT constraints. The results of the VMT feasibility study can also be used by the County to evaluate
transportation impacts of proposed projects on future CEQA documents. California Senate Bill 743 required that
a new metric be adopted when evaluating transportation impacts and VMT was the one chosen to replace Level
of Service.

Since HELIX is already working on the EIR that the VMT study results will be incorporated into, staff is requesting
a sole source contract with them. Planning and HELIX staffs have negotiated contract terms that meet both the
County's and the Department of Housing and Community Development's contract requirements. Both parties
have agreed to the language included in the attached contract and agree that the Statement of Work can be
completed within the budgetary and scheduling requirements.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:

ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE AGTION:
. Direct staff to renegotiate the contract. Staff has worked with HELIX to arrive at mutually agreeable contract
provisions that also meet the HCD's contract requirements. Additional negotiations could be time consuming and
may not be productive.
. Direct staff to issue an RFP for consultant services. Such an action could take several months, could pose
logistical and financial challenges, and a different consultant would not have the experience that HELIX does or
the ability to easily use the information generated in this project for the SB2 project.

OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:

FINANCING:
HELIX Environmentalwill be paid by Planning (023800), Professional & Special Services (5265). Planning will
be reimbursed by the HCD pursuant to the HCD and County of lnyo Contract #21-REAP-16452, dated February
23,2022.

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Helix Agreement

APPROVALS:
Cathreen Richards
Darcy Ellis
John Vallejo
Amy Shepherd
Cathreen Richards

Created/lnitiated - 41612022
Approved - 41712022
Approved - 411212022
Approved - 411212022
Final Approval - 411212022



AGREEtlElrtT EETWEEN COUNTYOF tNyO
AND HELX Environrnsntal lnc-

FOR THE PROVISION OF Professionat

,nr*o 

ERVICES

prr.rrH,lli*EAS, the Gounry of tnyo (heretnafter refened t9 ?.r_.g$!r/) has the need for the

conditions hereinafter contained, the piitiest 
",io-vieree 

as foilolr€:

seMcos and work prwtded by the Consultant al fts counly's request under this Agreement w{ll beperformed ln a manner coisietsnt wrfi firl rqurrements and sanlaro*-JJ*lished by appftcabte federat,sbts, and County lavrrs, ordtnances, regutattoni, anO l"sofuriond. Sr"-f, fi"i ordln{rces, regulations, endEsolulione tnatude. but are not thlted to; thos" *,ti"n arc reierreO toin ifiis'ng;er"nt.
2. TERM.

___ - .The.term.of thts Agreement shalt be from April.1. ?0p2 . to Novgmber 30. 2022 untesssoonerterminaledaspmvldedbelol'lnaddition,@bext€ndlheAgreementfor
additlonal on+yoar perlode as follours:

1. Srom throughE. From lhrough

county shall exercise such oplions by giving wrifren notice to Conlractor at least thirty (30) daysbefore lhe erpiration of tha Agreomeni, o, 
"nLit"niion 

thereof.

The notice shall specifithg p.edod of the options being exercised. The option lo extend shall be uponthe same terms and condiiionsstated in tfrit ngie;rent,

3. CONSIDERATION.

F:l'"#;uo*ffi 'h",:l,ig"'Jxllr.l,:['ff 
'.',lfl 1'f, ff ijJf *fi x'h,[;:il"$i:'il jr"tConsultant al lhe County'e rerquest.

. P: - rtpveJ,in$.,lri| !ren!.,, Goung shall relmburse Consultant for the travel expensss and perdlem which coneultsnt tncuru tn prwiang-servlc6sand w;rk rdGt.iJ[iC"rrV rnder thts Agreement.consultant thall request approvi oy nebountv piror r" lncunlng eny lravol or per dion expsnses. Requests

1. scoPEoFwoRK.

TERMSAND CONDITIONS

County of lnyo Standad Contrect - No. iSE
(lndependent Coneuttenl - profogsional)

Pag€ 1of .ll o8/04E019



Gonsultant for to incur travel and par dlem expsns€s shall be submitted to th6

Travel and Per diem

rquesld bY Contractor for
expreeslY roserves
or work perfumedto ag County

servlc€s

F. FederalandStatetsxes

rlght to
wtrlch ls in

deny any
oxcose of

payment or
the contracl

llmlt.
E,glllinoandoavmgnt.Coneu|tantshallsubmlttolheCounty,onceamonth,anit€mlz€d

statement of alt hours spd6-v colwtrq1rt ln e9tfotTl-if;;{3'fmg*;escrtoed in Atlachmenl A' whlch

*"i" Oon" at the Countt's rcquest' ThtB stat€menl

(oth) day of the monrh. it" ir"t i""i'iio oe suumitH;1;;;; il; ;F$*-Y:i""#1tt#ilfrilftH1
precedtng month rhrough iiil rilrioirg-rhi iast day..of the praogdhg month. T

date on wtrhh the hours rir[tiiirtilitol*crrgor# iltffiitt*-*tktnnrcn 
",las 

performed on each dav'

consurtant 
,e sratemenr ;ilJffi;i'iirili* Lirri" 

"n 
rt"rroton of any rraver or per drem expsnse'.

wtrrch have been approvi;;;;ffi 6v C*"v'.ii'"rlii;-icoFi'i;t'.".^*5"1llllilt;'#i'lill*il1
ili;;;if*-r"*,T'"*p"irir *c per dpm wtti include 

'"ce'rpts 
lor lodslns

;d;;;;inaworoan&,*itiimecounvs.*q"*Ei[*[ffiillg{;,Y,mJru9,ffi*,:1ll:
illt"rJrit uv [tt" nnn (Sth) day of the monlh, County

{ I ) Except ae provrded il *81'"1ffi L:iJ#"dcit%:ll"1f#'3"i"Jl',*i
faderal or state tiriome to(€s or social securlty fron

,rnoeitn" fe*s and condltlons of thls Agreement'..
(2)CoungwllwlthholdcallfomiaStatehcometaxeef'ompaymentsmade

undor thte Agreem€nt to n#d'e,riio iaiestoent rnce;ndsri consultants when lt is anuclpeted thet

totrat annual paymsnts O ii**itJttt under lhis &tJ;inl"i[-e*od one thousand tuur hundrEd

ninetv nlne dollars ($1,499.00).rrrlrstv lrsre "-"''[gi "'-g*iolpt as 6st forlh above, County has no obligation to withhold any taxes

or payrnents froni iums patd by Coun-ty-to Consultant urdsr thls

/udfi."d 
''pavment 

of aritaxs ano other aesessments on such sums is

lhe sote responslbitity oidonrun nr oounty nurlo-i"tpondbllity or liability for payment of

Consultant's taxes or agsessmsnts'
(4) ii.'t":t"r ,**nts paid by counu to consultant,.and taxes withheld from

oswnents to non"CallfomilrJsffiil;li'"ti/, *If uCieport€d annuallv to-the lntemal Revonue

'Sehrtce 
and tho Catttornrattitelranctriee fa* eo.tO.'i'o f"tftrf"t" tlls reportlng, Consultant shall

cornptete and submtt to in.-6-uniliili"G*i neo"""e Servlcs 0R$) Form W-9'upon execuUng

month.

lhis Agreement.

4. WORKSCHEDULE'

consultanfs obligation ls to perform, in a tlmely mannsr,. lhoss services and woft lden|lfied ln

Atrachment A, wtrich ,r" ;iil;rilri bv lnJ cdunty.. iii" inou"t*d 
-by 

Coneultant that he performance of

thero eeMces and work rrill iequlre a varied schedute. ;;;rlis-;i $tt in"nge hldher orn schedule' but wlll

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No' 156

(lndopandent consullant - Rofesslonal)

Page 2 of 11 08'U/2019



coordinate wlth County to insure lhat all servbes and work requested by County under this Agreemenl wlll be
performed within the time frame set forth by County.

5. REqUIRED LICENSES, CERTIFICATES, AND PERMITS.

A. Any licenses, certificates, or permits required by the federal, state, county, or municipal
govornments for Consultant to provide the services and uork dascrlbed in Attachment A must be procured by
Consultant and be valid at the tlme Consultant enters into thls Agreament or as othenviso may 6e required.
fr4ttq during the term of this Agreement, Consultant must mainialn sudr licenses, certificatsi, and pirmils
in full force and effect. Licenses, certifcates, and permits may lnclude, but are not limited to, drlver's
licenses, professional licensss or certlficates, and buslness licenses. Such licenses, cerllflcates, and permits
wlll be procured and maintained in forco by Consultant at no expense to the Corng. Consultant will ]:rovlde
County, upon execution of this Agreement, with evidence of cunent and valid iicenses, certllicaies and
permits which are required to perform the services identified in Atlachment A. Where lhere is a dlspute
between Consultant and County as lo wlrat licenses, certlficates, and permits are required to perform the
services ldenlifled in Attachmont A, Coung r€serves the rlght lo make such determinallons for iurposes of
this Agreement.

B. Consultant warrants that it ls not presently debaned, suspended, proposed for
debarment, declared ineliglble, or voluntarily excluded from participation in co/eied transactions by any
fuderal department or ag€ncy. Consultant also wanants itrat it'is not suspended or debarred from
receiving federal funds as listed in the List of Parties Excluded from Federal Procurement or Non-
ptocurement Programs issued by the General S€rvices Administration available at: htto;/iwww.sam.oov.

6. OFFTCE SPACE, SUppLtES, EQU|PMENT, ETC.

Gonsultant shall provide sueh office space, supplies, equipment, vehides, referenc€ materials, and
telephone se].lc€ as is nacessary for Consultant to provlde lhe servlc€s ldentlfied ln Attachment A to lhis
Agreement, County is not obligated to reimburse or pay Consultant, for any oxpenso or coet lncurr€d by
Consultant ln procuring or malntaining such items. Responelbilig for lhe cdeg ind expenses lncuned by
Consultant ln providing and maintiaining such items is the sole respbnsibility and obligatim of Consultant.

7. COUNTYPROPERTY.

- . A'. Pqrsqnal P,n9oe4v of Countv, Any personal prcperty such as, but not llmlted to, proteclive
or safety devlcas, bgdggs, ldenllffcatlon carde, keys, etc. povlded to Consultant by County punsuint to thls
Agreement arig, and at the tsrmlnallon of this Agrsemant iemaln, the sole and exciuslve proierty of Cornty.
Consultant wlll use reasonable csre lo protec't, safoguard and malntraln euch llema wtrlte itrey are in
Consultant's possession. Gonsultant will be flnandally responsible for any loss or damage to such items,
parllal or total, wtrlch is the result of Gonsultant's negligence.

B - Produlis of Consultant's Work and Ssrvlcg.q. Any and all compositions, publicallons,
plane, spbcificatlone, bluaprinls, maps, formuhs, processes, photographs, slides, vldeo tapei, computer
programs, computer dlsks, computer tapes, memory chips, soundtracks, audio recordings, films, audio-visual
presentaUons, o<hiblts, reports, studies, works of art, inventions, patents, lrademirks, copyrights, or
lntellectual properties of any kind which are created, produced, assembled, compiled by, or are ihe result,
product, or manifestalion of, Consulhnt 's serylces or work under lhis Agreement ere, an'd at the termination
of thls Agreement remain, the sole and exclusive property of the Cornty. At the termination of the
Agreement, consultant will conv€y possossion and tiile to all such properties td coung.

E. INSURANCE REQUIREiNENTS FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES.

For the duratlon of this Agreement Consullant shall procure and maintain insurance of the scope and
amount specitied in Atlochmcnt D snd with the provislons specilied in that attachmcnt.

County of lnyo Strndad Conlracl - No. 150
(hdapend€nt Consullsnt - Profossionel)

Page 3 of 1'l 061041201s



9. STATUSOFCONSULTANT.

All 6at9 of Consultant, lts agentg, officsrs, and employeea relallng to lhe perfomance of this

ngr"emeni,!-ha[ be;;r{ordi 
"r 

rni"p"tioent Consultant'e,'and noi as agents, offic€rs' or emploTeos-of

Ciunti. 
-Cinrurant, 

6V vftui & rrrrJ ngLement, has no_ruthoity lo blnd or incur any obllOatlol.g.n bshalf of

Counti. Excopt as exjresiry pror/oed in Attachment A, Coneulhnt has no aulhotlty or tesqonslbill$ to

iiercfle any rights or'po,v"i ie"ted ln th6 Corrnty ryo.agy!: ofrcer, or emplovEe of the Consultant is to be

ronrfCereU in lmptoyie of Cou"V. n lJ undsrsto'od by Udn Consultant and County thai thls Agreement shall

not under any cirwmstan""s U" ignstrued or constOireO to create an employer'ernployee relationship or a

joint venture. As an independent Consultant:

A, Consultant shall determlne the method, details, and means of performing the wo* and

services to be prorlded by Consultant under thls Agre€ment'
B. Consuftanisiraft Ue responsfUle d County only for the requirements and results spaclfled ln

this Agreement, anO excopio 
"rpr"erty 

provlded h tnis Rdrmment, _shall 
not be subjeded to CounVs

controiwlttr rerdect to fre jtryslcat dctton or actlvllles of Consultant in fulfillment of this Agreement

C. Consunanl, ifs 
"g"ntr, 

officers, and employaes are, and at.all times during the lerm of ihis

Agrcement shall, rcpreserti'ano 6nOuit hemrclvcr as indipendent Gonsultante, and not ar employees of

County.

10, DEFENSE AND INDEIINIFICATION.

Design professional/Gonsultent agrees to indemnify, including the cost to defend, entity

and its oflicers, officials, emploloes, and volunteers from and againat any and all claims, demands, costs'

or liability that arise ort of, or pertain to, or relate to the negllgence, recklessness, or willful misconduct of

Design professional/Consuliant and its employees or agents in the performance of services under lhis

contract, but this lndemnity does not apply to liability for damag$ arising from the sole negligenoe, active

negllgence, or willful acts of the County; and does not apply to any passive negllgence ol the County

unless czusEd at hast in part by the Design Professional/Consultant'

II. RECORDS AND AUDIT.

A. Records. Consutbnt shall prepare end maintain all records required by the various

prodslons ot ttris-Agraenrent, iedsral, state, arid munldpal law, ordlnances, regulatio-ns, and dlrectione.

Congultant shall matntaln these rsc,ords for a minimum of fiur ta) years from thE termlnatlon or comptetion of

ilil ASr"d;i Consufgni mtiufnrf lts obligation to maintitniecords as required by this paragraph by

iuOstfiute pttotographe, mlcrophoiographs, or olher authenllc repmducllon ofruch rccods'---- B: t$pCrl 6. 
'Anyautlrortzedrepresent{voof 

Gounlyshallhaveaccessloany

bookg,docum"nts,papffilncludini'butnotllmitodto.linanclalrecordeofConsultant.wttlch
b;,rti Oei"rrrnei io'UJ'pertinent to ttris lgreement, for the purposes of maklng audlt, evaluatlon.

examinalon, excorpts, 
"nO 

[r"nJjf" during th-e perlod auch recoids'alo to be malntalned by Coneultant.

irtfner, 69ung has the tlghi,'"t i[ reasoriabte iimes, to audit, inspec{, or othenvise evaluate the urork

performed or being performed underthis Agreement.

12. IIIONDISCRIMINATION.

Durlng lhe performance of thls Agreement, Consultant. lts agents, oftlcsrs, and employees.ehall not

unlaMully Olsirtmtnlte rn'tiof*ition of 
"ny-tud"ral, 

gtate, or local law,-agalnst anv emnl9g9, ol:?!li3lt fot

smployment, or ps6on ,"csfufnl *ricls unAEi$ts Agreemenl, bscause ol rac€, rellglon, color, natlonal

ilfi,,g6;iry. if,Verr"t nendrrip, medlcalcondltlon, mirltalstalus, ag9,o_sex. Consultant and lts agents,

omftit, ana 6rirploy"ec'shaif iimpfy whh the provlelons of the.Falr Employnent.and Houslng Act

tAou"mr""t Cods 6eaton fieOo, dt ieq.), and the apptlcable re€ulatlonlPromulgated lhere^under ln the

b;if"*i, Code of negurairon"-cmsuttani inal atso adibe by th€ Feder€l Ctull Rights Act of .19{61 
(P.L' 88-

SsZi r"O 
"ff "rendme-ntsthereto, 

and all administrative rubs bnd regulatlons iesued pursuent to eald act.

County of lnyo Slandard Conltact - No. 156

(lndepend6nt Consultant - Professional)

Pag€4of11 08tml201s



13. CA'{CELLATION.

This Agreemcnt may be canceled by County wilhout cause, and at will, lor any rca8on by giving to
Consultant tharty (30) days written notice of such intEnt to cancel. Consullant may cancel this Agreem€nt
wlthout cause, and at will, for any reason whatsoever by giving thirty (30) days written notice of suoh lntent to
cancel to Goung.

14. ASSIGNMENT.

This is an agte€ment for the services of Consultant. County has relied upon lhe skills, knowlodge.
experience, and training of Consultant as an inducement to enter into this Agreement. Consultanl shall not
assign or subcontract this Agreemenl, or any part of lt, wlthout the express wrltten cons€nt of County-
Further, Consultant shall not assign any monies due or to become due under his Agreement wlthout the
prior written consent of County.

15. DEFAULT.

lf the Consullant abandons the work, or falls to proceed with the worft and services requested by
County in a timely manner, or fails in any way as required lo conducl the work and sorvicas as required by
County, Coun$ may declare the Coneultant ln default and terminate this Agresment upon five (5) days
wdtten notice to Gonsultant. Upon such lermlnatlon by default, Co.rnty wlll pay to Consultant all amounts
owing to Consultant for services and work satisfactorlly performed to the date of termination.

16. WAIVEROF DEFAULT.

Waiver of any default by either psrty to this Agreement shall not be deemed to be walver of any
subsequent default. Walver or breach of any provlslon of thls Agreement shall not be dEemed to be a waiver
of any other or aSsequent breach, and shall not be construed to be a modifioation of the lerms of this
Agreement unless this Agreement is modllied as provided in paragraph trueng-two (22) belor.

17. CONFIDENTIALITY.

Gonsultant further agrees to comply wih the various prwisions of the federal, state, and county laws,
regulalions, and ordinances providing that information and rscords kept, maintiained, or accessible by
Consultant in the courso of providing services and work under this Agreemen[ shall be privlleged, resHcted,
or confldenlial. Consultant agrees to keep confidentlal all such information and records. Disclosure of such
confldential, privlleged, or protected information shall be made by Gonsultant only witrr lhe express written
consent of the County. Any disclosure of confidenlial information by Consultant without he Counly's written
consent ls solely and exclusively the legal responslbility of Consultant in all tespec{s.

Notwlthstanding anything in lhe Agreement lo the contrary, names of persons receivlng public sooial
services are conlidentlal and are to be protected from unauthorized disclosure ln accordance wlth Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations Section 205.50, the Health lnsurancE Portablllty and Accountability Act of 1996,
and Sectlons 10850 and 14100.2 of the Welfare and lnstitutions Coda, and r€gulations adopted pursuant
thereto. For lhe purpose of lhis Agreement, all lnformatlon, records, and datra eloments perlaining to
beneficiaries shall be protected by the provider fiom unaulhorlzed disclosure.

18. CONFLICTS.

Consultant agrees that it has no interesl, and shall not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, which
would conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of the wprk and services under this Agreement.

19. POSTAGREEMENTCOVENANT

Consultant agr€€s not to use any conl?dential, protecled, or privileged information wtrich ls gained
from the Gounty in the course of providlng services and work under his Agreement, for any personal benelit,

County of lnyo Strrdard Conlraot - No- '158

(lndop6ndent Consultant - Profcssional)
Psgs 5 of ll O0lor',lmlg



gein, or enhancemonl. Furlhgr, Consultanl agrees for a period of tulo Vears efter the termination of this

ngij;;t, not to seek or 
"""eit 

any 
"mploymlnt 

with anyCounty, assoclatlon, conoratlon, or person who,

dirlng ttre ierm of thls Agreement, has had-an adverse dr confliding interest wlth the County' or whq h.as

been an adve6e pady ln litigatlon with the County, and conc,sming such,_ Consultant by virtue of this

Ageement tras gaijreC Lccess'io tho Countyb confidential, pdvlleged, Fotocted, or proprletary information.

20, SEVERABILITY.

lf any portion of this Agreement or application thereof to any person or circumstance shall be

declared invaiia Oy a court of coipetent jurisdiition, or f it is found in contravention of any federal, 319tet or

county statute, oidinance, or regiulation, lhe remaining provisions_of lhis Agreement,.or the appllcation

there6f, shall not be invaiidated-therely, and shall remitn in full force and effec't to the extent that the

provisions of this Agreement are severable'

21. FUNDINGLIMITATION.

The abillty of Gounty to enter this Agre€ment is baeed upon available funding frorn various sources'

ln the anent tnat iuch tunAing blls, is redu-ced, or is modified, irmt one ol more sourcos, Corn$ has- lhe

option to cancel, reduc€, or riodiS this Agreement" or any of lts.tgrqrs wlthln ten (19) dgys of its notlfiing

donsultant of the canceilation, redr.rction, 6r modificatlon of avallable fundlng' Any reducllon or modilication

of ttris lgreement mede pursuant to this provleion must comply with the requiremenF of paragraph h,\'€nty-

two (22) (Amendment).

22. AMENDMENT.

This Agreement may be modlfled, amended, changed, gdded_ b, 
-or 

sublracted from, by the mutual

oonssnt of trelarties neretti, if such amendment or change is in ttrltten fom and executed wlth the same

formalilies as thls Agreement, and attached to tlre original Agneement to malntain continuity.

2t. NOTTCE.

Any notice, communication, amendmsnts, addlffons, or deletions to this Agreement, lncluding

drange oi lAOr"rs'ot etther party durlng the terms of thls Agresment, which Consultant or County shall be

t"quifo. or may deslre, to mati, stratlie in wrlllng and may be personally servod, or sent by prePaid flrst

class mail to, the respective partles as follows:

of lnyo

Gonrultant:

Department
AddrEss
City and State

Name

Gityand State

24. ENTIREAGREEMENT.

This Agreement contains the enlire agreement of the parties, and no represenlations, inducem.ents,

promises, or alreements otherwise betweeri the padles not embodl€d herein or incorporated herein by
-ret"r"n.", 

stralibe of any force or eff€ct. Further, no term or provision hereof may be changed, walved'

discharged, or terminated, unless lhe same be in writing executed by tha parlies hereto.

tltllll

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 156

(lndspcndont Consultent - Plbfe3slonal)

Page 6 of 11 9610412019



AGREEIT/IENT AETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO

ANO HELIX Environm6ntal Pl6nnino. lnc

FOR THE PROVISION OF Prolsssional SERVICES

IN WITNESS THEREOF, THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET THEIR HANDS AND SEALS THIS

_2q!_ onior_Apl!*

COUNTY OF INYO

By:
a-4-r'e*-

Shnaturc
Dan Toth6roh

Print ot TYps ttlama

Dared; 0412612022

APPROVEO AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY:

OA";t*z-. {W1D*&

OaEd:W

CONSULTANT

Btt

or

(jounly uoun6€l

D

AS

NEL REQUIREMENTS

AS TO INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS;

County ol lnyo Stendard Conhsct - No. 156

(lndspondanl Cons0ltent - ProlasslonBll

Pege 7 ol 11 06/04/201s



ATTACHMET{TA

AGREEIIENT SETWEEN COUNTV OF INYO

AI{D HELIX Environmentral Planning. Inc.

Profecrional

November30,2022

SERVICE3FORTHE PROVISIOT{ OF

TERM:

FROT:

SCOPEOFWORK:

Contractor acknorvledges and accepb its role as e subcontractor pursuant to REAP Grant AgrBsment, 21-REAP-16462'

which is attached trereto ai ExhiUit t, anC lncorporated harcln by ihls reference, and agrees t9 coqOly yittt all applicable

frovisions lncluding but not limited to the terms and condltlons lieted in E(hiblt D pages 'l -9 of the REAP Grant

Agreement.

Conlractor shall provide the servicss ae outlined in the Letter Propoel.to Prcvide Envlronmental Consulting

Srpport ottn" Rbgional earry Rction Planning Grant, which is Ettished hereto as Exhlblt 2 and lncorporated

reference.

Aprill,2022

Services in
herein by this

County of lnyo Slandard Conlract - No' 156

{lndsgoillent Consullanl - Profoeslonal)

PageIofl1 06to4/20ts



ATTAGHMENT B

AGREEiIENT BENflEEN COUNTYOF |hnfo

AID HELIX Environmental Planning, lnc.

FORTHE PROVISION OF Profeseional SERVICES

TERM:

FROM: FVn!1,2022 November 30,20i42

SCHEDULEOF FEES:

lnyo County wlll pay HELIX Environmenlal Planning, lnc., through a REAP grant allocated by the California Deparfnent ol
H,ousing and Community Development (HCD) to complete the lasks at lhe rates specified, as identilled in Exhibit A Scope
of Work including the Schedule and Budget, and not lo exceed $60,75S.50. The County will pay HELIX Environmental
Planning, lnc. as the tasks specified in lhe SOW are completed to the satisfactiur of lnyo County and the HCD. lnvoicing
from HELIX Environmental Planning lnc. will meet HCD's requirements as fountt in thE SOW lncluded in Agreement #
(Attachod).
The percentage of lotal peymsnt shall not exceed th€ porcentage of completed proiect at any time during the project
duration. Final payment will be made when all work agrced to by HELIX Envlronmentel Planning, lnc., ai identilied in the
SOW ls completed to the salisfaotion of lnyo County and HCD. Costs incurred for materials necessary to complete the
tasks as stated in th€ SOW will be paid out of lhe $60,758.50 total cost of the contracted work and only for tasks included
in the SOW.

Counly of lnyo Sland8d Contract - No, 150
(lrd€p6nd6nt Consulldnt - Prof€ssional)

Page0oflt 0E/04r2019



ATTACHTIENT C

AGREEiIENT BETWEEN GOUNTVOF INYO

N{D HELIX Environmental Plannlng, lnc.

Profacriongl SERVICE9FORTHE PROVISION OF

FROM: Apil1,2O22

TERilr

Nove*nber 30,2022

County of lnyo Standad Conlrsct - l',1o. 150

(lndsp€ndont Consultant - Profussionrl)
Page 10 of 1 1

SCHEOULE OF TRAVEL ATTID FER UET PAYMENT:

HELIX Environmental Planning lnc. will be compensatod only for expensos lncuned while performlng taekrpecified in

ih; Att;*d S*p" ot Wo* t?ieasC 
"ee 

exni6it n), Travel ind Pei Dlem expensos will be pald out of lhe $80.758.50

total idst of lh conlrac'ted wo-rlt and only tasks included in the SOW will be reimbursed.

06/04/2019



ATTACHilEIIIID

AGREEilI ElttT BElllrEEltl COUttlTY OF ll{YO

AI{D HELIX Envircnmental Plannlng, lnc.

FORTHE PROVISK']{ OF Profaseional
SERVTCES

FROp: 4pdl1,2022

TERiI:

November30,2022

sEE ATTACHED Ii{SURAI{GE PROI'ISIOT{S

County of hyo thndrd Cootllct - No. 150
(ln&p6rdent Consultsnt - Pllfollonel)

Pago lt of 1l lJf,/0/,EO1S



STATE OFCALIFORNIA. DEPARTMENT OF GENEML
SERVICES
STAttl DARO AOREE MElrlT
STO 213 {Rev. 04t2020)

SCO ID:

AGREEMENT NUMBER

21-REAP-t6462

EXHIBIT 1

PURCHASINe AUTHORTW NUi/EER (lf applicobto)

GTC - 042017
s

0

16

STATE
CA 93526

TITLE

I Thls Agroomont h enterd into bat$rean the conkacting Agoncy ,nd lhr contrrctor namsd boro$r:

CONTR^CTI NG AOENCY T.IAME
DEPARTMENT OF I.|oUSING AND COMMUNITY OEVELOPMENT

CONTRACTOR'S NAME
lnyo Counly

2, Ths larm otlhls Agr€omsnl 13:

START DATE

Upon HCD Approval

THROUGH END DATE

12131t2024

3, Thg rnatlmum amount of ttto Agrelmonl b:
$121,s17.00

4' Ths pstties agtos to comPly $dlh lh. letms end conditions ofthe lollowing oxhlbils, which aro by thl8 r8lorence medo a pBd or he Agrermont.
EXHIBITS TITLE
Exhlblt A Authority, purpolg and Scopo of Wolk
Exhibll g Budgol Dotqll ond paymcnt provisions

Exhibit c' Stab of Ceilbnsr GonerElTarmc and conditions
Exhlbil D REAP csnoral Torms 8nd conditlons
Exhlbil E Spoclal Condlilons

TOTAL NUMBER OF PAGES ATTACHEB

llefitgshovtnwithtnettodsk(',,drehanbyinq',eorr/tadbytot rcncaaodm6dopEtollhieegnemantaef atte,'.sdhenro.
Ihasa dacumenlr can b vledtled al iirrs.r,,r!!rr!, ..ir5 c;).rrrvla)./ .q;Jie i{)r, Lris

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, THIS AGREEMENT HAS BEEN EXECUTED BY THE PARTIES HERETO,

CONTRACTOR
coNTRAcroR trAME (rf olhor then an individual, rtate wherher a corporstion, parrnership,oto.)

lnyo County

CONTRACTORBUSINESSADDRESS CITY
PO Drawer L Indspondance

PRINTEO NAME OF PERSON SIGNING

C.ri+h.*r,. 'il, &4.)s

PAGES

3

4

ztP

SIONATURE

STAIE OF CALIFORT{IA
CONTRACTING AGENCY NAME

Deparlment of Houalng and Community Dovelopment

CONTRACTING AGENCY ADDRESS CITY STATE ZIP
2020 W. El Camino Ave., Sule 1!x1 Sacramonto CA 9583J

PRIMIEO NAME OF PERSON SIGNING NTLE**r'b synthia Rhinehart 
ffi,:::f#sllfl::,sorvice'B,anch

CONTRACTING AGENCY AUT,HORIZEO SIGNATURE DATE SIGNEO

S//b{'a. P/r*AnaAf u2312o22
' ( Callbmle Ooparhenl ot General Services Approvat (or exempflon, if appllcable)

Exempt p6r; SCM Vol. 1 4,04.A.3 (DGS merno dated 06llZASEll

?(Gr.^,^"l D,ra*or
DATE SIGNEOJ

4 to/soa>-



I

Gounty of lnyo
21-REAP-1&162

Page 1 of3
EXHIBITA

AUTHORITV. PURPOSE AttlD SCOPE OF WORK

Authoritv

The Local Government Planning Support Grants Program is established for the

purpose of providing regions and jurisdictions with one-time funding, including

gra'nts for pianning ictivlties to enable jurisdictions to meet the sixth cycle of the

iegional housing needs assessment. Up to two hundred fifty million dollars
($tSO,0OO,OO0)lhatl be distributed under the program i1_ac99r.d.ance with

i{ealth and Saiety Code sections 50515.02 and 50515.03. Of this amount,

approximately one hundred twentyJive mllllon dollars ($125,000,000) is

aviilabte to councils of governments and other regional entities. The

Department of Housing and Community Development (Department or HCD)

shall administer the Prbgram (referred to herein as the Regional Early Action

Planning Grant Program, or "REAP") to councils of governments and other

regionaientities in iccordance with ihe Notice of Funding Availability ('NOFA')
prisuant to Health and Safety Code section 50515.04, subdivision (0.

Pursuantto Health and Safety Code section 50515.02, subdivision (d)(3), a

council of governments or a fiscal agent of a multiagency working group' as

defined in iection 50515.02, may request up to 25 percent of its available

funding in advance. This Standaid Agreement authorizes the encumbrance of
full funds available to the applicant pursuant to the NOFA, subiect to all statutory

requirements and all applicable provisions including the NOFA, initial application

and award for advance payment, subsequeni advance payment application and

award, application and award for the full remaining fund amount and

amendment to this agreement.

The Grantee shall consult with the Department on any amendment or other
provision related to the implementation of the Program. The Department
decisions related to the administration of the Program shall be final pursuant to

Health and Safety Code section 50515.04, subdivision (g).

2. Purpose

ln accordance with the authority cited above, the Grantee has been awarded

financial assistance in the form of a grant from the Program. The Department has

agreed to make the grant for planning activities pursuant to the NOFA and this

Aireement. By enterlng into t.his Agreement and thereby accepting the aw.ard of

thi program funds, thJGrantee agrees to comply with the terms and conditions

of the NbFA, this Agreement, subsequent amendments to this Agreernent, the

Regional Early Action Planning Grant Program (REAP)

NOFA Date: October 10, 2019
Approved Date: March 30, 2020
Prep. Date: (August 20,20211



County of lnyo
21-REAP-16462

Page 2 of 3
EXHIBIT A

representations contained in the initial advance payment and subsequent full
application(s), and the requirements of the authority cited above. Based on all
representations made by the Grantee, the Department shall encumber the full
amount pursuant the NOFA and provide advance payment and subsequent
payments in accordance with Exhibit B. All terms, conditions and other relevant
provisions will be subject to amendments as a result of subsequent applications
and awards for remaining funds afier the initial application up to 25 percent of the
full amount described in Exhibit B.

3. Definitione

Terms herein shall have the same meaning as defined by the NOFA.

4. Scooe of Work

Grantee shall use the awarded funds in accordance with the approved Scope of
Work as contained in the timeline and budget and related information outlined in
the application for 25 percent advance payment and any subsequent applications
for partial or full funding. The Scope of Work may be amended in compliance
with statutory requirements subject to approval by the Department,

Monitorino

The Grantee shall maintain books, records, documents, and other
evidence that demonstrates the funding was used for the appropriate
purposes, as described in the Scope of Work, approved application,
subsequent approved applications and all other pertinent documents.
These books, records, documents and olher evidence shall be made
available for audit and inspection by the Department at any point during
the term of the agreement and subject to any amendments to this
agreement.

B. The Department may request additionalinformation, as needed, to meet
the statutory requirements of the Program and facilitate amendments to
this agreement, including but not limited to reporting or audit requirements,
progress in implementing advance payment(s), or award of the full amount
available to the Grantee.

c. The Department may monitor expenditures and activities of an applicant,
as the Department deems necessary, to ensure compliance with statutory
or Department requirernenls.

Regional Early Action Planning Grant Program (REAP)
NOFA Date: October 10, 2019
Approved Date; March 30,2020
Prep. Date: (August 20,2021!

5.

A.



E.

EXHIBIT A

D. The Department may, as it deems appropriate or necessary, request the
repaymbnt of funds from an applicant, or Pursue any other remedies
availbbte to it by law for failure to comply with statutory or Department
requirements.

E. The Departments decision to approve or deny an application or request
for funding pursuant to the Program, and its determination of the amount
of funding to be provided, shall be ftnal.

F. Monitoring provisions may be amended and are subject to additional
provisionJ in accordance with this agreement or subsequent amendments.

Department Gontract Coordlnator

County of lnyo
21-REAP-I6462

Page 3 of 3

The Contract Coordinator of this Agreement for the Department is the Housing

Policy Development Manager, or the Manager's designee. Unless otherwise
informed, any notice, report, or other communication required by this Agreement
shalt be mai6d by lirst ilass mail to the Department Gontract Coordinator at the
following address:

Department of Housing and Community Development
Housing Policy Development Division

Land Use Planning Unit
Attention: REAP Program Manager

2020 West El Camino Avenue, Suite 500
Sacramento, CA 95833

P. O. Box 952050
Sacramento, CA 94252-2050

Regional Early Action Planning Grant Program (REAP)

NOFA Date: October 10, 2019
Approved Date: March 30, 2020
Prep. Date: (August 20,2021)



1

County of Inyo
21-REAP-16462

Page 1 of4
(Rev. 5/28/2020)

EXHIBIT B

BUDGET DETAIL AND PAYIIfiENT PROVISTONS

Anpllcation for Funde

A. The Department is entering into this Agreement on the basis ol and in
reliance on facts, information, assertions and representations contained in
any application and award and any subsequent modifications or additions
thereto approved by the Department. All awarded applications for funding
and any approved modifications and additions thereto are hereby
incorporated into this Agreement.

B. The Grantee warrants that all information, facts, assertions and
representations contained in any approved application and approved
modifications and additions thereto are true, correct, and complete to the
best of the Grantee's knowledge. ln the event that any part of an
application and any approved modification and addition thereto is untrue,
incorrect, incomplete, or misleading in such a manner that would
substantially affect the Department's approval, disbursemenl, or
monitoring of the funding and the grant or activities governed by this
Agreement, the Department may declare a breach hereof and take such
action or pursue such remedies as are provided for breach hereof.

Grant and Reimbureement Llmlt

maximum totalamount encumbered to the Grantee pursuant to this
Agreement shall not exceed $682,364.00.

This r\greement authorizes an initial advance payment(s) uplo2So/o
Award for eligible activities as described in the 25 percent application.

This Agreement authorizes subsequent award amounts or advance
payment up to the total award amount as described in Section 2A, of this
Exhibit, and subject to Department approval.

The Grantee shall submit and follow a schedule for the expenditure of the
25 percent advance payment, any subsequent payment and the total
amount prior to disbursement of funds, The schedule is subject to

2

A.

B.

c.

D.

Regional Early Action Planning Grants (REAP)
NOFA Date: October 10, 2019
Approved Date: March 30,2020
Prep. Date: (August 20,2021)



3.

4.

County of lnyo
21-REAP-16462

Page 2 of4
(Rev. 5/28/2020)

EXHIBIT B

Department approval and'may be revised as the Department deems

necessary.

GmntTimellnee

A. This Agreement is effective upon approval 9V lng Department
represEn tative's si g nature on' page.one of 

-the 
fu lly executed Standard

Alreement, STD 213, (the'Effective Date").

B. All Grant funds must be expended by December 31 ,2A29 pursuant to

Health and Safety Code section 50515-04(c Xl).

c. The Grantee shall deliver to lhe Department all final invoices for

reimbursement on or before November 1,2A23, to ensure the Department

meeb the December 31, 2023 expenditure deadline. under special

circumstances, approved by the Deparftnent, the Department may provide

exception, including, but not limited to, advance payment to carry out the

terms of this agreement.

D. lt is the responsibilig of the Grantee to monitor the project and timeliness

of draws within the specified dates.

Allowable Uses of Grant FunCs

A. The Department shall not award or disburse funds unless it determines

that thegrant funds shall be expended in compliance with the terms and

provisiori's of the NOFA which includes associated forms and guidelines

and this {greement.

B. Grant funds shall only be used by the Grantee for project activities

approved by the State that involve planning activities in accordance with

the NOFA.

C. Grant funds may not be used for administrative costs of persons employed

by the Grantee for activities not directly related to eligible activities.

D. The Grantee shall use no more than 5 percent of the totalgrant amount

for costs related to administration of the project.

Regional Early Action Planning Grants (REAP)

NOFA Date: October 10, 2019
Approved Date: March 30,2020
Prep. Date: (August 20, 20211



Coung of lnyo
21-REAP-16462

Page 3 of 4
(Rev, 5/2812020)

EXHIBIT B

E. A Grantee that receives funds under this Program may use a
subcontractor and Grantee shall be accountable to the Department to
ensure subcontractor's performance, The subcontract shall provide for
compliance with all the requirements of the Program. The subcontract
shall not relieve the Grantee of its responsibilities under the program.

After the contract has been executed by the Department and all parties,
approved and eligible costs for eligible activities may be reimbursed for
the project(s) upon completion of deliverables or paid in advance in
accordance with the scope of work and subject to the terms and
conditions of this Agreement.

G Only approved and eligible costs incurred for work after October 1 , 201g,
continued past the date of execution and acceptance of the Standard
Agreement and completed during the grant term will be reimbursable.

5. Performance

6.

The Grantee will be subject to amendments to this section as a result of
future applications and awards.

Flacal Admlnletratlon

A. The Grantee will be subject to amendments to this section as a result of
subsequent applications and awards.

B. lt is mutually agreed that if the Budget Act of the curent year and/or any
subsequent years covered under this Agreement does not appropriate
sufficient funds for the program, this Agreement shall be terminated by the
State by providing Contractor written notlce of not less than thirty (30)
days prior to lhe effgotive date of the termination, In the event of
termination by the State due to lack of Budget appropriation, the State and
Contractor shall be relieved of any and all obligations under this Grant
Agreement on the effective date of termination.

C, Subject to Section 6.8. above, if funding for any fiscal year is reduced or
deleted by the Budget Act for purposes of this program, the State shall
have the sole discretion to cancel this Agreement without cause, no

Regional Early Action Planning Grants (REAP)
NOFA Date: October 10, 2019
Approved Date: March 30,2A20
Prep. Date: (August 20,2021)

F



County of lnYo
21-REAP-I6402

Page 4 of4
(Rev,5282020)

EXHIBIT B

liabllity occurring to the Stab, or amend the cunent Grant Agreement and

amount allocated to Contractor,

Regional Early Action Planning Grants (REAP)

NOFA Date: October 10, 2019
Approved Date: March 30, 2020
Prep. Date: (August 20,20211



Coun$ of Inyo
21-REAP-16462

Page 1 of9
(Rev, 5128/2020)

EXHIBIT D

REAP TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1. Reoortino

A. During the term of the standard Agreement the Grantee shall submit, upon
request of the Department, a performance report that demonstrates satisfaction
of all requirements identified in this Standard Agreement.

B. The Grantee will be subject to amendments to this section as a result of
subsequent applications and awards.

Accountlnq Records

The Grantee, its staff, contractors and subcontractors shallestablish and
maintain an accounting system and reports that properly accumulate incurred
project costs by line. The accounting system shall conform to Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles (GAAP), enable the determinetion of incurred cosb at
interim points of completion, and provide support for reimbursement payment
vouchers or invoices.

B.

2.

A.

The Grantee shall establish a separate ledger account for receipts and
expenditures of grant funds and maintain expenditure details in accordance with
the scope of wofi, project timeline and budget. separate bank accounls are not
required.

c The Grantee shall maintain documentation of its normal procurement policy and
competitive bid process (including the use of sole source purchasing), and
financial records of expenditures incuned during the course of the project in
accordance with GMP.

The Grantee agrees that the State or designated representative shall have the
right to review and to copy any records and supporting documentation pertaining
to the performance of the Standard Agreement.

Subcontractors employed by the Grantee and paid with moneys under the terms
of this standard Agreement shall be responsible for maintaining accounting
records as specified above.

D

3. Audits

A' At any time during the term of the Standard Agreement, the Department may
Regional Early Action Planning Grants (REAP)
NOFA Date: October 10, 2019
Approved Date: March 30,2020
Prep. Date: August 20,2021

E.



County of lnyo
21-REAP-16462

Page 2 of9
(Rev.5/2812020)

EXHIBIT D

perform or cause to be performed a financial audit of any a1{ all phases of the

bward. At Lhe Departmenfs requcst, the Grantee shallprovide, at its own^

expense, a financial audit prepired by a certified public accountant. The State of

California has the right to ieview project documents and conduct audits during

and over the Project life.

1) The Grantee agrees that the Department or the Department's.designee

shall have the iight to review, obtain, and copy all records and supporting

documentation pertaining to performance of this Agreement.

2) The Grantee agrees to provide the Department or the Department's

designee, with any relevant information requested'

3) The Grantee agr€es to permltthe Department or the Department's' 
designee accBis to its iremises, upoh reasonable notice, during normal

busiiess hours for the purpose of interviewing employees who mlght

reasonably have informatlon related to such records and ins-pecting and

copying such books, reoord$, accounts, and other material that may be

ret'evarit to a matter under investigation forthe purpose of determining

compliance with statutes, Program guldelines, and this Agreement.

B. tf a financial audit is required by the Department, the audit shall be performed by

an independent certified public accountant. Selection of an independent audit

firm shallbe consistent with procurement standards contained in Exhibit D,

Section 8 subsection A. of this Standard Agreement'

1) The Grantee shall notiff the Department of the auditofs name and

address immediately after the sblection has been made. The contract for

the audit shall allowaccess by the Department to the independent
auditor's working PaPers.

2) The Grantee is responsible for the completion of audits and all costs of

PreParing audits.

A) lf there are audit findings, the Grantee shall submit a detailed response

acceptable to the Department for each audit finding within 90 days from

the date of the audit finding report'

C. The Grantee agrees to maintain such records for possible audit after final

payrnent pursuant to Exhibit D, Section 3, subsection E. below, unless a longer

period of records retention is stipulated.

Regional Early Action Planning Grants (REAP)

NOFA Date: October 10, 2019
Approved Date: March 30, 2020
Prep. Date: August 20,2021



4.

County of lnyo
21-REAP-16462

Page 3 of 9
(Rev.5/28/2020)

EXHIBIT D

1) lf any litigation, clalm, negotiation, audit, monitoring, inspection or other
action has been started before the expiration of the required record
retention period, all records must be retained by the Grantee, contractors
and sub-contractors until completion of the action and resolution of all
issues which arise from it. The Grentee shall include in any contract that it
enters into in an amount exceeding 910,000.00, the Department,s right to
audlt the contractor's records and interview their employees.

The Grantee shall comply with the caveats and be aware of the penalties
for violation of fraud and for obstruction of inves$gation as set forth in
Califomia Public Contracts Code section 1011S.10.

2)

D. The determination by the Department of the eligibility of any expenditure shall be
final.

E. The Grantee shall retain all books and records relevant to this Agreement for a
minimum of (3) three years after the end of the term of this Agreement. Records
relating to any and all audits or litigation relevant to this Agreement shall be
retained for five years after the conclusion or resolution of the mafter.

Remedlee of Non.nerformancg

A. Any dispute concerning a question of fact arising under this Standard Agreement
that is not disposed of by agreement shallbe decided by the Department's
Housing Policy Development Manager, or the Manager's designee, who may
consider any written or verbal evidence submitted by the Grantee. The decisions
of the Department shall be final and not subject to further appeal pursuant to
Health and Safety Code Section 50i15.04(9).

B. Neither the pendency of a dispute nor its consideration by the Department will
excuse the Grantee from full and timely performance in accordance with the
terms of this Standard Agreement.

C. ln the event that it is determined, at the sole discretion of the Department, thal
the Grantee is not meeting the terms and conditions of the Standard Agreement,
immediately upon receiving a written notice from the Department to stop work,
the Grantee shall cease all work under the Standard Agreement. The
Department has the sole discretion to determine that the Grantee meets the
terms and conditions after a stop work order, and to deliver a written notice to the
grantee to resume work under the Slandard Agreement.

Regional Early Action Planning Grants (REAP)
NOFA Date: October 10, 2019
Approved Date: March 30,2020
Prep, Date: August 20, 2021



Gounty of lnYo
21-REAP-16462

Page 4 of 9
(Rev. 5/28/2020)

EXHIBIT D

D. Both the Grantee and the Department have the right to terminate the Standard

Agreement at any time upon'OO Uays written noticc. The notice shall specify the

r#son for early tbmination and miy permit the Grantee or thc Dc_partment to

rectiff any deffiiency(ies) prior to thi early termination date. The Grantee shall

sulnitt ariy requestio'Oocirments to the Departmentwithin 30 days of the early

termination notice'

E. A strong implementation component for the funded activity through this Program

is requiied,'including, where appropriate, agreement by Grantee an! 
1!s

subcontractors to formally adopt or complete a planning or other activity

consistent with the NOFA. The Grantee must carry out provisions to ensure the

adoption or completion of activities in accordance with the NOFA, including

activities subconiracted to localities. Grantee may be subject to repayment of the

grant should the Grantee or any of its subcontractors under this agreement fail to

idopt or complete activities set forth in its application, this Agreement or any

amendments to this Agreement.

F. The following shall each constitute a breach of thie Agreement:

1) Grantee's failure to comply with any term or condition of this Agreement.

Zl Use of, or permltting the use of, grant funds provided under this Agreement

for any ineiigible coits or for any activi$ not speoified and approved under

this Agreement,

3) Any failure to comply with the deadlines set forth in this Agreement unless

approved by the Program Manager in writing.

G, ln addition to any other remedies that may be available to the Department in law

or equity for breich of this Agreement, the Department may at its discretion,

exercise a variety of remedies, including but not limited to:

1) Revoke existing REAP award(s) to the Grantee;

Z, Require the return of unexpended REAP tunds disbursed under this

Agreement;

3) Require repayment of REAP Funds disbursed and expended under this

agreement;

4) Seek a court order for specific performance of the obligation defaulted upon,

or the appointment of a receiver to complete the obligations in accordance

Regional Early Action Planning Grants (REAP)

NOFA Date: October 10, 2019
Approved Date: March 30, 2020
Prep. Date: August 20, 2021



Coun$ of lnyo
21-REAP-16462

Page 5 of 9
(Rev. 5/28/2020)

EXHIBIT D

5.

6.

with the REAP Program requirements; and

5) other remedies available at law, by and through this agreement. All
remedies available to the Department are cumulative and not exclusive,

6) The Department may give written notice to the Grantee to cure the breach
or violation wihin a period of not less than ,15 days.

H. The Grantee may be subject to amendment of this section as a result of
subsequent applications and awards.

lndemnlllcatlon

Neither the Department nor any officer oremployee thereof is responsible for any injury,
damage or liabjlity occurring by reason of anything done or omitted to be done UV ttr!
Grantee, its officers, ernployees, agents, its iontrictors, its sub-recipients or its
subcontractors under or in connection with any work, authority or luiisdiction conferred
upon the Grantee under this Standard Agreement, lt is underitood and agreed that the
Grantee shall fully_defend, indemniff and save harmless the Departmentlnd allof the
Department's staff from all claims, suits or actions of every name, kind and description
brought forth under, lncluding, but not limited to, tortuous,'contractual, inverse
condemnation or other theories or assertions of liability occurring by reason of anything
done or omitted to be done by the Grantee, its officers, employees,-agents contra-ctors,
sub-recipients, or subcontractors under this Standard Agrebmlnt. -

Waiverc

No waiver 9l any breach of this Agreement shall be held to be a waiver of any prior or
subsequent breach, The failure of the Department to enforce at any time the'lriovisions
of this Agreement, or to require at any time, performance by the Giantee of tliese
provisions, shall in no way be construed to be a waiver of such provisions nor to affect
the validity of this Agreement or the right of the Department to enforce these provisions.

Relatlonghlo of. Partlee

It is expressly understood that this Standard Agreement is an agreement executed by
and between two independent governmentalentities and is not intended to, and shali
ryt be construed to, c1e1te the relationship of agent, servant, employee, partnership,
joint venture or association, or any other relationship whatsoever'other than that of in
independent party.

7

8. Third-Partv Contracts
Regional Early Action Planning Grants (REAP)
NOFA Date: October 10, 2019
Approved Date: March gO,2020
Prep. Date: August 20, ZOZ1



County of lnyo
21-REAP-16462

Page 6 of 9
(Rev. 5/28/2020)

EXHIBIT D

9.

A. Allstate-government funded procuremenls must be conductcd using a fair and

competitiie procurement process, The Grantee may use- its own procurement

procedures is long as thd procedures comply w-ith.a]l City/County laws, 
-rules 

and

ordinances governing procurement, and all applicable provisions of California

state law.

B. Any contract entered into as a result of this Agreement shall contain all the- 
prwisions s$pJlated in this Agreement and shall be applicable to the Grantee's

iub-recipients, contractors, and subcontractors, Copies of all agreements with

sub-recipients, contractors, and subcontractors shall be submitted to the

Department's Program manager.

C. The Department does not have a contractual relationship with the Grantee's sub-

recipients, contractors, or subcontractors, and the Grantee Shall be fully

resionsibie for monitoring and enforcement of those agreements and all work

performed thereunder.

Comollance wlth State and Federal Lawe.Rulee. Guldellnee 8nd Reoulatlons

A. The Grantee agrees to comply with all state and federal laws, rules and

regulations thai pertain to conltruction, health and safety, labor, fair employment

prictices, equal opportunity, and all other matters applicable to the grant, the
'Grantee, 

its bontriitors or'subcontractors, and any other grant activity'

B. During the performance of this Agreement, the Grantee assures that no

otherrtse qualified peson shall be excluded from participation or employment,

denied prolram benefits, or be subjected to discrimination based on race, color,

ancestry, nitlonal origin, sex, gender, gender idellity, gender expression, - _

geneticintormation, ige, Oisabttig, hanlicap, familialstatus, religion, or bgt!91.

Inder any program.or-actiuity funied by this cgntrag1.q1!eqy[9q!y Title V] of

the Givil ni'ghti Act of t96+, ihe Fair Hdusing Aot (42 USC 3601-20) and all

implementi-ng regulations, and the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 and all

implementing regulations.

C. The Grantee shallinclude the nondiscrimination and compliance provisions of

this clause in all agreements with its sub-recipients, contractors, and

subcontractors, 
"rid 

shall include a requirement in all agreements that each of

them in turn include the nondiscrimination and complianco provisions of thl6

Regional Early Action Planning Grants (REAP)

NOFA Date: October 10, 2019
Approved Date: March 30, 2020
Prep. Date: August 20, 2021



County of lnyo
21-REAP-16462

Page 7 of 9
(Rev.5/2812020)

The Grantee shall, in the course of performing project work, fully comply with the
applicable provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA of 19b0, which
prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability, as well as all applicable
regulations and guidelines issued pursuant to the ADA. (42 u.s.c. 12101 et seq.)

The Grantee shall adopt and implement affirmative processes and procedures
that provide information, outreach and promotion of opportunities in the REAp
project to encourage participation of all persons regardless of race, color,
national origin, sex, religion, familial status, or disability. This includes, but is not
limited to, a minority outreach program to ensure the inclusion, to the maximum
extent possible, of minorities and women, and entities owned by minorities and
women, as required by 24 GFR 92.351.

10. Litioation

A. lf any provision of this Agreement, or an underlying obligation, is held invalid by a
court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity, at the sole discretion of the
Department, shall not affect any other provisions of this Agreement and the
remainder of this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. Therefore, the
provisions of this Agreement are, and shall be, deemed severable,

B. The Grantee shall notify the Department immediately of any claim or action
undertaken by or against it, which affects or may affect thiJAgreement or the
Department, and shall take such action with respect to he claim or action
consistent with the terms of this Agreement and the interests of the Department.

ll. Chanqes ln Terms/Amendments

EXHIBIT D

clause in all contracts and subcontracts they enter into to perform work under
REAP

D.

A. The Grantee may be subiect to amendments to this section as a result of
subsequent applications and awards^

B. This Agreement may only be amended or modified by mutualwritten agreement
of both parties.

12. State.Owngd Data

A. Definitions

E.

Rggional Early Action Planning Grants (REAP)
NOFA Date: October 10, 2019
Approved Date: March gO,2OZ0
Prep. Date: August 20,2021



County of lnyo
21-REAP-16462

Page I of I
(Rev,5/28/2020)

EXHIBIT D

B.

1) Work;

The work to be directly or indirectly produced by the Grantee, its employecs' or

by and of the Grantee;s conkactois, subcontractor's and/or sub-recipient's

employees under this Agreement.

2) Work Product:

All deliverables created or produced frorn Work under this Agreement including,

but not limited to, allWork and Deliverables conceived or made, either solely or

jointly with others during the term of this Agreement, which-relates to the Work

bommissioned or perfoimed under this Agreement' Work Product lncludes all

deliverables, inventions, innovations, impiOvementS, or other works of authorship

Grantee and/or Grantee's contractor subcontractor and/or sub-recipient may

conceive of or develop in the course of this Agreement, whether or not they are

eligible for patent, copyright, trademark, trade secret or other legal protection'

3) lnventions:

Any ideas, methodOlOgies, designs, concept, technique, inventiOn, disCOvery'

imirovement or devel6pment regardless of patentability made solely by the

Grintee or jointly with the Grantee's contractor, subcontractor and/or sub-

recipient and/or 
-Grantee's 

contractor, subcontractor, and/or sub-recipient's

e*iloyees with one or more employees of the Departrngnt during the term gllhtt
Agieement and in perbrmance if any l/r/ork under this Agreement, provided that

eiiher tne conception or reduction to practice thereof occurs during the term of

this Agreement and in performance of Work issued under this Agreement.

Ownership of Work Product and Rights

1) Allwork Products derived by the work performed by the Grantee, its

einptoyees or by and of the Grintee's contractor's, subcontractor's and/or

sud-recipienfs employees under this Agreement, shall be owned jointly by the

Departnient, Graniee, and any of GranGe's sub-recipients ('joint orilnerg"), and

initt O" considered to be wori<s made for hire by the Grantee and the Grantee's

contractor, subcontractor and/or subrecipient for the Department for the benefit of

the joint owners. The joint owners shalljointly own all copyrights in the work

product.

2) Grantee, its employees and all of Grantee's contractor's, subcontractor's

and sub-recipienfs employees agree to perpetually assign,,and upon

creation of each Work Product automatically assign, to the joint owners,

Regional Early Action Planning Grants (REAP)

NOFA Date: October 10, 2019
Approved Date: March 30, 2020
Prep. Date: August 20,2021



County of lnyo
21-REAP-16462

Page 9 of 9
(Rev.5/2812020)

EXHIBIT O

ownership of all United States and international copyrights in each and
every Work Product, insofar as any such Work product, by operation of
law, may not be considered work made for hire by the Grantee's
contractor, subcontractor and/or subrecipient from the Department, From
time to time upon a joint owne/s request, the Grantee's contractor,
subcontractor and/or subrecipients, and/or its employees, shall confirm
such assignments by execution and delivery of such assignment, confirmations
or assignment or other written instruments as the Department may request.
Grantee hereby waives all rights relating to identification of authorship restriction
or limitation on use or subsequent modification of the Work.

3) Grantee, its employees and all Grantee's contractors, subcontractors and
sub-recipients hereby agree to assign to the Department joint ownership of all
lnventions. The Grantee, its employees and Grantee's contractor, subcontractor
and /or subrecipient shall promptly make a complete written disclosure to the
Department of each lnvention not othenrvise clearly disclosed to the Department
in the pertinent Work Product, specifically noting features or concepts that the
Grantee, its employees and/or Grantee's contractor, subcontractor and/or
subrecipient believes to be new or different,

4) Upon completion of all work under this Agreement, all intellectual property
rights, ownership and title to all reports, documents, plans, specmcations
and estimates, produced as part of this Agreement shall automatically vest
in the joint owners and no further agreement will be necessary to transfer
ownership to the joint owners.

13. Speclal Conditlone

The State reserves the right to add any special conditions to this Agreement it deems
necessary to assure lhat the policy and goals of the program are achieved, afier
consultation with the Grantee.

Regional Early Action Planning Grants (REAp)
NOFA Date: October 10, 2019
Approved Date: March 30, 2020
Prep. Date: August 20,2021



EXHIBIT 2

HELIX Envlrcnmrnttl Phnnlng, tnc.
11 Naloma Street, Suite 165
Fdsom, CA 95630
913.385.8?00
www.h.llxapl.cont

HELIX
Environmental Plannhry

September 30,2O2t

Ms. Cathreen Rlchards, Planning Dlrector
lnyo County Planning Department
158 N. Edwards Street
lndependence, CA 93526

Subject: Letter Proposal to Provlde Environmental consulting servlces in support of the
Reglonal Early Action Plannlng Grant

Dear Ms. Rlchards:

lnyo County (County) proposes to use recently allocated Regional Earty Action planning (REAP)
grant funding from the California Depaftment of Housing and Community Development (HCD)
conduct a regional Vehicle Miles Traveled (VMT) feasibility study. The purpose of the VMT
feasibility study would be to qualitatively determine baseline per capita VMT conditions across
the County using an evaluation rubric that may consider, but would not be limlted to: vacant
land availability; SD-Vtvtt elasticities (density, design, destination access, distance to transit and
diversity of housing stock); and active transportation options. The result of the feasibility study
would be VMT reduction strategies/goals aimed at promoting the State's mandates on
equitable housing solutions and environmentaljustice, reducing/mitigating greenhouse gas
emissions, and promoting housing opportunities across the socioeconomic spectrum. The
County would undertake a public outreach campaign during development of the feasibllity
study to garner community input as wellas receive guidance from the County planning
Commission and Board of Supervisors. The VMT goals and programs would help the County
better identify areas where increased housing density is most appropriate especially with
regard to transportation opportunltles, and areas that are not as well suited due to VMT
constraints. Results of the VMT feasibility study would be incorporated into the Vacant Lands
lnventory Environmental lmpact Report (ElR), as feasible.

HELIX Environmental Planning, lnc. (HELIX) and our teaming partner, T. Kear Transportation
Planning and Management, lnc. (TKIPM), will prepare the VMT feasibility study on behalf of the
County as outlined below.

SCOPE OF SERVICES

Task 1- Public Outreash and Data Collectlon

HELIX will conduct a public outreach campaign to engage County residents and decision makers
as to the benefits/constraints of VMT analysis as well as potential VMT reduction strategies.



Letter Proposalto Ms, Cathreen Richards Page 2 of 5

September 30, 2021

HEUX will coordinate with county staff as to the exact timing and location of the meetings;

TKTpM will present a brief overview of the Vnnt process, including a proposed outllne of the

vMT feasibility study. tnput will hc solicited by meeting participants for consideration during

preparation of the VMT feasiblllty study. Written and oral comments will be transcribed into a

public outreach campaign letter report for submittalto the County/HCD.

Assumptions: The two meetings will occur on consecutive nights in two locations along the

Highwiy 395 corridor (i.e., Lone Pine, lndependence, Bishop, etc.). This assumption maximizes

trrvel eitictency and logistics for the contractors. Virtual (Zoom") meetings may be substituted

for the in-person meetings at the Countty's request.

Deliverables: Public outreach campaign meeting notes regarding VMT reduction strategies

summerlzed ln letter report format.

Schedule: FalUWinter 2021.

Task 2A -VMT FeaslbllltY StudY

The regional VMT analysis will support the County's Vacant Lands lnventory ElR, intended to

,rppoit approximately4T5 addltional multlfamily housing units by 204O in compliance with the

County's assignment under California's Regional Housing Needs Assessment (RHNA)'

Travel demand models are used to estimate regional VMT and anticlpate effects from

programmatic land use plans. The County does not have its own gavel demand model;

coniequently, this study will rely on the California Statewide Travel Demand Model (CSTDM) for

VMT estimates, Analysis will include a base-year VMT estimate (either 2OL7 or 2020) and a

hortzon-year VMT estimates (20a0) with and without the land use changes anticipated by the

County's Vacant Lands lnventory ElR.

The CSTDM was developed to forecast interregional freight and passenger movements' lts

roadway networks and land use detail are relatively coarse. The County envisions adding

approximately 475 dweiling units by 20aO primarlly through approximately eight multifamily

housing developments. Rather than amending the CSTDM data to reflect the EIR assumptions,

existint model results and changes to the land use forecast will be used to estimate the Vacant

Lands Inventory impact on vMT and vMT per service population (residents plus employees).

Either a quantitative "FRATAR" process (a method of trip distrlbution) will be used to post-

process CSTDM results, or a more qualitative approach may be taken using VMT elasticities.

Exact cletails of the approach will be coordinated with caltranJ statewide Modeling Branch,

with consideration to the available budget. Land use assumptions embedded into the CSTDM

itself will not be updated, The resulting post processing procedures will be documented and

available for use in future County projects.

tlELtX
r;ir jr{jili ji,rlii"rrrii^!



letter Proposalto Ms. Cathreen Richards
September 30,2O2t

Page 3 of 5

Deliverables: Base year VMT estimate without the project, future year VMT estimate without
the Vacant [ands lnventory future year VMT estimate with the Vacant Lands lnventory, and
documented CSTDM post processing procedures.

Assumptions: "without project" vMT estimates may be based on default csrDM land use
assumptions, as necessary.

Schedule: Draft analysis within 15 weeks of authorization to proceed, final memo-report and
documentation within 4 weeks of receipt of written results.

Task 28 - Muhlfamlly Housing Stte Evaluation

Approximately eight potentialsites have been identified for multifamily housing in
unincorporated lnyo County. This task shall develop a qualitative evaluation rubric to further
prioritize each of these development opportunities. Criteria used will be distilled from the best
practices in the literature such as a subset oI "sD" vMT elasticities (e.g., density; design,
destination access; distance to transit; and diversity of housing stockl; active transportation
options; and the types ofdata that either the County's Gls systems can generate, or that can be
inferred from maps. These metrics may be as detailed as employment within 1-5 miles to
proposed housing or as simple as the relative distance to major employment opportunities
(such as County government offices or the Los Angeles Department of Water and power
offices).

Under this task, the County will support the GIS analysis. Qualitative evaluation will be used
where quantitative data are not readily available. The use of qualitative rankings for some or all
cells in the rubric may limit the potential of Task 2B work products to future evaluations.
Because input data are often challenging to estimate and subject to uncertainty in rural regions
such as lnyo Count% anticipated outputs from the rubric will be qualitative in nature such as:
more than a 15 percent reduction relative to regional average VMT per capita; a reduction
between 0-15 percent; or likely increased VMT per capita (categories consistent with Senate Bill
743 guidance from the Governo/s Office of planning and Research).

Assumptions: County to support Task 2B development with County-generated GtS data as
needed,

Deliverables: Land use project vMT rubric and base year vMT estimate, future year vMT
estimate without the Plan, future year VMT estimate with the Plan, documented CSTDM post
processing procedures.

Schedule: Draft analysis within 16 weeks of authorization to proceed, final memo-report and
documentation within 4 weeks or receipt of written results.

HEL'X
tteitrtr(i i4l rttilioa



Letter Proposalto Ms. Cathreen Richards

September 30,2021

PaEe 4 of 5

Task 3 - Presentation to County Decision Makers

HELTX and TKTPM shall participate in up to tl ro meetings, one wlth the Planning commission,

ancl the second with the Board of Supervisors. Each of these meetings are assumed to require a

separate trip to lnyo county. Teleconference participation rather than in person participation

may be an option for one or both meetings.

Deliverables: HELIX and TKTPM participation in up to two meetings, and up to two trips to lnyo

county.

Schedule: Spring 2022.

Task 4 - tnteBrate vMT Feaslblllty Study lnto vacant Lands lnventory EIR

HELIX will integrate the results of the VMT feasibility study into the Vacant Land lnventory EIR

as applicable and as project schedules for the EIR and REAP grant allow.

Deliverables: VMT feasibility study integrated and appended to the Vacant Lands lnventory EIR

Schedule: Spring 2022,

COST ESTIMATE

HELIX is pleased to submit this cost estimate not to exceed SSO,Z5Z. The estimated cost for

each task is provided below. Allwork shall be invoiced on a time-and-materials basis pursuant

to Exhibit A, Terms and conditions. Payment terms are net 30 days pursuant to the Terms and

Conditions referenced herein.

Task

Np.
1

2

3

4

TaskName
Public Outreach and Data Collection

VMT Feasibility Study

Presentation to County Declsion Makers

lnte8rate VMT Feasibility Study into EIR

TOTAL

Cost

$1+,15t
S25,025

$8,050
s13.s31

$6o,7sz

We look forward to working with you on this project. lf you have any questions concerning this

proposal, please call me at 915.365.8713.

HE,*,,r.X,,,,,,



Letter Pmposalto Ms. Cathreen Richards
September 3O,2O2L

Slncerely,

GfL*E-7,Jc-
nobin Edgerton, ntlp cgp
Prlnclpal

Enclosure: Exhlblt A (Terms and condttions) and Exhlbtt B (sdredule of Feest

Page 5 of 5

HELIX
Envlrcnnenbl PlopfilT



EXHIBIT A
TERMS AND CONDITICNS

HELIX
E fl vi t ou 

^onl 
a I P I aI $ (tU

glvin8 th€ other party thlrtv (30) davs wrltten
of termination.

The followtng Terms and Condltlons are made a part of the lstter aSreement/proposal (Agre€ment) between HELIX and.Client and

,rf"*6" aiy confllctlng Terrr 
"nO 

ConOittonr proposed by €lient, unless HELIX ag,rees to such Terms and Conditions in writinS'

ATilCtE T. SCOPE OF WOTK AI{D IIANDARD OF TEffORMANCE
H€gx wlll perform fte wo* ouirinJrn rtt. lgreem"nt and anv services approved W.cllsnt,under Ardcle 3 (the Servlces)' HEIIX wlll

strlve to perform the s.*i..,Jn'i-mennir ionii*ent wnn i'riaildvei-oi'&te inO'ltttt ordlnarlly Gx€rclred bylgpytabie memberr

;i'iil.r'-x,r'p;;l;isriiii pimirci''tJ.irh;ifi;;da(iirirarconditio*tntnrtcognpnFarerofrllint'sprolecl HE$x.makesnoothet

iipriririitifi", er.pie"id oitmpneO, nor no othe, wananty or guarantee unierihii Agreemcnt or ln any tsport, opinlon or document

provlded hereunder.

ARIICTE 2. COM?ENSAIION
Cltent agre€r to psy HEux compsnsadon for thE Ssrvlces ln accordance wlth ihe rates set forth in hhhlt B. HEux ihall lnvolce Cllent

,nonthv or ar otherwisd agreed, cllent agrees to pay neirx wrihin ttrirty (so) cayt ot the date af involc€, lf payment ls not pald when

dugthensuchsumshall bearlntereetatll4percentpermoilh;;ih;uniatO-baldnce,nottoexceedthemtximumleSal rateoflnterEst'

ARIICTE 3. CHAT{GES AND ADDIIIOT{AT WOR(
Olent may (equc$t ot HELI1 may recommend or ,equest, verbally or ln wrltlng, a change ln the icope.ln-excess. of or. lnnddltlofl to

iil iffie; (;ilaidonuf rrorrjl ei roJ" js practcai 
"nd' 

sri['ilqusit or rsc;;mencition.,HEtlx r'hail_roytl*l9.cj:-lil.t proposal

of tfre costs for ruch addltlonai wori and any adjustment to the paymant schedule ond tlnr€ lor performance. Cllsnt shall.approve 0r

dtsapprwe the proposat, tn wriiing. iiilil'H;tfittx iiididrtoiritr. entra work ln occordance wllh the Tctmt and condltlons hereln'

Notwlthstanding the foretotn& however, if client vetballv approves lhe extra wglk 3nd 
HELIX has performed the 3ame, lhen cllent

agrees to pay lfUX tt e imofnt rnd puriuant to the payment schedule as set forth in its proposal.

AtilclE 4. ulllrATloN OF llAlluw
Recogntrln8 the retattve ristr and b.n.iftr of ttt* pmiect for whl€h the seMcer are belnB Fcrformed. Cltent aStees to llmlt the liabllltY

;f Hiilx;if 
-irrrdo-ii, 

ofttroii, "iliiiiJ.i, 
i;;d-n-;ril sutionirmorc for any and all lilurles, clalmr, losse$, expenict or damaseg

ttncludlng tncldentat or conleiuerltiii Oama[ert artstns oui oi oi rn any wa,i related td lhe s€rvlc€s ot the ptolect hereunder, to

rhe lesser of (a) lftv rhousand io'1il1l-itsdixtrfir (bi ii'n i.titicoinpC,"riion lir the SeMces hereunder. such llabllltv lncluder HELII('s

neglgence, eno6 or omt$ronl,-sJi;-dllltg ilt d;acrr or li,itridi oiwarranty. Any chlm t8aintt HELIX hereunder shall be brou8ht

wlt-hli one (11yearof the comPletlon of the sen lces he,eln'

A$rcIE S.IERMNAilON
Elther party may tetminate this Agreement, either ln.whole ot ln pafl, wlthout caurg.by

noticc.tnslcl event,clientwill payHELlxforallworkperformedbyitpriortothenotlce

tn the evefit of a default, the non-defaultlng prrty shall glve the defrulung party tel l10t daVC wrltten notlce of dcfault' "Default"

tncludes Cllent'r fallure to pav HEUX sums due, includlng odditlonal work pr,iiiuani to Artkh g, the delaultlng prrty's hllure to cure the

liei*CIifrfngatUien.(ro) dayperlodthallconstttuteiilaterlalbreachbfthlsAgreementandtetmlnatlonoftheAgreoment'

ARTICIC 
'. 

TUSPENSION OT WORK
Cllent may suspend the Sewtceitn whole or ln paIL by giulng HELIX re6sonable,..wrltten notice speclfvln8 the work to be suspended'

uDonrecetDt ofnodce,nerrxiiiir'iujponatniwdrrriqu.iteJinactientshilt payforall seruicesthmughthedateof suspenslon

and any coits lncurred by HELIX ln suspendlng the wo*'

Thereafter, Client may notify HELTX ot its intent to recommence the suspended Sewlces_, HEIIX will promptly 0rovide Cllent with any

"J;rtt"U 
.orts and ,ineAu6 anJ, upon Client approval, HtLIX rhall recommence the Services previously suspended'

ARIICTE 7. PROPRIETARY INTORMAIION
;ilt;(-ild not to UirJor" to rnv ltrtJp*r*n, nor-u5e fo, the benefft of anyone other than client, anv data, tecords, financial

il6;;;ilft;;ihar conndeitrii''o;;;.Fi,ilry i^d;ation, marked as suih in wltlns, arlslna -out.of or related to the

oertormance of the servree5 
'ip;ft.i;il -fiidtr.troni. 

Cttini simllarly .gr"et not to dlrclose to any tnird psrson, nor use for the

benefit of anyone, Proprletary lnformatlon ot HELIK

ARllctE 6. CoMPUANCE UlrltH tAws
HELTX shall comply wlth and observe applicable federal, state and local laws, ordlnance:, rules, and regulations having jurisdiction over

HELIX or the periormance of the Services in €ffect during th€ term of this Agreement.

ARilCft ?. roncE r AJEunE
tii.rt *rff gr"ri otenrtons of ttme and tncrease the compensatlon to HEIIX to:he extent that Hillft^P:tf:-tA{.:,hereof ls delayed

due to an unrontrollable f"r.". if," i"rr 'uncontroflable force" rhall mean any cause beyond the control 9t Il$ maklnS.lt

rrirritriiLru r u,iJ6r" to p.rrorm su*r lurnstron, rnctuotng rui not ltmited to aaturit otostropies, reitraht bv court arder or publlc

duthorl1yendac{onornonactftobvjirr.iifiiti-lo- otiarnitrnnece3saryauthorlretionsorapprovalsfrom,anySovernmentalo8€ncy
or aurhorlty whtch, by ererclsa Ji d-u'd illi*nii, hiirx f ri oufo noireisinrrty ttauc been exbeaed to obtaln or (bl has been unable

ro overcome. HEsx w1t notrt 
-Cniii"i,iril;l,i;i;il ';i i"v- rrirt' iltrv ;1, arrJtitpated d'elay, and olent wlll.extend tho date ol

ii,riorii.,h-i'. idi Jp.troo eqrii to iit" ir."'tost ovi6eson otitreJetav an'd *lll make in equltabl; adlustment to lhe compensatlon ln

Article 2.

Page 1 of 2



HEL.X
E q vi o nilt e illa I F la fr ili t 1t )

AR'ICI.E IO. INSURANCE
HELlx nrlntalne the followlng tnsurance; (a) workerr' compenradon lnrurance - st6tuto.y llmlts; (hl comprohenrlve Automoblle
lnsunnse - cornbrned bo.dIy...rnfury and property dainage nmtt ot one mituJn-,iottai'i-'tiilorij,rfibl'-eaii-o..urr.n.";
(!l- $grreqenslve General uablllty. lruurance - iomdhed boitty/pirronat rnftrrv ana proeerti aainais rrilrl ,ir oni'miltion dollars($1,0000001; (dl protusstonat q*1irV g conrr€ctors ponutron ii:iir uaLiltf i rrlnrt'bio"i rnirlroi-aJirjri Ai,ooij,oooiniit
9cclnencei lel Excess Umbrella tlablllty - llmit of two. millton d;lbrs ($i,oOqoool each occurrence. upon iiiotii requ$t,
HELIX wlll furnlsh evldence that such lnsirrances are in effect. lf addlttonal ibv'ens'e oi' lncreased ltmt* or riiiiilty rc UestreO, Creni
maymakesuchrequestprlortothestartofwork. HEL|Xwlll attempttoobtalnther&uesteOcoveiiieor timriiairllLfi"niag,eesto
pay for any addltional costs of insurance whhln ten (10! days ofthe 'date 

of invoice.

ARtlClE I l. AVAllAlllllY Ot |AND, DAIA AltlD DlFf ERING SIIE CONDIIIONS (for contracts involvtng fletd or constructton
services)
client shall furnish the site or obtain acgqsr to any site not owned by client, client shall notify HELIX of any encumbrances orrestrlctions speciffcally_related to use of the slte ryith whldr HELIX muit comply ln performing the Services, Client will obtain in atimely manner and pay fur any fees or charges assodated with slte access oritie eicumunnrts. Client shall furnish HEUX wlth r
currentlegaldescrlptlonofthelandsuponwhich theseruicecrretobeperformedandciient'stnteretl$r"i"injsnei"isaryforgivins
notlce oforflllng a mechanlc's llen a3alnstsuch lands.

HEllx,may rely upon the occuracl.of the data contllned ln ReporBand Drawlngr furnlshed to lt by OlEnt or Cllent'c engnoec
Flpf_1.:n! 9ltwlngs. ara deflned as (el reportr of erploratlonr and tests ot su-uiu*ae .-irtioni'oior io,rtfiuiui-to tne sto
mar-.nave been used by the englneer ln documents provlded t9 HFLIX; and {b} drawlngs of physlcal condltloniln or r€latlngto
exlrtlnSsurhc€or5ubsurfaceitructuresator 

-contlguiustotheslte(rnoirotnrrln'oerirouiuraciirtieiiitaiCrL"iii"ioient!engii'eerhas used ln proparlngdocuments provtded to HEllX, -

ll.IM!:lB* that any subsurface or phyCcal condithns at or contiguous to the site that are uncowred or revealed either (a) is of
tuch a nature as to establish that data on which HELIX is entltled to rely as provtded above ls materlaily lnaccurate; or 1b; is of
:1..L1.9.J.!t:,31to req.uk€ a change ln lhe contrscq or (c) dlffers manirifrtiom $'ii rhown or tntilotei ln donrmene prdvraeo

19 lltll ry cllent or others; or (d) ls of an unurual nature and dlflers materlaty from condluons ordlnarlly encountcreO' n wori
or the dlatocter provlded for ln.lhls consac!- then HEIIX shall prompdy, after becomtng awere thereof and before lurther dtsturblng
$:::!:{ry_g ph$lcal 

:Sndlllonr or geriormtng any_work in corine'etd rttilri,rh'teicept rn ine eGnt oran eme-rgency); ilrifr;
claenl or ltt-ongln€€r ln rwltin8 about such condltlons. Thereafter, Cllent or Cllent's englneer' wlll lnvestlgatc the ondlttool. f rni
existenceofthedlfferingslteconditlonscausesanincreaselnHEui'scostoforiimereqiirealorperformaice otine"rorl,xeux'ottt
receive an equitable adlustment to the contract price and schedule.

HELIX will not be responsible for any hazardous envlronmental conditions uncovered or revealed at the slte. lf such conditionr are
encountered, HEIIX shall immedlately stop all wo.rk and notify Client o. Clientt engineer. HELtx shali noi Ue ieqJli.O to resum"
work ln connectlon wlth such condlilons until Oient has obialned any required plrmits and advfea xrux in'writin! of suctt
condltions and any affected area ls or has been rendered safe for the r'esumption bf work; or has specifled any rpeclal iondigons
under whlch such work may be resumed safely; and HELIX shall recelrre an adluitment to the contract schedule and prlce accordingly,

ARTICI.E 12. GOVERNING I,AW AND ATIIIRATIOI{
Thl$ ASteement sholl be governed.by, rnd construed ln accordance wlth, the laws of lhe State of Callfornla, Any ontroversy or rlilm
fl:!q9rJ9f_ or relatlng !o thF Agrce.qent rhall be settled by 6tndng arUnntron iamrntst€red W ind pursuarit to the(ommerdal Rules of lhe Amerlcan A.bltttlon Aslo€latlon then ln effect. Any ruch procaedlngs shall iake plice ln San Dlegq
,!,Lltllr-'-!llll?S!onqproceedlng.hereund€r,the prevatttnetartyshatite€ni{ilediirecoverittorneysti".intrnir".s,e*p*rr
wttne5t tees and other costs of arbltraflon or suit.

ARTICIE 13. I'IOIICES
Any-notice from one party to another shall be in wrltin8 and delivered personally, by facsimile or by Unlted States mall, registered or
certified' return - recelpt requested, postage fully p,e-paid, to the addresses ai sei fonh in the AEreement to the atienlion of the
signatory of thls ABreement.

nnynotlce shall be deemed dellvered upon personal seMce or, lf mailed, on the deliverydete or attempted delivery date shown
on the return receipt. lf any party changes its address, such party shall notify the other party as provided l; thls article.

AnilcrE ltt. MlscElrAilEous
l'.1 SucceslotlondArrlgnr: ThlsAgreementisbindinguponandshallinuretothebenelitofthepartlesandthelrrespecflve
successor9in' interes! asslSns and trailsferees, Neither party can assign this Agreement wtthout the prlor written consent ofthe other
party.

l!.2- Counlerpodr: This ASreement may be signed ln two or more counterparts, each of which shall constitute an orlglnal, but
all of which shall be one rn the same document.

With the Agreement, these Terms and Conditions and any attached Exhibits constltute the complete and €ntlre contract between
the-partles and supersedes any previous communications,iepresentationr or agreement, whethei oral or written, with respect to the
subject matter hereof,

Page2ol2



EXTIIBIT B

SCHEDULE OF FEES
HEL.X

Envkonmsnlal Ptannlnt

coilsurIlNG sElvlcEt
Conrulilng servlces performed by HEUX typically lnclude, but are not nec€srarlly llmlted to, offlce, fleld, meetlngt, heatlngs and travel time'

Consuhing servlces for erpert wliness review, dlposttton, and/ortestlmony wlli be provlded at one and onehalftlmes our proftsslonal

rat€s.

DtnEcI cosls
certain iden$flable dlrect co3t5 wlll be charged to the p.oject at cost plus ten percent. Examples of dlrect costs include subconsultank,

vehicle or equlpment r€ntals, alrplane and tiarn fares, patkln& per dlem and lurlglrrp rrrlleagq communlcrtlonr, tcproductioni and suppllee'

A 4-wheel dilve premlum wilt be charg€d at S25 per project day. There wlll be addltlonal chargcs tor plottlng, color prlntln& aerlal

photographs and GPS services.

PAYTIENT
lnvolces wlll be submltted monthly, Payment on invoices ls dua wlthln thitty days ol recelpt, ll payment is not paid when due, then ruch sum

ihell bear interest at 1 ,4 

',6 

per month on the unpald balance, not to exc€ed the maxlmum legal rate ol lnterest'

rRoF[33|O[At RATES

Current hourly rates for consulting servlees:

PrinciPal $225-250

Prlnclpal Acoustlclan $18(}205

Prlncipel Eiologlst 5190'225

Princlpal LendscapeArchltect 9160-190

Ptinclpal Permlilng Speclallst 5170'220

PrinciPal Planner $20G235

Prlnclpal RegulatorySpeclallst 5190-225

Senlot Prolect ManagerFlll $f50-2m

Senlor Alr quallv Spectallst 5155-180

Senlor EnvlronmentolsPechliit S130-170

senlor Flsherlessclentlrt $200-230

senlor Nolse/Alt QualltY specialitt S15c180

Nolse/Alr Qualltv Speclallst S115-145

Envlronmental Specialtst l-lll 585-125

EnvlronmentalCompllance Analyst S70

Envlronmental compllance Specialist $75'125

ProJect Manager l'lll $12G'175

Asslstant Plolect Manager Slm'120

ArchaeologyFleldoirector 5110

staff tuchaeologlst $g+f fs
Senior Archaeologist 512$170

Archltectural Hlstorian $100-130

Environm€rtal Planner l'tll S95-120

EnvironmentalAnalYst $65-75

landscaPe Archltect $u0-125

Senior landtctPeA]chitect $13G160

LandscaPe Planner l-lll $gs'rrs

S., Scisnrisr 913G165

Biologlrt l-V 585'130

Asristad Biologist 560

SeniorGls5Peclalist 5125'165

GlSSPecialistl-lll 575'120

Graphict 5115

Technical Edltor $9c100

Operatlons Manager 5105'120

Word processor l-lll 555-85

Clerical $60-75

Rotes drc subject to chonge on a yeorly bosls



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

February 7, 2023   Reference ID:  
2023-3416  

 

Request to Reserve Portuguese Joe Campground 
Public Works - Parks & Recreation 

 ACTION REQUIRED 
   

ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Teresa Elliott, Office Technician Michael Errante, Public Works Director 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Request Board approve the request from Mr. Allan Johnson to reserve all campsites at Portuguese 
Campground, October 5 through October 8, 2023.   
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
The Parks and Recreation department has received a request from Mr. Allan Johnson to reserve the 
entire Portuguese Joe Campground from October 5 through October 8, 2023.  These dates coincide with 
the Lone Pine Film Festival.  Mr. Johnson and his associates have attended the festival for several years 
and traditionally have camped at the Portuguese Joe Campground.  In order to assure that his entire 
group has a place to stay, he is requesting to reserve the entire campground.  Mr. Johnson has reserved 
the entire campground in the past without issue. 
 
While reserving the entire campground does not happen regularly, it is now addressed in County Code 
12.18.030 which requires approval by your Board.  In addition, Mr. Johnson will be required to pay the 
appropriate fees. 
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding 
Source 

General Fund  Budget Unit 076926 

Budgeted? N/A Object Code 4789 
Recurrence   
Current Fiscal Year Impact 
 
Future Fiscal Year Impacts 
2023-2024 
Additional Information 
 
 
ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

Your Board is under no obligation to grant Mr. Johnson's request to reserve the entire Portuguese Joe 
Campground.  If the request is not granted, Mr. Johnson is free to use the conventional reservation 
system. 
  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
None. 
  
ATTACHMENTS:  
  
APPROVALS: 
Teresa Elliott Created/Initiated - 1/11/2023 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 1/12/2023 
Teresa Elliott Approved - 1/12/2023 
Breanne Nelums Approved - 1/12/2023 
John Vallejo Approved - 1/12/2023 
Michael Errante Final Approval - 1/12/2023 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

February 7, 2023   Reference ID:  
2023-3446  

 

Request to Reserve Tinnemaha Campground 
Public Works - Parks & Recreation 

 ACTION REQUIRED 
   

ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Teresa Elliott, Office Technician Michael Errante, Public Works Director 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Request Board approve the request from the Moontribe Collective to reserve all campsites at Tinnemaha 
Creek Campground, June 1 through June 5, 2023. 
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
The Parks and Recreation department has received a request from the Moontribe Collective to reserve 
the entire Tinnemaha Creek Campground from June 1 through June 5, 2023.  The Moontribe Collective 
has camped at the Tinnemaha Campground in the past for many years.   According to their 
website,  "Moontribe is a community of friends and family who gather in the desert to dance beneath the 
full moon".  This June is their 30-year anniversary celebration. 
 
While reserving the entire campground does not happen regularly, it is now addressed in County Code 
12.18.030 which requires approval by your Board.  In addition, the Moontribe will be required to pay the 
appropriate fees.  Moontribe is also obtaining extra chemical toilets and an extra dumpster for their 
event, at their expense. 
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding 
Source 

General Fund  Budget Unit 076923 

Budgeted? Revenue Object Code 4786 
Recurrence One  
Current Fiscal Year Impact 
2022-2023 
Future Fiscal Year Impacts 
 
Additional Information 
 
 
ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

Your Board is under no obligation to grant the Moontribe Collective's request to reserve the entire 
Tinnemaha Campground.  If the request is not granted, Moontribe Collective is free to use the 
conventional reservation system. 
  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
None. 
  
ATTACHMENTS:  
  
APPROVALS: 
Teresa Elliott Created/Initiated - 1/13/2023 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 1/13/2023 
Teresa Elliott Approved - 1/17/2023 
Breanne Nelums Approved - 1/18/2023 
John Vallejo Approved - 1/18/2023 
Michael Errante Final Approval - 1/18/2023 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

February 7, 2023   Reference ID:  
2023-3451  

 

Road Closure for Frontier California Encroachment 
Permit E23-05 

Public Works 
 ACTION REQUIRED 

   
ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Travis Dean, Engineering Assistant Michael Errante, Public Works Director 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Request Board approve the closure of "C" Street, between Begole and East Locust streets in Lone Pine, 
between the hours of 8:30 a.m. and 4:00 p.m. on February 21-22, 2023 for the purpose of Frontier 
California installation of +/- 329 linear feet of aerial cable on existing aerial leads. 
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
Frontier California has submitted an encroachment permit application requesting the closure of "C" 
Street, between E. Begole Street and E. Locust Street in Lone Pine, Tuesday and Wednesday, February 
21st and 22nd, 2023, between the hours of 8:30 a.m. and 4:00 p.m. for the purpose of accessing 3 
existing poles for the installation of +/- 329 linear feet of new aerial cable  to provide service to property 
located at 400 N. Main Street in Lone Pine. 
 
To mitigate any potential impact,the Road Department will include provisions in the encroachment 
permit, requiring the permitee give written notice to impacted owners, emergency personnel, and school 
districts ten (10) days in advance of the road closure, as there is no alternative route around this project. 
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding 
Source 

N/A Budget Unit  

Budgeted? N/A Object Code  
Recurrence N/A  
Current Fiscal Year Impact 
 
Future Fiscal Year Impacts 
 
Additional Information 
 
 
ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

Your Board could choose not to approve the closing of this road for this encroachment permit. This is not 
recommended, as Frontier California is attempting to provide service to 400 N. Main Street in Lone Pine 
  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
None. 
  
ATTACHMENTS:  
  
APPROVALS: 
Travis Dean Created/Initiated - 1/17/2023 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 1/17/2023 
Travis Dean Approved - 1/17/2023 
John Vallejo Approved - 1/31/2023 
Shannon Platt Approved - 1/31/2023 
Michael Errante Final Approval - 1/31/2023 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

February 7, 2023   Reference ID:  
2023-3452  

 

Road Closure for T&T Truck and Crane Service 
Encroachment Permit E22-54 

Public Works 
 ACTION REQUIRED 

   
ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Travis Dean, Engineering Assistant Michael Errante, Public Works Director 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Request Board approve the closure of Highland Drive in Bishop, between the hours of 8:30 a.m and 4:00 
p.m on Wednesday, February 22, 2023, for the purpose of Southern California Edison's use of a crane to 
replace utility poles. 
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
T&T Truck and Crane Service, in conjunction with Southern California Edison (SCE), has submitted an 
encroachment permit application requesting the closure of Highland Drive in Bishop, Wednesday 
February 22, 2023, between the hours of 8:30 a.m. and 4:00 p.m. for the purpose of Southern California 
Edison's use of a crane to replace utility poles at 2670, and 2810 Highland Drive in Bishop. 
 
SCE only has access to these utility poles via the use of a crane. The crane needed for the replacement 
of the utility poles is much larger than typically used. The staging/operation of the crane will take the 
majority of the roadway, and will not allow for an open traveling lane for vehicles. There is an anticipated 
impact to the public who live on Highland Drive. To mitigate the impact, the Road Department will include 
provisions in the encroachment permit, requesting the permitee give written notice to impacted 
homeowners ten days in advance of the road closure, as there is no alternative route around this 
project.   
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding 
Source 

N/A Budget Unit  

Budgeted? N/A Object Code  
Recurrence N/A  
Current Fiscal Year Impact 
 
Future Fiscal Year Impacts 
 
Additional Information 

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

 
 
ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
Your Board could choose not to approve the closing of this road for this encroachment permit. This is not 
recommended, as Southern California Edison is updating their electrical infrastructure to better serve the 
community of Bishop, and closure of the roadway will greatly increase safety for all working on this 
project. 
  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
None. 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Encroachment Permit Application 
2. Work Order Map TD1812242 
3. Updated Traffic Control Plan for Highland Drive 
  
APPROVALS: 
Travis Dean Created/Initiated - 1/17/2023 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 1/18/2023 
Travis Dean Approved - 1/19/2023 
Shannon Platt Approved - 1/23/2023 
Grace Chuchla Approved - 1/23/2023 
Michael Errante Final Approval - 1/23/2023 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



S:\Roads\PERMITS\Encroachment Permits\Encroachment Permit Application_March 2022.doc

       INYO COUNTY ROAD DEPARTMENT 
 

                                          INDEPENDENCE, CA 93526 
                                               PHONE:  (760) 878-0201 

                                                                              FAX:  (760) 878-2001 
 

APPLICATION FOR AN ENCROACHMENT PERMIT 
TO PERFORM WORK IN THE RIGHT-OF-WAY OF INYO COUNTY ROADS 

Minimum Permit fee of $50.00 is required with all applications. Additional Fees will be calculated for 
each permit, and payable before the permit is issued. 

Please answer all questions below. Attach additional sheets if necessary 
 
 
_____________________________  ___________________________ 
Applicant/Permittee    Date 
 

_________________________  _______________________ 
Address      Contact Person 
 
_____________________________  ___________________________ 

Phone 
 

_________________________  ___________________________ 
City/State/Zip Code E-Mail 
 
DESCRIBE WORK: 
 
_________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
_________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
_________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
LOCATION OF WORK: 
 
_________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
_________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
_________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
ASSESSORS PARCEL NUMBER OF ADJACENT PROPERTY: ___________________________ 
 
DATES WHEN WORK IS ANTICIPATED: ____________________________________________ 
 
ATTACH PLANS OR DRAWING OF PROPOSED ENCROACHMENT WORK 
 
APPLICANT AGREES TO DO THE WORK IN ACCORDANCE WITH INYO COUNTY RULES 
AND REGULATIONS AND SUBJECT TO INYO COUNTY INSPECTION AND APPROVAL. 

COUNTY 
OF 

INYO



S:\Roads\PERMITS\Encroachment Permits\Encroachment Permit Application_March 2022.doc

Page 2 
Encroachment Permit Application 

 
PERMIT NUMBER: ______________ 

 
 
Permittee shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless County of Inyo, its agents, officers, and employees 
from and against all claims, damages, losses, judgments, liabilities, expenses, and other costs, including 

arising out of, resulting from, or in connection with, the performance 
ts, officers, or employees. 

defend, indemnify, and hold the County, its agents, officers, and employees harmless applies to any 
actual or alleged personal injury, death, or damage or destruction to tangible or intangible property, 

s obligation under this paragraph extends to any claim, damage, loss, 
liability, expense, or other costs which is caused in whole or in part by any act or omission of the 
Permittee, its agents, employees, supplier, or any one directly or indirectly employed by any of them, or 
anyone for whose acts or omissions any of them may be liable. 
 

 defend, indemnify, and hold the County, its agents, officers, and employees 
harmless under the provisions of this paragraph is not limited to, or restricted by, any requirement in this 
Agreement for Permittee to procure and maintain a policy of insurance. 
 
To the extend permitted by law, County shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless Permittee, its agents, 
officers, and employees from and against all claims, damages, losses, judgments, liabilities, expenses, 
and other costs, from, the active negligence, or wrongful acts of the County, its officers, or employees. 
 
Special Conditions: ___________________________________________________________________ 
 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
 

INYO COUNTY PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 
 

 
RE: ________________________________ DATE: _________________ 

 
 
APPROVED BY: __________________________________________ DATE: _________________ 
 

E22-54



S:\Roads\PERMITS\Encroachment Permits\Encroachment Permit Application_March 2022.doc

 
INYO COUNTY ROAD DEPARTMENT 

PERMIT FEES 
 
 

 
Trenching across street: 

0-50 Feet    Minimum fee 

51-100 Feet Minimum fee plus $1.00 per foot of length greater than 50 
feet. 
 

 101 + Feet $100.00 plus $0.30 per foot of length greater than 100 feet. 
 
Trenching parallel to centerline of street and boring: 
 

 0-100 Feet    Minimum fee. 
 

 101-1500 Feet Minimum fee plus $0.30 per foot of length greater than 100 
feet. 
 

 1501 + Feet $200.00 plus $0.10 per foot of length greater than 1500 
feet. 

 
Split trenching with cable placement: 
 

 All distances    Minimum Fee plus $0.05 per foot 
 
 
Curb and Gutter:    Minimum Fee 
 
Tree Removal on County Right-of-Way 
 
Removal by licensed contractor only:  $5.00 

 



UNDERWOOD 12kV %

MT. TOM SUB

NOTIFICATION #

408091078

08/21/21

HIGH FIRE AREA

NO

2690
HIGHLAND DR·

·
·

Contact USA

Dial 811 or 800-422-4133

UNDERGROUND SERVICE ALERT

www.digalert.org/contact

AutoCAD SHX Text
3175CIT 40 1947 CL-5 1/37/12000-120/240

AutoCAD SHX Text_1
3177CIT 40 1947 CL-5

AutoCAD SHX Text_2
S BARLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text_3
LN

AutoCAD SHX Text_4
 HIGHLAND DR

AutoCAD SHX Text_5
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_6
RM:

AutoCAD SHX Text_7
 3176CIT

AutoCAD SHX Text_8
POLE

AutoCAD SHX Text_9
40'

AutoCAD SHX Text_10
CLASS 5

AutoCAD SHX Text_11
RM:  1 - POLE 40' CLASS 5 WOOD FULL TREAT RM:  3 - XA SNGL VB 10' STEEL PINS RM:  12 - INS GLASS/POLY 35KV & LESS RM:  2 - SEC ROLLER (166-CLEVIS & SPOOL) RM:  600' - CD #2 AL 1/C WR 

AutoCAD SHX Text_12
TD1812242

AutoCAD SHX Text_13
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_14
IN:

AutoCAD SHX Text_15
 4951876E

AutoCAD SHX Text_16
POLE

AutoCAD SHX Text_17
45'

AutoCAD SHX Text_18
CLASS H1

AutoCAD SHX Text_19
IN:  1 - POLE 45' CL H1 WD FT /W PROT BARR WF IN:  1 - MISC AVIAN HOOD FOR HENDRIX INSUL #4-653 IN:  1 - XA SNGL TAN HD COMP 10' W/BKT IN:  2 - SEC ROLLER (166-CLEVIS & SPOOL) IN:  200' - CD 1/0 STR AL TRIPLEX W/ACSR NEUTRAL IN:  3 - INS 28KV POLY POST VERT CLMP TOP LNG STD 

AutoCAD SHX Text_20
TD1812242

AutoCAD SHX Text_21
PRI 38'

AutoCAD SHX Text_22
SEC 28'

AutoCAD SHX Text_23
TV 22'

AutoCAD SHX Text_24
FTR 19.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text_25
45' H1 WOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text_26
4951876E N 37 21.167 W118 25.608

AutoCAD SHX Text_27
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_28
POLE DETAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text_29
EX

AutoCAD SHX Text_30
NEW

AutoCAD SHX Text_31
2'

AutoCAD SHX Text_32
EX: 200' 3-#4A 12 KV

AutoCAD SHX Text_33
EX: 200' 1/0AT 120V (TD1818258)

AutoCAD SHX Text_34
EX: 200' 3-#4A 12 KV

AutoCAD SHX Text_35
RM: 200' 3-#2WP

AutoCAD SHX Text_36
IN: 200' 1/0AT 

AutoCAD SHX Text_37
2690 HIGHLAND DR

AutoCAD SHX Text_38
SUNSET DR

AutoCAD SHX Text_39
BARLOW LN

AutoCAD SHX Text_40
4951876E

AutoCAD SHX Text_41
CREW/PSPEC NOTES: NO TRUCK ACCESS CRANE REQUIRED. CRANE PERMIT REQUIRED  COST PLUS TO DIG POLE HOLE AND SET SONO TUB

AutoCAD SHX Text_42
FILE NAME:1367317_0.01.DWG SAVE DATE:4/6/2021 2:08 PM SAVED BY:PALACIJ1367317_0.01.DWG SAVE DATE:4/6/2021 2:08 PM SAVED BY:PALACIJ SAVE DATE:4/6/2021 2:08 PM SAVED BY:PALACIJ4/6/2021 2:08 PM SAVED BY:PALACIJ SAVED BY:PALACIJPALACIJ

AutoCAD SHX Text_43
Southern California Edison Company

AutoCAD SHX Text_44
APPROVED BY

AutoCAD SHX Text_45
TYPE

AutoCAD SHX Text_46
DRAWN BY

AutoCAD SHX Text_47
CHECKED BY

AutoCAD SHX Text_48
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_49
PAX #

AutoCAD SHX Text_50
DISTRICT

AutoCAD SHX Text_51
PHONE

AutoCAD SHX Text_52
SHEET

AutoCAD SHX Text_53
J.P.A. NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text_54
PROPOSED CONSTRUCTION (LOCATION)

AutoCAD SHX Text_55
INVENTORY MAP

AutoCAD SHX Text_56
ASSOC DESGN

AutoCAD SHX Text_57
DESIGN\DRWG NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text_58
PROJECT NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text_59
PLANNER

AutoCAD SHX Text_60
GPS

AutoCAD SHX Text_61
SERVICE REQUEST

AutoCAD SHX Text_62
PROJ. MGR.

AutoCAD SHX Text_63
PHONE

AutoCAD SHX Text_64
PRODUCT-2

AutoCAD SHX Text_65
PRODUCT-3

AutoCAD SHX Text_66
CIRCUIT / VOLTAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text_67
SUB / PG NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text_68
PRODUCT-1

AutoCAD SHX Text_69
ASSOC DESGN

AutoCAD SHX Text_70
ASSOC DESGN

AutoCAD SHX Text_71
CIRCUIT CODE

AutoCAD SHX Text_72
MSR NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text_73
DESIGNER

AutoCAD SHX Text_74
1367317_0.01_0.010.01

AutoCAD SHX Text_75
OF

AutoCAD SHX Text_76
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_77
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_78
85 - BISHOP

AutoCAD SHX Text_79
RAFFERTY, TIM

AutoCAD SHX Text_80
760-920-5025

AutoCAD SHX Text_81
RAFFERTY, TIM

AutoCAD SHX Text_82
760-920-5025

AutoCAD SHX Text_83
PALACIO, JESSICA

AutoCAD SHX Text_84
2119986

AutoCAD SHX Text_85
3015859

AutoCAD SHX Text_86
N/A

AutoCAD SHX Text_87
1812242-INFRASTRUCTURE REPLACEMENT-DET POLE REPLACEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_88
UNDERWOOD 12kV - D2

AutoCAD SHX Text_89
MT. TOM SUB

AutoCAD SHX Text_90
18408

AutoCAD SHX Text_91
LB-7334-B

AutoCAD SHX Text_92
E6085-411532025

AutoCAD SHX Text_93
3176CIT - DET POLE REPLACEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_94
P/P S/O HIGHLAND DRIVE, W/O BARLOW LN

AutoCAD SHX Text_95
BISHOP CA 93514

AutoCAD SHX Text_96
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_97
4/5/21

AutoCAD SHX Text_98
N. MANNING

AutoCAD SHX Text_99
T. RAFFERTY

AutoCAD SHX Text_100
J. PALACIO

AutoCAD SHX Text_101
FINAL DESIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text_102
APPROVED FOR CONSTRUCTION

AutoCAD SHX Text_103
Two Working Days Before You Dig

AutoCAD SHX Text_104
For Underground Locating

AutoCAD SHX Text_105
D16: Rev. 05/28/20

AutoCAD SHX Text_106
PWRD 88 REQUIRED

AutoCAD SHX Text_107
EDISON EASEMENT REQUIRED

AutoCAD SHX Text_108
PERMIT REQUIRED

AutoCAD SHX Text_109
TRAFFIC CONTROL REQUIRED

AutoCAD SHX Text_110
OUTAGE REQUIRED

AutoCAD SHX Text_111
PROJECT REQUIREMENTS (Y/N)

AutoCAD SHX Text_112
CONVEYANCE LETTER REQ'D

AutoCAD SHX Text_113
PED. TRAFFIC CONTROL REQ'D

AutoCAD SHX Text_114
PERMIT TYPE:

AutoCAD SHX Text_115
D124: Rev. 02/08/18

AutoCAD SHX Text_116
OUTAGE DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text_117
TIME:

AutoCAD SHX Text_118
ENVIRONMENTAL CLEARANCE REQ'D

AutoCAD SHX Text_119
CSD 140 (TLM) REQ'D

AutoCAD SHX Text_120
UG CIVIL ONLY WORK ORDER

AutoCAD SHX Text_121
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_122
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text_123
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_124
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text_125
CRANE SUB TO PULL

AutoCAD SHX Text_126
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text_127
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text_128
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_129
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_130
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text_131
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_132
SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA

AutoCAD SHX Text_133
An                     Company

AutoCAD SHX Text_134
EDISON INTERNATIONAL

AutoCAD SHX Text_135
EDISON

AutoCAD SHX Text_136
NOT TO SCALE



STOP

25

L
IM

IT
S

P
E

E
D

LIMIT
SPEED

35

L
IM

IT
S

P
E

E
D

L
IM

IT
S

P
E

E
D

P
re

p
ar

e
d

 B
y:

C
o

nt
ra

ct
o

r:
S

ta
m

p
:

M
A

R
K

 D
E

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N
R

E
V

IS
IO

N
S

B
Y

D
A

T
E

C
IT

Y
 O

F
 B

IS
H

O
P

T
ra

ff
ic

 C
o

n
tr

o
l 

P
la

n

H
IG

H
L

A
N

D
 D

R
 &

 S
 B

A
R

L
O

W
 L

N

R
E

F
 N

U
M

B
E

R
/S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
E

JO
B

 N
o

.

S
H

E
E

T
 N

o
.

of
 1

Author: JESSIE G.Date: 11/21/2022

A
LC

O
A

T
R

A
FF

IC
 C

O
N

T
R

O
L

C
A

LL
 T

W
O

 F
U

LL
W

O
R

K
IN

G
 D

A
Y

S
B

E
F

O
R

E
 Y

O
U

 D
IG

T
O

LL
 F

R
E

E
1-

80
0-

42
2-

4
13

3

A
 P

U
B

LI
C

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

 B
Y

 U
N

D
E

R
G

R
O

U
N

D
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
 A

LE
R

T

S
C

O
P

E
 O

F
 W

O
R

K
:

U
T

IL
IT

Y
 P

O
L

E
 R

E
P

L
A

C
E

M
E

N
T

S
 W

/ 
C

R
A

N
E

Checked by: MICHAEL M.

W
O

R
K

 D
U

R
A

T
IO

N
:

W
O

R
K

 H
O

U
R

S
:

T
D

1
81

8
2

7
3

-4
9

5
1

8
7

7E
/

T
D

1
81

2
2

4
2

-4
9

5
1

8
7

6E
/

T
D

1
80

5
1

8
5

-1
6

1
8

1
2

6E 1

O
H

E
R

O

T&
T 

TR
U

CK
 A

N
D 

CR
AN

E 
SE

RV
IC

E
80

5-
20

7-
22

57



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

February 7, 2023   Reference ID:  
2023-3465  

 

Amendment No. 1 to Cardno, Inc. Contract  
Public Works 

 ACTION REQUIRED 
   

ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Travis Dean, Engineering Assistant Michael Errante, Public Works Director 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Request Board approve Amendment No. 1 to the contract between the County of Inyo and Cardno, Inc 
of Zephyr Cove, NV, increasing the “Do Not Exceed” amount from $402,545.86 to $508,736.67, 
amending Attachment “A” Scope of Work, amending Attachment “B” Schedule of Fees, and amending 
Section 2 to change the end date of the contract from June 30, 2023 to October 31, 2024, for the Lone 
Pine Town Streets Project, and authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all appropriate 
signatures being obtained. 
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
On March 15, 2022, your Board approved the Consultant Contract with Cardno, Inc. for the provision of 
Environmental and Engineering Consultant Services in support of the State Transportation Improvement 
Program (STIP) Lone Pine Town Streets Project. The Lone Pine Town Streets STIP Project consists of 
preserving, extending the life, and improving the ride quality on various streets in Lone Pine. There are 
also project elements intended to improve access for public transit, pedestrians, and bicycles. There are 
13 streets identified in the Project Study Report included in the scope of the project. New bike lanes are 
proposed to be added to Post Street, Lone Pine Ave., and Lake View Street, improved Eastern Sierra 
Transit Authority (ESTA) bus loading will be delineated on East Muir Street. Crosswalk and 
pedestrian/vehicle flow will be evaluated and changed or reinstalled according to best practices. Non-
compliant curb ramps in the project area should be brought up to ADA standards when warranted. 
 
Public Works is proposing adding two additional streets to Cardno’s scope. The change of scope 
includes Whitney Portal Road from the end of the recent Federal Lands Access Program (FLAP) Project 
west to Highway 395 and Hay Street from Locust St. to Muir St. This change of scope requires an 
amendment to update our Contract with Cardno, Inc. to update their “Do Not Exceed” amount from 
$402,545.86 to $508,736.67, their Scope of Work to include the new streets, their Schedule of Fees to 
include the additional work, and extend the end of contract date from June 30, 2023, to October 31, 
2024. The additional work will be paid for with RMRA funds. 
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding 
Source 

Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation Program Budget Unit 034601 

Budgeted? Yes / No Object Code 5709 

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

Recurrence One-Time Expenditure  
Current Fiscal Year Impact 
This is a project that will be ongoing for approximately 2 years. 
Future Fiscal Year Impacts 
 
Additional Information 
 
The Public Works Department will pay for the additional consultant costs with RMRA funds 
 
ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
The Board could choose not to approve this Contract Amendment to Cardno’s Contract.  This is not 
recommended, as including these streets with this contract will be significantly cheaper than doing them 
in the future. 
  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
Auditor 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Amendment 1 - Cardno Lone Pine Streets 
  
APPROVALS: 
Travis Dean Created/Initiated - 1/25/2023 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 1/26/2023 
Travis Dean Approved - 1/30/2023 
Grace Chuchla Approved - 1/30/2023 
Shannon Platt Approved - 1/30/2023 
Breanne Nelums Approved - 1/31/2023 
Amy Shepherd Approved - 1/31/2023 
Michael Errante Final Approval - 1/31/2023 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



County of Inyo Standard Contract  -  No 146.1 
Page 1 

 04/30/2020   

  

AMENDMENT NUMBER ONE 
 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND  
CARDNO, INC. FOR THE PROVISIONS OF CONSULTANT SERVICES 

 
 

 WHEREAS, the County of Inyo (hereinafter referred to as “County”) and Cardno, Inc. (hereinafter 
referred to as “Contractor”), have entered into an Agreement for the Provision of Consultant Services 
dated  March 15, 2022, on County of Inyo Standard Contract No. 146.1, for  the term from  April 1, 2022 
through June 30, 2023. 
 
 WHEREAS, County and Contractor do desire and consent to amend such Agreement as set forth 
below; 
 
 WHEREAS, such Agreement provides that it may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or 
subtracted from, by the mutual consent of the parties thereto, if such amendment or change is in written 
form, and executed with the same formalities as such Agreement, and attached to the original Agreement 
to maintain continuity.  
 
 County and Contractor hereby amend such Agreement as follows:  
 
Amend section 4(H) to adjust the “Do Not Exceed” amount of the contract, in the amount of $402,545.86, 
to a new “Do Not Exceed” amount of $508,736.67. 
 
Amend Attachment A to add the document titled “Amendment #1 Attachment A” to the Scope of Work of 
the contract.  “Amendment #1 Attachment A” is attached hereto. 
 
Amend Attachment B to add the document “Amendment #1 Attachment B” to the Schedule of Fees of the 
contract.  “Amendment #1 Attachment B” is attached hereto. 
 
Amend section 2 to change the end date of the contract from June 30, 2023 to October 31, 2024. 
 
 
 

The effective date of this Amendment to the Agreement is  ________. 
 

 All the other terms and conditions of the Agreement are unchanged and remain the same.  
 
  
 
 



Page 2 
  

 04/30/2020 

 

AMENDMENT NUMBER ONE 
 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND  
CARDNO, INC. FOR THE PROVISIONS OF CONSULTANT SERVICES 

 
 IN WITNESS THEREOF, THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET THEIR HANDS AND SEALS THIS  
______  DAY OF  _________________________,  __________. 
 
 
 
COUNTY OF INYO     CONTRACTOR 
 
By: ____________________________________              By: __________________________________ 
                Signature  
Dated:_________________________________         
             ___________________________________ 
                 Type or Print  
        
       Dated: ________________________________ 
        
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY: 
 
 
________________________________________ 
County Counsel  
 
APPROVED AS TO ACCOUNTING FORM:  
 
 
_________________________________________ 
County Auditor 
 
APPROVED AS TO PERSONNEL REQUIREMENTS: 
 
 
_________________________________________ 
Personnel Services  
 
APPROVED AS TO RISK ASSESSMENT: 
 
 
__________________________________________ 
County Risk Manager  
 
 
 



 

 
 

 

 
 
621 West Line Street 
Suite 205 
Bishop, CA 93514 
USA 

Phone +1 760 784 8521 
 
www.cardno.com 
www.stantec.com 

December 16, 2022 

 

 

 

 

 

Mr. Travis Dean 
Engineering Assistant 
Inyo County Public Works 
168 N. Edwards 
PO Drawer Q 
Independence, CA 93526 

 

RE: Contract Amendment Request for State Transportation Improvement 
Programs (STIP) Lone Pine Town Streets Project; State Funded Project: 
RPL-5948(101); County Project: ZP-21-010 

Dear Travis, 

Per our previous discussions during the initial site visit and email correspondence I am 
providing this request to amend the above referenced Contract to incorporate Whitney 
Portal Road and Hay Street into our project scope, extend the contract end date and to 
provide Surveys and Mapping services (Task 6) through Triad/Holmes Associates, Inc. 
(Triad) in replace of Eastern Sierra Land Surveys (ESLS). During coordination with 
ESLS on the revised schedule and expanded area/scope, ESLS notified Cardno (now 
Stantec) that they would not be able to perform the work and requested to be removed 
from the team, resulting in the Triad replacement. 

Cardno (now Stantec) agrees to perform the following additional service(s): 

 Include additional 1.0 miles of roadway in the project scope. The roadway 
extents cover Whitney Portal Road from Highway 395 west to the recent FLAP 
project (just east of the aqueduct) and Hay Street from Locust St. to Muir St. 
See Additional Scope Map for extents. 

 No additional scope items, or modifications to the existing scope, are included 
or proposed with this amendment; the original scope will stay as-is. The 
modifications to the contract per this amendment include additional fees for the 
below tasks to account for the increased area of the project per this 
amendment. 

o Task 1: Project Management; Task 2: Preliminary Engineering Studies; 
Task 3: Concept Plan; Task 6: Surveys and Mapping; Task 7: 
Geotechnical Investigation; Task 8: School Circulation Plan; Task 9: 
Utility Coordination; Task 10: Right-of-Way Phase and Determination; 
Task 11: Design 

 Perform Task 7: Geotechnical Investigation as a part of the ES&P Phase in 
order to incorporate the findings into Task 3: Concept Plan. 

 Extend contract duration; new end date of October 31, 2024. Per our previous 
discussion with the County, the project schedule has been delayed for both the 
Lone Pine School summer break and again to complete this Amendment 1 
prior to continuing with the ES&P Phase work. For this reason, we proposed to 
extend the contract duration. 

tdean
Text Box
Amendment #1Attachment A



December 16, 2022 

S:\0PEN PROJECTS\2-Roads Projects\Lone Pine Town Streets ZP-21-010\000-Consultant\010-PE Consultant Contract\012-Contract Amendments\From Cardno\Amendment1_LonePine_12-16-
2022.docx 

www.cardno.com 

2 

We thank you for all your efforts in facilitation of this project and look forward to continued progress. Please contact me 
if you have any questions or commend on this proposed amendment.  

 

Sincerely,  

 
 
 
 
Stephen Peck PE 
Principal 
for Cardno now Stantec 
Direct Line: +1 775 339 3321 
Email: Stephen.Peck@cardno.com 

 
 
 
 
Grant Schmitz PE 
Senior Project Engineer 
for Cardno now Stantec 
Direct Line: +1 760 784 8521 
Email: Grant.Schmitz@cardno.com 

 
Enc: Amendment 1 Fee Proposal 
 Additional Scope Map 
cc: Lori Browning – Project Coordinator 

tdean_1
Text Box
Amendment #1Attachment A



CO
ST
 E
ST
IM

AT
E

Am
en

dm
en

t 1
Lo
ne

 P
in
e 
To

w
n 
St
re
et
s 
Pr
oj
ec
t

D
IR
EC

T 
LA

BO
R 
RA

TE
$7

0.
62

$7
0.
62

$7
0.
62

$5
8.
88

$5
5.
28

$3
2.
67

$3
7.
94

IT
EM

 O
F 
W
O
RK

 D
ES
CR

IP
TI
O
N

1
Pr
oj
ec
t M

an
ag
em

en
t

2
0

0
8

0
0

8
91

5.
80

$ 
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

Pr
oj
ec
t M

an
ag
em

en
t

2
8

8
91

5.
80

$ 
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

2
Pr
el
im

in
ar
y 
En

gi
ne

er
in
g 
St
ud

ie
s

0
0

0
4

4
2

0
52

1.
98

$ 
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

Re
vi
ew

 E
xi
st
in
g 
M
at
er
ia
ls

2
2

22
8.
32

$ 
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

Pr
el
im

in
ar
y 
Ba

se
m
ap

2
2

2
29

3.
66

$ 
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

3
Co

nc
ep

t P
la
n

2
2

4
8

6
15

0
1,
85

7.
73

$ 
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

De
ve
lo
p 
Dr
af
t C

on
ce
pt
 P
la
n

1
2

2
4

4
12

1,
20

1.
78

$ 
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

De
ve
lo
p 
Fi
na
l C
on

ce
pt
 P
la
n

1
2

2
2

36
4.
28

$ 
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

Pr
el
im

in
ar
y 
Co

st
 E
st
im

at
e

2
2

1
29

1.
67

$ 
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

6
Su
rv
ey
s a

nd
 M

ap
pi
ng

0
1

0
6

4
8

0
90

6.
38

$ 
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

Su
rv
ey
 C
on

tr
ol
 E
st
ab
lis
hm

en
t

2
11

7.
76

$ 
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

Fi
el
d 
Su
rv
ey
in
g

2
11

7.
76

$ 
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

Fi
na
l B
as
em

ap
1

2
4

8
67

0.
86

$ 
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

7
G
eo

te
ch
ni
ca
l I
nv
es
tig

at
io
n

0
0

0
2

0
0

0
11

7.
76

$ 
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

G
eo

te
ch
ni
ca
l I
nv
es
tig

at
io
n

2
11

7.
76

$ 
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

8
Sc
ho

ol
 C
irc

ul
at
io
n 
Pl
an

0
2

0
5

8
12

0
1,
26

9.
92

$ 
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

Dr
af
t S

ch
oo

l C
irc
ul
at
io
n 
Pl
an

1
4

6
10

96
4.
52

$ 
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

Fi
na
l S
ch
oo

l C
irc
ul
at
io
n 
Pl
an

1
1

2
2

30
5.
40

$ 
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

9
U
til
ity

 C
oo

rd
in
at
io
n

0
0

1
5

2
6

0
67

1.
60

$ 
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

Co
or
di
na
tio

n 
w
ith

 U
til
iti
es

1
4

1
2

42
6.
76

$ 
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

U
pd

at
e 
Fi
na
l B
as
em

ap
1

1
4

24
4.
84

$ 
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

10
Ri
gh
t o

f W
ay
 P
ha

se
 &
 D
et
er
m
in
at
io
n

1
0

0
2

0
2

0
25

3.
72

$ 
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

Ri
gh
t‐
of
‐W

ay
 a
ss
es
sm

en
t

1
2

2
25

3.
72

$ 
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

11
D
es
ig
n

9
11

14
10

0
12

2
15

4
0

20
,0
64

.4
2

$ 
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

In
iti
al
 D
es
ig
n 
Co

or
di
na
tio

n 
(u
til
iti
es
, f
ut
ur
e 

pr
oj
ec
ts
, e
tc
.)

1
1

2
25

9.
00

$ 
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

60
%
 D
es
ig
n 
Pl
an
s

4
4

4
40

60
80

9,
13

3.
04

$ 
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

60
%
 C
os
t E

st
im

at
e

1
1

2
19

4.
84

$ 
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

60
%
 S
ite

 R
ev
ie
w
 M

ee
tin

g
2

11
7.
76

$ 
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

60
%
 T
ec
hn

ci
al
 S
pe

ci
fic
at
io
n 
O
ut
lin
e

‐
$ 
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

90
%
 D
es
ig
n 
Pl
an
s

2
4

4
30

30
40

5,
43

7.
80

$ 
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

90
%
 S
pe

ci
al
 P
ro
vi
sio

ns
12

66
3.
36

$ 
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

90
%
 C
os
t E

st
im

at
e

1
1

2
19

4.
84

$ 
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

Fi
na
l D

es
ig
n 
Pl
an
s

2
2

4
24

20
30

4,
06

3.
78

$ 
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

Fi
na
l S
pe

ci
al
 P
ro
vi
sio

ns
‐

$ 
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

Fi
na
l B
id
 L
ist
/C
os
t E

st
im

at
e

‐
$ 
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

SU
B‐
TO

TA
L 
H
O
U
RS

14
16

19
14

0
14

6
19

9
8

54
2

Di
re
ct
 L
ab
or
 C
os
ts

$9
88

.6
8

$1
,1
29

.9
2

$1
,3
41

.7
8

$8
,2
43

.2
0

$8
,0
70

.8
8

$6
,5
01

.3
3

$3
03

.5
2

$2
6,
57

9.
31

La
bo

r E
sc
al
at
io
n

$3
98

.6
9

To
ta
l D

ire
ct
 L
ab

or
 C
os
ts

* 
Sr
. C
on

su
lta

nt
 ra

te
s h

av
e 
be
en

 d
isc

ou
nt
ed

 fo
r I
ny
o 
Co

un
ty

$2
6,
97

8.
00

O
ve
rh
ea
d 
Co

st
s

an
d 
ar
e 
a 
3%

 in
cr
ea
se
 fr
om

 2
02

1 
ra
te
s p

er
 e
sc
al
at
io
n 

18
3.
24

%
49

,4
34

.4
9

$ 
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
  

Fe
e 
Co

st
al
lo
w
an

ce
 in
 th

e 
10

‐H
 E
sc

5%
3,
82

0.
62

$ 
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

TO
TA

L 
LA

BO
R 
CO

ST
S

$8
0,
23

3.
11

O
TH

ER
 D
IR
EC

T 
CO

ST
 (N

on
‐L
ab

or
 C
os
ts
)

**
 u
pd

at
ed

 ra
te
s e

ffe
ct
iv
e 
1/
1/
20

23
25

,9
57

.7
0

$ 
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

TO
TA

L 
N
O
T‐
TO

‐E
XC

EE
D

$1
06

,1
90

.8
1

IT
EM

S 
O
F 

W
O
RK

Br
ia
n 

M
cR
ae
 *

G
ra
nt
 

Sc
hm

itz
 *
*

ST
AF

F 
N
AM

E‐
TI
TL
E/
CA

TE
G
O
RY

St
ep

he
n 

Pe
ck
 *

Ja
so
n 

Du
ke
s *

Iv
an

 T
ru
jil
lo
 

**
W
ill
ia
m
 

Th
om

as
 *
*

Ca
rd
no

, I
nc
.

TO
TA

L 
CO

N
SU

LT
AN

T 
CO

ST
Lo
ri 

Br
ow

ni
ng

 *
*

tdean_2
Text Box
Amendment 1Attachment B



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

February 7, 2023   Reference ID:  
2023-3469  

 

Caltrans Presentation of the California Road Charge Pilot 
Study 

Public Works 
 NO ACTION REQUIRED 

   
ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Justine Kokx, Transportation Planner Justine Kokx, Transportation Planner 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Request Board hear a presentation from Caltrans staff regarding the California Road Charge Pilot Study. 
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
California relies on gas and fuel tax revenues to fund its maintenance and repairs.  As cars become 
more efficient, and as electric vehicles have become more prevalent, the gas tax will not remain viable 
as a reliable funding stream to meet infrastructure needs.  California, with Caltrans, is researching a 
potential gas tax replacement that can be relied upon into the future to ensure California's infrastructure 
needs can be addressed. 
 
A pilot study is underway analyzing a road charge system as an equitable replacement of the gas tax by 
charging roadway users an amount based on what they actually use, based on mileage, not fuel. 
Caltrans staff will be in attendance to present the pilot study and answer questions. 
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding 
Source 

N/A Budget Unit  

Budgeted? N/A Object Code  
Recurrence N/A  
Current Fiscal Year Impact 
 
Future Fiscal Year Impacts 
 
Additional Information 
 
 
ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
None 

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
None. 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Caltrans News Release 
2. Info Sheet - Caltrans Pilot Study 
3. Learn More - Road Charge Test 
  
APPROVALS: 
Justine Kokx Created/Initiated - 1/31/2023 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 1/31/2023 
Justine Kokx Approved - 1/31/2023 
John Pinckney Approved - 1/31/2023 
Nate Greenberg Final Approval - 2/1/2023 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



State of California • Department of Transportation

News Release
Date: January 31, 2023
Contact: Michael Lingberg
Phone: (760) 920-0280

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE

Caltrans Seeks Rural, Tribal Volunteers for Latest ‘Road Charge’ Study
Participants can earn up to $250 for 7-month pilot

SACRAMENTO — The California Department of Transportation (Caltrans) is recruiting 
volunteers who reside and travel in rural and tribal communities to participate in the 
latest testing phase of a “road charge” pilot. Up to 500 volunteers will participate in a 
seven-month simulated road charge system, which charges drivers based on the 
number of miles they travel rather than the amount of gas they use to support the 
state’s critical transportation infrastructure. There will be no cost to participate, and upon 
completion, volunteers will be eligible to receive an incentive of up to $250.

“Rural and tribal communities have unique travel needs and may interact with a road 
charge system in different ways,” said Caltrans Director Tony Tavares. “It is essential 
that Caltrans understands their needs as it develops an equitable and convenient 
alternative to the gas tax.”

Starting in March 2023, the California Road Charge Public-Private Roads Project 
will explore the technical aspects of reporting mileage, as well as engage rural and tribal 
communities in a conversation about their communities’ priorities in a potential road 
charge system to fund road and highway maintenance. 

This pilot will simulate how participants interact with a road charge system by reporting 
mileage and “paying” mock invoices. The pilot will conduct surveys to gauge 
participants’ preferences and experience. 

As vehicles become more fuel-efficient and the state’s transition to zero-emission 
vehicles accelerates, Caltrans is researching possible alternatives to the state gas tax, 
which California has historically relied on to build and maintain the state’s transportation 
system. Volatile oil prices and California’s phasing out the sale of new gas-powered 
cars by 2035 add increased urgency to research ways to bring long-term stability to 
transportation funding. For that reason, Caltrans is testing various methods to collect 
per-mile rather than per-gallon fees.

This demonstration is funded through a grant from the U.S. Department of 
Transportation’s Surface Transportation System Funding Alternatives Program and will 
build on Caltrans’ previous road charge pilots: California’s Road Charge Pilot in 2017, 
which introduced the road charge concept to Californians, and California’s Four-Phase 
Demonstration, which tested the road charge concept across several platforms 

http://beworkzonealert.com/
http://www.beworkzonealert.com/move-over.html
http://www.caroadcharge.com/projects/public-private-roads-project/
https://dot.ca.gov/news-releases/news-release-2021-008
http://www.caroadcharge.com/projects/california-s-road-charge-pilot/
http://www.caroadcharge.com/projects/california-four-phase-demonstration/
http://www.caroadcharge.com/projects/california-four-phase-demonstration/
https://dot.ca.gov/


including pay-at-the-pump and electric vehicle charging station systems, usage-based 
insurance, transportation network company fleets, and automated vehicles. 

Volunteers interested in participating in the pilot – and the incentive of up to $250 – may 
visit http://www.caroadcharge.com/projects/public-private-roads-project/ and complete 
the participant recruitment survey. Participants must be California residents over the 
age of 18. The pilot is employing the highest standards in data protection and 
safeguarding, ensuring that Caltrans will not receive any sensitive information from 
participants.

To learn more about the California Road Charge Project and the Road Charge 
Program, please visit www.caroadcharge.com.

###

| CleanCA.com | #BeWorkZoneAlert | Twitter | Facebook | YouTube |

http://beworkzonealert.com/
http://www.beworkzonealert.com/move-over.html
http://www.caroadcharge.com/projects/public-private-roads-project/
http://www.caroadcharge.com/
https://cleancalifornia.dot.ca.gov/
https://twitter.com/hashtag/beworkzonealert
https://mobile.twitter.com/CaltransHQ
https://www.facebook.com/CaltransHQ
https://www.youtube.com/user/CaltransVideo


 

 
 

Participate in a Caltrans Pilot Study and Earn up to $250 
California is exploring an alternative to the gas tax and wants 

the voices of rural and tribal stakeholders at the table. 
 

The 2023 California Road Charge Public/Private Roads Pilot will gather essential information for evaluating how a road 
charge program could address travel on and off public, private, and tribal roadways in California. The state is offering 
incentives of up to $250 for participants in the seven month pilot launching in March 2023. 

In the pilot, participants will be given a device that plugs into their car to capture their miles traveled and whether the 
vehicle is traveling on public, private, or tribal lands in California (or out of state). Data will be saved/stored securely 
through a third-party account manager, and vehicle location information will be sanitized (deleted and non-recoverable 
from collection devices). Caltrans will not receive any location-specific data from pilot participants’ unique vehicle. 
Qualified participants will be eligible to receive up to $250 in incentives for their time and completion of pilot milestones. 

Pilot Details  Incentive Milestones * 

Pilot Length 7 months; Mar – Sep ‘23            Enrollment & closeout 

Reporting Method Plug-in device and mobile app            Drive each month with active device plugged in 

Reporting Frequency Daily (automated)            Review monthly statements 

Statement Frequency Monthly           Complete two participant surveys 

Data Privacy 
No participant location or 
personally-identifiable data sent 
to Caltrans 

 
* All milestones must be completed to receive the full $250 

 

This is an opportunity for California motorists, especially those in rural and tribal 
communities, to have an active voice in shaping how California can provide a fairer, 
more transparent, and future-ready transportation funding mechanism.  

Interested in participating? 

The first step is to fill out the participation form on the 
California Road Charge website: 
http://www.caroadcharge.com/engage/contact-us/ 
If you meet the pilot study requirements and are 
selected to participate, the Project Team will reach out 
to you in late February / early March 2023 with 
information on how to enroll and get started. 

Do you have an Active Fastrak 
Account with the Toll Roads?   

We want you for the Pilot too! 
 

Caltrans will also partner 
with The Toll Roads in a mini 
pilot that will explore how 
one of California’s tolling 
agencies might help 
administer a statewide road 
charge system. 

Will it be easy for a taxpayer 
to pay a road charge and 
tolls in the same bill?  

If you are a current Toll 
Roads customer, we would 
love to have you participate 
and tell us about your 
experience – while earning 
up to $250! 

©2023 Caltrans             caroadcharge.com 

http://www.caroadcharge.com/engage/contact-us/


Let’s keep in touch! 

Learn more about the Public/Private Roads 
Demonstration and sign up to be notified 
when participant recruitment goes live.

https://caroadcharge.com/
engage/contact-us/ 

Fair. Transparent. Sustainable.

Your participation  
would help inform how a  
Road Charge could work

https://caroadcharge.com/engage/contact-us/
https://caroadcharge.com/engage/contact-us/


As California makes progress toward our 
ambitious clean air goals, many Californians are 
switching to more fuel-efficient or all-electric 
vehicles, so they buy less gasoline and pay less 
or no gas tax. This not only means less funding to 
maintain our transportation system but may also 
disproportionately place more of the burden of 
funding road repairs and maintenance on low- 
and middle-income families that can’t afford to 
purchase a new car. 

California needs a fairer, more transparent, and 
more sustainable way to fund our roads. That’s 
the reason the state is exploring replacing the gas 
tax with a Road Charge, an alternative funding 
mechanism that allows drivers to support road 
and highway maintenance based on how many 
miles they drive, instead of how many gallons of 
gas they buy.

In Spring 2023, California will test 
how Road Charge can work and 
we are looking for participants to 
help test this concept.

Specifically, we’re interested in exploring the 
travel patterns for those who regularly go 
between public and private roads. In practice, 
road charge is only intended to charge drivers 
when they are driving on public roadways. That 
means drivers who spend a lot of time driving 
on private roads should not receive charges 
for that mileage. Participating in the upcoming 
demonstration project can held California develop 
a fairer, more transparent, and more sustainable 
way to fund California’s Transportation network.

Learn more and sign up to be notified when 
participant recruitment goes live:  
https://caroadcharge.com/engage/contact-us/

Copyright ©2022 Caltrans  |  Printed on 100% post-consumer recycled material

https://caroadcharge.com/engage/contact-us/


 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

February 7, 2023   Reference ID:  
2023-3459  

 

Annual Appointment of Representatives to Tribal 
Consultation Committees 

Planning Department 
 ACTION REQUIRED 

   
ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Cathreen Richards, Planning Director Cathreen Richards, Planning Director 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Request Board appoint two of its members to each of the five Tribal Consultation Committees, in 
accordance with the County's Tribal Consultation Policy (attached). 
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
On October 11, 2016 the Board adopted the County’s Tribal Consultation Policy. This policy establishes 
a consistent, efficient, and culturally suitable protocol for how the County conducts Tribal/County 
intergovernmental consultation under existing state and local laws. It applies to all County/Tribal 
consultations, which are required by law for many of the projects and permits the County approves, 
especially with regard to those that require California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) evaluations. 
 
Pursuant to the Policy, each year, your Board is to designate two of its members to serve as 
Consultation Committee representatives assigned to consult with an individual tribe. Under the Policy, 
the County's stated preference is that each consulting tribe also appoints at least two members of its 
Tribal Counsel to serve as its Consultation Committee representatives; however, the Policy also 
recognizes that each tribe may designate other Consultation Committee representatives. Since the last 
time the consultation committee assignments were made, the Supervisorial District boundaries have 
changed and two new County Supervisors have been elected. 
 
Currently, the County’s consultation committee assignments are: 
•    Bishop Paiute Tribe – Empty 
•    Big Pine Paiute Tribe of the Owens Valley – Supervisors Roeser and Kingsley 
•    Fort Independence Indian Community of  Paiutes – Supervisors Roeser and Kingsley 
•    Lone Pine Paiute-Shoshone Tribe – Supervisors Kingsley and Roeser 
•    Timbisha Shoshone Tribe – Supervisors Kingsley and Griffiths. 
 
Based on new Supervisorial District boundaries, tribal lands correspond as follows: 
•    District 1 - no tribal lands 
•    District 2 - no tribal lands 
•    District 3 - Bishop Paiute Tribe 
•    District 4 - Big Pine Paiute Tribe 
•    District 5 - Fort Independence Indian Community of Paiutes, Lone Pine Paiute Shoshone Tribe and 

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

Timbisha Shoshone Tribe. 
 
Previously, the assignments have been made primarily by the overlap of Tribal land with Supervisorial 
District areas. This has become a bit more skewed than it was historically with the change in 
Supervisorial District boundaries resulting in District 5 having three tribal areas within its boundary. The 
board may decide to leave the assignments as they are for 2023, with the exception of filling previous 
Supervisors Totheroh and Pucci’s assignments.  These will have to be filled so that the Bishop Paiute 
Tribe has a Consultation Committee. The Board could, instead, completely rearrange the assignments. 
 
  
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding 
Source 

General Fund is used for staff time to prepare for the 
consultation assignments. 

Budget Unit 23800 

Budgeted? Yes  Object Code  
Recurrence Ongoing Expenditure  
Current Fiscal Year Impact 
 
Future Fiscal Year Impacts 
 
Additional Information 
 
 
ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
1.    Do NOT provide consultation committee assignments for 2023. This is not recommended as it is 
contrary to the County’s Tribal Consultation Policy.   
2.    Leave the consultation committee assignments as they are for 2023. This is also not recommended 
as the Bishop Paiute Tribe has no consultation committee at this time. 
  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
Tribal governments, Native American Heritage Commission and other agencies working with the County 
and local Tribes. 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Final Tribal Consultation Policy 
  
APPROVALS: 
Cathreen Richards Created/Initiated - 1/19/2023 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 1/26/2023 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 1/26/2023 
John Vallejo Approved - 1/30/2023 
Nate Greenberg Approved - 1/31/2023 
Cathreen Richards Final Approval - 1/31/2023 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 





























 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

February 7, 2023   Reference ID:  
2023-5  

 

Email Retention Policy 
County Counsel 
 ACTION REQUIRED 

   
ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Grace Chuchla, Deputy County Counsel Grace Chuchla, Deputy County Counsel 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Request Board approve Resolution No. 2023-04 titled, "A Resolution of the Board of Supervisors of the 
County of Inyo, State of California, Adopting an Email Retention Policy," and authorize the Chairperson 
to sign.  
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
Like any other business or government organization, Inyo County employees send and receive a huge 
number of emails every day.  Currently, Inyo County does not have a written policy regarding the 
retention of these emails, which leads to inconsistent retention periods and deletion dates. This is not an 
ideal system, as it makes it difficult for County staff to know whether old emails will be available to 
reference and difficult for the public to know whether old emails that qualify as public records will be 
available in response to a Public Records Act request.   
 
Compounding the problem with email retention is the fact that there is no legally mandated length of time 
to retain emails generally.  Some emails qualify as a specific type of record for which there is a statutory 
retention period.  For example, per Cal. Revenue & Taxation Code § 465, the Assessor must retain 
correspondence regarding assessments for six years from the lien date.  If the Assessor were to receive 
such correspondence via email, those emails—both before and after the implementation of this policy—
would be retained for six years.  However, the vast majority of emails that go through Inyo County’s 
servers are not a type of record for which there is a specific statutory retention period.  These emails 
currently exist in a gray zone with no state laws or County policy governing their retention.   
 
To address general email retention periods, Administration, County Counsel, and Information Services 
have worked together to develop an email retention policy for Inyo County.  This email retention policy 
considers multiple relevant issues, such as: 

• County employees need to access old emails to do their jobs.  Email contains a valuable record 
of past actions, and old emails often contain information that allows County employees to work 
more efficiently.  While old emails could theoretically be preserved forever if an employee prints 
the email or saves the email to somewhere other than Outlook, it's not practical to expect that an 
employee would do that.  Additionally, we do not want to encourage employees to start retaining 
emails outside of Outlook because having emails saved in multiple sources makes it very difficult 
to search for responsive emails when handling PRA requests or discovery requests. 

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

• The longer the County retains emails, the more files there are to review in response to PRA 
requests.  PRA requests can be burdensome to respond to, particularly when the requesting 
party demands emails on a broad topic.  Responding to such requests requires staff to manually 
review batches of emails that could number in the tens of thousands.  While staff wants to be 
able to provide relevant, responsive records to the public, staff also wants to ensure that a few 
broad requests do not unfairly dominate the County’s capacity to respond to PRA requests. 

• Data storage is very cheap.  Fiscal concerns are not a strong factor in forming this policy. 

 
After balancing all of these issues and after receiving feedback from Department Heads, Administration, 
County Counsel, and Information Services came up with the following retention rules: 

• Emails within Outlook will be retained for 5 years. 
• Emails that have been placed in the trash folder in Outlook will be retained for 90 days. 
• Chat messages in Microsoft Teams will be retained for 7 days. 

 
These rules would be applied automatically to every County Outlook account by Information Services.   
 
Finally, while the lack of legal mandates on this issue provides Inyo County broad latitude to formulate an 
email retention policy, it is instructive to look at what other counties have done.  Below is a sample of 
email retention policies from scattered jurisdictions throughout California: 
 

• San Mateo County – 2 year email retention period 
• Tuolumne County – 90 day email retention period 
• Santa Cruz County – 2 year email retention period 
• Riverside County – 45 day email retention period  
• City of San Diego – 5 year email retention period 
• City of Los Angeles – 3 year email retention period 

 
As this list illustrates, counties and cities across the state have adopted widely varying policies.  Inyo 
County would be at the high end of these policies, with only the City of San Diego retaining emails for as 
long as Inyo County.  However, staff feels that, thanks to Inyo County’s small size, it is possible to retain 
emails for a relatively long period of time while also effectively addressing the issues outlined above. 
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding 
Source 

None Budget Unit N/A 

Budgeted? N/A Object Code N/A 
Recurrence N/A  
Current Fiscal Year Impact 
None 
Future Fiscal Year Impacts 
None 
Additional Information 
 
 
ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
Your Board could choose not to adopt this resolution and the email retention policy.  However, this is not 
recommended, as implementing this policy will assist with standardizing the County's email retention 
rules.   



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
Information Services, Administration, and County Counsel 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Resolution and Email Retention Policy 
  
APPROVALS: 
Grace Chuchla Created/Initiated - 1/4/2023 
Grace Chuchla Approved - 1/4/2023 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 1/5/2023 
John Vallejo Approved - 1/5/2023 
Amy Shepherd Approved - 1/11/2023 
Nate Greenberg Approved - 1/31/2023 
Scott Armstrong Final Approval - 1/31/2023 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 2023 -______

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE
COUNTY OF INYO, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, 
ADOPTING AN EMAIL RETENTION POLICY

WHEREAS, Inyo County desires to adopt an email retention policy to govern the retention and 
deletion of email messages on County servers;

WHEREAS, Government Code section 26202 authorizes the Board of Supervisors to approve 
the destruction of any document that is greater than two years old; 

WHEREAS, aside from the general grant of authority in section 26202, state law is silent on the 
issue of email retention and destruction, which gives Inyo County broad latitude to adopt policies 
that best fit the needs of Inyo County.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Inyo County Board of Supervisors that, 

1. The Inyo County Email Retention Policy, attached hereto as Exhibit A, shall be the 
governing email retention policy for Inyo County.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this ______ day of _____________, 2023, by the following vote:

AYES: _______
NOES: _______
ABSTAIN: _______
ABSENT: _______

________________________________
JENNIFER ROESER, Chairperson
Inyo County Board of Supervisors

ATTEST: Nathan Greenberg 
Clerk of the Board

By: _____________________________
Darcy Ellis
Assistant Clerk of the Board



Exhibit A



Inyo County Email Retention Policy

Adopted Per Inyo County Resolution 23-XXX

This policy is meant to govern the management and retention of emails within Microsoft Outlook 
and chat messages within Microsoft Teams.  This policy is not a records retention policy.  It is 
better described as an “email management policy” because nothing in this policy is intended to 
override or conflict with record retention periods that are set by state or federal law or other 
County policies.  

Like many other governmental and private entities, Inyo County employees do a large amount of 
their work via email.  Email has replaced phone calls and mail as the dominant form of 
communication, and thousands of emails pass through Inyo County’s servers each day.  These 
emails range from lengthy, substantive communications to junk mail. 

Inyo County desires to adopt a policy to manage these emails.  In drafting this policy, the County 
has taken into account numerous competing concerns.  On the one hand, County employees need 
access past emails to do their jobs.  Employees frequently reference old emails to remind 
themselves of past events or to avoid reinventing the wheel when an issue arises for a second 
time.  Additionally, as a public agency, County emails are—with various exceptions—public 
records.  The County therefore desires to maintain a sufficient history of emails so that the public 
can exercise its right to access public records.  On the other hand, holding on to all emails 
indefinitely is cumbersome, expensive, and impractical.  It leads to disorganization and makes it 
burdensome for county staff to respond to Public Records Act requests or discovery requests.  

Taking these competing concerns into account, the County has determined that emails shall be 
retained for a period of 5 years.  Emails that have been placed in the trash folder of Outlook shall 
be retained for 90 days.  In other words, any email in Outlook except those messages placed in 
the trash folder by the County user will be retain for 5 years.  Chat messages on Microsoft Teams 
shall be retained for 7 days.  

The implementation of this policy is the responsibility of the Information Services Department.  
Information Services will automatically apply the above timelines to all County Outlook 
accounts.  However, it shall remain the responsibility of each individual employee to ensure that 
the implementation of this policy does not run afoul of record retention rules that are set out in 
state or federal law or other County policies.  For example, per Cal. Revenue & Taxation Code § 
465, the Assessor must retain correspondence regarding assessments for six years from the lien 
date.  Therefore, if the Assessor were to receive an email that qualifies as this type of 
correspondence, he or she would be responsible for saving that email or attachment outside of 
Outlook and retaining it for six years.  Employees are encouraged to consult with their supervisor 
and County Counsel if they need assistance in determining whether an email falls within a 
specific statutory retention period. 



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

February 7, 2023   Reference ID:  
2023-3478  

 

Presentation on Inyo County Housing Efforts 
County Administrator 

 NO ACTION REQUIRED 
   

ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Meaghan McCamman, Assistant County 
Administrator 

Meaghan McCamman, Assistant County 
Administrator 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Request Board receive presentation on the current status of Inyo County housing efforts and provide 
feedback to staff as appropriate.  
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
Inyo County has a variety of projects in the works that are aimed at encouraging the development of new 
housing units throughout the County.  This presentation will provide an update on those efforts and an 
opportunity for Board input.  The presentation will include updates on: 
 
Identifying Land for Development 
- Purchase of 605 S. Main Street, Lone Pine 
- Brownfields Assessment at 160 N. Lone Pine Ave, Lone Pine 
- Vacant Land Project 
- MHP Application for Silver Peaks Affordable Housing, Bishop 
 
Programs to Maintain and Enhance Access to Existing Housing Stock 
- Downpayment Assistance Program 
- Rehabilition Assistance and ADU Assistance through the Permanent Local Housing Allocation (PLHA) 
- ADU Prototype RFP 
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding 
Source 

N/A Budget Unit  

Budgeted? N/A Object Code  
Recurrence N/A  
Current Fiscal Year Impact 
Inyo County recently purchased the property at 605 S. Main Street in Lone Pine for $160,000. 
Depending on the direction of the Board, some additional expenditures may be budgeted for the current 
Fiscal Year. 
 Future Fiscal Year Impacts 

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

To be determined, based on Board direction. 
Additional Information 
 
 
ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
This is an update on countywide housing efforts and an opportunity to provide feedback to staff.  If the 
Board provides no feedback, staff will move forward as planned.  
  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
Planning Department, Building and Safety, Mammoth Lakes Housing.  
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. RFP for ADU Program 
  
APPROVALS: 
Meaghan McCamman Created/Initiated - 1/30/2023 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 1/31/2023 
Meaghan McCamman Approved - 1/31/2023 
John Vallejo Approved - 1/31/2023 
Amy Shepherd Approved - 1/31/2023 
Nate Greenberg Final Approval - 2/1/2023 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

County of Inyo 
Office of the County Administrator 

 
REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL 

 
 

FOR 
 
 

Pre-Approved Accessory Dwelling Unit (ADU) 
and Single-Family Plan Designs 

 
Deadline for Submissions: (DAY OF WEEK), (DATE), (TIME). 

 
County of Inyo 

Office of the County Administrator 
1360 N. Main Street 

Bishop, CA 93514 
 
 



I. INTRODUCTION  
 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the County of Inyo is seeking proposals from qualified individuals, 
organizations, and firms with expertise in architectural and structural plans to collaborate with 
County staff on the preparation of a series of pre-approved, detached Accessory Dwelling Unit 
(ADU) and single-family home plans. 
 
The County will evaluate submittals with the intent of selecting the most qualified contractor. 
While it is likely that a single contractor will be able to fulfill all the requirements under this 
contract, nothing in this solicitation will prevent the County from selecting multiple contractors if it 
chooses to do so. The County reserves the right, in its sole discretion during the selection process, 
to reject any or all proposals or any portion without exception or explanation. 
 

II. BACKGROUND 
 
The County of Inyo is located on the eastern flank of the Sierra Nevada, and includes both high 
elevation mountain and low desert communities. The County is home to both the highest point in 
the contiguous 48 states (Mt. Whitney) as well as the lowest point in the nation (Badwater Basin, 
Death Valley). The terrain is rugged and weather – including snow, wind, and heat – can be 
extreme.   
 
The County of Inyo is approximately 10,000 square miles, the second-largest county by geographic 
size in California. However, more than 98% of the county’s land is held by public agencies, with less 
than 2% of the land available for private development. Therefore, despite the rural nature of the 
County and seemingly vast open spaces, housing development is extremely constrained. Most 
private land available for development is already developed. This has caused both a housing 
shortage and affordability crisis in most communities throughout the County.  
 
ADUs have the potential to ease the housing shortage and increase the supply of housing stock. 
ADUs can be less costly to construct because they do not require major new infrastructure or 
parking. Most importantly, ADUs offer the opportunity to add housing stock using the existing 
parcels that are already in private ownership. In addition, ADUs can provide a source of income for 
homeowners and may provide space to allow extended families to live near each other.  
 
Single family homes have been added to this RFP in order to support low-cost housing construction 
on undeveloped or underdeveloped privately held land.  Whether ADU or new single-family home, 
Inyo County seeks to support the development of additional housing for residents who live and 
work here.   
 
The Inyo County zoning code regulates ADUs in the unincorporated area of the County in 
accordance with State law through Inyo County Code Section 18.78.340, and single family homes 
through its residential designations found in 18.12, 18.21, 18.22 and 18.30. 
 
Code Sections can be viewed here.   
 
Inyo County Building Code also applies to single-family and ADU development. County Building 
Inspectors inspect new structures for building code compliance in the unincorporated area of the 
County and the incorporated City of Bishop in accordance with Inyo County Code Section 
14.04.202(e).   

https://library.qcode.us/lib/inyo_county_ca/pub/county_code/item/title_18


 
Code Section 14.04.202(e) can be viewed here.  
 
The County aims to incentivize the creation of new housing stock and make it easier and more 
affordable for residents to build by offering pre-approved plans that meet Inyo Building Code.    
 
This Request for Proposals is structured so as to award an Agreement to a qualified contractor or 
contractors to perform the services listed within the Scope of Work.  
 

III. RFP SCHEDULE 
 

Issue RFP 
 

 

Deadline for Written Questions 
 

 

Proposal Submittal Deadline 
 

 

Estimated Notification of Selection 
 

 

Estimated Agreement Date 
 

 

 
IV. COUNTY POINT OF CONTACT 

 
Questions and correspondence related to this solicitation may be directed to: 
 
Meaghan McCamman 
Assistant County Administrator 
1360 N. Main St.  
Bishop CA 93514 
mmccamman@inyocounty.us 
770-937-1253 
 
All questions regarding this solicitation must be submitted in writing (email is encouraged). 
Questions will be answered via email and Q&A will be posted on the Inyo County Bid Request/RFP 
website at https://www.inyocounty.us/services/county-administrators-office/bid-request-rfp by 
the proposal submittal deadline.  
 
Only answers to questions communicated in writing will be binding. Prospective contractors shall 
not contact County officers or employees with questions or suggestions regarding this solicitation 
except through the contact person listed above.  
 

V. ANTICIPATED SCOPE OF WORK 
 

The County requires Professional Architectural and Engineering Consulting services (“Services”) for 
prescriptive designs for ADUs and single-family homes compliant with current California Building 
Codes (CBC). Qualified Respondents will develop a collection of standard, detached ADU and single-
family home building permit plan sets, which will be checked by the County for compliance with the 
CBC. The final, pre-approved plans will be offered to the public free-of-charge to build homes and 

https://library.qcode.us/lib/inyo_county_ca/pub/county_code/item/title_14-chapter_14_04?view=all#title_14-chapter_14_04-14_04_020
mailto:mmccamman@inyocounty.us
https://www.inyocounty.us/services/county-administrators-office/bid-request-rfp


ADUs for personal use or long-term rental.  The structures built with these plans will not be eligible 
to be permitted for overnight (or short-term) rentals. The County’s goal is to encourage the 
construction of new homes by offering a selection of pre-approved ADU and larger single family 
building permit plan sets that will reduce the initial design and review costs for residents. 
 
Task 1. Architectural and Engineered Building Plan Sets 

 
The consultant shall prepare a bid proposal for supplying the County with architectural, structural 
and engineered building plans, details, and supporting calculations for two different floor plans for 
six different unit types for which up to three architectural styles should be provided.  Units should 
have full kitchen and bath facilities; two sets of plans shall include the ADU above a garage. Units in 
the higher size ranges should be able to function as primary dwellings. 
 
The County may award contracts to more than one consultant team and/or for any portion of a 
consultant team’s proposal, to prepare final plan sets. 
 
 

A. Required Plan Types 
 

Unit Type Size 

Efficiency Unit/Tiny Home <400 sq. feet 

1-bedroom, 1-bath, kitchen ~ 600 sq. feet 

2-bedroom, 1-bath, kitchen ~ 800 sq. feet 

3-bed, 2 bath Single Family Home ~ 1500 sq feet 

Over garage (2 car) 2 car garage 

Over garage (single) Single car garage 

 
 

B. Architectural Styles 
As a whole, Inyo County’s architectural style is diverse and of an eclectic quality with no 
architecturally dominant style. The exception is the Lone Pine Design Review District 
(the Business District along Main Street, which also is U.S. Highway 395 through town). 
The exterior styling of all new buildings or major exterior modifications in the Lone Pine 
business district must conform to the guidelines of the Lone Pine Architectural Design 
Review Guidelines, available here.   
 
Each unit type should be available in up to three architectural styles, including one 
that meets the Lone Pine Architectural Design Review Guidelines.  Additional 
architectural styles should be compatible with rural mountainous or desert 
landscapes and environments.  

 

The goal is to provide designs with customizable architectural features in a manner 
that can accommodate various construction budgets. A basic design with optional 
architectural features such as varied roof forms; depth to façade; trim applied to 
surface planes of façade and/or accent features or materials on vertical walls, 
window, and door fenestration, etc. is preferred to meet various budget needs and 
support diverse visual building styles despite the nature of a pre-approved design. 
Energy efficient options should also be offered, and both heating and cooling should 

https://www.inyocounty.us/sites/default/files/2019-06/lpguide_0.pdf


be optional as one may be needed in desert environments but not in alpine mountain 
settings, and vice versa. 

 

C. Design Criteria 
1. All unit elevations shall be customizable to allow for variations in exterior materials 
as well as door and window fenestration to express individual owner’s tastes and respect 
community character. 

 
2. All designs shall fully comply with the Current California Residential Code, California 

Code of regulations, Title 24. 
 

3. Design shall also comply with Current California Building Code (CBC), California Code 
of regulations, Title 24, Part 2 for structure(s) or elements(s) exceeding the design 
limitations in the CRC or specifically directed by the CRC to use the CBC. 

 

D. Minimum Energy Compliance Design Criteria 

State Title 24 Energy Compliance documentation in all four primary orientations 
(north, south, east, and west facing) 
1. Climate Zone: 16 
2. Exterior Wall Insulation: R-20 
3. Attic Insulation: R-38 
4. Designed for heating and optional cooling: 92 AFUE (Heating); 15 SEER (Cooling) 

 

E. Foundation Design Criteria 

Both a shallow foundation design for building sites that do not exceed a slope of 1 unit 
vertical to 3 units horizontal and a deep foundation design for sites exceeding 1 to 3 
slope. Design does not assume unstable soil or expansive clay soil. 

 

1. Soil Bearing Pressure: 1500 PSF 
2. Seismic Design Category D 
3. Lateral Bearing Pressure: 100 PCF 
4. Foundation Depth Below Ground Surface: 12 inches Min. 

5. Deep Foundation minimum depth: 8’-0” Min. total embed 6’-0” Min. embed into 
undisturbed soil. 
 

F. Covered Porch Option 
At least one (1) elevation per floor plan shall include a design for an attached covered 
porch option, which may be included by the property owner. 
 
The following minimum covered porch option design elements shall be included 
within the plan: 
1. Ledger size and attachment details. 
2. Covered porch framing size, framing spacing, and connection details. 
3. Column size and isolated footing design including connection details. 
4. Details of any architectural features of the covered porch, which may include 

soffit detail, and any finish details and trim. 
 

G. Fire Resistive Construction Details 



Inyo County is a Wildland-Urban Interface Fire Area. CRC Section R337 applies. 
 
The proposed detached ADUs may be located within (4) feet of a real or assumed 
property line on the rear or side elevation. Therefore, for each of the proposed plan 
elevations, the rear and side elevation must comply with CRC Table R302.1 (1) Fire 
Resistance Protection/Rating of Exterior Wall elements. 

 

The following minimum fire protection details shall be included within the plans: 
 
1. One-hour fire rated wall construction detail for each architectural style that would 

comply with ASTM E119 or UL 263 testing. 
2. One-hour fire rates projection details on the underside of the projection for each 

architectural plan style. Assume two-foot minimum fire separation distance. 
3. Design elevation where the opening on the exterior fire walls shall not exceed 25% 

of the wall area. 
4. Specifications and details of roofing material and roof sheathing that would comply 

with a two-foot minimum fire separation distance. 
 

H. Fire Sprinkler Design Criteria 
 
Provide a note on the plans that indicates that when fire sprinklers are required, the fire 
sprinkler systems shall comply with the requirements for an NFPA 13R or 13D Fire 
Sprinkler system. 
 

Task 2. Draft Building Plans 
 
Selected consultant(s) will prepare a complete building plan set for review by County staff, 
including a plan check for compliance with the CBC. Plans and specifications shall comply with 
standard drawings and specifications of the County and other agencies as applicable. Final plan 
set to include: 
 

1. Floor plan 
2. Foundation plan 
3. Sections (all necessary) 
4. External elevations (along with customizable options) 
5. Renderings of exterior and internal features suitable for publication (all necessary) 
6. Suggested external and internal materials 

 
Task 3. Final Budget Plans 
 
Selected consultant(s) will prepare a complete building plan set incorporating feedback from 
County staff, the Planning Commission (as provided by staff, see below), and plan check 
corrections. The corrected plan set shall be submitted for a back check for compliance with the 
CBC and the consultant(s) will continue to make corrections until the plan check is approved. 
 
Task 4. Meetings and Presentations 
 

Selected consultant(s) shall meet with staff, either remotely or in person, at: 
1. Project Initiation: Prior to development of conceptual plan sets. 
2. Project Plan Review: 65% Plans (staff to present to Planning Commission and potentially 



local communities). 
3. Plan Correction: To review staff/public feedback on draft building plans and plan check 

corrections. 
 

Selected consultant(s) shall assist in the preparation of public meeting materials, letters, memos, 
and other documents as required by County staff, in paper and electronic forms. Consultant(s) 
shall provide regular progress reports to staff, and as necessary to communicate updates. 
 
Task 5. Publication-Ready Plans, Images, and Materials 
 
Selected consultant(s) shall make available selected plans and images of the Final Plan Sets, in 
digital format, to be part of marketing materials that will be produced for the ADU Program. 
 
Selected consultant(s) shall also prepare a .pdf guide that walks potential applicants through the 
process of taking advantage of the Pre-Approved ADU program to make it as easy and 
informative as possible. The guide should include a summary of how and when each of the ADU 
options would apply and use the existing ordinance (Inyo County Ordinance 1233) to clarify other 
regulations that apply to each, such as setbacks, separate entrances, allowable lot sizes, etc. 
 

VI. BUDGET 
 
The County’s not-to-exceed budget for this project is $80,000, which may be a combination of 
American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) and County General Funds. 
 

VII. PROPOSAL CONTENTS/SUBMITTAL 
 

A. RFP Requirements 

To be considered, a consultant responding to this RFP must provide the following items 
and/or information in its submittal: 

• A cover letter which shall provide the following: name, title, address and telephone 
number of individuals with the authority to negotiate and contractually bind the 
company. 

• A statement of the consultant’s qualifications, including brief biographical profiles 
of the company and key personnel who will be assigned to work on the project. 
Any relevant certifications or education should be identified. If applicable, a 
statement of qualification as a small and minority firm, women’s business 
enterprise, and/or labor area surplus firm (see 2 CFR §200.321), or a 
disadvantaged business enterprise (DBE). 

• Discussion of proposed approach to the above listed project scope, including any 
assumptions, methodologies, special resources, etc., and a timeline for the 
completion of the project. If relevant, include any recommendations for additional 
items which should be added to the project scope to help assure success. 

• A brief list of projects similar in scope performed by the consultant on relevant 
projects with dates of work and references with contact information for each. 

• Current project backlog and the consultant’s capacity to commit to the 
completion of this project. 



• A brief statement of qualifications and project summaries for sub-consultants 
expected to be used on projects, particularly experience working in rural 
jurisdictions and communities. 

• A not-to-exceed cost proposal which is itemized by phase, task, and completion 
date. Each item must include designated personnel, and estimated hours based 
upon the Consultant’s proposed work plan, Submittal of costs shall include hourly 
wages showing two separate line items for overhead and profit. Include additional 
charges for any subconsultant services, equipment, and reimbursable expenses, 
also showing overhead and profit. 

• A disclosure of any financial, business, or other relationship that the prospective 
consultant has with the County or any County employee that may have an impact 
upon the outcome of the selection process of this project. Alternatively, the 
consultant shall provide a statement that no disclosure is being made because no 
such relationship exists. 

• A general statement on the ability to meet the following short summary of the 
minimum insurance coverage requirements: 

o Professional Liability (Errors and Omissions) Insurance appropriate to the 
Contractor’s profession, with limit no less than $1,000,000 per occurrence or claim, 
$3,000,000 aggregate.  

o Commercial General Liability (CGL): Insurance Services Office Form CG 00 01 
covering CGL on an “occurrence” basis, including products and completed 
operations, property damage, bodily injury and personal & advertising injury with 
limits no less than $1,000,000 per occurrence.  

o Automobile Liability: Insurance Services Office Form Number CA 0001 covering, 
Code 1 (any auto), or if Contractor has no owned autos, Code 8 (hired) and 9 (non-
owned), with limit no less than $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury and 
property damage. Provision may be waived with signed letter on contractor’s 
letterhead certifying that no auto or mobile equipment will be used for/during the 
execution of the contract.  

o Workers’ Compensation insurance as required by the State of California, with 
Statutory Limits, and Employer’s Liability Insurance with limit of no less than 
$1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury or disease. Provision may be waived with 
signed letter on contractor’s letterhead certifying that contractor has no employees.  

• NOTE: Other insurance provisions apply. A complete copy of all insurance 
requirements is available upon request and shall be attached to contract. 

• Any additional information demonstrating the consultant’s capabilities as related 
to the selection criteria listed under Section VIII. 

B. RFP Submittal 

Proposals must be received by 5 p.m. (date) and must be clearly addressed to “County of 
Inyo ADU Plan Designs – ATTN: Meaghan McCamman.” Postmarks will not be accepted. 
Proposals will be received via the following: 

 

• Hand delivered to the Clint G. Quilter Consolidated Office Building, 1360 N. Main St, 
Bishop, CA 93514; 

• Mailed to P.O. Drawer N, Independence, CA, 93526; or 

• Emailed to mmccamman@inyocounty.us. 

mailto:mmccamman@inyocounty.us


9 

 

 

1. Modification or Withdrawal of Submittals: Any RFP received prior to the date 
and time specified above for receipt may be withdrawn or modified by written 
request of the consultant prior to the submittal deadline. 

2. Property Rights: RFPs received become the property of the County and all 
rights to the contents therein become those of the County. 

3. Confidentiality: Before award of the contract, all submittals will be designated 
confidential to the extent permitted by the California Public Records Act. After 
award of the contract (or if not awarded, after rejection of all submittals), all 
responses will be regarded as public records and will be subject to review by the 
public. Any language purporting to render all or portions of the submittals 
confidential will be regarded as non-effective and will be disregarded. 

4. Amendments to Request for Qualifications: The County reserves the right to 
amend this RFP by addendum before the final submittal date. 
 

VIII. ELIGIBILITY, REVIEW, SCORING, SELECTION 
 
 

A. Licensing Requirements 
 

Interested firms must meet ALL of the following qualification requirements in 
order to be considered by the County: 
 

1. Consultant shall be a licensed Architect or Engineer in the State of 
California. 

2. Consultant shall have a minimum of five (5) years of experience leading 
and controlling the design and construction of projects. Experience 
shall be in the State of California. 

3. Consultant shall be capable of following and submitting deliverables 
under the protocols of the U.S. National CAD Standards. 

 

B. Scoring Criteria 

Each submittal will be reviewed to determine if it meets the requirements 
contained under “Submittal Requirements.” An evaluation committee will 
evaluate the submitted RFPs based on the following criteria and values: 
 
 

Item Selection Criteria Value 

1 
Competitive cost, number of prescriptive designs offered, 
quantity/variation of architectural design options 

40 pts 

2 
Key personnel’s professional qualifications and experience, and 
recent experience in projects comparable to proposed tasks 30 pts 

3 
Key personnel’s familiarity with Inyo County and/or other similar rural 
jurisdictions 

10 pts 



10 

 

4 
Proposed approach and methodology to completing the scope of 
work 10 pts 

5 
Demonstrated capability to meet schedules and complete projects 
without major cost escalations or overruns 

10 pts 

 
 

The evaluation committee may choose to conduct oral interviews with the 
“short listed” top firms selected from the initial evaluation or may select a top-
ranked consultant based on RFP submittals. Cost negotiation with the top-
qualifying firm(s) will follow the evaluation, and then the selected firm will be 
expected to enter into a contract with the County to govern the provision of 
those services, including a fee schedule. The contract will need to be approved 
by the Inyo County Board of Supervisors prior to initiation of any services. 

 
 

C. Review and Selection Schedule 

Submittals will be evaluated using the criteria described above. It is Inyo 
County’s intention to evaluate submittals to award the contract, select 
consultants for interviews if necessary, and notify those consultants within two 
weeks of the deadline for submittals. A consultant could be notified of selection 
for contract award within one week of the interview date. 

 
All submitted proposals will be evaluated using the criteria described above. They 
will be reviewed and analyzed by a panel consisting of County staff and other 
regional housing partners. Proposals which best meet the County’s needs will be 
selected for further analysis and an interview. Interviews may be conducted 
remotely. This RFP does not commit the County to award the contract, to pay any 
costs incurred in preparation for this request, or to procure or contract for 
services. The County reserves the right, in its sole discretion during the selection 
process, to reject any or all proposals or any portion without exception or 
explanation. 

 
D. Contract 

 
The successful consultant will be required to enter into an agreement with the 
County involving Inyo County Standard Contract No. 116. The contract will specify 
the scope of service, schedule of work and a mutually agreed upon schedule of 
payment.  
 
A copy of Inyo County Standard Contract No. 116 is attached as Exhibit A. All 
respondents are encouraged to review the contract and verify they can satisfy all 
requirements contained therein. Any concerns with the contract or any of its 
terms or requirements should be addressed in the submitted Proposal. 

 
 



11 

 

E. Contracting Preferences 
 
Pursuant to Inyo County Code Chapter 6.06, Inyo County contracting preference 
for small and/or local businesses applies. To be eligible for the preferences, a 
business must provide a certification that it is a small and/or local business as 
defined by Inyo County Code § 6.06.020 with its bid. 

 

 

F. RFP Protest 
 
In the event a dispute arises concerning the request for proposal process prior to 
the award of the contract, the party wishing resolution of the dispute shall submit 
an appeal request in writing to the County Director of Purchasing. Bidder may 
appeal the recommended award or denial of award, provided the following 
stipulations are met: 

 
1. Only a bidder who has actually submitted a Proposal is eligible to submit 

an appeal request/protest against another bidder. Subcontractors are not 
eligible to submit bid protests. A bidder may not rely on the bid protest 
submitted by another bidder, but must timely pursue its own protest. 

 
2. Appeal must be in writing. The appeal must contain a complete statement 

of the basis for the protest and all supporting documentation. Materials 
submitted after the Protest Deadline will not be considered. The protest 
must refer to the specific portion or portions of the Contract Documents 
upon which the protest is based. The protest must include the name, 
address and telephone number of the person representing the protesting 
bidder if different from the protesting bidder. 

 
3. A copy of the protest and all supporting documents must also be 

transmitted by fax or by e-mail, by or before the Protest Deadline, to the 
protested bidder and any other bidder who has a reasonable prospect of 
receiving an award depending upon the outcome of the protest. 

 
4. Must be submitted within ten (10) calendar days of the date of the 

recommended award or denial of award letters. 
 

An appeal of a denial of award can only be brought on the following grounds: 
 

1. Failure to follow the selection procedures and adhere to requirements 
specified in the Bid Package or any addenda or amendments. 

 
2. There has been a violation of conflict of interest as provided by California 

Government Code Section 87100 et seq. 
 



12 

 

3. A violation of State or Federal Law. 
 
Appeals will not be accepted for any other reasons than those stated above. All 
appeals must be sent to: 
 
Nate Greenberg, Director 
County of Inyo 
P.O. Drawer N  
Independence, CA 93526 
ngreenberg@inyocounty.us  
 
County’s Purchasing Director shall make a decision concerning the appeal, and 
notify the Proposer making the appeal, within a reasonable time frame prior to 
the tentatively scheduled date for awarding the contract. The decision of County’s 
Purchasing Director shall be deemed final. 

 



13 

 

Exhibit A 

 

(County of Inyo Standard Contract No. 116) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

February 7, 2023   Reference ID:  
2023-3473  

 

Presentation on Information Services Department 
County Administrator - Information Services 

 NO ACTION REQUIRED 
   

ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Scott Armstrong, Information Services Director Scott Armstrong, Information Services Director 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Request Board receive presentation on the Information Services Department. 
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
This will be a presentation on past, current, and future projects and activities in Information Services. 
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding 
Source 

n/a Budget Unit  

Budgeted? n/a Object Code  
Recurrence   
Current Fiscal Year Impact 
 
Future Fiscal Year Impacts 
 
Additional Information 
 
 
ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
n/a 
  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
None. 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Information Services Update 2023 02 07 
  
APPROVALS: 
Scott Armstrong Created/Initiated - 1/31/2023 

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

Darcy Ellis Approved - 1/31/2023 
Scott Armstrong Approved - 2/2/2023 
Nate Greenberg Final Approval - 2/2/2023 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Information Services

Update for the Board of Supervisors  
February 2023



Overview

• About Information Services
• 2017 Strategic Planning Update
• Other Completed Projects
• Projects in Flight
• Pending and Future Projects
• Other Activities & Efforts
• Future



About IS:  Staffing

• 1 Office Technician (Vacant)
• 3 Programmer Analysts
• 4 Network & Operations Analysts
• 2 GIS Analysts (1 Vacant)
• 1 Assistant IS Director
• 1 IS Director



About IS:  What We Do

• 500 Computers
• 450 User Accounts
• 80 Servers
• 30 Switches
• 60 Copiers
• 130 Printers
• Phones & Cellphones

• IT Purchases
• Website
• Email
• Finance System
• PTMS
• GIS
• Secure Circuits



2017 Strategic Planning

1. Phone System
2. Wi-Fi
3. Website
4. Mobile Devices
5. Document Imaging

6. Video Conferencing
7. Help Desk System
8. Portal or Intranet
9. Digital Signature
10.Flexible Data Storage



Other Completed Projects

• Network Switch & Firewall Projects (3)
• CQCOB Equipment Moves
• CQCOB Dark Fiber & Redundant Connectivity
• Tyler Eagle Recorder for Clerk-Recorder
• Ticket Tracking System (Second Iteration)
• Several State Circuit Upgrades
• GIS Redistricting Maps











Projects in Flight

• Microsoft 365 (Initial Phases)
• Boardroom A/V Replacement (March)
• IS Internal Operations (Billing, Time Tracking)
• IS Improvement Efforts (Customer Service)
• Lone Pine HHS/Probation Networking Project
• Wi-Fi Phase 2 (VPN locations, Public Wi-Fi)



Pending and Future Projects

• Administration Center Cabling Project
• Clerk-Recorder CeRTNA Records Transfer
• Redundant Internet Service Connection
• Intrusion Prevention System (Cybersecurity)
• Business Continuity & Disaster Recovery Plan



Other Activities & Efforts

• IS Services – Continuous Improvement
• Improve Cybersecurity Posture
• Streamline the Annual Tech Refresh Process
• Server Migrations to Virtual Environment
• Automated New Employee Process









Future

• Move Internal County Info to Portal
• IS Key Initiatives Plan
• Professional Development in IS
• Strategic Alignment of County Services
• Enhanced Security Systems & Training
• System Status Monitoring & Alerts



Summary

• About Information Services
• 2017 Strategic Planning Update
• Other Completed Projects
• Projects in Flight
• Pending and Future Projects
• Other Activities & Efforts
• Future



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

February 7, 2023   Reference ID:  
2022-3331  

 

Presentation on the Office of the Public 
Administrator/Public Guardian 

Public Administrator-Public Guardian 
 NO ACTION REQUIRED 

   
ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Patricia Barton, Public Administrator Patricia Barton, Public Administrator 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Request Board hear presentation about the Office of the Public Administrator/Public Guardian. 
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
This is an informational presentation on the role and duties of the offices of the Public Administrator and 
Public Guardian. 
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding 
Source 

N/A Budget Unit  

Budgeted?  Object Code  
Recurrence   
Current Fiscal Year Impact 
 
Future Fiscal Year Impacts 
 
Additional Information 
 
 
ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
N/A 
  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
None. 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Public Administrator/Public Guardian PowerPoint  

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

  
APPROVALS: 
Darcy Ellis Created/Initiated - 2/1/2023 
Patricia Barton Final Approval - 2/1/2023 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



2 0 2 3  O V E R V I E W

OFFICE OF 
PUBLIC ADMINISTRATOR

PUBLIC GUARDIAN 



PUBLIC ADMINISTRATOR           PUBLIC GUARDIAN

Elected pursuant to 
Government Code §24009

Probate 
Decedent Estates

Appointed pursuant to 
Government Code §27430

Ex Officio Officer

Probate 
Investigation and 
Conservatorships



AUTHORITY
LEGALLY REQUIRED BY STATUTES  CALIFORNIA PROBATE CODE

PUBLIC ADMINISTRATOR

Effective January 1, 2008
California Probate Code
Section 7605

PUBLIC GUARDIAN

Effective January 1, 2010
California Probate Code
Section 2923



MISSION

Protecting the most vulnerable residents and estates across their lifespan and 
after death.

• Recognize that the care of the client is a prime responsibility and at all times strive to provide 
quality services consistent with available resources

• Provide services with respect for the dignity and uniqueness of the client unrestricted by 
considerations of social or economic status, race, age, sex, color, creed, national origin, 
religion, sexual orientation, personal attributes, or the nature of mental or medical problems

• Act as advocates in safeguarding client’s civil and legal rights
• Safeguard client’s rights to privacy by judiciously protecting information of a confidential 

nature
• Manage estates prudently; with care and good judgment
• Comply, at all times, with existing local, state, and federal laws as a minimum guide for the 

fulfillment of responsibilities to clients
• Maintain personal integrity, and assume responsibility and accountability for individual 

judgments and actions, and eliminate any possibility of conflict of interest or appearance of 
conflict of interest

• Protect, at all times and under all circumstances, the position of trust vested in the Office of 
the Public Guardian and Public Administrator

• Seek and maintain competence in professional skills
• Cooperate with other entities engaged in, or supportive of, collateral services to promote 

quality programs



MANDATED SERVICES 
PUBLIC GUARDIAN

The Public Guardian ensures each client's overall well-being by:

vAssessing physical, mental, medical, and financial needs
vSecuring appropriate medical care, housing, case management, and 

money management services
vAnalyzing legal and financial issues, including elder financial abuse
vApplying for Medicare, private pensions, and other benefits or 

income
vDeveloping a comprehensive plan for both immediate and long-term 

care
vLocating all assets and income
vManaging real and personal property
vAdvocating on their behalf with government agencies, relatives, and 

other individuals



Public Guardian (Probate) Core and Mandates Services
Serves adults with cognitive impairments by managing their personal and 
financial needs.

• Under the authority of the California Probate Code and the Superior Court, the 
Public Guardian conducts official investigations into conservatorship matters, 
and serves as the legally appointed conservator for persons, who have been 
determined by the Court to be incapable of caring for themselves. 

• These are generally older, frail, and vulnerable adults who are at risk or have 
been a victim of abuse, neglect, or undue influence.

• When appointed conservator, the Public Guardian manages the conservatorship 
of the person and/or estate. Public conservatorships are established only as a 
last resort, as determined by the Court. The Court can appoint the Public 
Guardian as a conservator of the person only, estate only, or both.

•  Generally, a Probate Conservatorship does not expire. However, it may be 
terminated by the Court upon request.

• When appointed conservator of the person, the Public Guardian is responsible 
for making sure the conservatee has proper food, clothing shelter and health 
care.



•  Depending on the conservatee’s ability to understand and make decision, the 
Public Guardian may receive authority from the Court to make medical decisions 
for the conservatee.

• When appointed conservator of the estate, the Public Guardian manages the 
finances of the conservatee who has been found by the Court to be unable to 
manage them alone or is susceptible to undue influence. The Public Guardian  
takes control of the conservatee’s assets. Collects income, pays debts and 
taxes, and oversees investment funds.

• Probate Conservatorships are generally created for adults who cannot make 
their own decisions, manage their finances, or avoid fraud/undue influence 
without help. Most clients suffer from dementia, traumatic brain injury, or other 
cognitive impairments.

Referrals are usually made through Adult Protective Services and may be 
made directly by a physician, hospital, skilled nursing facility, or the court.



The Public Administrator is responsible for:

v Searching for family members and wills
v Conducting thorough investigations to discover all of the decedent’s assets
v Arranging for decedents burial and disposition of remains
v Locating and managing all assets
v Protecting the decedent’s property from waste, loss or theft
v Monitoring creditor claims
v Paying the decedent’s bills and taxes
v Administering each estate through distribution to heirs and beneficiaries



Public Administrator- Core and Mandated Services

• PA serves the community by managing the estates of persons who die with or 
without a will or executor.

• Inyo County Public Administrator is charged with investigating and 
administering the estates of persons who die with no will or without an 
appropriate person to act as executor. The Public Administrator must be 
appointed by the Superior Court to act as executor, administrator, or trustee.

• When no one is acting to administer the estate, the Public Administrator must 
search for a will and any heirs. If a will is found, the named executor is notified. If 
no will is found, then the Public Administrator will attempt to contact heirs to 
manage the estate. If there are no heirs, or the heirs are unable to act, the 
Public Administrator may administer the estate by following the California 
Probate Code.



• Referrals to the Public Administrator are made by the coroner, mortuaries, court, 
skilled nursing facilities, and hospitals.

• The Public Administrator will determine if the case is accepted within 30 days of 
the referral. During this period, the Public Administrator searches for next of kin, 
funds for burial, and any assets that may be at risk.

• The Public Administrator must present the court with a detailed accounting of all 
client assets, debts, and any other relevant facts to administer assets. Small 
estates that do not require court supervision require up to 18 months for 
administration. The administration time for full probate cases varies depending 
on the complexity of the estate.



CASE LOAD AND KEY INITIATIVES

INYO COUNTY PUBLIC GUARDIAN CASELOAD

• 4 Person and Estate – 2 living Independently 
oContinued care and oversite on a daily basis

• 2 Proposed Conservatorship matters pending, both of 
which live independently

oSet on Superior Court Calendar and effectuate ensuing 
required Judicial Counsel paperwork and mandated 
services 



INYO COUNTY PUBLIC CONSERVATOR

• 4 -Formal Probates- All Intestate-1 International  *                            
Any assets that do not qualify for a simple transfer 
process will likely have to go through formal probate. 
And, if the dead person’s property is worth more than 
$166,250, none of the exceptions apply. PA must go to 
court and start a probate case.

o 1- Formal Probate is ready for Final Disposition of 
Petition, Accounting and Order and distribution of assets 
to heirs.  Fees, if granted, will be deposited into the 
General Fund and Fees will be paid to County Counsel, 
also deposited into the General Fund.

o 3-continued heir search and Petition to place on 
Calendar with Superior Court



• 11- Summary or Small Estates
o $61,500 for Affidavit for Succession to Real Property of 

Small Value- Inyo PA has not had and does not have any 
estate with Real Property at or below this valuation. PA’s 
authority is by Affidavit of her office

o Most Inyo PA estates are $5,000 and or substantially 
less. PA is required to manage decedent disposition of 
the cremains of persons that are indigent.  PA is required 
to conduct Next of Kin search and distribution of Tangible 
Personal Property.  



FEE SCHEDULE
PUBLIC GUARDIAN



STATUTORY FEE SCHEDULE
PUBLIC ADMINISTRATOR

• Value of Estate Compensation
• First $100,000 4%
• Next $100,000 3%
• Next $800,000 2%
• Next $9 million 1%
• Next $15 million 1/2%
*
Although Inyo Public Administrator effects all Judicial Counsel Paperwork, 
Fees by Statute are equally paid to County Counsel 

• Summary Estate, as of 01/01/2023  $3,000



• 12 deceased Conservatorship matters 
o Complete Judicial Counsel Paperwork and set for Final Accounting and 

distribution of tangible personal property and collection of fees

• Several fluctuating number of ongoing investigations for Proposed 
Conservatorships- required to initiate within 72 hours

o Continue investigations and determine on case by case basis validity of 
meeting criteria for Probate Conservatorship  e.g. LPS Conservatorship? 
Does not meet Probate Conservatorship criteria but can recommend 
alternatives to conservatorship. 



PAPG OVERVIEW

Public Administrator Public Guardian often work in Haz-
Mat conditions
• Hoarder Estates
• Domiciles and persons saturated in/with urine and feces, both 

human and animal. Blood born pathogens and caustic 
particulates



Public Guardian’s conservatees are persons that have 
failed every other possible determined solution to manage 
affairs without Court oversite 

Substituted Judgement for healthcare, including end of life decisions, estate 
and practical daily management

Public Administrator communicates with heirs 
throughout proceeding for years and ameliorates heir 
concerns and  extreme emotions 
PA is often the reporting party to heirs that a loved one 
has died.

PAPG- Probate Persons and Estates are managed within 
the means of each individual estate.  No County, State or 
Federal funds are utilized.



2023-2024 NEEDS & WANTS

Public Administrator Public Guardian staffing-  General Fund
• Fully Certified Department Head- CAPAPG Association Legislative 

Committee member
• Fully Certified Public Administrator Guardian Assistant Director
• Newly hired, highly qualified PAPG Specialist -  BPAR

 Need - Continued level of staffing with requested funding for on-call 
by  PAPG Assistant Director 50% of Fiscal Year (133 days)

Upon presentation and approval by the Board, correct Elected 
Department Head Salary as reasoned and presented in “Proposed 
Salary Adjustment for Elected and Appointed Department Heads and 
Officials” initially set on Board Agenda June 8, 2021.



2023-2024 OBJECTIVES

Present to Superior Court for Final Disposition

•  1-2 Formal Probates and collection of Fees 
• Backlog of Final Petition and Reports to Superior Court and collection of 

Fees for deceased conservatee estates
• Initiate CAPAPGPC membership and Certification of new Hire and comply 

with mandated continuing education requirements as establish by statute. 

Continue professional adherence to California Probate Law in the 
administration of Probate Conservatorships and Probate Estates

Meet the increasing demands of the aging population of  Inyo County with 
compassion and dignity.  



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

February 7, 2023   Reference ID:  
2023-4  

 

Treasurer-Tax Collector: Treasury Status Report - 
Quarter Ending December 31, 2022 

Treasurer-Tax Collector 
 NO ACTION REQUIRED 

   
ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Moana Chapman Alisha McMurtrie, Treasurer 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Receive Treasury Status Report - Quarter Ending December 31, 2022. 
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
The report is provided pursuant to the provisions of Section 53646(b) of the Government Code.  The 
primary purposes of the report are to disclose the following: 

• the investments and deposits of the treasury; 
• the cost basis and market values of the investments; 
• compliance with the County Investment Policy; 
• the weighted average of the investments; and  
• the projected ability of the treasury to meet the expected expenditure requirements of the 

treasury's pooled participants for the next six months. 
 
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding 
Source 

NA Budget Unit NA 

Budgeted? NA Object Code NA 
Recurrence NA  
Current Fiscal Year Impact 
NA 
Future Fiscal Year Impacts 
NA 
Additional Information 
 
 
ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

N/A 
  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
Pursuant to Section 53646(g) of the Government Code, copies of this report, while no longer mandated, 
will continue to be provided to the members of the Treasury Oversight Committee. 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. 12-31-2022 Treasury Status Report 
  
APPROVALS: 
Moana Chapman Created/Initiated - 1/3/2023 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 1/5/2023 
Moana Chapman Approved - 1/17/2023 
Alisha McMurtrie Final Approval - 1/18/2023 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



TO: Honorable Members of the Inyo County Board of Supervisors
FROM: Alisha McMurtrie, Treasurer-Tax Collector
SUBJECT: Report of the Status of the Inyo County Treasury as of: December 31, 2022
DATE: January 6, 2023

The following status report of the County Treasury as of 12-31-2022 is provided pursuant to the
provisions of Section 53646(b) of the Government Code.

The attached copy of the “Treasurer’s Daily Reconciliation” provides a breakdown of the dollar
amount of the Treasury assets by depository for monetary assets and by issuer for securities.

The attached copy of the custody statement from TRACKER, a Division of C2, LLC reflects,
among other things, the following information regarding each security held: issuer, maturity date;
CUSIP number; face amount; cost basis; and market value (calculated by Merrill Lynch).

The weighted average maturity of the investments of the Treasury was 590 days.

The latest PARS/OPEB investment statement is attached for reference.

It is anticipated that the County Treasury will be able to meet the liquidity requirements of its
pooled participants for the next six months.

The investment portfolio is in compliance with the Inyo County Treasury Investment Policy.

NOTES: Regarding Inyo County’s monetary assets held outside the County Treasury:
 Various Inyo County Departments and treasury pool participants maintain and

administer bank checking accounts outside the County Treasury.
 Inyo County’s PARS relationship for our OPEB investment began in June 2010. To

date: the PARS balance as of:12/31/2022 was $9,037,346.37 (Principal: $9,286,694.64
plus Contributions: $00.00 plus Interest: $-247,180.23 less Fees: $-2,168.04)

C: Members of the Inyo County Treasury Oversight Committee

COUNTY OF INYO

TREASURER-TAX COLLECTOR
168 NORTH EDWARDS STREET

POST OFFICE DRAWER O
INDEPENDENCE, CA 93526-0614

(760) 878-0312  (760) 878-0311 FAX

ALISHA McMURTRIE

TREASURER-TAX COLLECTOR



$203,088,761.52

$643,310.79

12/29/2022 ($259,506.13)

($786.24)

($1,866,468.52)

$201,605,311.42

Drawer $796.40
Vault $36,748.00

CHECKS	ON	HAND:
Date:
Date:
Date:

$4,786,176.75

$3,747,902.15

$12,451.23

$101,589.00

Agency Limit
$34,000,000.00 50,000,000
$3,500,000.00 1.74% of	5.00%
$322,308.58 0.16% of	100.00%

$117,745,000.00 58.40% of	100.00%
$9,927,498.43 4.92% of	100.00%
$11,747,509.99 5.83% of	15.00%
$2,000,000.00 0.99% of	30.00%
$7,437,000.00 3.69% of	30.00%
$6,567,338.93 3.26% of	5.00%

$193,246,655.93

$108,520,485.30 53.83% of	60.00%

$201,932,319.46

$327,008.04

($3,000,000.00)
$3,000,000.00

$86,250.00
$79,783.06
$38,714.80
$10,185.34
$98,831.32
$1,901.78
$406.12

$10,935.62

($35.11)
$327,008.04

Union	Bank	‐	General	Account.

CDs
Corporate	Obligation

U.S.	Bank	Money	Market

Federal	Agencies

INVESTMENTS:

Eastern	Sierra	Community	Bank	‐	Gen

El	Dorado	#2107	‐	Directs	Account

12/30/2022	PIONEER:	PERS	‐	CLASSIC	969
12/30/2022	PIONEER:	PERS	‐	PEPRA	27459

Explanation:

Beginning	"Claim	on	Cash	in	Treasury"

TREASURER	BALANCES:

CASH	ON	HAND:

Checks	Paid	on:

Deposit	Authorizations

RECONCILIATION

12/30/2022	AUD	PY:	PERS	‐	CLASSIC	20
12/30/2022	AUD	PY:	PERS	‐	CLASSIC	21

El	Dorado	#9703	‐	Cash	Account

Journal	Entry:

Outgoing	Debits:

Ending	"Claim	on	Cash	in	Treasury"

TREASURER'S	DAILY	RECONCILIATION
For	the	Business	Day	of:

12/30/2022

AUDITOR	BALANCES:

12/30/2022	CUSIP	#	3134GYAK8	‐	BUY‐TRADE

UBS	Money	Market

Federal	Agencies‐Treasury	Notes/Bonds

Local	Agencies

Prepared By:  Jennifer Ellis

NOTES

Grand	TTL	Investments

Treasury	Over/Short:

GRAND	TOTAL	TREASURY	BALANCE:

Maturities	>	1	Year

12/12/2022	SIFPD:	WF	ACCT.	ANALYSIS	FEE‐	NOV.	'22	CK	#2144

12/30/22	DARWIN	CSD:	LN	2018‐01	PMT	58	‐	JE	DAR20180158

Commercial	Paper

Local	Agency	Investment	Fund

BANK	ACCOUNTS:

12/30/2022	SEE	ATTACHED	EXHIBIT	"A"	FOR	OUTGOING
DEBIT	DETAILS

12/30/2022	AUD	PY:	PERS	‐	SIP	IRC	457

12/30/2022	CUSIP	#	3134GYAK8	‐	SETTLEMENT
12/30/2022	CUSIP	#	31846V567‐	SETTLEMENT

12/30/2022	AUD	PY:	PERS	‐	PEPRA	26010
12/30/2022	AUD	PY:	PERS	‐	PEPRA	25015



EXHIBIT "A"
OUTGOING DEBIT DETAILS

Aud PY ‐ Independence FPD ($30.00) TREASURER'S DAILY RECONCILIATION
Aud PY ‐ So Inyo FPD ($30.28) For the Business Day of 
Aud PY ‐ Olancha CSD ($38.44)

Aud PY ‐ Big Pine Cemetery Dist. ($60.97)  12/30/2022
Aud PY ‐ Big Pine FPD ($65.00)

Aud PY ‐ Lone Pine FPD ($109.29)

Aud PY ‐ Big Pine Cemetery Dist. ($173.82)

Aud PY ‐ Independence Cemetery Dist. ($223.56)

Aud PY ‐ Lone Pine CSD ($288.42)

Aud PY ‐ Independence FPD ($309.86)

Aud PY ‐ Pioneer Cemetery Dist. ($537.91)

Aud PY ‐ So Inyo FPD ($561.44)

Aud PY ‐ Mt. Whitney Cemetery Dist. ($604.73)

Aud PY ‐ Big Pine FPD ($613.70)

Aud PY ‐ Sierra Highlands CSD ($940.76)

Aud PY ‐ Lone Pine FPD ($998.67)

Aud PY ‐ CASDU  ($1,899.29)

Aud PY ‐ Olancha CSD ($1,965.66)

Aud PY ‐ Lone Pine CSD ($2,215.75)

Aud PY ‐ Pioneer Cemetery Dist. ($3,932.56)

Aud PY ‐ Payroll ($8,942.45)

Auditor ‐ Personal Payment ($14,300.00)

Aud PY ‐ Special District PY ($33,209.97)

Aud PY ‐ State Taxes ($61,248.54)

Auditor ‐ Corporate Vendor Pmt ($125,489.90)

Aud PY ‐ Federal Taxes ($323,524.75)

Aud PY ‐ Payroll ($927,556.93)

Aud PY ‐ EMPOWER ($1,860.00)

Aud PY ‐ VALIC ($2,010.00)

Aud PY ‐ ORION ($5,350.00)

Aud PY ‐ ICMA‐457 ($7,434.08)

Auditor ‐ Side Fund Debt Svc Pmt ($99,183.75)

Aud PY ‐ PERS ($79,783.06)

Aud PY ‐ PERS ($38,714.80)

Aud PY ‐ PERS ($10,185.34)

Aud PY ‐ PERS ($98,831.32)

Aud PY ‐ Pioneer Cemetery Dist. ($1,901.78)

Aud PY ‐ Pioneer Cemetery Dist. ($406.12)

Aud PY ‐ PERS ($10,935.62)

TOTAL ($1,866,468.52)

Prepared and attached by:  Jennifer Ellis



1ST FINANCIAL BANK USA 0.45 8/19/2025 32022RNT0 8/19/2020 0.450 248,000.00 248,000.00 222,562.64 8/19/2025 962
ALLY BANK 0.9 3/13/2023 02007GMY6 3/12/2020 0.900 248,000.00 248,000.00 246,425.20 3/13/2023 72
AMERICAN COMMERCE BANK 0.9 3/27/2024 02519TBA3 3/27/2020 0.900 248,000.00 248,000.00 236,842.48 3/27/2024 452
BEAL BANK USA (FKA NEVADA) 2.8 7/26/2023 07371DDC8 7/27/2022 2.800 248,000.00 248,000.00 245,750.64 7/26/2023 207
BMO HARRIS BANK NA 2.75 7/21/2023 05600XHF0 7/21/2022 2.750 248,000.00 248,000.00 245,753.12 7/21/2023 202
CAPITAL ONE BANK USA NA 1.1 11/17/2026 14042TDW4 11/17/2021 1.100 248,000.00 248,000.00 217,565.44 11/17/2026 1,417
CAPITAL ONE NA 1.1 11/17/2026 14042RQB0 11/17/2021 1.100 248,000.00 248,000.00 217,565.44 11/17/2026 1,417
CELTIC BANK 1.85 11/27/2024 15118RTC1 11/27/2019 1.850 248,000.00 248,000.00 235,530.56 11/27/2024 697
CENTERSTATE BANK 1.25 4/30/2025 15201QDE4 4/30/2020 1.250 250,000.00 250,000.00 231,687.50 4/30/2025 851
Citibank National SD 3.4 1/9/2024 17312QZ36 1/9/2019 3.400 245,000.00 245,000.00 241,993.85 1/9/2024 374
EAST BOSTON SAVINGS BANK 0.45 8/12/2025 27113PDP3 8/12/2020 0.450 248,000.00 248,000.00 222,934.64 8/12/2025 955
ENERBANK USA 1.8 11/22/2023 29278TMN7 11/27/2019 1.800 248,000.00 248,000.00 241,904.16 11/22/2023 326
FIRST CAROLINA BANK 0.45 8/20/2025 31944MBB0 8/20/2020 0.450 248,000.00 248,000.00 222,537.84 8/20/2025 963
FLAGSTAR BANK 1.15 4/29/2025 33847E3D7 4/29/2020 1.150 245,000.00 245,000.00 226,539.25 4/29/2025 850
GOLDMAN SACHS BANK USA 1.1 11/17/2026 38149MK51 11/17/2021 1.100 248,000.00 248,000.00 217,565.44 11/17/2026 1,417
GREENSTATE CREDIT UNION 0.4 8/18/2023 39573LAP3 8/18/2020 0.400 248,000.00 248,000.00 241,745.44 8/18/2023 230
JPMORGAN CHASE BANK NA 3 7/26/2023-23 46593LDJ5 7/26/2022 3.000 248,000.00 248,000.00 246,105.28 7/26/2023 207
LIVE OAK BANKING COMPANY 1.85 11/27/2024 538036GU2 11/27/2019 1.850 248,000.00 248,000.00 235,530.56 11/27/2024 697
LUANA SAVINGS BANK 0.6 5/8/2025 549104PQ4 5/8/2020 0.600 245,000.00 245,000.00 223,376.30 5/8/2025 859
MEDALLION BANK 1.2 4/30/2024 58404DGU9 4/30/2020 1.200 250,000.00 250,000.00 239,027.50 4/30/2024 486
Morgan Stanley Bank UT 2.65 2/8/2023 61747MJ77 2/8/2018 2.650 248,000.00 248,000.00 247,610.64 2/8/2023 39
MORGAN STANLEY PRIVATE BANK NA 1.9 11/20/2024 61760A3B3 11/27/2019 1.900 248,000.00 248,000.00 235,979.44 11/20/2024 690
NORTHEAST COMMUNITY BANK 0.45 8/20/2025 664122AF5 8/20/2020 0.450 248,000.00 248,000.00 222,537.84 8/20/2025 963
PACIFIC WETERN BANK 1.25 4/30/2025 69506YRL5 4/30/2020 1.250 250,000.00 250,000.00 231,687.50 4/30/2025 851
SAFRA NATIONAL BANK OF NEW YORK 2.9 7/27/2023-23 78658RJV4 7/27/2022 2.900 248,000.00 248,000.00 245,951.52 7/27/2023 208

YTMSettlement 
DateCUSIPDescription

Inyo County
Portfolio Holdings
Compliance Report | by Investment Policy
Report Format: By Transaction
Group By: Asset Category
Average By: Face Amount / Shares
Portfolio / Report Group: All Portfolios
As of 12/31/2022

Days To 
Maturity

Maturity 
DateMarket ValueCost ValueFace Amount

Certficate of Deposit - 30 %



SOMERSET TRUST CO 1 3/19/2025 835104BZ2 3/19/2020 1.000 248,000.00 248,000.00 229,201.60 3/19/2025 809
TEXAS EXCHANGE BANK SSB 2.9 7/21/2023-22 88241TNT3 7/22/2022 2.900 248,000.00 248,000.00 246,020.96 7/21/2023 202
UBS BANK NA 1.1 11/17/2026 90348JW97 11/17/2021 1.100 248,000.00 248,000.00 217,305.04 11/17/2026 1,417
VIRIVA FCU 1.85 11/27/2024 92823NAA9 11/27/2019 1.850 248,000.00 248,000.00 235,530.56 11/27/2024 697
WELLS FARGO BANK NA 3 7/28/2023 949763X43 7/29/2022 3.000 248,000.00 248,000.00 245,998.64 7/28/2023 209
Sub Total / Average Certficate of Deposit - 30 % 1.583 7,437,000.00 7,437,000.00 7,016,767.02 658

CREDIT AGRICILE CIB NY 0 2/24/2023 22533UPQ0 6/3/2022 2.309 2,000,000.00 1,966,454.44 1,987,060.00 2/24/2023 55
MUFG BANK LTD 0 4/14/2023 62479MRE5 7/20/2022 3.594 5,000,000.00 4,869,722.22 4,933,800.00 4/14/2023 104
NATIXIX NY 0 2/24/2023 63873KPQ4 6/3/2022 2.443 5,000,000.00 4,911,333.33 4,967,650.00 2/24/2023 55
Sub Total / Average Commercial Paper - 15 % 2.900 12,000,000.00 11,747,509.99 11,888,510.00 75

CITIGROUP GLOBAL MARKETS 3.75 7/20/2023 17330PSX8 7/20/2022 3.750 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 1,976,040.00 7/20/2023 201
Sub Total / Average Coporate Obligation - 30 % 3.750 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 1,976,040.00 201

FFCB 0.44 11/4/2024-21 3133EMFP2 11/4/2020 0.440 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 2,774,940.00 11/4/2024 674
FFCB 0.47 1/27/2025-21 3133EMER9 10/27/2020 0.470 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 2,751,870.00 1/27/2025 758
FFCB 0.52 10/21/2025-21 3133EMDZ2 10/21/2020 0.520 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 2,686,440.00 10/21/2025 1,025
FFCB 0.53 10/22/2025-21 3133EMEC2 10/22/2020 0.530 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 2,687,010.00 10/22/2025 1,026
FFCB 0.53 8/12/2025-22 3133EL3P7 8/12/2020 0.530 4,000,000.00 4,000,000.00 3,612,520.00 8/12/2025 955
FFCB 0.55 9/16/2025-21 3133EL7K4 9/16/2020 0.550 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 4,505,800.00 9/16/2025 990
FHLB 0.52 1/28/2025-22 3130ANEJ5 7/28/2021 0.520 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 4,583,550.00 1/28/2025 759
FHLB 0.55 7/30/2024-20 3130AJUN7 7/30/2020 0.550 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 2,802,240.00 7/30/2024 577
FHLB 0.7 3/16/2026-22 3130ALEP5 3/16/2021 0.700 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 4,437,300.00 3/16/2026 1,171
FHLB 0.75 1/29/2025-21 3130ALY65 4/29/2021 0.750 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 1,842,220.00 1/29/2025 760
FHLB 0.75 6/30/2025-21 3130AMX31 6/30/2021 0.750 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 2,726,250.00 6/30/2025 912
FHLB 1 12/30/2024-22 3130AQFN8 12/30/2021 1.000 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 2,784,330.00 12/30/2024 730
FHLB 1 12/30/2024-22 3130AQ4Z3 12/30/2021 1.000 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 2,791,650.00 12/30/2024 730
FHLB 1 6/30/2026-21 3130AMT28 6/30/2021 1.000 4,000,000.00 4,000,000.00 3,553,680.00 6/30/2026 1,277
FHLB 1 9/30/2024-22 3130AQD59 12/30/2021 1.000 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 4,673,650.00 9/30/2024 639
FHLB 1.2 12/22/2025-22 3130AQ5D1 12/22/2021 1.200 4,000,000.00 4,000,000.00 3,631,560.00 12/22/2025 1,087
FHLB 1.2 4/28/2026-21 3130ALXP4 4/28/2021 1.200 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 1,797,980.00 4/28/2026 1,214
FHLB 1.55 12/22/2026-22 3130AQ5C3 12/22/2021 1.550 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 2,684,820.00 12/22/2026 1,452
FHLB Step 6/16/2026-21 3130AMR46 6/16/2021 8.316 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 2,678,370.00 6/16/2026 1,263
FHLMC 0.25 6/26/2023 3137EAES4 7/25/2022 3.084 10,000,000.00 9,745,000.00 9,793,600.00 6/26/2023 177

Description CUSIP Settlement 
Date YTM

Commercial Paper - 15 %

Coporate Obligation - 30 %

Federal Agencies - 100 %

Face Amount Cost Value Market Value Maturity 
Date

Days To 
Maturity



FHLMC 0.6 11/12/2025-21 3134GXBM5 11/17/2020 0.600 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 2,677,140.00 11/12/2025 1,047
FHLMC 0.6 9/30/2025-21 3134GWTG1 9/30/2020 0.600 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 4,499,750.00 9/30/2025 1,004
FHLMC 0.62 12/1/2025-21 3134GXDM3 12/1/2020 0.620 4,000,000.00 4,000,000.00 3,579,960.00 12/1/2025 1,066
FHLMC 0.625 8/19/2025-21 3134GWQN9 8/19/2020 0.625 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 2,712,180.00 8/19/2025 962
FHLMC 0.625 9/23/2025-20 3134GWP75 9/23/2020 0.625 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 4,507,000.00 9/23/2025 997
FHLMC 5 12/26/2025-23 3134GYAK8 12/30/2022 5.000 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 2,995,140.00 12/26/2025 1,091
FNMA 0.55 11/4/2025-22 3135GA2N0 11/4/2020 0.550 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 4,475,750.00 11/4/2025 1,039
FNMA 0.56 8/21/2025-23 3136G4N74 8/21/2020 0.560 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 2,709,780.00 8/21/2025 964
FNMA 0.58 10/28/2025-22 3135GA2A8 11/17/2020 0.580 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 2,689,650.00 10/28/2025 1,032
FNMA 0.625 7/21/2025-22 3136G4ZJ5 7/21/2020 0.625 4,000,000.00 4,000,000.00 3,629,160.00 7/21/2025 933
FNMA 0.7 7/21/2025-21 3136G4ZG1 7/21/2020 0.700 4,000,000.00 4,000,000.00 3,628,480.00 7/21/2025 933
Sub Total / Average Federal Agencies - 100 % 1.217 118,000,000.00 117,745,000.00 107,903,770.00 902

LAIF LGIP LAIF4000 9/30/2018 2.173 34,000,000.00 34,000,000.00 34,000,000.00 N/A 1
Sub Total / Average Local Agency Investment Fund - $ 50M 2.173 34,000,000.00 34,000,000.00 34,000,000.00 1

T-Bill 0 6/15/2023 912796X53 7/8/2022 2.703 2,000,000.00 1,950,600.00 1,959,680.00 6/15/2023 166
T-Note 1.625 4/30/2023 912828R28 5/11/2022 2.007 5,000,000.00 4,981,750.00 4,953,500.00 4/30/2023 120
T-Note 2.75 5/31/2023 9128284S6 6/16/2022 2.921 3,000,000.00 2,995,148.43 2,977,740.00 5/31/2023 151
Sub Total / Average Treasury Notes | Bonds - 100 % 2.420 10,000,000.00 9,927,498.43 9,890,920.00 138

U.S. Bank MM MM331846V567 8/3/2021 4.060 6,567,338.93 6,567,338.93 6,567,338.93 N/A 1
Sub Total / Average U.S. Bank Money Market - 5% 4.060 6,567,338.93 6,567,338.93 6,567,338.93 1

UBS Financial MM MM9591 6/30/2018 4.040 3,500,000.00 3,500,000.00 3,500,000.00 N/A 1
Sub Total / Average UBS Money Market - 5 % 4.040 3,500,000.00 3,500,000.00 3,500,000.00 1
Total / Average 1.739 193,504,338.93 192,924,347.35 182,743,345.95 590

Cost Value Market Value Maturity 
Date

Days To 
MaturityDescription CUSIP Settlement 

Date YTM Face Amount

Treasury Notes | Bonds - 100 %

U.S. Bank Money Market - 5%

UBS Money Market - 5 %

Local Agency Investment Fund - $ 50M



COUNTY OF INYO

PARS OPEB Trust Program 12/1/2022 to 12/31/2022

Nathan Greenberg

County Administrative Officer

County of Inyo

P.O. Drawer N

Independence, CA 93526

Source 12/1/2022 Contributions Earnings Expenses Distributions Transfers 12/31/2022

OPEB 1001 $9,286,694.64 $0.00 -$247,180.23 $2,168.04 $0.00 $0.00 $9,037,346.37

Totals $9,286,694.64 $0.00 -$247,180.23 $2,168.04 $0.00 $0.00 $9,037,346.37

Source

OPEB

Source

OPEB

Source 1-Month 3-Months 1-Year 3-Years 5-Years 10-Years

OPEB -2.66% 4.62% -14.71% 1.80% 3.58% 5.56% 6/16/2010

Information as provided by US Bank, Trustee for PARS;  Not FDIC Insured;  No Bank Guarantee;  May Lose Value

                                            Headquarters - 4350 Von Karman Ave., Suite 100, Newport Beach, CA 92660     800.540.6369     Fax 949.250.1250     www.pars.org

Account balances are inclusive of Trust Administration, Trustee and Investment Management fees

Annualized Return

Investment Return:  Annualized rate of return is the return on an investment over a period other than one year multiplied or divided to give a comparable one-year return.

Past performance does not guarantee future results.  Performance returns may not reflect the deduction of applicable fees, which could reduce returns.  Information is deemed reliable but may be subject to change.

Investment Return

Account Report for the Period

Beginning Balance 

as of 

Investment Selection

Account Summary

Moderate HighMark PLUS

Ending                

Balance as of

The dual goals of the Moderate Strategy are growth of principal and income. It is expected that dividend and interest income will comprise a 

significant portion of total return, although growth through capital appreciation is equally important. The portfolio will be allocated between equity 

and fixed income investments.

Plan's Inception Date

Investment Objective



California Natural Resources Building 

715 P Street, 16th Floor, Sacramento, California 95814 

Commissioners 
Samantha Murray, President 

La Jolla 
Erika Zavaleta, Vice President 

Santa Cruz 
Jacque Hostler-Carmesin, Member 

McKinleyville 
Eric Sklar, Member 

Saint Helena 
Anthony Williams, Member 

Huntington Beach 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
Gavin Newsom, Governor 

Fish and Game Commission 

 

Wildlife Heritage and Conservation 
Since 1870 

Melissa Miller-Henson 
Executive Director 

P.O. Box 944209 
Sacramento, CA 94244-2090 

(916) 653-4899 
fgc@fgc.ca.gov 

www.fgc.ca.gov

REVISED* MEETING AGENDA 
February 8-9, 2023 

 
Participate in Person

Natural Resources Headquarters Building 
715 P Street, Auditorium 
Sacramento, CA 95814 

Participate via Webinar/Teleconference 

The meeting will be live streamed; visit http://www.fgc.ca.gov the day of the meeting to 
watch or listen. To provide public comment during the meeting, please join at an in-

person location, via Zoom, or by telephone; click here for instructions on how to join. 

Pursuant to California Government Code Section 11133, the California Fish and Game 
Commission is conducting this meeting by webinar/teleconference in addition to the in-person 

location. Commission members may participate remotely. The public may provide public 
comment during the public comment periods and otherwise observe remotely, consistent with 

the Bagley-Keene Open Meeting Act. 

* This agenda is revised to amend items 8(A), 17(B), 19(B) and 21. 

Note: See important meeting deadlines and procedures, including written public 
comment deadlines, starting on page 10. Unless otherwise indicated, the  
California Department of Fish and Wildlife is identified as Department. 

Invitation: The Commission invites members of the public to join commissioners and 
staff for a field trip currently under development that will take place in 
conjunction with the meeting. Details will be available in advance of the 
Commission meeting. Members of the public are welcome to join but must 
provide their own transportation. 

DAY 1 – February 8, 2023, 8:30 AM 

CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL TO ESTABLISH QUORUM 

1. Consider approving agenda and order of items 

mailto:fgc@fgc.ca.gov
http://www.fgc.ca.gov/
http://www.fgc.ca.gov/
https://nrm.dfg.ca.gov/FileHandler.ashx?DocumentID=208997&inline


 

2 

COMMISSION ELECTIONS AND COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS 

2. Election of Commission president and vice president 

The commissioners annually elect one of their number as president and one as vice 
president, by a concurrent vote of at least three commissioners. 
(Pursuant to Section 102, Fish and Game Code) 

3. Committee assignments 

The Commission forms three committees from its membership, consisting of at least 
one commissioner: Marine Resources Committee, Wildlife Resources Committee, and 
Tribal Committee.  

(Pursuant to sections 105, 106 and 106.5, Fish and Game Code) 

GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENT 

4. General public comment for items not on the agenda 
Receive public comment regarding topics within the Commission’s authority that are not 
included on the agenda. 
Note: The Commission may not discuss or take action on any matter raised during this item, 
except to decide whether to place the matter on the agenda of a future meeting (sections 11125 
and 11125.7(a), Government Code). 

CONSENT ITEMS 

Note: Items on the consent calendar are expected to be routine and non-controversial. After public 
comment, the Commission will consider approving items on the consent calendar in a single vote 
without discussion. The presiding commissioner may choose to remove any item from the consent 
calendar and allow a separate discussion and potential action on that item in response to a request by 
a Commission member, staff, or an interested person. 

5. Shasta snow-wreath 

Consider ratifying findings on the decision to list Shasta snow-wreath (Neviusia cliftonii) 
as endangered under the California Endangered Species Act (CESA). 
(Pursuant to Section 2075.5, Fish and Game Code) 

6. Greater sage-grouse 

Consider approving the Department’s request for a 30-day extension to review the 
petition to list greater sage-grouse (Centrocercus urophasianus) as a threatened or 
endangered species under CESA. 
(Pursuant to Section 2073.5(b), Fish and Game Code) 

7. Electronic display of licenses via mobile application 

Consider adopting regulations to enable the Department to accept electronic display of 
licenses on a Department mobile application, consistent with Assembly Bill 817 
(Chapter 607, Statutes of 2021).  
(Amend Section 700.4, Title 14, CCR) 



 

3 

DISCUSSION AND ACTION ITEMS  

8. Commission executive director and Department reports 

Receive updates on items of note since the previous Commission meeting. 

(A) Commission executive director’s report 

I. Update on planning and coordination for reviewing Commission policies 

II. Progress on the justice, equity, diversity and inclusion plan 

III. Public notice that a greater sage-grouse CESA petition was received 

IV. Annual report regarding necropsies on mountain lions taken under 2022 
depredation permits 

(B) Department director and Department Law Enforcement Division 

9. Western Joshua tree 

Consider the petition, the Department’s status review report, and comments received to 
potentially determine whether listing western Joshua tree (Yucca brevifolia) as 
threatened under CESA is warranted. 
(Pursuant to sections 2075 and 2075.5, Fish and Game Code) 
Note: At is October 12-13, 2022 meeting, the Commission closed the public hearing and 
administrative record for the Commission’s decision, except for input from and consultation with 
tribal governments, and continued deliberation to this meeting. The Commission is not expected 
to take any further comment on this item other than from tribal governments.  

Note: Findings will be adopted at a future meeting.  

10. Central Valley sport fishing 

Consider authorizing publication of notice of intent to amend central valley sport fishing 
regulations.  
(Amend subsections 7.40(b)(4), (43), (66) and (80), Title 14, CCR) 

11. Klamath River Basin sport fishing 

Consider authorizing publication of notice of intent to amend Klamath River Basin sport 
fishing regulations. 
(Amend Section 5.87 and subsection 7.40(b)(50), Title 14, CCR) 

12. Waterfowl hunting 

Discuss proposed amendments to waterfowl hunting regulations.  
(Amend Section 502, Title 14, CCR) 

13. Elk hunting 

Discuss proposed amendments to elk hunting regulations.  
(Amend sections 364 and 364.1, Title 14, CCR) 

14. Bighorn sheep hunting 

Discuss proposed amendments to bighorn sheep hunting regulations.  
(Amend Section 362, Title 14, CCR) 

15. Game fish contests 

Consider approving sufficiently related changes to the regulations adopted by the 
Commission on June 16, 2022 for game fish contests. 
(Amend Section 230, Title 14, CCR) 



 

4 

16. Department update on in-river salmon 

Receive Department presentation and discuss in-river salmon needs and threats. 

17. Regulation change petitions (wildlife and inland fisheries) 

(A) New petitions 
Receive new petitions for regulation change. 
(Pursuant to Section 662, Title 14, CCR) 

Consideration of whether to grant, deny, or refer for additional review is expected 
to be scheduled for the April 19-20, 2023 meeting. 

(B) Previously received petitions 
Consider whether to grant, deny, or refer for additional review, petitions for 
regulation change received at previous meetings. Petitions granted today will be 
added to the Commission’s rulemaking calendar for development and future 
consideration. 

(Pursuant to Section 662, Title 14, CCR) 

I. Petition 2021-007: Request to revise authorized methods of take and 
designation for wild pig. 

II. Petition 2021-017: Request to make various changes to big game hunting 
regulations. 

III. Petition 2022-18: Request to delay season start dates for deer hunting. 

18. Non-regulatory requests from previous meetings (wildlife and inland fisheries) 

Consider and potentially act on wildlife and inland fisheries non-regulatory requests 
submitted by members of the public at previous meetings. 

19. Committee and Department reports 

Receive updates on items of note since the previous Commission meeting from 
Commission committees and Department divisions. 

(A) Wildlife Resources Committee 

Receive summary and consider approving recommendations from the 
January 11-12, 2023 committee meeting. Discuss referred topics and consider 
revisions to topics and timing. 

(B) Department Wildlife and Fisheries Division, and Department Ecosystem 
Conservation Division 

I. Update on Clear Lake hitch efforts 

II. Annual report regarding Camp Roberts, Camp Pendleton, and Fort Hunter 
Liggett deer and elk hunts. 



 

5 

DAY 2 – February 9, 2023, 8:30 AM 

CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL TO ESTABLISH QUORUM  

 

GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENT 

20. General public comment for items not on the agenda 

Receive public comment regarding topics within the Commission’s authority that are not 
included on the agenda.  
Note: The Commission may not discuss or take action on any matter raised during this item, 
except to decide whether to place the matter on the agenda of a future meeting (sections 11125 
and 11125.7(a), Government Code). 

CONSENT ITEMS 

Note: Items on the consent calendar are expected to be routine and non-controversial. After public 
comment, the Commission will consider approving items on the consent calendar in a single vote 
without discussion. The presiding commissioner may choose to remove any item from the consent 
calendar and allow a separate discussion and potential action on that item in response to a request by 
a Commission member, staff, or an interested person. 

21. Kelp Harvest 

(A) Kelp harvest plan 
Consider approving a six-month extension of The Cultured Abalone Farm, LLC’s 
current five-year kelp harvest plan (2018-2023). 
(Pursuant to subsections 165(c) and 165.5(b)(2), Title 14, CCR) 

(B) Administrative kelp bed lease 
Consider approving a six-month extension of The Cultured Abalone Farm, LLC’s 
existing lease for Administrative Kelp Bed 26 in Santa Barbara County. 

(Pursuant to Section 165.5, Title 14, CCR) 

22. Recreational hoop net regulations 

Consider adopting a 90-day extension of emergency regulations to amend and clarify 
hoop net regulations in order to minimize entanglement risk of federally-protected 
species and to expand the current identification requirement in effect south of Pt. 
Arguello, Santa Barbara County, to apply statewide. 
(Amend subsection 29.80(b), Title 14, CCR) 

DISCUSSION AND ACTION ITEMS  

23. Marine protected areas decadal management review 
Receive a presentation from the Department on the first decadal management review 
report for the statewide network of marine protected areas. 



 

6 

24. Commercial and recreational take of California spiny lobster and recreational 
hoop net requirements for take of crustaceans 

Discuss proposed amendments to regulations for (a) commercial and recreational take 
of California spiny lobster, and (b) recreational hoop net requirements for take of 
crustaceans. 
(Amend sections 29.80, 29.90, 29.91, 121, 121.5, 122, 122.1, 122.2 and 705, Title 14, 
CCR) 

25. Commercial kelp harvest permit 

Consider approving the renewal of Lance (Jeff) Maassen’s kelp harvest permit for 
commercial harvest of Sargassum horneri and consider adding a new harvesting site at 
Catalina Island, Los Angeles County.  
(Pursuant to subsection 165(f)(1), Title 14, CCR) 

26. Experimental fishing permit (EFP) application 

Receive, consider, and potentially act on an application submitted by Bart Chadwick, 
the Department’s recommendations, and comments received for an EFP to test the 
commercial use of timed and acoustic release pop-up gear systems developed by Sub 
Sea Sonics in the California Dungeness crab fishery. 
(Pursuant to Section 91, Title 14, CCR) 

27. Regulation change petitions (marine) 

(A) New petitions 
Receive new petitions for regulation change. 
(Pursuant to Section 662, Title 14, CCR) 

Consideration of whether to grant, deny, or refer for additional review is expected 
to be scheduled for the April 19-20, 2023 meeting. 

(B) Previously received petitions 
Consider whether to grant, deny, or refer for additional review, petitions for 
regulation change received at previous meetings. Petitions granted today will be 
added to the Commission’s rulemaking calendar for development and future 
consideration. 

(Pursuant to Section 662, Title 14, CCR) 

I. Petition 2022-17: Request to amend the number and type of buoys 
required for recreational crab traps. 

28. Non-regulatory requests from previous meetings (marine) 

Consider and potentially act on marine non-regulatory requests submitted by members 
of the public at previous meetings. 

29. Committee and Department reports 

Receive updates on items of note since the previous Commission meeting from 
Commission committees and Department divisions. 

(A) Marine Resources Committee 

Discuss referred topics and consider revisions to topics and timing. Consider 
approving draft agenda topics for the next committee meeting on March 14 
and 16, 2023. 



 

7 

(B) Department Marine Region 

I. Outcomes of International Pacific Halibut Commission annual meeting 
held January 23-27, 2023 

II. Update and public discussion on Department actions during the 
recreational Dungeness crab fishing season to protect humpback whales, 
blue whales, and/or Pacific leatherback sea turtles  
(Pursuant to Section 29.80) 

(C) Tribal Committee  

Discuss referred topics and consider revisions to topics and timing. Consider 
approving draft agenda topics for the next committee meeting on April 18, 2023. 

I. Tribal Subsistence Harvest Workgroup structure and process 

30. Commission administrative items 

(A) Legislation and other agency regulations 

(B) Rulemaking timetable updates  

(C) Future meetings – April 19-20, 2023 and new business 

Adjourn  



 

8 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

(Not Open to Public) 

At a convenient time during the regular agenda of the meeting listed above, the Commission 
will recess from the public portion of the agenda and conduct a closed session on the agenda 
items below. The Commission is authorized to discuss these matters in a closed session 
pursuant to Government Code Section 11126, subdivisions (a)(1), (c)(3), and (e)(1), and Fish 
and Game Code Section 309. After closed session, the Commission will reconvene in public 
session, which may include announcements about actions taken during closed session. 

(A) Pending litigation to which the Commission is a Party 

I. The Ballona Wetlands Land Trust v. California Fish and Game Commission 
(Ballona Wetlands Ecological Reserve petition for regulation change) 

II. Fall River Conservancy and California Trout v. California Fish and Game 
Commission and California Department of Fish and Wildlife (California 
Environmental Quality Act determination regarding amendments to inland trout 
regulations) 

III. United Water Conservation District v. California Fish and Game Commission 
(southern California steelhead “may be warranted” determination under the 
California Endangered Species Act and regulation authorizing limited take under 
Fish and Game Code Section 2084) 

IV. Crowe v. California Fish and Game Commission (suspension of a commercial 
fishing license and a lobster operator permit) 

(B) Possible litigation involving the Commission 

(C) Staffing 

(D) Deliberation and action on license and permit items 

I. Consider the proposed decision in Agency Case No. 15ALJ07-FGC, the 
accusation filed against Aaron Lance Newman regarding revocation of sport 
fishing and hunting privileges. 

  



 

9 

California Fish and Game Commission 
Meeting Schedule 

Note: As meeting dates and locations can change, please visit www.fgc.ca.gov for the 
most current list of meeting dates and locations. All Commission meetings will 
include a webinar/teleconference option for attendance and every effort will be 
made to ensure that committee meetings include the same. 

Meeting Date Commission Meeting Committee Meeting 

March 14 and 16  
Marine Resources 
Monterey 

April 18  
Tribal  
Fresno/Bakersfield area 
 

April 19-20 Fresno/Bakersfield area  

May 17 Teleconference – Sacramento  

May 17  
Wildlife Resources  
Monterey/Santa Cruz area 

June 14-15 

CalEPA Headquarters Building 
Coastal Hearing Room, 2nd Floor 
1001 I Street 
Sacramento 

 

July 20  
Marine Resources 
Sonoma/San Francisco Bay area 

August 21  
Tribal  
Smith River area/North coast 

August 22-23 Smith River area/North coast  

September 21  
Wildlife Resources  
Chico area 

October 11-12 San Jose area  

November 16  
Marine Resources 
San Diego area 

December 12  
Tribal  
San Diego area  

December 13-14 San Diego area   

   

   

http://www.fgc.ca.gov/


 

10 

Other Meetings of Interest 

Association of Fish and Wildlife Agencies 

• September 23-27; 2023 – Calgary, Alberta, Canada 

Pacific Fishery Management Council 

• March 2023 – Seattle, WA 

• April 2023 – Foster City, CA 

• June 2023 – Vancouver, WA 

• September 2023 – Spokane, WA 

• November 2023 – Garden Grove, CA 

Pacific Flyway Council 

• March 21, 2023 – St. Louis, MO 

• August 2023 – Location TBD 

Western Association of Fish and Wildlife Agencies 

• July 9-14, 2023 – Santa Fe, NM 

Wildlife Conservation Board 

• February 16, 2023 – Sacramento, CA 

• May 25, 2023 – Sacramento, CA 

• August 24, 2023 – Sacramento, CA 

• November 16, 2023 – Sacramento, CA  



 

11 

Important Commission Meeting Procedures Information 

Welcome to a Meeting of the California Fish and Game Commission 

This year marks the 153rd year of operation of the Commission in partnership with the 
California Department of Fish and Wildlife. Our goal is the preservation of our heritage and 
conservation of our natural resources through informed decision making; Commission 
meetings are vital in achieving that goal and we provide this information to be as effective and 
efficient toward that end. Welcome, and please let us know if you have any questions. 

Persons with Disabilities 

Persons with disabilities needing reasonable accommodation to participate in public meetings 
or other Commission activities are invited to contact the Department’s Equal Employment 
Opportunity (EEO) Office at EEO@wildlife.ca.gov. Accommodation requests for facility and/or 
meeting accessibility and requests for American Sign Language interpreters should be 
submitted at least two weeks prior to the event. Requests for real-time captioners should be 
submitted at least four weeks prior to the event. These timeframes are to help ensure that the 
requested accommodation is met. If a request for an accommodation has been submitted but 
is no longer needed, please contact the EEO Office immediately. 

Stay Informed  

To receive meeting agendas and regulatory notices about those subjects of interest to you, 
visit the Commission’s website, www.fgc.ca.gov, to sign up on our electronic mailing lists. 

Submitting Written Comments 

The public is encouraged to comment on any agenda item. Submit written comments by one of 
the following methods: E-mail to fgc@fgc.ca.gov; mail to California Fish and Game 
Commission, P.O. Box 944209, Sacramento, CA 94244-2090; deliver to California Fish and 
Game Commission, 715 P Street, 16th Floor, Sacramento, CA 95814 (you must call at least 
one business day in advance to arrange delivery). Materials provided to the Commission may 
be made available to the general public. 

Comment Deadlines 

The Comment Deadline for this meeting is 5:00 p.m. on January 26, 2023. Written 
comments received at the Commission office by this deadline will be made available to 
Commissioners prior to the meeting. 

The Supplemental Comment Deadline for this meeting is noon on February 3, 2023. 
Comments received by this deadline will be made available to Commissioners at the meeting. 

Written comments will not be accepted after the supplemental comment deadline.  

Petitions for Regulation Change 

Any person requesting that the Commission adopt, amend, or repeal a regulation must 
complete and submit form FGC 1, Petition to the California Fish and Game Commission for 
Regulation Change (as required by Section 662, Title 14, CCR), available at 
https://fgc.ca.gov/Regulations/Petition-for-Regulation-Change. To be received by the 
Commission at this meeting, petition forms must be delivered by the Supplemental Comment 
Deadline (or delivered in person at the meeting during the regulation change petitions agenda 
item). Petitions received at this meeting will be scheduled for consideration at the next 

file://///HQGroup3.AD.Dfg.Ca.Gov/HQ10/Groups/FGC/Meetings/Agendas/Templates/www.fgc.ca.gov
mailto:fgc@fgc.ca.gov
https://fgc.ca.gov/Regulations/Petition-for-Regulation-Change


 

12 

regularly scheduled business meeting, unless the petition is rejected under staff review 
pursuant to subsection 662(b), Title 14, CCR. 

Non-Regulatory Requests 

All non-regulatory requests will follow a two-meeting cycle to ensure proper review and 
thorough consideration of each item. All requests submitted by the Supplemental Comment 
Deadline (or heard during general public comment at the meeting) will be scheduled for 
receipt at this meeting and scheduled for consideration at the next regularly scheduled 
business meeting. 

Speaking at the Meeting 

To speak on an agenda item in-person, please complete a “speaker card" and provide it to 
the designated staff member before the agenda item is announced. Please complete one 
speaker card per item. Cards will be available near the entrance of the meeting room. 

To speak on an agenda item by webinar/teleconference, please “raise” your hand either 
through the Zoom function or by pressing *9 once on your phone when prompted at the 
beginning of the agenda item. 

1. In-person speakers will be identified in groups; please line up when your name is called. 
Speakers by webinar/teleconference will be identified by your Zoom display name or 
last three digits of your phone number; please pay attention to when your name or 
number is called. 

2. When addressing the Commission, please give your name and the name of any 
organization you represent, and provide your comments on the item under 
consideration. 

3. If there are several speakers with the same concerns, please appoint a spokesperson 
and avoid repetitive testimony. 

4. The presiding commissioner will allot between one and three minutes per speaker per 
agenda item, subject to the following exceptions: 

a. The presiding commissioner may allow up to five minutes to an individual 
speaker if a minimum of three individuals who are present when the agenda item 
is called have ceded their time to the designated spokesperson, and the 
individuals ceding time forfeit their right to speak to the agenda item. 

b. In-person participants ceding their time shall complete a speaker card and 
approach the staff table with the spokesperson so that staff may confirm the 
presence of those ceding their time. If you are participating via Zoom and ceding 
your time to another speaker, please notify the Commission at fgc@fgc.ca.gov 
prior to the start of the agenda item, including to whom you are ceding your time, 
and be present on Zoom during the agenda item. 

c. Individuals may receive advance approval for additional time to speak if requests 
for additional time to speak are received by email or delivery to the Commission 
office by the Supplemental Comment Deadline. The president or designee will 
approve or deny the request no later than 5:00 p.m. two days prior to the 
meeting. 

d. An individual requiring an interpreter is entitled to at least twice the allotted time 
pursuant to Government Code Section 11125.7(c). 



 

13 

e. An individual may receive additional time to speak to an agenda item at the 
request of any commissioner. 

Agenda items may be heard in any order and on either day pursuant to the discretion of 
the presiding commissioner. 

Visual Presentations/Materials 

All electronic presentations must be submitted by the Supplemental Comment Deadline and 
approved by the Commission executive director before the meeting. 

1. Electronic presentations must be provided by email to fgc@fgc.ca.gov. If the 
presentation file is too large to send via email, contact staff to identify an alternative 
method for submitting the file. 

2. All electronic formats must be Windows PC compatible. 

3. If presenting at the in-person meeting location, it is recommended that a print copy of 
any electronic presentation be submitted in case of technical difficulties. 

mailto:fgc@fgc.ca.gov


TITLE 14. Fish and Game Commission 
Notice of Proposed Changes in Regulations 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Fish and Game Commission (Commission), pursuant to the 
authority vested by sections 265 and 355 of the Fish and Game Code and to implement, interpret or 
make specific sections 265, 355 and 356 of said Code, proposes to amend Section 502, Title 14, 
California Code of Regulations, relating to waterfowl, migratory, American coot and common moorhen 
(common gallinule). 

Informative Digest/Policy Statement Overview 

Current regulations in Section 502, Title 14, California Code of Regulations (CCR), provide 
definitions, hunting zone descriptions, season opening and closing dates, and daily bag and 
possession limits for hunting of waterfowl. The proposed Frameworks for the 2023-24 season were 
approved by the four regional Flyway councils in August and at the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service 
(Service’s) Regulations Committee meeting in October. The Frameworks allow for a liberal duck 
season which includes: a 107-day season; a 7 daily duck limit including 7 mallards but only 2 hen 
mallards, 1 pintail, 2 canvasback, 2 redheads, and 2 scaup (during an 86-day season); and closing no 
later than January 31. The duck daily bag limits and season length, as well as the season lengths for 
geese, are provided as ranges below, to allow the Commission flexibility in determining the final 
regulations. 

A range of season length and bag limit (zero bag limit represents a closed season) are also provided 
for black brant. The range is necessary, as the black brant Framework cannot be determined until the 
Pacific Flyway Winter Brant Survey is conducted in January 2023. The black brant regulatory 
package is determined by the most current Winter Brant Survey, rather than the prior year survey. 
The proposed season length and bag limit will be updated per the Black Brant Harvest Strategy 
pending results of the January 2023 survey. See the Summary of Proposed Waterfowl Hunting 
Regulations for 2023-24 table, below.  

Lastly, Federal regulations provide that California’s hunting regulations shall conform to those of 
Arizona in the Colorado River Zone and those of Oregon in the North Coast Special Management 
Area. 

The Department recommended changes to Section 502 are: 

1) Increase the duck season length to 103 days in subsection 502(d)(2)(B) for the 

Southern San Joaquin Valley Zone, in subsection 502(d)(3)(B) for the Southern 

California Zone, and in subsection 502(d)(5)(B) for the Balance of State Zone.  

2) Increase the goose season length to 103 days in subsection 502(d)(2)(B) for the 

Southern San Joaquin Valley Zone and in subsection 502(d)(3)(B) for the Southern 

California Zone. 

3) Combine the Youth and Veterans and Active Military Personnel waterfowl hunting days 

in subsections 502(e)(1)(B) and 502(f)(1)(B) for the Northeastern California, Southern 

San Joaquin Valley, Southern California and Balance of State zones.  

4) Allow up to two days of falconry-only season in subsection 502(g)(1)(B) for the 

Northeastern California, Southern San Joaquin Valley, Southern California and Balance 

of State zones.  



2 

 

Minor editorial changes are also proposed to clarify and simplify the regulations and to comply with 
existing federal Frameworks. 

Benefits of the regulations 

The benefits of the proposed regulations are consistency with federal law and the sustainable 
management of the state’s waterfowl resources. Continued benefits to jobs and/or businesses that 
provide services to waterfowl hunters will be realized with the continued adoption of waterfowl hunting 
seasons in 2023-24. 

Evaluation of incompatibility with existing regulations 

The Commission has reviewed its regulations in Title 14, CCR, and conducted a search of other 
regulations on this topic and has concluded that the proposed amendments to Section 502 are 
neither inconsistent nor incompatible with existing State regulations. No other State agency has the 
authority to promulgate waterfowl hunting regulations. 

A summary of proposed waterfowl hunting regulations for 2023-24 in table format is available in the 
Initial Statement of Reasons. 

Public Participation 

Comments Submitted by Mail or Email 

It is requested, but not required, that written comments be submitted on or before April 6, 2023 at the 
address given below, or by email to FGC@fgc.ca.gov. Written comments mailed, or emailed to the 
Commission office, must be received before 12:00 noon on April 14, 2023. If you would like copies of 
any modifications to this proposal, please include your name and mailing address. Mailed comments 
should be addressed to Fish and Game Commission, PO Box 944209, Sacramento, CA 94244-2090. 

Meetings 

NOTICE IS GIVEN that any person interested may present statements, orally or in writing, relevant to 
this action at a hearing to be held in the Natural Resources Headquarters Building Auditorium, 715 P 
Street, Sacramento, CA 95814, which will commence at 8:30 a.m. on Wednesday, February 8, 2023, 
and may continue at 8:30 a.m. on Thursday, February 9, 2023, or as soon thereafter as the matter 
may be heard. This meeting will also include the opportunity to participate via webinar/teleconference. 
Instructions for participation in the webinar/teleconference hearing will be posted at www.fgc.ca.gov in 
advance of the meeting or may be obtained by calling 916-653-4899. Please refer to Commission 
meeting agenda, which will be available at least 10 days prior to the meeting, for the most current 
information. 

NOTICE IS ALSO GIVEN that any person interested may present statements, orally or in writing, 
relevant to this action at a webinar/teleconference hearing which will commence at 8:30 a.m. on 
Wednesday, April 19, 2023, and may continue at 8:30 a.m., on Thursday, April 20, 2023. Instructions 
for participation in the webinar/teleconference hearing will be posted at www.fgc.ca.gov in advance of 
the meeting or may be obtained by calling 916-653-4899. Please refer to Commission meeting 
agenda, which will be available at least 10 days prior to the meeting, for the most current information. 

mailto:FGC@dfg.ca.gov


3 

 

Availability of Documents 

Copies of the Notice of Proposed Action, the Initial Statement of Reasons, and the text of the 
regulation in underline and strikeout format can be accessed through the Commission website at 
www.fgc.ca.gov. The regulations as well as all related documents upon which the proposal is based 
(rulemaking file), are on file and available for public review from the agency representative, Melissa 
Miller-Henson, Executive Director, Fish and Game Commission, 715 P Street, Box 944209, 
Sacramento, California 94244-2090, phone (916) 653-4899. Please direct requests for the above-
mentioned documents and inquiries concerning the regulatory process to Melissa Miller-Henson or 
Maurene Trotter at FGC@fgc.ca.gov or at the preceding address or phone number. Melanie Weaver, 
Senior Environmental Scientist, Department of Fish and Wildlife, (916-502-1139 or 
Melanie.Weaver@wildlife.ca.gov) has been designated to respond to questions on the 
substance of the proposed regulations.  

Availability of Modified Text 

If the regulations adopted by the Commission differ from but are sufficiently related to the action 
proposed, they will be available to the public for at least 15 days prior to the date of adoption. 
Circumstances beyond the control of the Commission (e.g., timing of Federal regulation adoption, 
timing of resource data collection, timelines do not allow, etc.) or changes made to be responsive to 
public recommendation and comments during the regulatory process may preclude full compliance 
with the 15-day comment period, and the Commission will exercise its powers under Section 355 of 
the Fish and Game Code. Regulations adopted pursuant to this section are not subject to the time 
periods for adoption, amendment or repeal of regulations prescribed in sections 11343.4, 11346.4, 
11346.8 and 11347.1 of the Government Code. Any person interested may obtain a copy of said 
regulations prior to the date of adoption by contacting the agency representative named herein. 

If the regulatory proposal is adopted, the final statement of reasons may be obtained from the 
address above when it has been received from the agency program staff. 

Impact of Regulatory Action/Results of the Economic Impact Assessment 

The potential for significant statewide adverse economic impacts that might result from the proposed 
regulatory action has been assessed, and the following initial determinations relative to the required 
statutory categories have been made: 

(a) Significant Statewide Adverse Economic Impact Directly Affecting Business, Including the 
Ability of California Businesses to Compete with Businesses in Other States:  

The proposed action will not have a significant statewide adverse economic impact directly 
affecting business, including the ability of California businesses to compete with businesses in 
other states. 

The proposed regulations are expected to maintain a similar level of recreational waterfowl 
hunting opportunity for the public. Shifting days for general duck season affects available days 
for falconry-only seasons, which must also be adjusted annually so total season length does 
not exceed 107 days. 

http://www.fgc.ca.gov/
mailto:FGC@fgc.ca.gov


4 

 

(b) Impact on the Creation or Elimination of Jobs Within the State, the Creation of New 
Businesses or the Elimination of Existing Businesses, or the Expansion of Businesses in 
California; Benefits of the Regulation to the Health and Welfare of California Residents, Worker 
Safety, and the State’s Environment:  

The Commission does not anticipate any impacts on the creation or elimination of jobs, the 

creation of new business, the elimination of existing businesses, or the expansion of 

businesses in California. The proposed waterfowl regulations will set the 2023-24 waterfowl 

hunting season dates and bag limits within the federal Frameworks. A total hunting season 

length of 107 days and shifts in days amongst the season types suggest that the number of 

hunter-days remains similar to that in previous years, with little to no impacts to jobs and/or 

businesses that provide services to waterfowl hunters. The Commission anticipates that the 

proposed 2023-24 waterfowl hunting regulations provide benefit for the health and welfare of 

California residents by providing opportunity for outdoor activity. The Commission expects no 

benefits to worker safety but does expect benefit to the environment in that setting these 

regulations facilitates maintenance of sufficient waterfowl populations and their habitats while 

providing for the public’s beneficial use and enjoyment. The most recent Service National 

Survey of Fishing, Hunting, and Wildlife-Associated Recreation for California estimated that 

migratory bird hunters contributed about $169 million to the state economy during the 2011 

migratory bird hunting season. However, minor variations in hunting regulations such as the 

ones proposed for waterfowl are, by themselves, unlikely to provide notable economic stimulus 

to the state. Businesses that support waterfowl hunting are generally small businesses 

employing a few individuals and, like all small businesses, are subject to failure for a variety of 

causes. The long-term intent of the proposed regulations is to sustainably manage waterfowl 

populations, and consequently, the long-term viability of the same small businesses. 

(c) Cost Impacts on a Representative Private Person or Business:  

The Commission is not aware of any cost impacts that a representative private person or 
business would necessarily incur in reasonable compliance with the proposed action. 

(d) Costs or Savings to State Agencies or Costs/Savings in Federal Funding to the State:  

None. 

(e) Nondiscretionary Costs/Savings to Local Agencies:  

None. 

(f) Programs Mandated on Local Agencies or School Districts:  

None. 

(g) Costs Imposed on any Local Agency or School District that is Required to be Reimbursed 
Under Part 7 (commencing with Section 17500) of Division 4, Government Code:  

None. 



5 

 

(h) Effect on Housing Costs:  

None. 

Effect on Small Business 

It has been determined that the adoption of these regulations may affect small business. The 
Commission has drafted the regulations in Plain English pursuant to Government Code 
Sections 11342.580 and 11346.2(a)(1). 

Consideration of Alternatives 

The Commission must determine that no reasonable alternative considered by the Commission, or 
that has otherwise been identified and brought to the attention of the Commission, would be more 
effective in carrying out the purpose for which the action is proposed, would be as effective and less 
burdensome to affected private persons than the proposed action, or would be more cost effective to 
affected private persons and equally effective in implementing the statutory policy or other provision 
of law. 

FISH AND GAME COMMISSION 

Dated: 1/10/2023 
Melissa Miller-Henson 
Executive Director 



 

 

TITLE 14. Fish and Game Commission 

Notice of Proposed Changes in Regulations 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Fish and Game Commission (Commission), 

pursuant to the authority vested by sections 200, 203, 203.1, 265, 332 and 1050 of the 

Fish and Game Code and to implement, interpret, or make specific sections 332, 1050, 

1570, 1571, 1572, 1573 and 1574 of said Code, proposes to amend Sections 364 and 

364.1 of Title 14, California Code of Regulations related to elk hunting.  

Informative Digest/Policy Statement Overview 

 

Current regulations in Section 364 provide definitions, hunting zone descriptions, 

season opening and closing dates, methods of take (e.g., general methods, 

archery only, muzzleloader only), tag designations (e.g., bull, spike bull, 

antlerless, and either-sex), tag quotas (total number of hunting tags to be made 

available), and bag and possession limits for elk hunting. Section 364.1 provides 

season opening and closing dates, methods of take, tag designations, tag 

quotas, and bag and possession limits for elk hunting administered through the 

SHARE hunt program. Individuals are awarded an elk hunting tag through the 

Department’s Big Game Drawing or SHARE hunt program drawing.  

Harvest of an elk is authorized for an individual awarded a tag for a respective 

hunt zone or SHARE property and season. Tag quotas are established based on 

a variety of factors including population density and abundance, age and sex 

composition, elk distribution, and human-elk conflict levels, among other 

population objectives, factors, and considerations. The Department has identified 

the following areas where increased public elk hunting opportunities are feasible 

and support achievement of population objectives: 

Tejon Rocky Mountain Elk Management Unit. Currently there is no hunt zone 

established which authorizes public elk harvest in the Tejon Rocky Mountain 

Elk Management Unit 

Bear Valley and Cache Creek Tule Elk Hunt Zones. Current (2022) public tag 

quota for these zones are 1 antlerless tag and 2 bull tags (Bear Valley), and 1 

apprentice bull tag, 2 antlerless tags, and 2 bull tags (Cache Creek).  

Siskiyou Roosevelt Elk Hunt Zone. Current (2022) public tag quota for the 

Siskiyou Hunt Zone is 20 antlerless tags and 20 bull tags. The bull and 

antlerless hunt periods are concurrent.  

Northwestern Roosevelt Elk Hunt Zone. Current (2022) public tag quota for 

the Northwestern Hunt Zone is 15 antlerless tags, 3 bull tags, and 3 either-

sex tags. 



 

 

La Panza Tule Elk Hunt Zone and Central Coast Tule Elk Management Unit. 

Current (2022) public tag quotas for the La Panza Hunt Zone is 1 apprentice 

antlerless tag, 11 antlerless tags across two hunt periods (5 and 6 tags, 

respectively), and 12 bull tags across two hunt periods (6 and 6, respectively). 

There is currently no authorized public elk harvest in the Central Coast Tule 

Elk Management Unit.  

The proposed regulatory changes will:  

Siskiyou Roosevelt Elk Hunt Zone. Set public tag quota for the Siskiyou Hunt 

Zone to 20 bull tags and 30 antlerless tags. Shift the bull season from 

September to October. 

Northwestern Roosevelt Elk Hunt Zone. Set public tag quota for the 

Northwestern Hunt Zone to 25 bull tags, 15 antlerless tags, and 3 either-sex 

tags. 

Bear Valley and Cache Creek Tule Elk Hunt Zones. Modify adjacent Hunt 

Zone boundaries to bound demographically and genetically interacting 

populations.  

The goals and benefits of the regulations are to help achieve management 

objectives related to current environmental, biological, and social conditions 

related to relevant elk populations.  

Tejon Rocky Mountain Elk Management Unit. Create a Tehachapi Rocky 

Mountain Elk Hunt Zone and General Methods Hunt, with tag allowances set 

at 5 bull and 10 antlerless. 

La Panza Tule Elk Hunt Zone and Central Coast Tule Elk Management Unit. 

Decrease the size of the La Panza Hunt Zone, create a new Gabilan Tule Elk 

Hunt Zone, and create a new Central Coast Tule Elk Zone, which 

incorporates the existing Camp Roberts Tule Elk Management Unit. For each 

of the new Hunt Zones, create a General Methods Hunt, with tag allowances 

set at: 6 bull and 5 antlerless (La Panza Period 1), 6 bull and 5 antlerless (La 

Panza Period 2), 10 bull and 10 antlerless (Central Coast), and 4 bull and 6 

antlerless (Gabilan). 

The Department is proposing changes to the following regulations in Title 14, CCR: 

 

• Section 364. Elk Hunts, Seasons, and Number of Tags 

• Section 364.1. Department Administered Shared Habitat Alliance for Recreational 

Enhancement (SHARE) Elk Hunts 



 

 

Benefit of the Regulations:  

 

The proposed regulatory action is designed to help achieve management objectives 

related to current environmental, biological, and social conditions, as outlined in the Elk 

Conservation and Management Plan. 

Consistency and Compatibility with Existing Regulations:  

 

Article IV, Section 20 of the State Constitution specifies that the Legislature may 

delegate to Commission such powers relating to the protection and propagation of fish 

and game as the Legislature sees fit. Commission staff has searched the California 

Code of Regulations and has found no other state regulations that address the 

definitions, hunting zone descriptions, season opening and closing dates, methods of 

take (e.g., general methods, archery only, muzzleloader only), tag designations (e.g., 

bull, spike bull, antlerless, and either-sex), tag quotas (total number of hunting tags to 

be made available), and bag and possession limits for elk hunting. The Commission has 

reviewed its own regulations and finds that the proposed regulations are consistent with 

other big game mammal regulations in Title 14, CCR, and therefore finds that the 

proposed regulations are neither inconsistent nor incompatible with existing state 

regulations.  

Public Participation 

 

NOTICE IS GIVEN that any person interested may present statements, orally or in 

writing, relevant to this action at a hearing to be held at the California Natural 

Resources Agency Headquarters 1st Floor Auditorium, 715 P Street, Sacramento, 

California, 95814 commencing at 8:30 a.m. on Wednesday, February 8, 2023, and 

may continue at 8:30 a.m. on Thursday, February 9, 2023. This meeting will also 

include the opportunity to participate via webinar/teleconference. Instructions for 

participation in the webinar/teleconference hearing will be posted at www.fgc.ca.gov in 

advance of the meeting or may be obtained by calling 916-653-4899. Please refer to 

Commission meeting agenda, which will be available at least 10 days prior to the 

meeting, for the most current information. 

NOTICE IS ALSO GIVEN that any person interested may present statements, orally or 

in writing, relevant to this action at a webinar/teleconference will commence at 8:30 

a.m. on Wednesday, April 19, 2023, and may continue at 8:30 a.m. on Thursday, 

April 20, 2023. Instructions for participation in the webinar/teleconference hearing will 

be posted at www.fgc.ca.gov in advance of the meeting or may be obtained by calling 

916-653-4899. Please refer to Commission meeting agenda, which will be available at 

least 10 days prior to the meeting, for the most current information. 

It is requested, but not required, that written comments be submitted by 5:00 p.m. on 

April 6, 2023 at the address given below, or by email to FGC@fgc.ca.gov. Written 

comments mailed, or emailed to the Commission office, must be received before 



 

 

12:00 noon on April 14, 2023. If you would like copies of any modifications to this 

proposal, please include your name and mailing address. Mailed comments should be 

addressed to Fish and Game Commission, 715 P Street, 16th Floor, Sacramento, CA 

95814. 

Availability of Documents 

 

Copies of the Notice of Proposed Action, the Initial Statement of Reasons, and the text 

of the regulation in underline and strikeout format can be accessed through the 

Commission website at www.fgc.ca.gov. The regulations as well as all related 

documents upon which the proposal is based (rulemaking file), are on file and available 

for public review from the agency representative, Melissa Miller-Henson, Executive 

Director, Fish and Game Commission, 715 P Street, 16th Floor, Sacramento, California 

95814, phone (916) 653-4899. Please direct requests for the above-mentioned 

documents and inquiries concerning the regulatory process to Melissa Miller-Henson or 

David Haug at FGC@fgc.ca.gov or at the preceding address or phone number. 

Elk and Pronghorn Coordinator, Thomas Batter, Department of Fish and Wildlife, 

(Thomas.Batter@wildlife.ca.gov or (916)373-6627), has been designated to 

respond to questions on the substance of the proposed regulations. 

Availability of Modified Text 

 

If the regulations adopted by the Commission differ from but are sufficiently related to 

the action proposed, they will be available to the public for at least 15 days prior to the 

date of adoption. Circumstances beyond the control of the Commission (e.g., timing of 

Federal regulation adoption, timing of resource data collection, timelines do not allow, 

etc.) or changes made to be responsive to public recommendation and comments 

during the regulatory process may preclude full compliance with the 15-day comment 

period, and the Commission will exercise its powers under Section 265 of the Fish and 

Game Code. Regulations adopted pursuant to this section are not subject to the time 

periods for adoption, amendment or repeal of regulations prescribed in sections 

11343.4, 11346.4, 11346.8 and 11347.1 of the Government Code. Any person 

interested may obtain a copy of said regulations prior to the date of adoption by 

contacting the agency representative named herein. 

If the regulatory proposal is adopted, the final statement of reasons may be obtained 

from the address above when it has been received from the agency program staff. 

 

Impact of Regulatory Action/Results of the Economic Impact Assessment 

 

The potential for significant statewide adverse economic impacts that might result 

from the proposed regulatory action has been assessed, and the following initial 

determinations relative to the required statutory categories have been made: 



 

 

(a) Significant Statewide Adverse Economic Impact Directly Affecting 

Businesses, Including the Ability of California Businesses to Compete with 

Businesses in Other States 

The proposed regulation will not have a significant statewide adverse 

economic impact directly affecting business, including the ability of California 

businesses to compete with businesses in other states. This regulatory action 

will not impose cost impacts that a representative business would necessarily 

incur in reasonable compliance with the proposed regulation. 

(b) Impact on the Creation or Elimination of Jobs Within the State, the Creation of 

New Businesses or the Elimination of Existing Businesses, or the Expansion 

of Businesses in California; Benefits of the Regulation to the Health and 

Welfare of California Residents, Worker Safety, and the State’s Environment.  

The Commission does not anticipate impacts on the creation or elimination of 

jobs within the state, the creation of new business, the elimination of existing 

businesses, or the expansion of businesses in California because the 

expected economic impacts of the proposed regulations are unlikely to be 

substantial enough to substantially stimulate demand for goods or services 

related to elk hunting. If greater numbers of hunters visit the areas in the state 

with increased opportunities, businesses that provide goods and services to 

elk hunters could benefit from small increases in sales. The Commission does 

not anticipate direct benefits to the general health and welfare of California 

residents, the environment, or to worker safety, however California residents 

will benefit generally through access to the expanded recreational 

opportunities created by the proposed changes. 

(c) Cost Impacts on a Representative Private Person or Business 

The Commission is not aware of any cost impacts that a representative 

private person or business would necessarily incur in reasonable compliance 

with the proposed action. 

(d) Costs or Savings to State Agencies or Costs/Savings in Federal Funding to 

the State 

The Department anticipates an estimated $57,891 increase in tag sales 

revenue with the implementation of the proposed regulation for the potential 

sale of 111 resident elk tags and 1 non-resident elk tag. Changes to elk hunt 

zone boundaries and the creation of new zones is not anticipated to have a 

costs or savings impact, as existing zones for other species under 

Department jurisdiction will overlap with those proposed. Therefore, no 

operational changes are necessary.  

(e) Nondiscretionary Costs/Savings to Local Agencies 



 

 

None. 

(f) Programs Mandated on Local Agencies or School Districts 

None. 

(g) Costs Imposed on Any Local Agency or School District that is Required to be 

Reimbursed Under Part 7 (commencing with Section 17500) of Division 4, 

Government Code 

None. 

(h) Effect on Housing Costs 

None. 

 

Effect on Small Business  

 

It has been determined that the adoption of these regulations may affect small business. 

The Commission has drafted the regulations in Plain English pursuant to Government 

Code Sections 11342.580 and 11346.2(a)(1). 

 

Consideration of Alternatives 

 

The Commission must determine that no reasonable alternative considered by the 

Commission, or that has otherwise been identified and brought to the attention of the 

Commission, would be more effective in carrying out the purpose for which the action is 

proposed, would be as effective and less burdensome to affected private persons than 

the proposed action, or would be more cost effective to affected private persons and 

equally effective in implementing the statutory policy or other provision of law. 

 

FISH AND GAME COMMISSION 

 

Dated: January 20, 2022  

 

Melissa Miller-Henson 

Executive Director

 

 


	 Call to Order (Unless otherwise specified by time, items scheduled for either the morning or afternoon sessions will be heard according to available time and presence of interested persons.) 
	1) Public Comment on Closed Session Item(s) Comments 

	 Closed Session
	2) Conference with County's Labor Negotiators – Pursu
	3) Public Employee Performance Evaluation – Pursuant 

	 Open Session
	4) Pledge of Allegiance
	Agenda Request Form

	5) Report on Closed Session as Required by Law
	6) Introductions - The following new employees will b
	7) County Department Reports
	8) Public Comment Comments may be time-limited

	 Consent Agenda
	9) Approval of Board of Supervisors Meeting Minutes
	Agenda Request Form

	10) 2023 Legislative Platform
	Agenda Request Form
	Inyo County 2023 Federal Leg Agenda - Redline for final approval
	Inyo County 2023 Federal Leg Agenda - Clean for final approval

	11) Local Agency Technical Assistance Grant
	Agenda Request Form
	County of Inyo LATA Award Letter
	Inyo Gov Agency Taxpayer ID Form
	Inyo County LATA Consent Form 9-27-22

	12) CPS Human Resources Agreement Amendment
	Agenda Request Form
	CPS HR Consulting Contract Amendment 1
	CPS HR Consulting Contract

	13) AB 361 Findings Regarding Remote Board of Supervis
	Agenda Request Form
	AB 361 Public Meeting Recommendations

	14) Data Sharing Agreement Provided by Cal HHS
	Agenda Request Form
	CHHS DSA Policies and Procedures
	CalHHS Agreement

	15) Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Childrens Medical Services
	Agenda Request Form
	CMS Plan - Awaiting Signatures

	16) Amendment  No. 1 to Helix Environmental Planning, 
	Agenda Request Form
	Amendment No. 1 to HELIX Contract
	HELIX Contract

	17) Request to Reserve Portuguese Joe Campground
	Agenda Request Form

	18) Request to Reserve Tinnemaha Campground
	Agenda Request Form

	19) Road Closure for Frontier California Encroachment 
	Agenda Request Form

	20) Road Closure for T&T Truck and Crane Service
	Agenda Request Form
	Encroachment Permit Application
	Work Order Map TD1812242
	Updated Traffic Control Plan for Highland Drive

	21) Amendment No. 1 to Cardno, Inc. Contract
	Agenda Request Form
	Amendment 1 - Cardno Lone Pine Streets


	 Regular Agenda - Morning
	22) Caltrans Presentation of the California Road Charg
	Agenda Request Form
	Caltrans News Release
	Info Sheet - Caltrans Pilot Study
	Learn More - Road Charge Test

	23) Annual Appointment of Representatives to Tribal Co
	Agenda Request Form
	Final Tribal Consultation Policy

	24) Email Retention Policy
	Agenda Request Form
	Resolution and Email Retention Policy

	25) Presentation on Inyo County Housing Efforts
	Agenda Request Form
	RFP for ADU Program


	 Lunch
	26) The Board will recess for lunch and reconvene for 

	 Regular Agenda - Afternoon
	27) Presentation on Information Services Department
	Agenda Request Form
	Information Services Update 2023 02 07

	28) Presentation on the Office of the Public Administr
	Agenda Request Form
	Public Administrator/Public Guardian PowerPoint 


	 Additional Public Comment & Reports
	29) Public Comment Comments may be time-limited
	30) Board Member and Staff ReportsReceive updates on r

	 Correspondence - Informational
	31) Treasurer-Tax Collector: Treasury Status Report - 
	Agenda Request Form
	12-31-2022 Treasury Status Report

	32) California Fish & Game Commission: A) Revised agen
	Fish & Game Commission Meeting Agenda Feb. 8-9 - REVISED
	Proposed Regulation Changes - Waterfowl
	Proposed Regulation Changes - Elk Hunting





